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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES OF
LANDSEA GREEN GROUP IN 2018
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. Certified
Passive House

Passive House Institute Darmstadt
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2018 Best 100 of China Real Estate Developers
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o On 10 March, the Passive House developed by Landsea in ®
Yanqging District, Beijing was awarded the PHI Plus Gold
Certificate of Germany at the 22nd International Passive House
Conference, becoming the first domestic project in China to
receive this certification.
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e On 21 March, Landsea Green Group was named among the “Top ~ ®

100 PRC Real Estate Developers 2018” and “Top 10 PRC Real
Estate Developers in Operating Performance 2018” (4th ranking)
jointly nominated by China Real Estate Association and China
Real Estate Appraisal Centre.

On 19 April, Landsea Green Group was named among the “Top
100 Hong Kong Stocks 2017 — Top 10 Revenue Growth”.

On 22 April, Landsea U.S. Property won gold in the BIA Bay Area
Awards.
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On 17 May, Landsea Green Fir Investment captured three major
awards at the 2nd “Annual Conference for Real Estate Equity
Investment & REITs”: “TOP10 Real Estate Equity Investment
Fund 2017”, “Most Sizeable Real Estate Merger & Acquisition
Fund 2017” and “Best Rated Inventory Real Estate Investment
Fund 2017”.

On 25 May, Landsea China won the title of “Top 100 PRC Real
Estate Listed Companies in terms of Comprehensive Strengths”
for the second year in a row and ranked among the top three
fastest-growing enterprises.

On 15 October, Landsea Homes (U.S.) won SoCal Awards of
South California.

On 18 October, Landsea Homes (U.S.) won the Excellence in
Home Building Awards.
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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES OF

L ANDSEA GREEN GROUP IN 2018
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On 25 October, Landsea was again named among the TOP30 in
the “CITI index for Green Supply Chain” at the Green Supply
Chain Forum 2018, being the only real estate developer included
in the TOP30 of the year’s “CITl index for Green Supply Chain”.

On 12 November, Landsea’s “Green Supply Chain Initiative for
the PRC Real Estate Industry” captured the “Outstanding Award
for Corporate Social Responsibility Case Study in Corporate
‘Social Value Co-Creation’ 2018” in the 3rd “ « i Social Value Co-
Creation” nomination of outstanding cases in corporate social
responsibility in the PRC.

In December, 3 Landsea projects, namely, Xihua Mansion
Chengdu, Le Mansion Hangzhou and BA%AE Tianjin, were
named for the “Excellence Award for Pleasant Residential
Communities” in the 15th Elite Awards.

On 6 December, Landsea New Mansion came first globally to
win the Health & Comfort Prize in the 6th Green Solutions Awards
hosted by “Construction 21 International”.
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MAJOR EVENTS IN 2018

On 11 January, Landsea signed an agreement with Pingan Real
Estate for strategic cooperation in long-term rental apartments,
marking the first cooperation with domestic insurance companies
in respect of long-term rental apartments.

In March, “Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd” was officially
renamed “Landsea Green Group Co., Ltd.”

On 21 March, Landsea Green Group signed a strategic
cooperation agreement with Cinda.

On 26 March, the “Product Launch Presentation for 4th-
generation Urban Residential Units” hosted by Landsea Green
Group was successfully held in Hangzhou.

In April, Landsea Green Group completed its debut launch of
green bonds, which were awarded the highest global green
evaluation rank by S&P.

On 2 April, the 14th “International Conference on Green and
Energy-Efficient Building & New Technologies and Products
Expo” was opened in Zhuhai.
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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES OF

LANDSEA GREEN GROUP IN 2018
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China Real Estate Fashion Awards
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On 26 April, Mr. Tian Ming, chairman of Landsea Green Group,
officially assumed the position of the 10th rotating chair of CURA.

On 5 June, the 6th “PRC Enterprise Green Pact Forum” co-
hosted by Landsea Green Group was successfully held in Beijing.

On 22 June, the “Landsea China ESG Development Index (ESGDI)
— Official Edition” was announced.

On 19 November, the headquarters of Landsea Green Group
moved into Landsea Green Center.

On 22 November, “Elite Space of Landsea Apartment (Sunland
Shanghai)”, being the first long-term rental apartment project
developed through the strategic cooperation platform of Landsea
Green Fir Investment and Pingan Real Estate, officially
commenced operations.
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In December, Landsea’s #BE € in Wuxi commenced operations
in the Company’s successful debut in community-oriented
commercial developments.

In December, approval was granted for the issuance of RMB5
billion shelf REITs on the Shanghai Stock Exchange on the back
of the long-term rental apartment project jointly developed by
Landsea Green Group and Pingan Real Estate Company Ltd.,
being the first of its kind in China.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TREHE
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| am pleased to present the business review for the year ended 31 K ARAM SR FIZSASHEEEEER QA
December 2018 and the prospects for 2019 of Landsea Green Group  ([BAEF | s [AAF ) ERENB AT (FE [ A&
Co., Ltd. (“Landsea” or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries BENHZE-_Z—N\E+_A=+—RHIEELKE
(collectively, the “Group”). BE-_ZE-NFRE-



2018 IN REVIEW

In 2018, China’s economy was under increasing downward pressure,
the real estate market had a pullback, notably showing a structural
adjustment. Due to rapid changes in the market, the Company has not
completely fulfilled the targets set up at the beginning of the year in
terms of contracted sales amount and value of new projects, however,
the Company has achieved satisfactory performance in net profit, net
gearing ratio, cash flow, product differentiation, management and
control model and team building.

OPERATING RESULTS

During the period under review, the Group’s profit for the year
amounted to approximately RMB1.44 billion, representing an increase
of 99.9% as compared to last year; the net core profit amounted to
RMB1.27 billion, representing an increase of 36.1% as compared with
the corresponding period of last year; the development management
service fee income from independent third parties or cooperative
partners amounted to approximately RMB1.00 billion, representing an
increase of 32.8% as compared with the corresponding period of
2017, and the profit after tax for development management services
was approximately RMB350 million, representing an increase of 11.7%
as compared with the corresponding period of last year. In addition, for
the year ended 31 December 2018, Landsea Group recorded
contracted sales of approximately RMB38.15 billion, with contracted
gross floor areas of approximately 1.965 million square meters. In
2018, the Group acquired a total of 28 projects, including 20 projects
in the PRC and 8 projects in US.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TREHE

PRODUCT DIFFERENTIATION AND
STANDARDISATION

Adhering to the core value of “building home for people” under the
production principle of “building first, and the equipment second” ( 5t
325 1% £ 4% ), Landsea has carried out its construction projects
by computer-aided model analysis and design optimisation, offering its
customers residential products with the advantages of wellness,
comfort, intelligence, energy-saving and environmental protection.
During the period, the Company continued to enhance its capability of
green differentiation products and effectively facilitated the
standardisation of the four product lines, namely “Le Mansion”, “Xihua
Mansion”, “Linglong” and “Future Block”.

The “Le Mansion” product line targets the top-tier customers with
newly built green residence of high comfort, including villas and
mansions in the CBD areg;

The “Xihua Mansion” product line targets the upper-tier customers with
newly built cluster-residence of high-comfort;

The “Linglong” product line targets middle-to-upper-tier customers
with newly built cluster-residence of a unit-by-unit system;

“Future Block” targets the inelastic demand from middle-tier customers
with complex residential communities newly built according to a green
idea.

With regard to the above four product lines, the Company provided its
staff with systematic product training, with a view to effectively improve
the capability of product and development services of all operating
units.
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EXTENSIVE EXPLORATION OF INNOVATIVE
BUSINESS MODEL

The Company has determinedly executed its strategy of “product-
differentiation, asset-light transformation and revenue-diversification”
for transformation and upgrade, and explored all possibilities in
innovative business, including newly developed green residential
community, passive house (Northern China Passive House), residential
rehabilitation (Shanghai Landsea New Mansion), public rehabilitation
(China Europe International Business School Shenzhen Campus, New
York Manhattan Synagogue Project), green office transformation
(Landsea Green Centre in Shanghai) and commercial community (Wuxi
Neighbourhood Union).

More importantly, the headquarters of Landsea have moved into
Landsea Green Center (‘LGC”) in Shanghai in 2018. Such integration
of green architecture has demonstrated the application of old building
rehabilitation and green office. Application for LEED and WELL
Platinum Certification (U.S.), DGNB Certificate (Germany) and Green
Building Evaluation Label (China three star) is in progress, and Landsea
Green Centre is expected to become the first project with the four top
eco-accreditations in the world.

Maximised competitiveness of product differentiation has prepared the
flexibility for the Company to meet the changes in policies and market
demands while staying in line with its strategies. Active implementation
of the “asset-light” business model focusing on minority interests has
secured projects with a majority of cooperative projects, with sources
of revenue including income from development services, product
integration and profit-sharing. The outstanding brand effect of “Landsea
Product” and the core ability of product differentiation can attract
financial institutions, well-known large and medium-sized enterprises to
enter into strategic cooperation with the Company for advantages
complementary to each other.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TREHE

PRUDENT AND STABLE BUSINESS STRATEGY
Amidst changes in the market in 2018, Landsea has, as always,
maintained its operation stability with its prudent business strategy. In
terms of investment, Landsea focused on metropolitan regions
including Yangtze River Delta, Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region and
Chengdu-Chongging region, as well as other second-tier cities,
avoiding the most expensive piece of land. In terms of financing, the
Company actively explored a wide range of financing approaches,
including taking advantage of favorable market conditions to
successfully issue the green bonds in an aggregated amount of
US$200 million in the first half of 2018, which received the world’s
highest rating in terms of green standard certification by S&P. We have
also achieved breakthrough in asset securitization financing.
Continuous optimisation of debt structure has reduced finance costs.
A prudent strategy of operation that ensured sufficient cash flow and
lower debt level has laid a solid foundation for healthy development.

The Group’s “Green Fir Investment” has integrated the entire workflow
of “financing, investment, management, exiting” of real estate funds,
allowing the Group to carry out various innovative exploration and
secure projects through different means including acquisition and
merger of assets and equity and distressed assets package. As at 31
December 2018, Green Fir Investment managed assets of
approximately RMB8.76 billion, firmly supporting the development of
the core business.

In U.S, the Company expanded its presence into Phenix City, a new
market with high growth potential in 2018, in addition to its unceasing
development across East Coast and West Coast. A total of 16 projects
in the U.S. provided Landsea Homes with increasing brand reputation
as a Chinese real estate pioneer penetrating the U.S. market. During
the period, our U.S. company recorded favourable results of operation
with significant growth in revenue and profit by continuously
implementing strategy of localization.

The Group’s related business, such as long-term rental apartments,
elderly care services, property management and design, have also
yielded substantial growth through continuous exploration during the
year.
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CORPORATE CULTURE AND SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

With strong adherence to the core value of “people-oriented, positive
and green”, Landsea stands firm against bribery and official
embezzlement, with zero tolerance of corruption. During the period, a
few cases of corruption was successfully prevented, protecting the
interest of the Company.

Landsea has attached importance to the balance of environment,
social and governance in order to substantiate the concept of
sustainable development. Landsea has continued to encourage other
domestic property development enterprises to participate in “China’s
Real Estate Industry Green Supply Chain Action”, advocating “green
procurement only”, with an aim to pursue a green value chain and
encourage efficiency in resource use.

OUTLOOK FOR 2019

LANDSCAPE ANALYSIS

The PRC’s economy has gradually entered a stage of development
from high-speed growth to moderate speed of growth. The real estate
industry has seen its turning point with the entering of new
development stage due to the shift in modes of development. We have
strong belief that our clear strategy, healthy corporate culture and
competitiveness of product differentiation are the keys to seize better
opportunities.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TREHE

FOCUSING ON GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND
SEGREGATING INNOVATIVE BUSINESS

The market capitalisation of the Group has not been reflected in the
capital market for years. In addition of product differentiation, revenue
from development services and real estate business in the U.S.,
Landsea has broadwise and diversified innovative businesses with
value creation, such as property management, long-term leasing,
elderly care services and design. However, diversified business with
perplexity may not be easy for the capital market to understand the
Group, marketing expenses for the Group could be unduly high. Some
of the Group’s infant innovative business reduced the Groups’ profit for
the year and partially impaired the share price of the Company, it is
apparently not in the interest of the shareholders of the Company. As
such, we propose to segregate the innovative business at its initial
stage from the real estate business in phases. Landsea Group Co.
Ltd., the controlling shareholder of the Group, will be responsible for
nurturing the innovative business and continue to promote healthy
growth of such business. As such, the Company will focus on a clear
green property development business line. Despite a loss for the year
from the innovative business, the net return on assets remained above
30%. Upon the segregation of the non-property business, the profit
margin, return on assets, net return on assets of the Company are
expected to further improve.

The Company would like to unveil the profitability of Landsea to the
market through the proposal and the reasons behind for segregating
innovative business, i.e. competitiveness of product differentiation and
revenue from light-asset services model thereon.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Landsea — an enterprise of humanity and idealism — has the vision of
being an esteemed enterprise with continuous innovation, value for
customers and adherence to green strategy. The continuous support
from stakeholders and valuable contribution from the dedicated staff at
all levels are essential to the strong development of the Group. On
behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to extend our
heartfelt gratitude to our staff, investors and business associates for
their support. We will continuously create value for our customers,
staff, shareholders, cooperative partners and other stakeholders.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

MR. TIAN MING (“MR. TIAN”)

Aged 58, was appointed as the Chairman of the Board and an
executive Director on 31 July 2013. He is the chairman of the
nomination committee and the sustainable development supervision
committee, and a member of the remuneration committee of the
Company. He is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He
has a Master of Business Administration from China Europe
International Business School. Mr. Tian founded Landsea Group Co.
Ltd. BAFFEEMR KD BRAR]) (‘Landsea”) in 2001. He is now the
largest shareholder and also the Chairman and President of Landsea
and its subsidiaries (“Landsea Group”). Mr. Tian has 18 years’
extensive experience in the fields of competitive strategy, operation
management and property investment and development. Committed
to “green development” and “sustainability”, Mr. Tian is an advocator of
environmental protection and pioneer of green technology and property
in the industry.

Mr. Tian initiated the “Green Supply Chain Act of Real Estate Industry”,
which aims to mitigate the negative effect of the industrial supply chain
on the environment by promoting green procurement and facilitating
the emission reduction of upstream suppliers.

MS. SHEN LEYING (“MS. SHEN”)

Aged 41, was appointed as an executive Director on 31 July 2013. She
is also the Co-Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of
the Company. Ms. Shen oversees the Group’s financial management,
investment and financing as well as capital management functions, and
also serves as the person-in-charge of the business department of
Green Fir Investment of the Company. She obtained a Master’s degree
of Media Communication from Shanghai University. Ms. Shen joined
Landsea Group in 2011 and served as the general manager of Marketing
and Sales Center, general manager of Nanjing property regional
company, vice president of investment and financing, finance
management, and legal in Landsea Group. Before joining Landsea
Group, Ms. Shen had been working in Gallup Consulting for nine years
and served in the positions such as research and consulting director,
member of the Management Committee of Shanghai Office. Ms. Shen
has more than 17 years’ experience in various areas including
management consulting, market and customer strategy, property
development management, investment and financing, financial
management, etc.
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MR. WANG LEI (“MR. WANG”)

Aged 40, was appointed as an executive Director and a Co-Chief
Executive Officer on 23 November 2018. He is also the Chief Executive
Officer of the China real estate division of the Company. He was
appointed as the executive vice president and chief executive officer of
Real Estates Division of Landsea Group on 9 May 2018. He had been
the general manager of Shanghai regional properties company of the
Group. He obtained a bachelor degree from Architectural Engineering
Department of Tongji University and an EMBA master degree in China
Europe International Business School. He had worked for Jingrui
Properties (Group) Limited, China Overseas Land & Investment Limited
as the regional general manager and project manager. He has
extensive experience in construction management, project operational
management and corporate governance in real estate industry.

MS. ZHOU QIN (“MS. ZHOU”)

Aged 45, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 5 January
2015 and was re-designated as an executive Director on 15 August
2016. She is also a member of the remuneration committee of the
Company. Ms. Zhou is also the Vice President and Chief International
Business Officer of the Company. Ms. Zhou earned her Executive
Master of Business Administration degree from China Europe
International Business School in 2001 and MBA degree from Nanjing
University. Ms. Zhou has nearly 23 years’ experience in business
development, investment and operation management in real estate.
She joined Landsea Group in 2002 and served as the regional general
manager in multiple locations, such as Nanjing, Suzhou and Shanghai.
After that Ms. Zhou led Landsea Group’s global strategic deployment
while serving as the assistant to Chairman, general manager of
Shanghai Landsea Architecture Technology Co., Ltd., and general
manager of Landsea Architecture Design Institute.

Currently, Ms. Zhou is the vice president of Landsea Group and
responsible for overseas business exploration. She played the
fundamental role to facilitate Landsea Group’s US business
development and investment. Since 1 December 2014, she served on
the board of directors in a Landsea Group’s company in U.S.A. and
also the chairman of its investment committee.
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MR. XIE YUANJIAN (“MR. XIE”)

Aged 54, was appointed as an executive Director on 31 July 2013. He
is also the Vice President and the Chief Technology Officer of the
Company. He is a member of the sustainable development supervision
committee of the Company. He has a Bachelor of Architecture from
Logistical Engineering University of PLA, Masters of Business
Administration in China Europe International Business School, and is a
national first class registered architect and senior engineer. Mr. Xie
joined Landsea Group in 2003 and served as the general manager of
research and development and design institute, general manager of
product center, and vice president of products in Landsea Group,
where he had been in charge of the work related to green architectural
products and technology for a long time. Mr. Xie has more than 21
years’ working experience in the fields of architectural design and
technology research and development.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

MR. ZHOU YIMIN (“MR. ZHOU”)

Aged 60, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 17 November
2015. He is a member of each of the audit committee and nomination
committee of the Company. He is the chairman and chief executive
officer of Ping An Real Estate Company Limited. Mr. Zhou joined Ping
An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd. in early 2010 after
spending more than 12 years in Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, one
of the largest global real estate developers headquartered in Hong
Kong. During his time at Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, Mr. Zhou
was the chairman of Sun Hung Kai Real Estate (Shanghai) Limited,
overseeing its real estate business in the China market and the
significant growth in its land bank and investment portfolio. Prior to his
term at Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, Mr. Zhou was the vice
chairman of Chu Kong Shipping Enterprises (Group) Co., Ltd. (formerly
known as ‘Chu Kong Shipping Development Co., Ltd’), which was
successfully listed on the Stock Exchange in 1997. Mr. Zhou has been
a non-executive director of CIFl Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. (Stock
Code: 884) from December 2017 to November 2018, whose shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Zhou graduated from Fudan
University with a doctorate degree.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MR. DING YUAN (“MR. DING”)

Aged 49, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
31 July 2013. He is the chairman of the audit committee and a member
of each of the nomination committee and the remuneration committee
of the Company. He has a PHD of Management Science from College
of Business Administration, Bordeaux IV University in France. Mr. Ding
used to serve as a tenured professor of Accounting and Management
Control in HEC School of Management in France. Currently, he is the
Vice President and Dean, Cathay Capital Chair in Accounting in China
Europe International Business School and the associate editor of
European Accounting Review. Mr. Ding is an independent non-
executive director of Man Wah Holdings Limited, whose shares are
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, and has been an
independent non-executive director of Red Star Macalline Group
Corporation Ltd, whose shares are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange, from March 2012 to November 2018. He has also
been an independent director of TCL Corporation (TCLE B D ERE A
7)), an A-share listed company from June 2008 to August 2014 as well
as an independent director of Maglndustries Corp., a TSX listed
company in Canada from July 2011 to June 2015. Mr. Ding has more
than 21 years’ experience in teaching and studying financial
accounting, financial statement analysis, corporate governance and
M&AS.

MR. XU XIAONIAN (“MR. XU”)

Aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
31 July 2013. He is a member of each of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee, the nomination committee and the
sustainable development supervision committee of the Company. He
obtained a PHD of Economics from University of California Davis in
1991. He was the managing director and head of research department
in China International Capital Corporation Limited, and senior
economist of Merrill Lynch (Asia Pacific) and consultant of World Bank.
Currently, Mr. Xu serves as the professor of Economics and Finance in
China Europe International Business School and his research areas
include macroeconomics, finance, financial institutions and markets,
transition economics and China’s economic reforms. Mr. Xu is a
famous Chinese economist and was granted the highest award of
economics study in China, the “Sun Yefang Economic Science Award”.
Mr. Xu has more than 33 years’ experience in economics analysis.
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MR. LEE KWAN HUNG (“MR. LEE”)

Aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
31 July 2013. He is a member of each of the audit committee and the
nomination committee of the Company, and the chairman of the
remuneration committee of the Company. He received his Bachelor of
Laws (Honors) and Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the University
of Hong Kong in 1988 and 1989 respectively. He was then admitted as
a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1991 and in England and Wales in 1997,
and is currently a practicing lawyer. Mr. Lee is currently a consultant of
Howse Williams. He was a senior manager of the Listing Division of the
Stock Exchange from 1993 to 1994. Mr. Lee is experienced in IPOs
and corporate financing, including assisting the listing of Country
Garden Holdings Company Limited in Hong Kong. Mr. Lee is currently
an independent non-executive director of each of Embry Holdings
Limited, NetDragon Websoft Holdings Limited, Newton Resources
Limited, Tenfu (Cayman) Holdings Company Limited, China
BlueChemical Ltd., China Goldjoy Group Limited, FSE Service Group
Limited (formerly known as FSE Engineering Holdings Limited), Red
Star Macalline Group Corporation Ltd. and Ten Pao Group Holdings
Limited, the shares of these companies are currently listed on the
Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-executive director of
each of Vestate Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as ‘Walker
Group Holdings Limited’) and Futong Technology Development
Holdings Limited, until his resignation on 1 April 2016 and 18
November 2017 respectively, the shares of these companies are listed
on the Stock Exchange.
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MR. CHEN TAI-YUAN (“MR. CHEN”)

Aged 43, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
22 March 2019. He is a tenured Full Professor of Accounting, and
Associate Dean and the Director of MBA programs at the School of
Business and Management at Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology. He earned his Bachelor of Business Administration from
National Cheng-Chi University (Taiwan), Master of Science from
University of lllinois at Urbana Champaign, and P.H.D. in Accounting
from University of Texas. His research interests are corporate
governance, auditing, and earnings quality. His research has been
published in top tier journals including The Accounting Review, Journal
of Accounting and Economics, Journal of Financial Economics, Journal
of Financial and Quantitative Analysis, and Accounting Organizations
and Society. His article in Journal of Accounting and Economics (2007)
(“JAE”) is one of the most cited JAE articles in the year. His research
has been featured in CFO.com, Accounting Today, Thomson Reuters
and American Accounting Association’s monthly newsletter. Mr. Chen
has more than 10 years of experience of teaching financial and
managerial accounting to MBA and EMBA students and in Executive
Education programs. He has won numerous teaching awards including
the Franklin Teaching Prize, the Best 10 Lecturers, and Faculty of the
Year by EMBA students.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

MR. JOHN HO (“MR. HO”)

Aged 37, was appointed as the Vice President of the Company and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Group in the United States on 18
March 2016. Mr. Ho graduated from USC Marshall School of Business
and obtained bachelor degree in Business Administration. He worked
in various international renowned real estate investment management
and advisory firms including Colliers International, Jones Lang LaSalle.
Mr. Ho served as a director, a vice president and the head of PRC
business division in Jones Lang LaSalle, and was responsible for the
provision of a wide range of services, such as acquisition, consultation,
leasing and comprehensive investment management of real estate, to
the PRC enterprises focusing on the expansion into the international
market.

MR. ZHANG LIN (“MR. ZHANG”)

Aged 41, was appointed as the General Manager of Long-term Rental
Apartments Business Division on 12 October 2017. He was also
appointed as the Vice President of the Company on 23 November
2018. Mr. Zhang had worked in the marketing and strategic
management centres of the Group. He graduated from the East China
Normal University and Shanghai Jiao Tong University and obtained a
master degree in International Business Administration. He had worked
in Budweiser and Shanghai Office of the Gallup Organization. He has
extensive experience in strategic management in rental apartments
industry and corporate governance.

MR. JIANG CHAO (“MR. JIANG”)

Aged 41, was appointed as assistant to president and Chief Investment
Officer of Lansea Group on 12 January 2017, and is also in charge of
the strategic expansion centre. He was also appointed as the Vice
President of the Company on 23 November 2018. He graduated from
Shenyang Jianzhu University with specialisation in Real Estate
Management. He has joined several enterprises including Longfor
Group Holdings Limited and China Vanke Co., Ltd., and served as the
person-in-charge of the investment centre and manager of the
development department for regional projects of the group. He has
extensive experience in real estate industry, land acquisition as well as
project acquisitions and mergers.
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COMPANY SECRETARY AAWE

Ms. Chan Yuen Ying, Stella PRI 2+

Ms. Chan was appointed as company secretary and authorized Bzt R-_ZEZNE+—FB—BEZTARAFZ
representative of the Company on 1 November 2006. Ms. Chanisa AFWEREERX BLTAEEESIWELS
fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and &555%¢#§¢w§@;m§,;,;§ ° ?)}UT?%%\;‘%%%
Administrators and a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Z& €8 WML tHABE_TEREBELIHTA
Company Secretaries. She is also a member of the Hong Kong fETH&KE -

Institute of Directors. Ms. Chan has over 20 years’ experience in

handling listed company secretarial matters.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB AT

OVERALL PERFORMANCE

The Group continued to deepen the development strategy of
“product-differentiation, asset-light transformation and revenue-
diversification”. Leveraging its resource endowments, on-going
optimisation of green products differentiation. Meanwhile, with the
advantages of green diversification products, the Group actively
expanded the asset-light business focusing on minority interests,
and vigorously developed project development and management
service business, with a view to achieve revenue-diversification.

In 2018, the Group’s return on equity (“ROE”) continued to increase to
30.3%, representing an increase of 10.8 percentage points as
compared to last year. Basic earnings per share attributable to the
shareholders of the company for the year was RMBO0.27 (2017:
RMBO0.14), representing an increase of approximately 90.2% as
compared to 2017. The increase in ROE and earnings per share was
mainly attributable to the significant increase in net profit for the year.
Meanwhile, thanks to the Group’s prudent financial strategy and
management over debt and cash level, the closing net debt ratio for
the year amounted to 34.0% (31 December 2017: 56.5%). The Group
had sufficient cash and healthy liquidity. Cash-to-short-term borrowing
ratio amounted to 8.7 times. The net profit of the Group for the year of
2018 amounted to approximately RMB1.44 billion, representing an
increase of approximately 99.9% as compared with last year, with net
profit margin of approximately 19.1% (2017: approximately 11.6%).
The net core profit (i.e. net profit excluding exchange gain/loss and
change of fair value on investment property) amounted to
approximately RMB1.27 billion (2017: approximately RMB932.2
million), representing a significant increase of approximately 36.1% as
compared with last year. Net core profit margin was approximately
16.8% (2017: approximately 15.0%). The increase in net profit and net
profit margin were principally attributable to the significant improvement
in gross profit margin of property development projects delivered
during the year. At the same time, good progress in the high-margin
segment of development and management services is also the
essential factor contributing to a significant increase in net profit and
net core profit margin.
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For the year of 2018, the revenue recognised from the subsidiaries of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB7.56 billion (2017:
approximately RMB6.21 billion), revenue recognised from joint ventures
and associates attributable to the Group amounted to RMB3.54 billion
(2017: approximately RMB493.3 million), with an aggregate sales
revenue recognised amounted to RMB11.10 billion, representing an
increase of approximately 65.5% (2017: approximately RMB6.71
billion) as compared to last year. The revenue recognised from the
provision of development and management services amounted to
approximately RMB999.7 million (2017: approximately RMB752.6
million), representing an increase of approximately 32.8% as compared
with the last year. In FY 2018, reporting segment profit before
income tax arising from projects in relation to development and
management services with independent third parties or cooperative
partners amounted to approximately RMB456.8 million (2017:
approximately RMB410.9 million), representing an increase of
approximately 11.2%.

In FY 2018, “Landsea Products” recorded contracted sales of
approximately RMB38.15 billion (including approximately RMB35.95
billion from the Group and a small amount of remaining projects
entrusted by Landsea Group) (2017: approximately RMB32.05 billion),
representing an increase of approximately 19.0% as compared with
the year of 2017, with contracted gross floor areas of 1,964,658
square meters (including 1,846,575 square meters from the Group and
a small amount of remaining projects entrusted by Landsea Group)
(2017: 1,629,394 square meters), representing an increase of 20.6%
as compared with the year of 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

The Group achieved a satisfactory result in project expansion
notwithstanding of the unfavourable market conditions. In FY2018, the
Group secured a total of 28 projects of which 20 were in the PRC and
8 were in the United States. They were in Guangzhou, Hangzhou,
Nanjing, Chengdu, Suzhou, Wuhan, Xian and other cities in the PRC as
well as the first-tier cities of West Coast and East Coast in the United
Stated among which 27 projects were under development for sale
(including 18 projects in which the Group held equity interests and 9
development management projects by entrusted independent third
parties) and 1 property held for rent.

In FY2018, the Group recorded an increase in the new project
saleable gross floor area (“GFA”) of 2,456,347 square meters (“sq.
m.”) and expected new project saleable value of approximately
RMB38.77 billion, in which 1,604,111 sg.m. in new project
construction GFA, 1,186,231 sg.m. in new project saleable GFA and
approximately RMB22.10 billion of expected new project saleable
value are recorded from the new project the Group held interest
respectively. According to the Company’s attributable equity interest
in the new project, the Group recorded a new project construction
GFA of 976,222 sg.m., new project saleable GFA of 734,525 square
meters as well as expected new project saleable value of
approximately RMB14.61 billion in FY2018. In FY2018, the Group
obtained new entrusted development management projects with
construction GFA of 1,869,189 sg.m., saleable GFA of 1,270,115
sg.m. and expected saleable value of approximately RMB16.67
billion. Approximately 80% of the new projects were obtained through
mergers and acquisitions, entrusted development and in form of
equity participation, which has effectively prevented the occurrence of
record-high land prices.

HBRE
REEETFNTSRETRE T MR B R
RE - R—T—N\FE  NEBKXERT28EA
B B BEEA20ME - XE8E - o RN E
BN~ UM mIAR - BER - AR - BUE - RS
MR EBEEMMEB—RZPIPHT  EPFREHE
o7 B (R AKERGHERAR 181E - B
FE=HZFERBERIRE o) MFA L EI Y E 1
(B

RZBE-—N\FE AEEFCHBIHEENYEE
EE /2,456,347 F 5K » BRAIEEENAARKE
387.71ETT - ER AR EISHELRIE B TS EEEE
71,604,111 52K - AT EEEA1,186,231F 5K -
BAAEEENREARE221.0ET - NEBEEN
ER A O FIEEEmMEH76,222F 5K AEM
HBART3M4525FF K BRrfEHEEBENAARE
14611870 - RAF EASENMSETHAEEIEEE
EEEMIEA1,869,189F 52K - Al E®ET&EA1,270,115
FHEOK - BRAEEENRARKE166.7EIT o
BIEEEFRLN\KIEERBIHE ZEAER
SREFNER  BREE T SEBHT -



As at 31 December 2018, the Group had project reserves with saleable
GFA of 6,719,580 square meters and expected saleable value of
approximately RMB121.91 billion, in which total gross floor areas of
9,886,444 square meters, saleable GFA of 3,696,217 square meters
and saleable value of approximately RMB69.31 billion secured for the
equity-held projects, with saleable GFA of 1,463,534 square meters
and saleable value of approximately RMB31.96 billion attributable to
the Group. The Group had also acquired 32 development management
projects by entrusted independent third parties, with saleable area of
3,028,363 square meters and expected sales amount of approximately
RMB52.60 billion. The Group held the leased properties with total
GFA of 109,362 square meters and the equity-held projects with GFA
of 78,542 square meters.

The Group’s property development business covers both PRC and
the United States. In particular, the assets of the United States
business accounted for approximately 22.7% of the Group’s
assets. In FY2018, the total contracted sales of the United States
projects amounted to approximately RMB3.50 billion. The revenue
from sale of properties of approximately RMB2.32 billion with sales
areas of 57,887 sg.m. were recognised in the United States. The
revenue from sale of lands of approximately RMB204.1 million with
sales areas of 40,191 square meters were recognised in 2017
according to the percentage of completion during the year. In the
future, Landsea will continue to spread its green ideas in the United
States as it continues to deepen the development across East
Coast and West Coast with an integration to high-growth markets.

“Green Fir Investment” is a property investment fund and platform of
the Group. Currently, Green Fir Investment has established different
kinds of fund and joint investment platforms with Cinda Investment and
Pingan Real Estate respectively. It focused on the real estate inventory
in both first-tier cities and strong second-tier cities and acquisition of
distressed assets for creating comprehensive capabilities of fund
raising, acquisition, reconstruction, asset management and fund
withdrawal, exploring and practicing an integrated real estate fund
model of “investment, financing, management and exiting” all-in-one.
As at 31 December 2018, the management fund size of Green Fir
Investment has reached RMB8.76 billion.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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OPERATING INCOME AND GROSS PROFIT

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s revenue was
mainly derived from development and management servicesincome of
approximately RMB999.7 million (2017: approximately RMB753.2
million), income from sale of properties of approximately RMB6.41
billion (2017: approximately RMB5.43 billion) and rental and
property management fee income of approximately RMB154.3 million
(2017: approximately RMB34.8 million), which in aggregate was
approximately RMB7.56 billion (2017: approximately RMB6.21
billion), representing an increase of approximately 21.7% as compared
with the year of 2017. Total income from development and
management services income increased by approximately 32.7%
and sale of properties increased by approximately 18.1%
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the gross profit of the Group
was approximately RMB2.15 billion (2017: approximately RMB1.52
billion), representing an increase of approximately 41.4% as compared
with the year of 2017. The overall gross profit margin of the Group was
approximately 28.5% (2017: approximately 24.5%), representing an
increase of 4 percentage points as compared with the year of 2017. It
was mainly due to an increase of approximately 32.7% in revenue from
the development and management services with higher gross profit
margins as compared with last year. The gross profit margin of joint
ventures and associates was approximately 24.5% (2017:
approximately 22.2%).

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the profit attributable to the
shareholders of the Company was approximately RMB1.11 billion
(2017: approximately RMB580.5 million), representing a significant
increase of approximately 91.7% as compared with the year of 2017.
The net core profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company after
deducting unrealized foreign exchange gains arising from foreign
currency loans and current accounts between the subsidiaries of
the Group during the year, as well as the gain on fair value changes,
amounted to approximately RMB941.3 million (2017: approximately
791.9 million) representing an increase of approximately 18.9% as
compared with the year of 2017.
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CONTRACTED SALES AND PROPERTIES SOLD
BUT NOT RECOGNISED

For the year of 2018, “Landsea Products” recorded contracted
sales of approximately RMB38.15 billion (including the contracted
sales of approximately RMB35.95 billion from the Group and a small
amount of remaining projects entrusted by Landsea Group) (2017:
RMB32.05 billion), representing an increase of approximately
19.0% as compared with the year of 2017. The contracted gross
floor area of 1,964,658 square meters, representing an increase of
approximately 20.6% as compared with the year of 2017 (including
1,846,575 square meters from the Group and a small amount of
remaining projects entrusted by Landsea Group) (2017: 1,629,394
square meters), among which the total contracted sales of the
property projects in which the Group held equity interests
amounted to approximately RMB23.62 billion with contracted sales
area of approximately 1,172,410 square meters, i.e. an average selling
price of RMB20,146 per square meter. The contracted sales were
mainly from the on-sale projects in Shanghai, Hangzhou, Nanjing,
Chengdu, Tianjin, Suzhou etc. in the PRC and the first-tier portal
cities in the United States. As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s
accumulated areas of properties sold but not recognised were
1,655,467 square meters (2017: 1,430,000 square meters), amounting
to approximately RMB29.66 billion (2017: approximately RMB28.46
billion), in which areas of properties sold but not recognised
attributable to the Group were 656,458 square meters (2017: 440,000
square meters), amounting to approximately RMB12.26 billion (2017:
approximately RMB9.17 billion).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Average
Contracted Sales
Contracted Selling Price
Projects Equity Holding Sales Amounts  Contracted Sales GFA per Square Meter
B¥AHK
BEHE ERHE ERHEE
HH Al 8 BEER FHEE
(RMB'000) (Square Meters) (RMB)
(AR¥TT) (F7K) (ARETT)
Property sales
MEHE
1. Nanjing Youth Block 100.0% 64,523 3,959 16,298
HREEHR
2. Nanjing Future Home 50.1% 52,361 4,890 10,707
BRAER
3. Nanjing Poly Landsea Weilan 29.9% 57,910 1,367 42,372
MRRFBERE
4, Nanjing Landsea Xihua Mansion 19.0% 452,500 5,188 87,213
HAREER
5. Hefei Feidong Jade Garden 10.0% 370,883 19,659 18,866
AEEREREE
6. Shangshi Landsea Future Block 100.0% 166,612 7,018 23,741
FERFARER
7. Shanghai The Course of The Future 100.0% 1,922 17 16,479
ri5BE
8. Shanghai New Mansion 100.0% 572,558 6,022 95,076
EEERmEa
9. Shanghai Changfenghui Silver Premier 23.0% 610,116 12,349 49,408
PERREEREE
10. Wuxi Tiancui 100.0% 29,255 2,614 11,193
EHRE
1. Suzhou Green County of Taihu 55.0% 2,067,080 116,378 17,762
FR N KA ED
12. Wuxi Luka Small Town 100.0% 9,635 616 15,471
BEHERE
13. Suzhou 8 Renmin Road 51.0% 730,931 13,635 53,608
BHMARKSH
14, Yixin Xindu Mansion 26.0% 512,687 50,010 10,252
EREEE
15. Hangzhou Mer De Fleus 100.0% 28,234 1,162 24,301

mMiEEE



Average

Contracted Sales
Contracted Selling Price
Projects Equity Holding Sales Amounts  Contracted Sales GFA per Square Meter
BYHXK
BRHEE SREHE EEHE
HH B fl &8 BEER FHIEE
(RMB'000) (Square Meters) (RMB)
(AR¥TT) (F7K) (AR#TT)
16. Hangzhou Xihua Mansion 49.0% 1,136,085 20,226 56,171
TN EREEAT
17. Hangzhou Le Mansion 50.0% 1,448,129 31,017 46,689
TN EERT
18. Hangzhou Light of City 40.0% 1,410,611 72,627 19,423
TN Z H
19. Ningbo Crystal Apartment 40.0% 201,069 14,046 14,315
BRERS
20. Hangzhou Maple Union 50.0% 306,319 18,563 16,501
N E
21. Hangzhou Weilan Block 20.0% 364,960 27,482 13,280
N ESR
22 Chengdu Southern Gate Green 25.0% 147,738 2,900 50,936
P & PIAR AR
23. Chengdu Golden Sand City 9.9% 2,594,764 142,249 18,241
A S I
24, Chengdu Future Home 50.0% 403,446 60,846 6,631
PREBARRK
25. Chengdu Xihua Mansion 33.0% 2,799,026 161,502 17,331
P EBER 22 FiF
26. Chongging Yue Mansion 30.0% 534,261 39,233 13,618
EVE I
27. Chengdu Landsea Cuiyue 50.0% 23,388 1,690 13,839
PR EBBA T R4
28. Chengdu Shanglin Xihua Mansion 100.0% 283,424 28,433 9,968
PR ARERZE AT
29. Tianjin Emerald Tsuen Wan 75.0% 1,452,823 102,459 14,180
REERRE
30. Tianjin Cuiweilan Pavilion 35.0% 487,539 35,855 13,598
RSB
31. Shijiazhuang Luguan Project 25.5% 412,970 53,960 7,653
AREBRIER
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Average

Contracted Sales

Contracted Selling Price

Projects Equity Holding Sales Amounts  Contracted Sales GFA per Square Meter

B¥AHK

BEHE EEHE EEHE

HH Al 8 BEER THER

(RMB'000) (Square Meters) (RMB)

(AR¥TT) (F7K) (ARETT)

32. Sugian Weilan Elegant Yard 51.0% 384,678 38,114 10,093

BRFNENRD

33. Avora 51.0% 201,088 2,825 71,189

34. Brookhaven 100.0% 169,295 5,903 28,680

3. Copperleaf 100.0% 33,469 1,204 27,794

36. Echo 70.0% 810,143 15,234 53,180

37. Nexus 70.0% 692,296 13,062 53,022

38. Pierce Boston 25.0% 471,977 4,046 116,652

39. Sagebluff 100.0% 204,080 7,024 29,055

40. Siena 100.0% 332,822 8,005 41,575

41, Stoneyridge 100.0% 174,873 3,406 51,339

42. Westerly 100.0% 191,263 8,086 23,656

43. Windstone 100.0% 219,582 7,429 29,577

Contract sales of the Group held equity interest Total 23,619,225 1,172,410 20,146
AEBEFAERBBANHE @t




RECOGNISED SALES OF PROPERTIES OF
SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded
recognised revenue of approximately RMB7.56 billion (2017:
approximately RMB6.21 billion), representing an overall increase
of approximately 21.7%. In particular, the consolidated subsidiaries
of the Group recognised revenue from sales of properties and
total sales area were approximately RMB6.41 billion (2017:
approximately RMB5.43 billion) and 255,254 square meters
respectively, mainly attributable to Suzhou Green County of Taihu,
Nanjing Youth Block, Shanghai New Mansion, Shanghai Future Block,
Hangzhou Mer De Fleus Project, Wuxi Luka Small Town, Wuxi Landsea
Tiancui in the PRC, and The Vale Project, IronRidge Project, Westerly
Project, Stoneyridge Project and Aliso Ridge Project in the United
States. The average selling price in the PRC was RMB16,589 per
sg.m. while the average selling price in the United States was
RMB40,102 per sg.m..

RECOGNISED SALE OF PROPERTIES OF JOINT
VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES ATTRIBUTABLE
TO THE GROUP

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the recognised sales of joint
ventures and associates attributable to the Group of
approximately RMB3.54 billion (2017: approximately RMB493.3
million), represent an overall increase of approximately 617.4% and
114,508 sqg.m. in gross floor areas attributable to the Group. Sales
attributable to the Group is mainly generated from Nanjing Xihua
Mansion, Nanjing Poly Landsea Weilan, Suzhou Renmin Road,
Chengdu Southern Gate Green, Shanghai Changfenghui Silver
Premier and Nanjing Future Home in the PRC, and Pierce Boston
Project and Avora Project in the United States. The average
selling price in the PRC regions was approximately RMB26,273
per sg.m. and the average selling price in the United States regions
was approximately RMB84,929 per square meter.

MEARCHRIBYEREE

HEZZ-/\F+ZA=+—HLFE  A5EE
BRBANBARES6BIL(ZE—EF: 495
ARMEG2118TT) + BEEEAL21.7% - Hp - A%
BEMEEANBARBRYEHERAREHE
HAESRHOAARB4IBIL(ZE—+F 15
ANER¥ESAB{ETT) ;255254 F K EBREKEH
Ii’@lﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁﬂl?&/ﬂ%ﬁ‘ﬁ -HEREEHE - LEFA
2 EEARKRAER - MNBFEEREE - BB
R/NGE - EIGEAFAEER R The ValeTEE
IronRidge I8 B - Westerly I B - Stoneyridge 8 B #
Aliso Ridge T8 B - B @ FIEEER AT
FEHRKARYA6,5897T - ERME FHHEEER R
BEHARAREA40,1027T °

BhEEERBENTACRIBYEHE

HEZZ—)/\F+ZA=1+—HLEFE A£EHE
15%@?—%&%%%@786@ HEBAHABAR
35418 7T —tF: HAEARKI033EE
7T *é%i‘ftﬂ%%ﬂA% BEHERAEER
114,603 F K - BIEERHEET2RETEMR
MR RERERT - mMRRFIBAGEE  HMAREKE -
FREBBARSFEPIARED - LIEREIERFEEIEE - MR
RIKR FIE B i 2 Pierce Boston 8 B AMAvoralB B °
HbhhEEFHHEEEROAETHRARE
26,2737T + EEME FHHEBRO AT T KA
R¥ 84,929 7T °

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT AND
MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Benefiting from the full commencement of “asset-light” strategy of the
Group, the Group recorded property development and management
services income of approximately RMB999.7 million (2017:
approximately RMB753.2 million) for the year ended 31 December
2018, representing an overall increase of approximately 32.7%. Gross
profit margin of property development and management services
income was maintained at 55.0%.

RENTAL AND MANAGEMENT FEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recognised
rental and management fee income of approximately RMB154.3
million (2017: approximately RMB34.8 million), representing an
increase of approximately 342.9% as compared with the year of 2017.

FAIR VALUE GAIN ON INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties included Landsea Tower in
Shenzhen, Huafei Apartment in Nanjing, Neighbourhood Union in Wuxi
located in the PRC. Leveraging prime location and quality property
management services of investment properties, they maintained a high
occupancy rate during the year. For the year ended 31 December
2018, the Group’s fair value gain on the investment properties was
approximately RMB7.4 million (2017: RMB28.9 million). The fair value
of investment properties was determined by a competent
independent valuer based on the property’s current business model
adopted by the Group and its expected income to be generated. As at
31 December 2018, Wuxi Neighbourhood Union has started to be
leased out by the Group. Therefore, the Group reclassified that
property from properties held for sale to investment property.

SELLING EXPENSES

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded selling
expenses of approximately RMB244.0 million (2017:
approximately RMB119.9 million), representing an increase of 103.5%
as compared with the year of 2017. The increase in selling expenses
was mainly attributable to an increase of 80.0% in contract sales
from consolidated projects during this year as compared
with last year, and the corresponding pre-project promotion fees and
sales commissions increased accordingly.
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ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The Group continued to implement its strict budget management in
2018. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded
administrative expenses of approximately RMB568.9 million (2017:
approximately RMB420.2 million), representing an increase of
approximately 35.4% as compared with the year of 2017 and
within the budget control. During the year, the number of employees of
the Group increased by 26.2% as compared with the year of 2017,
therefore the administrative expenses increased.

OTHER GAINS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded other
gains of approximately RMB374.1 million (2017: approximately
RMB12.0 million) representing an increase of approximately 3,019.9%
as compared to 2017. The increase was mainly attributable to
unrealized foreign exchange gains of approximately RMB185.2 million
(2017: foreign exchange losses of approximately RMB270.3 million)
arising from foreign currency loans and current accounts between the
subsidiaries of the Group during the year.

FINANCE COSTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded interest
expense of approximately RMB672.2 million (2017: approximately
RMB534.3 million). In particular, part of the finance costs recognised
for advance receipts under the new revenue standard which is firstly
adopted amounted to approximately RMB154.5 million (2017: Nil). This
part of finance cost is initially capitalised to the property development
and subsequently carried forward to cost of sales. Excluding such
effect, the finance costs of the Group was approximately RMB517.7
million (2017: approximately RMB534.3 million) decreased by
approximately 3.1% as compared with the year of 2017. Under the
asset-light strategy, new projects of the Group mainly included non-
consolidated projects of joint ventures and associates. As a result, the
capitalized portion of interest payable has decreased, while the portion
charged to finance costs recognized for the year has increased. The
capitalization rate of interest expenses of 37.6% in FY2018 (2017:
53.4%). For the year ended 31 December 2018, the expensed finance
costs of the Group were approximately RMB299.3 million (2017:
approximately RMB238.9 million). For the year ended 31 December
2018, the interest income of the Group was approximately RMB160.6
million. Net finance costs of the Group were approximately
RMB138.7 million (2017: approximately RMB93.8 million). As at 31
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB A T

December 2018, the on-balance sheet weighted average finance costs
was approximately and stayed at 7.4%, remained unchanged as
compared to last year. The off-balance sheet weighted average finance
cost was approximately 6.3% (mainly borrowings for property
development) (31 December 2017: approximately 6.1%).

TAXATION

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded
taxation charge of approximately RMB821.2 million (2017:
approximately RMB406.6 million). The increase was mainly due to the
significant increase of 99.9% in assessable profit of the Group during
the year.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the basic and diluted earnings
per share attributable to the shareholders of the Company were
RMBO0.27 and RMBO0.24 respectively (31 December 2017: RMBO0.14
and RMBO0.13 respectively) representing an increase of approximately
90.2% and 92.1% as compared with the year of 2017. The basic core
earnings per share was RMBO0.23 (31 December 2017: approximately
RMBO0.20), representing an increase of approximately 16.2% as
compared with the year of 2017.

LAND RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had project reserves with total
GFA of 15,709,907 sg.m., saleable GFA of 6,719,580 sg.m. and
expected saleable value of approximately RMB121.91 billion. In terms
of equity interests, the total GFA of the project reserves attributable to
the Group were 4,435,863 sq.m., saleable GFA of 1,463,535 sg.m.
and expected saleable value of approximately RMB31.96 billion. The
Group had also acquired 32 development management projects by
entrusted independent third parties, with saleable GFA of
approximately 3,023,363 square meters and expected sales value of
RMB52.60 billion.
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Equity GFA for Future

Number  Projects Holding GFA  Developed GFA  Developing GFA Development Value Sold GFASold  Saleable Value Saleable GFA
FE  %H EEILA BEEEE  CRIVEER  ERMUEER  ARERUEER BEEE BEER TESE TERR
(Square Meters) (Square Meters) (Square Meters) (Square Meters) (RMB'000) (Square Meters) (RUB'000) (Square Meters)

(Fi) (F2) (F3#) i) (AEETR) (Fr)  (AEETR) (Frx)

1 Shanghai Future Block 1000% 233,791 233791 - - 2,085,178 110893 1,069,756 38662
LERREE

2 Hangzhou Mer De Fleus 1000% 180474 180474 - - 1,421,088 120,849 1220 -
e

3 Shanghai The Course of The Future 100.0% 106,622 106,622 - - 1314401 79500 4983 1417
LER

4 Nanjing Youth Black 1000% 314,804 257,285 57,610 - 2,858,216 244560 63,258 852
B

5 Nanjing Future Home 50.1% 133,530 133,530 - - 959,316 109579 9756 -
BRAAR

6 Suzhou 8 Renmin Road 51.0% 85,983 85,083 - - 1,729,628 5459 317,632 9,91
BMARESH

7 Suzhou Green County of Taihu 55.0% 432,78 325,192 107,540 - 5,405,169 315,536 307,759 11,745
it

8 W Tiancui 100.0% 871 8772 - - 494,072 34,681 11565 312
BHRE

9 Wuxi Luka Small Town 1000% 139,689 133,919 - 5770 691,504 93451 103,608 5710
ERET

10 Nanjing Poly Landsea Welan 29.9% 250,567 104271 146,29 - 5,664,535 195,384 115,166 2,142
BRRHERRE

1 Nanjng Landsea Xihua Mansion 19.0% 201,116 178725 2,301 - 5,502,760 149295 106470 3178
BREER

12 Chengdu Southem Gate Green 25.0% 235,149 161,020 84,129 - 2,646,501 161,552 252,941 4215
RARFEE

13 Shanghai New Mansion 1000% 15,787 15,787 - - 1145432 11,110 336,388 3,924
AR

i Hangzhou Xihua Mansion 49.0% 189,152 - 139,152 - 4203830 86,901 181692 1859
HEER

1 Hangzhou Le Mansion 50.0% 80,602 - 80,602 - 2,565,314 53528 119,166 1316
TR

16 Chengdu Golden Sand City 9.9% 685,684 - 685,684 - 2,680,284 190,361 4457,756 167,371
s

17 Tianjin Zhong Xin Eco-Cy Project 75.0% 142,156 - 141,048 1108 1452823 102,459 93465 5,801
REERE

18 Tianjin Huoli Gang Project 35.0% 97,760 - 97,760 - - - 1,088,122 69,491
REENEER

19 Tiann Cuwelan Pavilon 35.0% 59,332 - 59332 - 487539 35,855 119,170 6,282
RERHRE

20 Shanghai Chengfenghui Siver Premier 23.0% 18875 18875 - - 889,575 16877 6722 1529
LEREESHE

2 Suzhou High-Speed Rai New Town Project 51.0% 91,368 - 91,368 - - - 887,187 63,634
Bl FighlE

2 Wuhan Xudong Project 30.0% 140270 - - 140270 - - 4079579 98974
RERFER

2 Chengdu Muhua Road Project 4.9% 1,022,400 - - 1,022,400 - - 8,259,760 A
RENERER

BARH A% BRARF /| —F-N\FFR



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN R

Equity GFA for Future
Number - Projects Holding GFA  Developed GFA  Developing GFA Development Value Sold GFASold  Saleable Value Saleable GFA
FE  %H BRI BREEE  CRIVEER  ERMOEER  ARERUEER BEEE BEER TEEE TEER
(Square Meters) (Square Meters) (Square Meters) (Square Meters) (RMB'000) (Square Meters) (RMB000) (Square Meters)

(Fi#) (F2) (i) (i) (AEETR) (Fif)  (AEETR) (Frx)

% Wuhan Landsea Yue Mansion 50% 23,316 - 235,316 - 2,226,101 129,366 617,204 33,251
REMR

% Changsha Lu lsland 1.0% 245,540 25,803 82,673 187,064 393810 74,602 543265 87,699
RIVES

2% Chengdu Xinua Mansion 33.0% 367,753 - 367,753 - 3,911,680 221,036 923,635 28375
RERER

xa Hangzhou Maple Union 50.0% 48574 - 48574 - 306,319 18563 345,802 18766
i

8 Hefel Warxin's Hi-ech Court 25.0% 129919 - 49,065 80,854 - - 2,097,981 90,370
AERHRTER

9 Hangzhou Light of City 40.0% 94,09 - 94,09 - 1410611 2601 64,750 176
fiMm

kil Ningbo Crystal Apartment 100.0% 94,282 - 94282 - 201,069 14,046 944831 58,764
EfEEE

kil Chengdu Future Home 50.0% 146,733 - 146,733 - 647,647 9,714 24431 11108
REFRE

2 Chengdu Landsea Cuiyue 50.0% 30,316 - 30316 - 23,388 1,690 175,120 9,543
it

3 Xian Fengdong Jiapeng Project 1000% 85,104 - - 85,104 - - 749,715 57,34
BRERERER

k) Hefei Feidong Jade Garden 10.0% 57,39 - 57,39 - - - 626,546 40422
AREFEEER

3% Yiing Xindu Mansion 26.0% 21,630 - 172,755 48874 512,687 50010 1,097,235 112,653
HEF SR

K Sugian Weian Court 51.0% 204,663 - 122,061 102,602 - - 1,585,524 161,276
ERHERS

kil Sugian Weian Elegant Court 51.0% 193500 - 100921 92,580 384,678 38,114 1,548,508 100,693
BERNERR

3 Chongaing Caifa Project 30.0% 405,19 - 216,981 188215 534.261 39233 3790978 28512
BRER

3 Hangzhou Welan Block 200% 108993 - 108993 - 364,960 27,482 731,428 55,078
NFESR

4 Nanjing Lishui GOG Project 200% 209,516 - 209,516 - - - 3174352 161,153
HREKG06EE

4 Suzhou Liu Garden 1000% 12485 - 12485 - - - 288,000 731
HHER

82 Hangzhou Linglongyue 30.0% 163,746 - - 163,746 - - 2,310,000 127,214
TR

5] Chengdu Golden Mansion 51.0% 384,307 - - 384,307 - - 2,458,170 287,548
R#ss

4 Chengdu Shangin Xihua Mansion 100.0% 265,743 - 101,884 163859 283424 28433 3,788,307 163913
RE LHEER

4 Suzhou Hengtong Project 15.0% 129571 - 58,72 70,999 - - 2,693,000 87,604
Hif7ER

4 Kunshan Huagjao Project 51.0% 4102 - - 4102 - - 787,440 26,248
RILEEER

& Kunshan Zhoushi Project 51.0% 42,683 - - 42,683 - - 797,616 21504
BIEER



Equity GFA for Future
Number  Projects Holding GFA  Developed GFA  Developing GFA Development Value Sold GFASold  Saleable Value Saleable GFA
FE  %H [ sbal] SREER  CHINRER  BRVMRER  ARERNZER BEEE BEER TEEE TEER
(Square Meters) (Square Meters) (Square Meters) (Square Meters) (RMB'000) (Square Meters) (RUB'000) (Square Meters)
(Fr) (Frx) () (Fr) (\E¥FT) () (\F¥FT) (F5#)
8 Shijazhuang Luguan Project 25.5% 162,479 - 53960 108,519 412970 53960 655,036 69,083
AFHERER
49 Nanjing Wangjiawan Project 60.0% 144,677 - - 144,677 - - 1,873,557 72,484
ARIFARE
50 Nanjing Haiyue Metropol 0.0% 278,748 278,148 - - 9,658,941 205,135 76,650 -
BRERES
51 Nanjing Landsea Golden Elephant Mangrove 0.0% 307,241 - 307,241 - 4152467 148462 2,156,209 69,370
ARHEERATBI
5 Nanjing Jiulonghu Plot C 0.0% “m - 4m - - - 1,135,350 40916
BRAEAC
5 Nanjing Jislonghu Plot AB 0.0% 115,000 115,000 - - 1902929 80,432 23,997 8,337
ARNERAB A
5 Changhou Landsea Garden 0.0% 204574 204574 - - 1,719,082 160,774 91,170 4900
BisEE
55 Hefef Wanxin's Green County 0.0% 148441 148441 - - 1,332,040 102,268 10405 655
ARRHHREED
5 Wuxi Landsea New County 0.0% 205,189 921 105,962 - 3,156,250 136,836 318220 1,115
ERTRE
57 Baoding Xishanyue Project 0.0% 14040 - 14,040 - 141675 5318 263446 8,662
RERLtER
58 Wuzhong Hongzhuang Project in Suzhou 0.0% 130,001 - 122,242 7759 348,135 13941 710,360 2163
BMRhaiER
59 Chengdu Landsea Yue Future Block 0.0% 51,934 - 51,934 - 47,00 32214 125,000 3,346
RAFRAR
60 Century Landsea Green County in Yancheng Dongtai 0.0% 209,251 - 72019 187,172 250221 32,158 1319043 122,91
LR AP REE
61 Nanjng Project G68 0.0% 191800 - 191,800 - - - 10,500,000 150,000
ERG6B R
62 Wuxi New County Project 243 0.0% 268752 - - 208752 - - 391,600 188,000
B AR
63 Jangyin Lingang Project 0.0% 131,098 - 181,098 - 133884 33959 612,875 70912
TRERER
64 Befing Kangzeyuan Project 0.0% 45,860 - - 45,860 - - 1,013,000 33,998
FREEEEE
65 Xuzhou Peixian Fankuai Road Project 0.0% 433433 - - 433433 - - 2,081,528 333,498
fmEseER
66 Ma'anshan Xinua Mansion 0.0% 330,339 - 147,756 182,583 403412 B3 1859734 198,263
ERUEER
67 Jurong Wandu Linglongyue 0.0% 192905 - 192905 - 580,055 34,026 121,876 81,57
ORER
68 Beiing Zhangjakou Project 0.0% 128446 - - 128446 - - 966,684 75,699
FREROBE
69 Tangshan Yutian Project 0.0% 134,625 - - 134,625 - - 74,148 124046
BUEMER
10 Nanjing Jiangning Project G45 0.0% 132,585 - 132,565 - - - 2,300,000 105,000
ERIEG6ER
n Shangfang Project G2 in Nanjing Jiangning 0.0% 101,138 - - 101,138 - - 2,546,455 75,324
BRIELS 60 ER

BRAF / T N\FFR



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN R

Equity GFA for Future
Number - Projects Holding GFA  Developed GFA  Developing GFA Development Value Sold GFASold  Saleable Value Saleable GFA
FE  %H BRI BREEE  CRIVEER  ERMOEER  ARERUEER BEEE BEER TEEE TEER
(Square Meters) (Square Meters) (Square Meters) (Square Meters) (RMB'000) (Square Meters) (RMB000) (Square Meters)

(Fi#) (F2) (i) (i) (AEETR) (Fif)  (AEETR) (Frx)

n Nanjing Landsea Linglongjun 0.0% 134,633 - 134,633 - - - 2608499 101,287
BRiRED

Ik} Siyang Wisdom City 0.0% 206,398 - - 206,398 - - 1470,000 206,398
ML

4 Wuhan West Coast 0.0% 171,838 43719 128,059 - 911,538 82,707 360,086 26,964
RERER

7% Jinan Zhangaju Casting Centre 0.0% 354,093 - - 354,093 - - 4300000 243,600
EREEEED

76 Rugao Landsea Golden Ctty 0.0% 350,602 - - 350,602 - - 3322250 250,086
NEFFEREA

mn Wujang Shangyi Motor ity Phase 0.0% 196,400 - - 196,400 - - 1,484,850 97950
RILERES -8

8 X'an Yannan 5th Road 0.0% 66,441 - - 66,441 - - 759411 44301
i

It} Changhou Central Art Park 0.0% 140912 - - 140912 - - 2,231,000 103,072
FRRAERAR

80 Chengdu PAG Riversice Garden 0.0% 188,652 - 188,652 - - - 807,550 106,727
A PAGKFER

81 Chengdu PAG Wulong Mountain Mansion 0.0% 191,853 - 191,853 - - - 1,024,010 108310
# PAG REILER

82 Avora 51.0% 31,776 16930 14,846 - 563,721 7612 1,184,030 12474

83 The Westerly 100.0% 34559 6,224 6,060 2215 170,709 1223 662,380 2,33

8 Pierce Boston 25.0% 30202 39202 - - 2,586,645 33,264 60,681 780

8 Portola Center South (ronRidge) 1000% 143,781 26,773 47108 69902 1,007 456 65,785 229,073 9%

8 Stoney Ridge & Stoney Hil 100.0% 4969 1988 2,981 - 204137 4043 48539 926

87 The Vale 70.0% 77,604 54,887 2,807 - 2,646,918 61,416 883,348 16,278

8 Sanctuary - ilage | 100.0% 259,745 - 21,89 31,846 1,086,133 26,026 1,052,122 33,719

89 Seena 1000% 12079 - 12079 - 310979 74719 196,982 459

0 Lido Vilas 1000% 4350 - 4350 - - - 401,255 4350

91 Synagogue 90.0% 4049 641 3408 - - - 576,500 3408

R Abigall Place 100.0% 5,086 - 29 4781 - - 216,598 5,086

8 Catalina 100.0% 8779 - - 8779 - - 495,040 8,779

u Sonora Crossing 100.0% 14,978 - - 14,978 - - 198,378 14978

% 14th &6t 95.0% 7,650 - 4853 2697 - - 1,034,951 5920

% Tevelde 100.0% 110248 - - 110,248 - - 1899154 110,248

9 Catalinal 100.0% 6,304 - - 6,304 - - 369,294 6,304

% Deerlake 100.0% 15,640 - - 15,640 - - 446,208 15,640

%9 Novato 100.0% 10629 - - 10,628 - - 401317 10630
Totd
GHE 15,709,907 3,006,463 6,681,013 6,072,431 89,087,087 4555,298 121907401 6,719,580

Qf Which Subtotal of Equity-held Project
A EERER 9,886,444 2,146,694 4423983 3316817 64,070,368 3441684 69,311,097 3,696,217

Subtotal of Entrusted Development and Management Project
EHERERED |G 5,823,463 909,769 2,157,080 2,756,614 25,016,719 1113614 52,59 404 3023363




Projects Equity holding  Status Usage GFA

1EH Rzl AR AR EEEE
(Squares Meters)
(F7K)
Shanghai Huangxing Building Under renovation To be leased
=3 YN 100.0%  #iEekiE  Juelic| 11,427
Shanghai Senlan Apartment* Completed Leasing
LERBAE" 50.0% %I egicles 46,296
Nanjing Huafei Apartment Completed Leasing
ARERES 100.0% #T egiches 5,729
Shenzhen Landsea Tower Completed Leasing
RYIBAFFAR = 100.0% BT HAE 23,736
Guangzhou Jiefang Tower* Completed Leasing
M R R 333% #HT epiches 11,507
Wuxi Neighbourhood Union Completed Leasing
MBS 100.0% % T apil 10,667
Total
CEll 109,362
* The property is held by a joint venture of the Company * ZBEERARRIZAEAREE
LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES RBEERMBEER
CASH POSITIONS BEtn

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents RZZ—N\F+_HA=+—H AKEReLRE
and restricted cash amounted to approximately RMB5.95 billion (As at ZEEWARZRHRESHNABARES5EITL(RZ
31 December 2017: approximately RMB3.62 billion), representing an ZT—+tF&+=-A=+—H : #HBAR¥36.2/ET) *
increase of 64.1%. As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s current EF641% - R=ZZT—N\F+-_A=+—H ' K&
ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) was approximately E&REEEL R (REBEERNURSEBE) N A5
1.5 times (As at 31 December 2017: 1.4 times). BFERZE—tFF+ZA=1+—H8 146 -

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB A T

INDEBTEDNESS &%

As at 31 December 2018, the total indebtedness of the Group R-ZE—N\F+_-_A=+—H FNEEGEKEL
amounted to approximately RMB7.02 billion (As at 31 December AAR® 702 TL(R_E—+tF+-_A=+—8":
2017: approximately RMB5.43 billion), representing an increase of  #9A AR 54.3187T) + FiR29.4% o AREEKER
29.4%, mainly comprised shareholder’s loans, secured bank FEBERFIER  BEMPRTET BEELEESHR
loans, senior notes and EB-5 financing. As at 31 December 2018, EB-5@& - R—ZE—\F+=-_F=+—H  FaE
total net debts* were approximately RMB1.62 billion (As at 31 ##@: N AARK162BET(R-_E—+F+=-A
December 2017: approximately RMB2.09 billion). As at 31 December =+ —H : 448 AR 209ETT) s R=_ZE—\F
2018, the proportion of short-term debts was 9.7% (As at 31 +Z—A=+—H ' BEHEBKLHI AL TR (RZE
December 2017: 40.0%) and long-term debts was 90.3% (As at 31 —+F+=-A=+—H : 40.0%) * EHREBHLLH 5
December 2017: 60.0%), with continuous optimisation of long and  90.3% (R—Z—+F+—-A=+—08 :60.0%) ' &

short-term debt structure. RHERERSRFRERL -
Analysis of Indebtedness: B DT
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
=r it e
+=B=+—H +=—A=+—8

RMB’'000 Percentage RMB’000  Percentage
ARMTFT HESE ARETFT (-N=Ezp=n

Analysis of indebtedness by currency: 4BETE AL E EMEDHT :

Denominated in RMB AR EH 3,508,890 49.95% 3,202,900 58.99%
Denominated in USD AETTHEE 3,169,781 45.12% 1,995,807 36.76%
Denominated in HK$ LB TTEE 345,924 4.93% 230,708 4.25%

7,024,595 100.00% 5,429,415 100.00%

Analysis of indebtedness by maturity: A& AR D47 -

Within one year EF—FNR 683,580 9.73% 2,174,458 40.05%
Between one and two years FE—FEMF 4,441,395 63.23% 188,019 3.46%
Over two years ESY - 1,899,620 27.04% 3,066,938 56.49%

7,024,595 100.00% 5,429,415 100.00%

# net debts = total debt less cash and cash equivalents (excluding restricted cash) # FEE - BREERIRSRRSEEY (T2ZBRES)



OFF-BALANCE SHEET EQUITY DATA

With the implementation of the asset-light strategy, the reserves of new
projects of the Group primarily relates to joint ventures and associates
accounted for using the equity method, the balance sheet information
of which has not yet been included to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. As at 31 December 2018, cash and bank
balance attributable to the Group in proportion to the equity in joint
ventures and associates was approximately RMB1.91 billion (As at 31
December 2017: approximately RMB2.35 billion), while the balance of
interest-bearing liabilities attributable to the Group in proportion to the
equity in joint ventures and associates was approximately RMB2.19
billion (As at 31 December 2017: approximately RMB1.89 billion), and
the net debt balance attributable to the Group in proportion to the
equity in joint ventures and associates was RMB273.2 million (As at 31
December 2017: net cash balance attributed approximately RMB456.4
million).

GEARING RATIOS

The Group has been working hard on optimizing its capital and debt
structure. As at 31 December 2018, the on-balance sheet net debts to
equity ratio* of the Group was approximately 34.0% (As at 31
December 2017: 56.5%), representing a decrease of 22.5 percentage
point as compared with 31 December 2017. The off-balance sheet net
debts as at 31 December 2018 was RMB273.2 million. The aggregate
on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet net debts was RMB1.89
billion. The aggregate on-balance sheet and off balance sheet net
debts to equity ratio was approximately 39.8% as at 31 December
2018 (As at 31 December 2017: 44.1%), representing a decrease of
4.3 percentage point as compared with 31 December 2017. The
Group’s debt to total assets ratio (total borrowings divided by total
assets) was approximately 26.2% as at 31 December 2018 (As at 31
December 2017: 26.7%). In addition, the debt to assets ratio of the
Group was 82.2% as at 31 December 2018 (As at 31 December
2017: 81.8%), which basically remained unchanged as compared
with 31 December 2017. The management will continue to monitor
the Group’s capital and debt structure from time to time with an aim to
mitigating its exposure to the risk of gearing.

# net debts to equity ratio = total debts less cash and cash equivalents (excluding
restricted cash) divided by total equity
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB A T

PLEDGE OF ASSETS OF THE GROUP

As at 31 December 2018, the bank loans of the Group were secured
by one or a combination of the following items: investment
properties, leasehold land payments, properties under development,
properties held for sale, restricted cash and guarantees provided by
controlling shareholders. Senior notes were guaranteed by certain
subsidiaries of the Company. EB-5 loans are guaranteed by a
subsidiary.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND CURRENCY RISK

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash were mainly denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong
dollar and United States dollar. The functional currency of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the United States is US dollar while that of the Hong
Kong subsidiaries is Hong Kong dollar, and that of the domestic
subsidiaries is Renminbi. As at 31 December 2018, the borrowing of
RMB1.67 billion to the Group’s subsidiary in the United States from the
ultimate controlling shareholder was the long-term financial support to
the Group. The amounts of RMB2.17 billion of the Group’s Hong Kong
subsidiary due to its PRC subsidiary were the internal funds transfer of
the Group. The exchange rate changes in the said amounts resulted in
exchange gains recorded by the Group of RMB185.2 million in FY2018
(2017: exchange losses of RMB270.3 million). The exchange gain or
loss is unrealized profit or loss and hence no financial instrument is
required for hedging purposes.

INTEREST RATE RISK

As at 31 December 2018, the debts payable borne with fixed interest
rate accounted for approximately 69.3% (As at 31 December 2017:
84.2%) of the total debts of the Group. In this regard, the exposure to
interest rate risk was minimal. The Group will continue to monitor the
trend of interest rates in the market closely and seek to adopt
appropriate risk management measures for mitigating the exposure to
the interest rate risk.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

On 8 February 2018, E/MBAF R E EEE BB R 2 A (Guangzhou
Langxiu Corporate Management Consulting Limited*) (“Guangzhou
Langxiu”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, completed the
acquisition of the entire equity interest of E/NZRBEEIEZABRE LD
A] (Guangzhou Jianzhao Corporate Management Consulting Limited*),
formerly known as &M T 2 /3 & % B R A 7 (Guangzhou Jianzhao
Properties Company Limited*) (“Guangzhou Jianzhao”), a company
holding properties in Yuexiu District, Guangzhou at the consideration of
RMB230,000,000 (subject to adjustment), and accepted the
assignment of the loan at the consideration of RMB30,000,000.
Guangzhou Jianzhao has become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company since then. For details of the transaction, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 18 December 2017. In FY2018,
new independent investors injected an aggregate of RMB88.4 million
as capital into Jiaxing Langrong Investment Partnership (Limited
Partnership) (“Jiaxing Langrong”), the immediate holding company of
Guangzhou Langxiu. After such capital injection, Jiaxing Langrong was
held as to 66.6% by the investors and 33.4% by the Group Jiaxing
Langrong, Guangzhou Langxiu and Guangzhou Jianzhao ceased to be
subsidiaries of the Group. The capital injection did not constitute any
notifiable transaction of the Company.
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On 7 February 2018, F/EAFIREEIEFR AR (Shanghai Langaing
Investment Management Limited*) (“Shanghai Langging”) and Nanjing
Langming, wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, entered into the
partnership property share transfer agreement with CITIC Capital
Holdings Limited and L8 TFZERTEEEARE T AT (Shanghai
Pingan Heding Investment & Management Co., Ltd.*) regarding the
acquisition of the entire equity interest of HEEFIREAIKTE (AR
&1K) (Shanghai Rui Kai Investment Partnership (imited partnership)*)
(“Partnership”) at an aggregate consideration of RMB221.0 million. The
Partnership holds 100% equity interest in Best Benefit Limited (“Best
Benefit”), and Best Benefit and the Company hold 61.54% and 38.46%
equity interest of Silver Knight Global Limited (“Silver Knight”)
respectively. Silver Knight is a special purpose vehicle incorporated for
the purpose of holding and developing the properties in I _E)&mH &
BE 5 R 770 FF 25 5% (No. 25, Alley 770, Qingxi Road, Changning
District, Shanghai, the PRC*). Upon completion of the acquisition on 13
February 2018, the Group holds the entire interest in Silver Knight. The
transactions contemplated thereunder constitute a discloseable
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.
For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 7 February 2018.
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On 28 June 2018, # /M BAIE R & & I F IR A & (Hangzhou Langhui
Investment Management Company Limited*) (“Hangzhou Langhui”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the cooperation
agreement with #1 JI B8 %2 B IR A B] (Hangzhou Langshan Company
Limited®) (“Hangzhou Langshan”), i N Z E EE B2 HR 2 A
(Hangzhou Guojun Asset Management Company Limited*) (“Hangzhou
Guojun”) and &5 & # 1% & B R AR A /) (Wuxi Wandu Investment
Development Company Limited*) (“Wuxi Wandu”), pursuant to which
Hangzhou Langhui agreed to sell and Hangzhou Guojun and Wuxi
Wandu agreed to acquire 40% equity interest in Hangzhou Langshan
at a consideration of RMB2.0 million and 40% of the loan owed by
Hangzhou Langshan to Hangzhou Langhui at a consideration of
RMB110.0 million. Upon completion of the disposal on 28 June 2018,
Hangzhou Langshan was held as to 20%, 40% and 40% by Hangzhou
Langhui, Hangzhou Guojun and Wuxi Wandu. Hangzhou Langshan
holds 80% equity interest in /8 %8 BA 7~ 5 i 2= f 3% B fR A & (Haining
Langhong Real Estate Development Company Limited*), a company
which holds a project in #®5% &S A (2014) 5 06540 5% (BB i
RAE) BT LMAERNGEN RTEMILERA - 01 A&EILA (the
land parcel no. Haiguoyong (2014) 06540 under the Certificate for the
Use of State-owned Land, located to the North of 01 provincial
highway and East of Yangshan Road, Chang’an Township, Haining
City*), which is of commercial and residential use with land use right of
30,095 square meters. The transactions contemplated thereunder
constitute a discloseable transaction under Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules. For further details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 28 June 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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On 29 June 2018, (1) Fg mBA B B ¥ B R 2 7] (Nanjing Langging
Property Co., Ltd.*) (“Nanjing Langqging”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, 78 i& & & ¥ AR A 7 (Sugian Langxin
Property Co., Ltd.*) (“Project Company 1”) and PO/ & S MEEE 2GR
‘A A] (Sichuan BRC Hejun Industrial Co., Ltd.*) (“Sichuan BRC”) entered
into the supplemental agreement to the equity transfer agreement
dated 27 December 2017 to amend, among others, the equity interest
in Project Company | to be sold to be 49% at a consideration of
RMB105.8 million and the shareholder’s loan to be provided to not
exceeding RMB17.2 million, and (2) Nanjing Langaing, B BRI E XA
R 2 A (Sugian Landsea Property Co., Ltd.*) (“Project Company II")
and Sichuan BRC entered into the supplemental agreement to equity
transfer agreement dated 27 December 2017 to amend, among
others, the equity interest in Project Company Il to be sold to be 49%
at a consideration of RMB91.0 million and the shareholder’s loan to be
provided to not exceeding RMB17.2 million. The transactions
contemplated under the equity transfer agreement (as supplemented
by the supplemental agreements) were completed on 29 June 2018.
The Group recognized a gain on disposal of approximately RMB110.9
million. The transactions contemplated under the equity transfer
agreement (as supplemented by the supplemental agreements)
constitute a discloseable transaction of the Company under Chapter
14 of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 27 December 2017 and 29 June 2018.
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On 19 July 2018, Hangzhou Langhui and Z K & A E£ R E B A7)
(Ningbo Jinwo Commercial Investment Company Limited*) (the
“Subject Company”), indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company, entered into the investment agreement (the “Investment
Agreement”) with g = 1 5% E % & B R 22 7] (Nanjing Zhongjunda
Investment Co., Limited*) (“Zhongjunda Investment”), pursuant to which
Hangzhou Langhui and Zhongjunda Investment agreed to cooperate in
the development of the property development project on 2T T1t &
B ATE IR ATEIT 14-1 #138 (land parcel No. 1#-1 located in Xiejia
Village, Zhuang Qiao Street, Binjiang, Jiangbei District , Ningbo City*)
held by the Subject Company, whereby Hangzhou Langhui
conditionally agreed to sell and Zhongjunda Investment conditionally
agreed to purchase 60% equity interest in the Subject Company at the
consideration of RMB43,834,000, and Zhongjunda agreed to provide
shareholder’s loan to the Subject Company of not exceeding
RMB138,000,000. Upon completion of the transaction on 2 August
2018, the Subject Company accounted as a joint venture of the
Company and its financial results no longer be consolidated to the
financial statements of the Group. The transactions under the
Investment Agreement constitute a discloseable transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. For details of the
transaction, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
19 July 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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GUARANTEE

The Group cooperates with various financial institutions to arrange
mortgage loan facilities for the purchasers of its properties and
provides guarantees to secure such purchasers’ obligations of
repayment. As at 31 December 2018, the outstanding guarantees
amounted to approximately RMB2.11 billion (As at 31 December 2017:
approximately RMB2.14 billion). Such guarantees will be discharged
upon the earlier of (i) the issuance of the real estate ownership
certificate; and (i) the satisfaction of relevant mortgage loan by
purchasers. In addition, the Group provided guarantees to LS-NJ
Port Imperial LLC, 51% of which held by the Group, for its bank
borrowing and LS-NJ Port Imperial EB5 Borrower LLC, a 51%
joint venture of the Group, for its EB-5 loans as at 31 December
2018 amounted to RMB61.8 million and RMB122.5 million
respectively. Such guarantee provided to LS-NJ Port Imperial
LLC and LS-NJ Port Imperial EB5 Borrower LLC shall be
discharged pursuant to the counter-indemnity provided by
Landsea Group. Guarantee provided to Fenway Ventures Point
Properties LLC by the Group were repaid during the year ended
31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, there were certain corporate guarantees
provided by the subsidiaries of the Group for each other in respect of
their borrowings. The management considered that the subsidiaries
had sufficient financial resources to fulfill their obligations.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2018.

SEGREGATING NON- PROPERTIES
DEVELOPMENT-RELATED BUSINESS

With unanimous approval of all directors, the Company intends to
segregate its non-properties development-related business, such as
long-term rental apartments, property management and design, to its
holding group in 2019. Upon such segregation, Landsea Green Group
Co., Ltd., through streamlining its business, will focus on the core
industry of green technology property and unleash the potential for
profit margin of product differentiation, with a view to maximise returns
for shareholders. While no legally binding agreement has been entered
into at this stage, the Company will disclose further information as and
when appropriate.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 2,662 employees (As at 31
December 2017: 2,110) who were responsible for the managerial,
administrative, technical and general functions in Hong Kong, the
United States and the PRC. The increment levels of the employees’
emolument, promotion and remuneration were determined with
reference to their duties, performance and professional experience.
Other employee benefits included mandatory provident fund scheme,
insurance and medical coverage. According to the terms of the
Share Option Scheme adopted on 25 April 2012 and the Share
Award Scheme adopted on 2 July 2014, the Company will grant
share options or awarded shares to the Group’s management
and staff based on their individual performance.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 24 January 2019, #/NBAME R EHRABR A A (Suzhou Langxu
Management Consulting Co., Ltd.)*, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and EHHF N NHEIFHERESEEBR AT (Wuxi Xinli
Lichuang Real Estate Development Group Co., Ltd.)* jointly won the
bid for the land piece XDG-2018-39, Wuxi Binhu District Xushe with a
reserve price of approximately RMB1.66 billion. The plot ratio of the
project is 1.01, the total construction area is 210,000 square meters,
and the ground plot ratio-based floor area is 148,000 square meters,
which is residential land.
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On 15 February 2019, ALAZFHEHERZAR A AF (Xi'an
Langshiming Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.*) (“Xi’an Langshiming”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the cooperation
agreement with Bridge Trust Co., Ltd. (“Bridge Trust”), pursuant to which
Xi'an Langshiming and Bridge Trust shall cooperate in the development
of the land located at FEIFAZ M AR EIL ZIRUAR - MREEAK -
B AREERT A PR A (2013H) F 16157 | R FARE A (2013
) 25 1635% | (the land parcel no. Xiweiguoyong (2013) 161 and
Xiweiguoyong (2013) 163 under the Certificate for the Use of State-
owned Land, located to the south of North Second Ring and east of
Wenijing Road®) (the “Target Land”) held by AZ & REHMERE AR A
A] (Xi'an Mingjing Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.*) (“Xi'an Mingjing”).
Xi'an Mingjing shall establish the Target Company to develop the project
of the Target Land. After the setting up of the Target Company, Xi'an
Mingjing shall transfer 100% equity interest of the Target Company to 78
ZHRFELEEE BN B R A A (Xan Langshiyi Enterprise
Management Consulting Co., Ltd.*), (“Xi’an Langshiyi”). Bridge Trust shall
establish a trust scheme to acquire the 49% equity interest in Xi’an
Langshiyi held by Xi'an Langshiming with trust funds, and to carry out
the Loan Financing. Upon fulfilling the agreed conditions, Xi’an
Langshiming agreed to buy back 49% equity interest to be acquired by
Bridge Trust in Xi’an Langshiyi held by Xi’an Langshiming, and the loans
obtained by Bridge Trust using the trust fund in the form of loans and
transfer of loans to Xi’an Langshiyi and the target company to be
established to develop the above land piece, pursuant to the agreed
terms for a maximum amount of RMB600,000,000. For details of the
transaction, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 15
February 2019.
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On 21 February 2019, Nanjing Langming, Xi'an Langshiming and 8%
=B EHERE B R A A (Xi'an Jiapeng Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd.*) as project company (“Xi’an Jiapeng”), wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, entered into the cooperation framework
agreement with B R /8 EEERE HE R & & (K12 (Nanjing Luode
Dening Real Estate Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership)*)
(“Dening Fund”), pursuant to which Dening Fund agreed to invest in the
property development project on PRFEA P T AR KR [E PE i BE AR
ERABELALL - SRHARSE FD2-14-32 (land parcel No. FD2-14-32 located
in the east of the Xihu Railway and the north of Kunming Road in
Weiyang District, Xi’an City, Shaanxi Province*) held by Xi’an Jiapeng
through the acquisition of 70% equity interest in Xi'an Jiapeng at the
consideration of RMB14,000,000 and provision of shareholder’s loan
to Xi'an Jiapeng in the amount of not exceeding RMB126,000,000.
Upon completion of the transaction, Xi’an Jiapeng will be accounted as
a joint venture of the Company and its financial results will no longer be
consolidated to the financial statements of the Group. Upon fulfiling
the agreed conditions, Xi'an Langshiming agreed to buy back the said
60% equity interest and shareholder’s loan provided by Dening Fund
for a maximum amount of RMB280,000,000. For details of the
transaction, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
21 February 2019.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A
PEERWmE

The Company is committed to maintain corporate governance of high
standards and quality procedures. The Company has put in place
governance practices with emphasis on the integrity to shareholders
and quality of disclosure, transparency and accountability to
shareholders for the sake of maximizing returns to shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code
of corporate governance.

Under CG code provision A.2.1 the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated and should not be performed by
the same individual. Following the resignation of Mr. Xiang Jiong, the
former executive Director and Chief Executive Officer on 23 November
2018, Mr. Tian Ming, the Chairman of the Board and an executive
Director has been appointed as Chief Executive Officer, and together
with the two Co-Chief Executive Officers, namely Ms. Shen Leying and
Mr. Wang Lei, who was appointed as an executive Director and Co-
Chief Executive Officer on 23 November 2018, they jointly shared the
roles of the chief executive officer. The Board believes that the present
arrangement will not impair the balance of power and authority.

Save for the deviation as mentioned above, in the opinion of the
Directors, the Company was in compliance with all the relevant code
provisions under the CG Code during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions.

The Company confirms that, having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all Directors have complied with the required standards as
set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company, and is responsible for setting up the overall strategy as well
as reviewing the operation and financial performance of the Group. The
Board reserved for its decision or consideration matters covering
overall Group strategy, major acquisitions and disposals, annual
budgets, annual and interim results, recommendations on Directors’
appointment or re-appointment, approval of major capital transactions
and other significant operational and financial matters. The
management was delegated the authority and responsibility by the
Board for the daily management of the Group. In addition, the Board
has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees.

Further details of these committees are set out in this report.

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a year at
approximately quarterly intervals in addition to other Board meetings
that are required for significant and important issues, and for statutory
purposes. Appropriate and sufficient information is provided to Board
members in a timely manner to keep them abreast of the Group’s
latest developments and thus can assist them in discharging their
duties.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the Board
meetings and drafts of which will be circulated to all Directors for their
review, comments and approval after the meetings. The minutes books
are kept by the Company Secretary and will be open for inspection by
the Directors upon request. All Directors have access to the advice and
service of the Company Secretary who is responsible to the Board for

ensuring that the procedures are followed and that all applicable laws
and regulations are complied with.
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently consists of five executive Directors, one non-
executive Director and four independent non-executive Directors:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman)

Ms. Shen Leying

Mr. Wang Lei (appointed on 23 November 2018)
Ms. Zhou Qin

Mr. Xie Yuanijian

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
Mr. Zhou Yimin

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Xu Xiaonian

Mr. Ding Yuan

Mr. Lee Kwan Hung

Mr. Chen Tai-yuan (appointed on 22 March 2019)

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial, business
and family relationship among members of the Board. The biographies
of the Directors are set out on pages 21 to 28 under the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development
by attending seminars or in-house briefing relating to their role as
director of the Company/taking part in business-related training/acting
as speaker for seminars and refreshed their knowledge and skills and
provided to the Company a record of training they received for the
financial year ended 31 December 2018.
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The Company has also continuously updated Directors on the latest ZANA R FREE R E BIRE A L TH E'J&/\ﬁﬂiﬂfﬁ
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable EEHRTIZEHNERET @ UERESEMXNET
regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their RBIFNEEATR o

awareness of good corporate governance practices.

The individual training record of each Director received for the year #HE-_E—NF+-_A=+—HILFE KE=FFR
ended 31 December 2018 is summarized below: B EAASE G T

Attending or
participating in
seminars/in-house

briefing relevant HES S8
to the business, BE¥EK -
regulatory updates BHEERRR
and director’s EEREC
Name of Directors duties EENR mE ABEER
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Tian Ming v/ HEFEAE v
Ms. Shen Leying v &L+ v
Mr. Wang Lei v/ FaEAE v
Ms. Zhou Qin v/ Agiz+ v/
Mr. Xie Yuanijian v AR E v
Non-executive Director IERTTEE
Mr. Zhou Yimin v/ BaERLE v
Independent Non-executive Directors BUIIBITES
Mr. Xu Xiaonian v/ FRINFSEAE v
Mr. Ding Yuan v TiRESE v
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung v FHBERE v

All the Directors also understand the importance of continuous A2 EEEERARBEEERE EEN  LEKRR
professional development and are committed to participating in suitable  ER& @B FIRIE + UG K ER S B R AL o
training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Under CG code provision A.2.1 the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated and should not be performed by
the same individual. Following the resignation of Mr. Xiang Jiong, the
former executive Director and Chief Executive Officer on 23 November
2018, Mr. Tian Ming, the Chairman of the Board and an executive
Director has been appointed as Chief Executive Officer, and together
with the two Co-Chief Executive Officers, namely Ms. Shen Leying and
Mr. Wang Lei, who was appointed as an executive Director and Co-
Chief Executive Officer on 23 November 2018, they jointly shared the
roles of the chief executive officer. The Board believes that the present
arrangement will not impair the balance of power and authority, and
the division of responsibilities is clearly established.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors of the Company are appointed for a
specific term and they are also subject to the retirement by rotation at
least once every three years in accordance with the Bye-Laws.

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with specific
terms of reference, which is responsible for, among others, identifying
suitable individuals to become Board members and reviewing the
structure, size and diversity of the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
As required under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed four independent non-executive Directors, of
whom Mr. Xu Xiaonian, is a famous Chinese economist and was
granted the highest award of economics study in China, the “Sun
Yefang Economic Science Award”. Mr. Xu has more than 30 years’
experience in economics analysis.

Mr. Ding Yuan, is the Vice President and Dean, Cathay Capital Chair in
Accounting in China Europe International Business School and the
associate editor of European Accounting Review. He has more than 10
years’ experience in teaching and studying financial accounting,
financial statement analysis, corporate governance and M&As.
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Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, is currently a practicing lawyer in Hong Kong. He
was a senior manager of the Listing Division of the Stock Exchange
from 1993 to 1994. Mr. Lee is experienced in IPOs and corporate
financing.

Mr. Chen Tai-yuan is a tenured Full Professor of Accounting, and
Associate Dean and the Director of MBA programs at the school of
Business and Management at Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors the annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 30 August 2013
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. The Company recognises that increasing
diversity at the Board level will support the attainment of the
Company’s strategic objectives and sustainable development. The
Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The Company will also take into
consideration its own business model and specific needs from time to
time in determining the optimum composition of the Board.

The Board delegated certain duties under the Board Diversity Policy to
the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee will discuss
and review the necessities to set measurable objectives for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure
their appropriateness and the progress made towards achieving those
objectives will be ascertained.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT BOARD MEETINGS EZ=FSRHERE

During the year ended 31 December 2018, 5 Board meetings were #HZE-_ZE—NFE+_A=+—HILFE BEE/Y
held. All Directors are given an opportunity to include any matter inthe 235 @% - 2 EESH AR SN ESREES
agenda for regular Board meetings and are given sufficient time to  ZEZREFRMAEMAIRZSZE » WERETBERER
review the documents and information to be discussed in Board ZEZRE@:ZEBTAIEMB Film 2 XERER -
meetings in advance.

Number of
Name of Directors meetings attended EEnE HESRIE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman) 5/5 HERLEE (F/EF) 5/5
Mr. Xiang Jiong (Note 1) 5/5 AL AE (Mat1) 5/5
Ms. Shen Leying 5/5 gL AT+ 5/5
Mr. Wang Lei (Note 2) N/A  EZkaE (Hi2) EA
Ms. Zhou Qin 5/5 A#z+ 5/5
Mr. Xie Yuanjian 4/5 FRESLE 4/5
Non-executive Director FHITEE
Mr. Zhou Yimin 5/5 =R ALE 5/5
Independent Non-executive Directors BUIHHITEE
Mr. Xu Xiaonian 4/5 FFNFER A 4/5
Mr. Ding Yuan 5/5 TiREE 5/5
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung 5/5 G I e A 5/5
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan (Note 3) N/A BRIETTAEE (BaE3) TEA
Notes: G

1. Mr. Xiang Jiong resigned on 23 November 2018, and 5 Board meetings were held 1. AMAEER=—F—N\F+—A=+=HEHE - LEEA
before his resignation. BITSREZREE °

2. Mr. Wang Lei was appointed on 23 November 2018, and no Board meeting was 2 IBEAER_FT-N\F+—-—A-TZREZE " EEER
held after his appointment. WHEBITERREH -

3. Mr. Chen Tai-yuan was appointed on 22 March 2019. 3 RETAENR-_Z-NF=A-_+_REZRE-



ATTENDANCE RECORD AT GENERAL MEETINGS

During the financial year ended 31 December 2018, 3 general meetings
of the Company were held, being the annual general meeting held on
28 May 2018 (2018 AGM”) and the special general meeting held on
28 February 2018 and 18 December 2018.

RERAE HE &%
BE_Z-\FE+-_A=+—HILUHBEE &L
FERRITIABREAS  I_ZE—NFRA=-TN
BERAOZBRIRBFAE(ZZ—\FEFRFTEFEX
eNR_E-NE_A-+NBN-ZE—N\F+=
A+ N\BRTZRRERIRE -

Number of

Name of Directors meeting attended = HESRIE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman) 3/3 HeREAE (F/E) 3/3
Mr. Xiang Jiong (Note 1) 2/2 mmsEAE (MiEE) 2/2
Ms. Shen Leying 3/3 R LT+ 3/3
Mr. Wang Lei (Note 2) 1/1 TEEE (Hix2) 1/1
Mr. Zhou Qin 3/3 ISEpcn 3/3
Mr. Xie Yuanjian 3/3 FRESE 3/3
Non-executive Director HBITEE
Mr. Zhou Yimin 1/3  B=ERELE 1/3
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHHITEE
Mr. Xu Xiaonian 1/3 FFNFERAE 1/3
Mr. Ding Yuan 2/3 Tk sE 2/3
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung 3/3 TS E 3/3
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan (Note 3) N/A T E (FfE]) NE A
Notes: P&
1. Mr. Xiang Jiong resigned on 23 November 2018, and 2 general meetings were held 1. MAEER=ZT—NF+—A=Z+=AFE  HEEa

before his resignation. BIT2ORBRRAE ©
2. Mr. Wang Lai was appointed on 23 November 2018, and 1 general meeting was 2. FERER_ZT—N\F+-—AZT=BEZE EZE#%

held after his appointment.

3 Mr. Chen Tai-yuan was appointed on 22 March 2019.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, uses annual general meetings or other
general meetings to communicate with them and encourage their
participation. The Chairman of the Board, the chairmen of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee attended the abovementioned three general meetings to
answer questions and collect views of shareholders.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees under the Board,
namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee, Executive Committee and the sustainable development
supervision committee, to oversee different aspects of the Group’s
affairs and to assist in the execution of the Board’s responsibilities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Audit
Committee in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange
and are aligned with the code provisions set out in the CG Code. The
Audit Committee currently comprises one non-executive Director, Mr.
Zhou Yimin, and three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Ding Yuan (as chairman), Mr. Xu Xiaonian and Mr. Lee Kwan Hung.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are currently made
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of
its resignation or dismissal of such auditor; reviewing the interim and
annual reports and financial statements of the Group; and overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting system including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff in charge of the
Company’s financial reporting function and their training arrangement
and budget, and to review the risk management and internal control
systems.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditor regularly to discuss
any area of concern during the audit. The Audit Committee reviews the
interim and annual reports before submission to the Board. The Audit
Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance with
reporting and accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal
requirements in the review of the Company’s interim and annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee held 2
meetings. Each committee meeting has supplied with the necessary
financial information of the Group for members to consider, review and
access significant issues arising from the work conducted.
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Number of

Name of Members meetings attended REHE HESEXH
Mr. Ding Yuan (Committee Chairman) 2/2 TEREE (ZEEEFE) 2/2
Mr. Xu Xiaonian 172 FNFERAE 1/2
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung 2/2 T E 2/2
Mr. Zhou Yimin 1/2  HmREE 1/2

During the year under review, the Audit Committee had performed the

following work:

REBFER  BEREEE2THENT :

reviewed the annual results for the year ended 31 December
2017 and the interim results for the six months ended 30 June
2018;

discussed with the management of the Company over the
completeness, fairness and adequacy of reporting and
accounting standards and policies of the Group in the
preparation of the 2018 interim and annual financial statements;

reviewed and discussed with the external auditor over the
financial reporting of the Company;

recommended to the Board, for the approval by shareholders, of
the re-appointment of the auditor;

reviewed the continuing connected transactions of the Group
and relevant reports from external auditor; and

reviewed the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group.

— BHHEE_T—LF+_A=1T—RHLEFEZ
EERBERBE T N\FARNA=TRHIRE
AZHEB%EE

- REE_ZT-N\FRHAEFHBKERE &2

ARTVEEE N HARE L BEREHEUR
BERTRE AFRRN

— BHARFZHBHRESTEREINEZEEI®

BRAEEETHW

— RENZEZHMRESRRILER  USK
AL

— BHASENFRERER S RIMNSZEEAE
AWmE &

— BRAAKEZEREERANEZERL -

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RN
EEIRMS

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the
Remuneration Committee in accordance with requirements of the
Stock Exchange and are aligned with the code provisions set out in the
CG Code. The Remuneration Committee shall comprise at least three
members with majority of independent non-executive Directors, and an
independent non-executive Director should take up the role of
chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration
Committee currently comprises two executive Directors, Mr. Tian Ming
and Ms. Zhou Qin, and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Lee Kwan Hung (as chairman), Mr. Ding Yuan and Mr. Xu
Xiaonian. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
currently made available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

The functions of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
on the remuneration packages for all Directors’ and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy, to review
and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with reference
to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives, to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management, and to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive
Directors.

FMEES
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration
Committee held 1 meeting for reviewing the remuneration policies and
structure of the Directors and senior management and recommmended

BE_T-)/\F+-A=+—BULFE FMEZE
SELETIREH  URHARAREERSHREE
ABZHFMHBERRBEERREERGRERARZ

to the Board the proposed remuneration of the Directors and senior EEHFMAESERRELES  WEEZ_-_ZT—//\FE
management; and consideration share award plan for the year 2018. HIR% (D B2 BNt 2 -
Number of

Name of Members meeting attended REHH HESEXRE
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung (Committee Chairman) 1/1 LY (ZESLFE) 11
Mr. Tian Ming 1/1 HAFEE 11
Mr. Xu Xiaonian 0/1 FFNE ST 0N
Mr. Ding Yuan 1/1 TiREE 1/1
Ms. Zhou Qin 11 IEEkdam 1/
During the year ended 31 December 2018, apart from the meeting HE-Z—N\E+_A=+—HILFEE Kt b
held for the above, the Remuneration Committee by passing written FEIBR{TEZI HHEE S MBBEMAZEER

resolutions made recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
of the newly appointed Director.

The emolument payable to Directors and senior management will
depend on their respective contractual terms under the employment
agreements, if any, and is fixed by the Board with reference to the
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, the performance of
the Group, their duties and responsibilities, remuneration benchmark in
the industry and the prevailing market conditions. Details of the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management are set out in
note 14 and note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Nomination
Committee in accordance with requirements of the Stock Exchange
and are aligned with the code provisions set out in the CG Code. The
Nomination Committee shall comprise at least three members with a
majority of independent non-executive Directors, and the Chairman of
the Board or an independent non-executive Director should take up
the role of chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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The Nomination Committee currently consists of one executive
Director, Mr. Tian Ming (as chairman), one non-executive Director, Mr.
Zhou Yimin, and three independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Xu Xiaonian, Mr. Ding Yuan and Mr. Lee Kwan Hung. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are currently made available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The functions of the Nomination Committee are to review and monitor
the structure, size and diversity of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Group’s strategy; to identify qualified individuals to
become members of the Board; to assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; and to make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or re-election of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer.

To ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed without
undue disruption, there should be a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for selection, appointment and re-appointment of Directors,
as well as plans in place for orderly succession (if considered
necessary), including periodical review of such plans. The appointment
of a new Director (to be an additional Director or fill a casual vacancy
as and when it arises) or any re-appointment of Directors is a matter for
decision by the Board upon the recommendation of the proposed
candidate by the Nomination Committee.

The criteria to be applied in considering whether a candidate is qualified
shall be his or her ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Company and contribute to the diversity of the Board as
well as the effective carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities
which, in particular, are set out as follows:

(@ participating in Board meetings to bring an independent
judgment on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards of
conducts;

(o)  taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

REZEEHRB—BRTETHRLEE(ERE)  —
BN TESY R REEUR=ZEBEIFRNITES
FRNERE  TEREERFOHEREAK - REBE
B& 7 B2 ERC TISNB R AR BB

REAZEGZRBEARIIEREERZIARE R
BERAK  AEERRELEMNERERALAARE
BRE  WEABERARBHEEERKE : FHEH
VHRTEEZBIE D  RRREREEREEN
EE(BRRETFEIAER) cBEABRNEZTRIEMR
e

REREZRMNEFENETTTENBERTE
17 B ZRERERSEENBAREESLAAEER
MEZRAE  RAEFMIHERA(MRBRE L
R) ETFERCHESZAE - EHES (B
ESYAMBRER) AENRTES JHESR
REREZZBEHERREANEBERELIRE -

ZRIFREARTTAEMBENKES N L RAK
RMAMBENREARNEY  YEPREERNZTT
EARBRATESRBE  LERUTEE

@ ZNEERCTHIMAGIRME  BX B
BES - BR TETHmNTASTHSEMEE
B T

b)) HREBEMNZEREFEEAGER



serving on the Audit Committee, and the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee (in the case of
candidate for non-executive Director) and other relevant Board
committees, if invited;

bringing a range of business and financial experience to the
Board, giving the Board and any committees on which he or she
serves the benefit of his or her skills, expertise, and varied
backgrounds and qualifications and diversity through attendance
and participation in the Board/committee meetings;

scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance;

ensuring the committees on which he or she serves to perform
their powers and functions conferred on them by the Board; and

conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitutional documents of the Company or imposed by
legislation or the Listing Rules, where appropriate.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent non-

executive Director, his or her independence shall be assessed in

accordance with, among other things, the factors as set out in Rule

3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments as may be made

by the Stock Exchange from time to time. Where applicable, the totality

of the candidate’s education, qualifications and experience shall also

be evaluated to consider whether he or she has the appropriate

professional qualifications or accounting or related financial

management expertise for filling the office of an independent non-

executive Director with such qualifications or expertise as required
under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Nomination Committee
held 1 meeting for reviewing the structure, size and diversity (including
without limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
services) of the Board; to assess the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors; and to consider the re-election of Directors
before putting forth for discussion and approval by the Board.

Number of
Name of Members

HE_ZT-/\F+_A=+—HILFE REZ8
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<1ETBF<J5<\\) R Fie - XIERBEESR - Bk -
BRER - e MBNMRBERTE) - FHEEZ
FMTEZZBYED  REREFEESEH -

meeting attended

REHE BERE
HeA%E (ZE2EE) 1/1
BamRLAE 1/
TN AE 0/1
TREE 11
FHMERAE 1/

Mr. Tian Ming (Committee Chairman) 1/1
Mr. Zhou Yimin 11
Mr. Xu Xiaonian 01
Mr. Ding Yuan 1/1
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung 11

During the year ended 31 December 2018, apart from the meeting
held for the above, the Nomination Committee by passing written
resolutions made recommendation to the Board on the nomination of
new Director.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The corporate governance functions were performed by the Board.

The corporate governance functions are to develop and review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance to comply
with the CG Code and other legal or regulatory requirements and make
recommendations to the Board, to oversee the Company’s orientation
program for new Director, to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors, and
to review the Company’s disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the Board has
reviewed the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management and reviewed the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Company established an Executive Committee with all of the
executive Directors as its members with written terms of reference.

The Executive Committee meets on ad hoc basis to exercise the
powers, authorities and discretions of the Board in accordance with its
written terms of reference.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Group and ensure that the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the
timely publication of the financial statements of the Group.

The responsibility statement of external auditor of the Company,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 107 and 115.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of
any matters uncertainly relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the remuneration paid/payable
to the Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers is set out below:
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RMB’000
AR® TR

Services rendered by PricewaterhouseCoopers 7&K GBS TR SIS AT IR 2 ARTS
Audit services ZERTS 1,446
Non-audit services (Note) IERZEURTS (M 5E) 953
2,399

Note: non-audit services include services for reviewing the interim results of the Group for
the six months ended 30 June 2018 and other non-audit services.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages an external professional company secretarial
services provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-1”), to
provide compliance and full range of company secretarial services to
the Group in order to assist the Group to cope with the changing
regulatory environment and to suit difference commercial needs.

Ms. Chan Yuen Ying, Stella (“Ms. Chan”), the representative of Uni-1, is
the named Company Secretary of the Company. The biographical
details of Ms. Chan are set out under the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management”.

Mr. Liu Chao, the Board Secretary, is the primary point of contact at
the Company for the Company Secretary.

According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms.
Chan has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
for the financial year ended 31 December 2018.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The amount of any dividends that the Company may declare and pay
in the future will be subject to the discretion of the Board and will be
based upon the Group’s overall results of operation, financial condition,
working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements, liquidity
position, future expansion plans, amount of retained earnings,
distributable reserves and any other conditions that the Directors
consider relevant. Any declaration and payment of dividends may also
be limited by restrictions under the laws of Bermuda, the Company’s
constitutional documents, the Listing Rules and any other applicable
laws and regulations. The amounts of dividend distributions that the
Group has declared and made in the past are not indicative of the
dividends that the Company may pay in the future.

DREWE
ARAEBINEFERARBERGHEDSE— 0%
BEERAR (45— 0% AAERRRARRS
W2 ATRE B - DA B L TR 2
EEREROATABERR -

BEERRRELNMATRNMAD REARRZE
FARFEWE - -RNMNEZEEFRHEREFRSRK
EEABBN] —F -

ARPEZRMEIBEERRAAWENREARAZ
ERBEA o

BIEEMRAEI2ME BT BRINEREE=
—N\F+_A=+—"HLEUTRFEELRHAE T\Q‘
R/ R EEE -

IR EBUR
ﬁ’&ﬁ?EI&T%%”ET/IE&?EHE’\JEHHQE%%ﬂ%ﬁﬂ%
ERBBERE  UHERAEENBRRBEEES -
MR BBEESHFR  BEAFAXELR  RBE
TR - RKERE - B - AT DIRRFEE A
REZERA/ERNEMEMEESE - SRR
BBABTERELD  ARB2BEXM - £
RAIREMERERLRPZRE - REEBED
SREELHOREDKEB/IE TR ARR BEA
BEXIRIARE. -

7“;



The Directors may recommend a payment of dividends after taking into
account the general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group’s business and any other internal and external factors that may
affect the business and financial performance and position of the
Group in addition to the above mentioned criteria. Any future
declaration of dividends may or may not reflect the historical
declarations of dividends and will be at the absolute discretion of the
Directors.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy on a regular basis and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend
and/or modify the Dividend Policy from time to time. The Dividend
Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the
Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communications between the shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the
place as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting,
other than an annual general meeting, shall be called a special general
meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE A SPECIAL
GENERAL MEETING

Shareholders may convene a special general meeting of the Company
according to the provisions as set out in the Bye-Laws and the
Companies Act of Bermuda. The procedures shareholders can use to
convene a special general meeting are set out in the document entitled
“Procedures for a Shareholder to Propose a Person for Election as a
Director”, which is currently available on the Company’s website.
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PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY SHAREHOLDERS TO
THE BOARD

To ensure effective communications between the Board and the
shareholders and the investment community at large, the Company
has adopted a set of shareholders communication policy (the “Policy”)
on 12 March 2012. Under the Policy, the Company’s information shall
be communicated to the shareholders and the investment community
mainly through the Company’s financial reports (interim reports and
annual reports), and its corporate communications and other corporate
publications on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website. Shareholders and the investment community may at any time
make a request for the Company’s information to the extent such
information is publicly available. Any such questions shall be first
directed to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS BY SHAREHOLDERS AT
SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

The number of members necessary for a requisition for putting forward
a proposal at a general meeting shall be:

(@ any number of members holding not less than one-twentieth (5%)
of the paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the
requisition carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company; or

(b)  not less than one hundred members.

A copy or copies of requisition signed by all requisitionists shall be
deposited, with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in giving notice of the proposed resolution or circulating any
necessary statement, at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong in the case of:

(i) a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six
weeks before the meeting; and

(i)  any other requisition, not less than one week before the meeting.
The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming that the

requisition is proper and in order, the Board will proceed with the
necessary procedures.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during
the year.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications with all
shareholders. The Company’s annual general meeting is a valuable
forum for the Board to communicate directly with the shareholders.
The Chairman of the Board as well as the chairman of each of the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee together with the external auditor are present to answer
shareholders’ questions. The annual report together with annual
general meeting circular is distributed to all the shareholders at least 20
clear business days before the annual general meeting.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll except where the chairman,
in good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a
procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands.
As such, all the resolutions set out in the notice of the 2019 annual
general meeting will be voted by poll.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the development and
maintenance of risk management and internal control of the Company
and evaluation of their effectiveness. The Company adopts a
comprehensive risk management and internal control structure to
handle and manage its risks. The Company has set up strict
procedures to ensure that no assets would be subject to unauthorized
use or disposal and appropriate accounting records are kept for the
preparation of reliable financial reports in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations.
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The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the risk management,
internal control and financial control systems. It discusses with the
management regarding the risk management and internal control
systems to ensure they have performed their duties to establish
effective risk management and internal control systems. The Audit
Committee is also responsible for ensuring that the internal review
function is adequately resourced and has appropriate stand within the
Company, and reviewing the adequacy of qualifications and
experience, training programs and relevant budgets of staff in charge
of accounting, financial reporting and internal audit of the Company.

Based on the information and confirmation of the management and
internal audit department, the internal control system of the Group
covers all of its activities and transactions, and the management shall
conduct regular risk assessment (at least annually) and monitor and
report the progress of actions taken to cope with significant risks from
time to time. The Audit Committee considers that, for the year ended
31 December 2018, the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company were comprehensive and effective. The Company has
set up a supervisory and audit office which carries out audit and
supervisory work independently under the guidance and supervision of
the Board, and directly reports to the Chairman of the Board and the
Audit Committee. The accounting, financial reporting and internal audit
personnel have sufficient qualifications and experience and have
received adequate training within the review period.

IMPROVING INTERNAL CONTROL MECHANISM
The Group has formulated the Manual of System Development
Procedures of Landsea Green Properties ( {BAz34% it E M E X
2HIEEF M) ) (V3 version), which covers all important aspects
including the project positioning, design management, cost
management, project management, sales management, customer
management, brand management, financial management, operation
management and human resources, to optimize the internal control
system and safeguard a stable operation and management. The Group
has also formulated systems for specific business procedures based
on the business lines, including the Management Measures on Project
Design and Quality ( { TI2&RETREEHIHE) ), to further improve
the management of business risks and regulate the management of
business processes.
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OPTIMIZING INTERNAL CONTROL MEASURES

Based on the characteristics of different risks and business segments,
the Company adopts various specific measures in respect of market
risk, financial risk, product risk, operational risk and information system
security in order to enhance the internal control standards. The
Company has also formulated the Cultural Strategy Handbook ( {31t
BBEF M) ), the Landsea Brand Handbook ( {BAz% @ F M) ) and
the Staff Handbook to strengthen the behavioral management and
regulatory guidance of staff.

CLEARLY DEFINING AUTHORITY OF
MANAGEMENT

Through a series of systemized and standardized measures including the
revision of Handbook of Authorities and Responsibilities (1 & F fit)),
the Company has strengthened the daily authorization management and
the authorization system, which has laid the foundation of the existing
authorization management system of the Company.

HIGHLY EMPHASIZING PREVENTION AND
CONTROL OF SIGNIFICANT RISKS

The Company attaches high importance in the prevention, control and
investigation of significant risks. Pursuant to the principle of “Full
Coverage and Comprehensive Investigation to Control Risk”, the
Company conducts investigation with focuses on major areas including
tender and procurement, housing maintenance and marketing, and
implements rectification measures against each of the problems
identified for effective prevention and solution.

STRENGTHENING INTERNAL AUDIT AND
RECTIFICATION

The internal audit department of the Company has conducted audit on
the financial and internal control of the Company and its subsidiaries,
including the financial management, budget management, cost
management, procurement management and expense management,
and provide advices on rectification and risk prevention aiming to
improve systems, standardize procedures and optimize mechanisms.
Improvement has been made in response to the rectifying opinions for
the year.
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IMPROVING ANTI-CORRUPTION MECHANISM
AND STRENGTHENING CASE MANAGEMENT
With strict legal compliance adhering to the core value of “people-
oriented, positive and green”, all of the Company’s employees ought to
develop sound legal awareness and act in compliance with laws and
regulations. The Company has established the Code of Anti-corruption
and set up the Work Ethics Committee as the highest executive
function for the Group’s anti-corruption work, with duties mainly
including promotion of anti-corruption measures, coordination of anti-
corruption work and handling and making decisions in relation to
relevant issues. The Work Ethics Committee is chaired by Mr. Tian
Ming, the Chairman of the Board, with members comprising all
executive Directors, senior management and staff representatives. The
Company’s monitoring department is a dedicated function operating
under the Work Ethics Committee to carry out investigation in
corruption-related matters and reports directly to the Chairman of the
Company. Cases will be filed, investigated and handled in an
independent, objective and just manner. The Company has set up
reporting email, reporting hotline and WeChat reporting platform, and
announcements are made to the relevant internal and external units
and personnel. The Company encourages autonym whistleblowing,
and all such cases will be filed and investigated, while the
whistleblowers will be informed of the result under various measures
that safeguard their legal rights. The Company has zero tolerance
towards corruption. Therefore, in the event of any corruption, the
Company will impose penalty in accordance with the Code of Anti-
corruption, including dismissal and reporting to judicial authority.

In addition, the Group regulates the handling and announcement of
inside information as set out in the corporate responsibility policy and
all subsidiary procedures in order to ensure that the inside information
shall be kept confidential until disclosure with proper approval and the
relevant information shall be announced in an effective and consistent
manner.
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Appropriate policy and supervision have been designed and put in
place to safeguard assets against unauthorized use or disposal, ensure
compliance with relevant rules and regulations, maintain reliable
financial and accounting records pursuant to applicable accounting
standards and regulatory requirement on reporting and properly identify
and manage the major risks which may affect the performance of the
Group. The relevant system and internal control can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
or loss as they are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business targets.

The internal audit department of the Group carries out auditing work
aiming to control risks. Its annual working plan covers all major works
and procedures of the operational, business and service units of the
Group and special review will be conducted in accordance with the
requirement of the management. The results of audit shall be submitted
to the Audit Committee. The internal audit department will review and
follow up on issues raised during the audit to ensure effective
implementation and regularly report the progress to the Audit
Committee.

The internal audit department of the Group shall independently confirm
to each of the Board, the Audit Committee and the administrative
management of the Group that the internal control of the Group is
sufficient and effective. The head of the internal audit department of the
Group shall directly report to the chairman of the Audit Committee, the
Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of the Group.

The management is responsible for the design, implementation and
supervision of risk management and internal control system, and shall
regularly report to the Board and/or the Audit Committee regarding the
effectiveness of the relevant system.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the internal control system of
the Company was comprehensive and effective, and was neither
subject to any significant or major internal control deficiency nor
material issues which may affect the financial control, operational

control, compliance control and risk management function of the
Company.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 42
to the financial statements respectively.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages
116 to 118.

The Directors recommended to the shareholders of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Monday, 27 May 2019 (“AGM”) the distribution of a final dividend of HK
cents 4.5 per share out of contributed surplus of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

There is no arrangement that a shareholder of the Company has
waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital for the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

SHARES ISSUED

During the year, an aggregate of 463,560,113 shares of HK$0.01 each
in the capital of the Company (“Shares”) were allotted and issued at the
issue price of HK$0.9334 to Landsea International Holdings Limited
(“Landsea International”) on 19 November 2018 upon full conversion of
the convertible perpetual convertible securities in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$432,687,009 issued by the Company to Landsea
International on 29 January 2016 in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the agreement in relation to acquisition of Epic China
Limited dated 2 December 2015 entered into between Landsea
International and the Company.

On 21 December 2018, 341,176,471 Shares were issued and allotted
to Landsea International upon completion of the capitalization of the
shareholder’s loan in the outstanding principal amount of HK$290
million provided by Landsea International to the Company.
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DEBENTURES ISSUED

On 22 April 2018, the Company issued the US$150 million 9.625%
senior notes due 2020 in accordance to the purchase agreement
dated 20 April 2018. On 18 May 2018, the Company issued an
additional US$50 million 9.625% senior notes due 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Particulars of a discussion and analysis on the activities specified in
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong
Kong) (“Companies Ordinance”), including a fair review of the Group’s
business, a discussion on the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group, future development in the Company’s business and analysis
using financial key performance indicators, are set out in the sections
headed “CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT”, “MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS” and “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT” in this
annual report. The above sections form an integral part of this directors’
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The environmental policies and performance of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2018 are contained the information required
under Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”) will be published on the Stock Exchange’s website and
the Company’s website within three months after publication of the
Company’s 2018 annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and therefore the
Company is subject to relevant laws and regulations in Bermuda. In
addition, the Company is registered as a non-Hong Kong company
under Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance and therefore is subject to
the relevant provisions under the Companies Ordinance.

The Company is listed on the Stock Exchange and therefore the
Company is subject to the governance of the Listing Rules including
the disclosure requirements and corporate governance provisions
therein.
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Under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571, Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFQ”), the Company is required to maintain a register
of interests in shares and short positions and a register of directors’
and chief executives’ interests and short positions and is obliged to
disclose price sensitive or inside information.

The Group is principally engaged in properties development in the PRC
and the United States and therefore is subject to the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC and the United States.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Company recognised that employees are our valuable assets.
Thus, the Group provides competitive remuneration package to attract
and motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews the
remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard. The Group also
understands that it is important to maintain good relationship with
business partners and bank enterprises to achieve its long-term goals.
Accordingly, the management have kept good communication,
promptly exchanged ideas and shared business update with them
when appropriate. During the year under review, there was no material
and significant dispute between the Group and its business partners or
bank enterprises.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the identity of the shareholders entitled
to attend and vote at the AGM, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Tuesday, 21 May 2019 to Monday, 27
May 2019, both dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be effected. All transfers accompanied by the relevant
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 20 May 2019.
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For determining the entitlement of the shareholders to the proposed
distribution, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 3 June 2019 to Wednesday, 5 June 2019, both dates
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In
order to qualify for the proposed distribution, all transfer of shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 31 May 2019.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group revalued all of its investment properties at the year-end
date. The net increase in fair value of RMB7,363,000 has been credited
directly to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Details of the movements in the investment properties and property,
plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in notes
18 and 19 to the financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the amount standing to the credit of the
Company’s share premium account in the amount of RMB824,366,000
may be distributable in the form of fully paid bonus shares. Under the
laws of Bermuda, the Company’s contributed surplus account may be
distributed under certain circumstances, as at 31 December 2018, the
balance of the account was RMB337,347,000.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Xiang Jiong (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 23 November 2018)

Ms. Shen Leying (Co-Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Wang Lei (Co-Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 23 November 2018)

Ms. Zhou Qin (Vice President)

Mr. Xie Yuanijian (Vice President)
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
Mr. Zhou Yimin

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Xu Xiaonian

Mr. Ding Yuan

Mr. Lee Kwan Hung

Mr. Chen Tai-yuan (appointed on 22 March 2019)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 87, Mr. Tian Ming, Ms.
Shen Leying and Mr. Xie Yuanjian will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

In accordance with Bye-law 86(2), Mr. Chen Tai-yuan is subject to re-
election at the AGM and, being eligible, offers himself for re-election.

Mr. Ding Yuan confirmed that he will retire at the AGM as he would like
to spend more time pursuing his own business.

The Company entered into a service contract with (1) each of Mr. Tian
Ming, Ms. Shen Leying and Mr. Xie Yuanjian, the executive Directors,
on 11 November 2016 for a term of three years commencing each
from 1 August 2016; (2) Ms. Zhou Qin, an executive Director, on 11
November 2016 for a term of three years commencing from 15 August
2016; and (3) Mr. Wang Lei, an executive Director, on 23 November
2018 for a term of three years commencing from 23 November 2018.

The Company entered into an appointment letter with each of Mr. Xu
Xiaonian, Mr. Ding Yuan and Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, independent non-
executive Directors, on 11 November 2016 for a term of three years
commencing from 1 August 2016.

The Company also entered into an appointment letter with Mr. Zhou
Yimin, a non-executive Director, on 17 November 2018 for a term of
three years commencing from 17 November 2018.

The Company entered into an appointment letter with Mr. Chen Tai-
yuan, an independent non-executive Director, on 22 March 2019 for a
term of three years commencing from 22 March 2019.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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CHANGES OF INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

Below are the changes in Directors’ information required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules up to the

FRESENENEE
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date of this report.

Name of Director Change(s)

ExEB 25

Mr. Zhou Yimin resigned as a non-executive Director of CIFI Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd. (a company

Non-executive Director listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 884) on 25 November 2018

FmERFLE RZZ—\F+— AT hBEEBF L AREEER (RE) BRAF (KRfH

IHITEE 5% : 884) MIFEMITES

Mr. Ding Yuan resigned as an independent non-executive Director of Red Star Macalline Group

Independent non-executive Director Corporation Ltd. (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 1528) on 28
November 2018

TE%E RZE—N\F+—AZ+N\BBFEBRA LM AR EXEREEERNEBRAT

BYIHTEE (RS - 1528) KBS IERMITES

DIRECTOR’S AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or were required
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as
follows:
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LONG POSITION IN ORDINARY SHARES OF REALARAEREEIIBTERARZ
HK$0.01 EACH OF THE COMPANY 35}

Number of Shares held/Approximate percentage in total number of  Fr#EAR & E (E2 ETROAEHEOMA B D

issued Shares

Number of Shares held/Approximate percentage in

total number of issued Shares

FEROBE, (HERTROBENBVED L

Number of Number of Total
ordinary derivative number of
Name of Director Capacity Shares Shares Shares
BEEpE g4 EERHE TERGEE % 45 48 21
Mr. Tian Ming (“Mr. Tian”) Interest of controlled corporations 3,116,146,678 - 3,116,146,678
AEAEE (TAEED XEHEE R (65.99%) (65.99%)
(Notes 1 and 2)
(Hi#E1 R2)
Beneficial owner 7,220,000 1,681,500 8,901,500
ExEEA (0.15%) (0.04%) (0.19%)
(Note 3)
(FfH3E3)
Ms. Shen Leying Beneficial owner 1,064,000 1,150,500 2,214,500
gL+ EREBA (0.02%) (0.02%) (0.04%)
(Note 3)
(P5E3)
Mr. Wang Lei Beneficial owner - 796,500 796,500
TEEE EREBA (0.02%) (0.02%)
(Note 3)
(FfH5E3)
Ms. Zhou Qin Beneficial owner 1,626,163 885,000 2,511,163
gzt EnEBA (0.03%) (0.02%) (0.05%)
(Note 3)
(FftzE3)
Mr. Xie Yuanjian Beneficial owner 1,064,000 973,500 2,037,500
WRELEE EnBEAA (0.02%) (0.02%) (0.04%)
(Note 3)
(3£ 3)



Notes:

(1) These include (i) 1,997,961,187 ordinary shares held through Greensheid
Corporation (“Greensheid”); (i) 313,448,907 ordinary shares held through Easycorps
Group Limited (“Easycorps”); and (i) 804,736,584 ordinary shares, including
468,560,113 derivative shares being converted upon exercise of conversion rights
by Landsea International Holdings Limited (“Landsea International”) into ordinary
shares on 19 November 2018, held through Landsea International.

2 Greensheid is wholly-owned by Landsea International, which is in turn wholly-owned
by Landsea Group. Mr. Tian is the controlling shareholder of Landsea Group.
Easycorps is a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tian.

Q) These are restricted shares granted according to the restricted share award scheme
adopted by the Board on 2 July 2014.

Save as disclosed, as at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors and
the chief executives of the Company and their respective associates
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions in which
they are deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein or which were required
pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than those disclosed in the sections headed “Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions” below and
“Related Party Transactions” in note 39 to the financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2018, no contracts of significance to
which the Company or its subsidiaries were a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

Each of the directors has confirmed that none of them is engaged in,
or interested in any business which, directly or indirectly, competes or
is likely to compete with the business of the Group.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'’S INTERESTS
IN SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

Other than those disclosed in the sections headed “Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions” below and
“Related Party Transactions” in note 39 to the financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2018, at no time during the year had the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, and the controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance or any
contract of significance for the provision of services by the controlling
shareholders or any of its subsidiaries to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
During the year, the Group had charitable donation of RMB523,000
(2017: RMB150,000).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme and the restricted share award
scheme of the Company as set out below in this report and also note
32 to the financial statements, other equity-linked agreement entered
into by the Group during the year or subsisting at the end of the year
are set out in the section headed “MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS” and also note 33 to the financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

ERBRRNRERGN Z#:E
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RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 2 July 2014, the Board adopted a restricted share award scheme
(“Share Award Scheme”) as an incentive to recognise the contributions
by employees and to give incentives to retain them for the continuing
operation and development of the Group, as well as attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group. The Directors strongly
believe that the continued success of the Group is closely tied with the
commitment and efforts of the employees of the Group. The shares
subject to restrictions (“Restricted Shares”) can serve as an incentive to
motivate them to further contribute to the Group. The Restricted
Shares to be awarded will be with reference to the performance,
operating and financial targets and other criteria determined by the
Board from time to time. The Share Award Scheme is effective for a
term of 10 years commencing on the date of adoption subject to any
early termination as may be determined by the Board.

The summary of the principal terms and conditions of Share Award
Scheme were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 2 July
2014. As at 31 December 2018, an aggregate of 35,262,500
Restricted Shares were granted to reward the eligible awardees, details
of which are set out as below:

PR 5 1 AR 40 R B =t &

RIZ—WNFLAZR  EXRRMAREIMERN 2
Bhat 8l ([ It BB 8 ) AZFHER 2 B R - BUE
AR AREZHELEMBERBEZ N  AR/A
SEE-—FRRREAAT - EFHE - A 5H
ZEREBXRDEANEEREE ZAERSNETHE -
SRR BB A (TR SIMER D |) B LAV & — TR AR DA (R
EHfIE— P HAREERER - B TFREZRS
BN 2ERE  AEERKLERWBHEFALR
BRI FEREE 2 MR EETE - ki ZE
ArEHEMEHREY  RBTE  RIEKESS
RERFRIE -

B SRENET & 2 E B ERR R EE TN AR A
AA—Z—NE+A-—RZAER - RZE—N
F+ZA=+—08 ' BEFMLE 35,262,500 3% R
MR SRS EARERBA L - FFBEHEIIOT

Number of
Restricted
Date of grant of Shares  Outstanding at Distributed Outstanding at
Awardees Restricted Shares Granted 1January2018  during the year 31 December 2018  Vesting conditions
R-B-N\& RZB-N\%
ERM -A—Bi T=A=t-AH
ERBAL BFRAMRG RS  REMRAHA & FERAE &8 BREK
Directors (1) Subject to fulfilment of the year's
gz preset performance, operation
Mr. Tian Ming 19 November 2014 1,596,000 1,596,000 1,596,000 - and financial targets at the
mRLE ZE-NET—ANA discretion of the Board
8 April 2016 1,681,500 1,681,500 1,681,500 BREESRIRANBREREL
ZE-"EMANR FERFFA  CERYBER
Ms. Shen Leying 19 November 2014 1,064,000 1,064,000 1,064,000 - () Aftersatisfying condition (1), a
RELTT ZE-NET—AtNA waiting period of two years is
8 April 2016 1,150,500 1,150,500 1,150,500 required.
- NEMANA EmRE () EE % - BB
EVERY-
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Number of
Restricted
Date of grant of Shares  Outstanding at Distributed Outstanding at
Awardees Restricted Shares Granted 1January2018  during the year 31 December 2018  Vesting conditions
R=B-N% R=B-N%
BERE —B-AH +ZA=+-HH
ERBAL BFRHMEROBE REERGHE &8 FERAE &8 BRAE
Mr. Wang Lei 8 April 2016 796,500 796,500 - 796,500
By T NEMANA
Mr. Xie Yuanjian 19 November 2014 1,064,000 1,064,000 1,064,000 =
MEREE ZZ-MmET-RAtAB
8 April 2016 973,500 973,500 973,500
T NEMANA
Ms. Zhou Qin 19 November 2014 620,000 620,000 620,000 -
BEj e ZZ-mE+-R+AhA
8 April 2016 885,000 885,000 885,000
T NEMANA
Sub-total 9,831,000 4,344,000 5,487,000
INEf
Other Employees 19 November 2014 13,484,000 13,484,000 11,968,000 1,516,000
(including former —Z—ME+—A+AH
Director) 8 April 2016 11,947,500 11,947,500 - 11,947,500
HibfEE T REMANA
(BEAES)
Sub-total 25,431,500 11,968,000 13,463,500
Dt
Total 35,262,500 35,262,500 16,312,000 18,950,500
by
SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATION OF ERRRBE L THEAFE13.18K 245

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER UNDER RULE EBEHNE(E

13.18 OF THE LISTING RULES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company did not have any disclosure 188 F T 85131815 HE—ZET— N\EFE+—H
obligations under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules. =+—B  ARBWEEAREEE -



SHARE OPTIONS

The share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted and became
effective upon passing relevant ordinary resolution at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 25 April 2012. Summary of
the principal terms of the Scheme were set out in the circular to the
Company’s shareholders on 22 March 2012. No share option was
granted under the Scheme since its adoption.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Options” and
“Restricted Share Award Scheme” above, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Company’s Directors or chief executives to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2018, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that other than the interests disclosed above in respect of
certain Directors and chief executives, the following shareholders had
notified the Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of
the Company:

iqvig:tik:
BEE-_ZE—_—FNA_-_T+RHBERITZARARKRE
BERE L@BAEMITERE  ROBETE(Z
FTE|]) BRMAIW B ELER o T8l 2 EZIEHE
ZHIN _E——F=A -+ _BABEARFIREZ
KA - REENE - W8 B RIEZAT 23R T A7 8
% °

BEROIES 22 H

B £ 3T TRt B3R | % BRI 1 A 1) 22 BT &1 ) AR &
PR EEE SN - NR RIS EAE I B A RN F A E
SEEMZH BERNAREETREIETHASR
FERBEAR R ST E AR 2 B (B 7 M o

FERR
R-Z—\F+=A=+—B FAAREEFR
MEHEPIEBHEFEZEERRBEMET - B

EXFBEBEERETESERIETRAR ZEa
S UTERREHEARAREBEARA D EHITR
Rz B Rt -

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
SEERWE

ORDINARY SHARES OF HK$0.01 EACH OF THE AATEREEOO B THZIER

COMPANY
Number of Shares held/Percentage in
total number of issued Shares
FERABE BB TROABEI
Number of Number of
Long position/ ordinary derivative
Name of Shareholder Short position Shares Shares Total
RRE/ 48 #E/ %R LEREE fTERGDHE ko
Landsea Group Co., Ltd. (Note 1) B BRMEB AR (1) Long position 2,802,697,771 - 2,802,697,771
e (69.35%) (69.35%)
Landsea International (Note 1) Landsea Intemational (Mt 1) Long position 2,802,697,771 = 2,802,697,771
e (69.35%) (69.35%)
Greensheid (Note 1) Greensheid (Fi{7E 1) Long postion 1,997,961,187 - 1,997,961,187
e (42.31%) (42.31%)
Easycorps Easycorps Long posttion 313,448,907 - 313,448,907
iR (6.63%) (6.63%)
Ping An Insurance (Group) Company LT %2kl (£8) R Long postion 327,002,604 - 327,002,604
of China, Ltd. (Note 2) (MizE2) 5 (6.92%) (6.92%)
Short position 327,002,604 - 327,002,604
e (6.92%) (6.92%)
Ping An Life Insurance Company of mEIZASRRRGER Long position 327,002,604 - 327,002,604
China Ltd. (Note 2) (MizE2) e (6.92%) (6.92%)
Short position 327,002,604 - 327,002,604
KE (6.92%) (6.92%)



Number of Shares held/Percentage in
total number of issued Shares

FisRAUE ERITROEHADL

Number of Number of

Long position/ ordinary derivative
Name of Shareholder Short position Shares Shares Total
RRftE/ 48 Be/ %a LEREA fTERGEA ot
Ping An Real Estate Company Ltd. FRAPEERAR (Hz2) Long posttion 327,002,604 = 327,002,604
(Note 2) 8 (6.92%) (6.92%)
Short position 327,002,604 — 327,002,604
HE (6.92%) (6.92%)
Pingan Real Estate Capital Ltd. (Note 2) ~ FRABEBAERAF (HH52) Long position 327,002,604 = 327,002,604
1399) (6.92%) (6.92%)
Short position 327,002,604 — 327,002,604
HE (6.92%) (6.92%)
Fuji Investment Management Limited EERAEBERAR (M) Long position 327,002,604 = 327,002,604
(Note 2) 8 (6.92%) (6.92%)
Short position 327,002,604 — 327,002,604
HE (6.92%) (6.92%)

Notes: ME -

These include () 1,997,961,187 ordinary shares held through Greensheid; and (2)
804,736,584 ordinary shares, including 463,560,113 derivative shares being
converted into ordinary shares on 19 November 2018 upon exercise of conversion
rights attached to the convertible perpetual securities in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$432,687,009 by Landsea International, held through Landsea
International, as well as 341,176,471 ordinary shares issued and allotted to Landsea
International on 21 December 2018 for the capitalization of the outstanding principal
amount of the loan of HK$290 million provided by Landsea International to the
Company.

Greensheid is wholly-owned by Landsea International, which is in turn wholly-owned
by Landsea Group. Therefore, Landsea International is deemed to be interested in
the shares held by Greensheid, and Landsea Group is deemed to be interested in
the shares held by Landsea International and Greensheid pursuant to the SFO.

)

BIE () 1,997,961,187 iR 5 i Greensheid FT#% B 2 E @R
K (2) 804,736,584 1% % i Landsea International FT#% 5 2 &
@ f% - B flLandsea International 1T & Kt W &N & 4 %
432,687,009 L AT K A B H MR N T — \F
+—A+hBRBRALBERE 463,560,113 RATERS + LA
X 5t #8 Landsea International [A] 28 A Rl R KB E AR & 58
200 EERTTMEREANM - R=ZZ—/\F+=-A=1+—H
[ Landsea International 317 & B 3% 341,176,471 IR L @A

Greensheid f Landsea International & & # % * M Landsea
International HEAFF S B2 E A - At - REFHFRHPE
{& 5] + Landsea International # 1% /& 7 Greensheid 3% A& 2 %
MR R - A& B AR &5 Landsea International
% Greensheid #5582 It R B % o
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2) These include (i) 327,002,604 ordinary shares held by Fuiji Investment Management
Limited. Fuji Investment Management Limited is wholly-owned by Pingan Real
Estate Capital Limited which in turn is wholly-owned by Ping An Real Estate
Company Limited. Ping An Real Estate Company Limited is owned as to 49% by
Ping An Life Insurance Company of China Ltd., which in turn is owned as to 99.51%
by Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd. Therefore, each of Ping An
Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd., Ping An Life Insurance Company of
China Ltd., Ping An Real Estate Company Ltd. and Pingan Real Estate Capital Ltd.
is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Fuji Investment Management
Limited pursuant to the SFO. The convertible perpetual securities issued by the
Company in an aggregate principal amount of HK$130,000,000 were fully
redeemed by the Company in whole amount. Therefore, upon such full redemption,
the Pingan CPS have been cancelled by the Company.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any
other relevant interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as at 31 December 2018.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Details of the Group’s related party transactions for the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out in Note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements. Some of those transactions constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions and have complied
with the relevant disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has the following
connected transaction:

(1) On 31 December 2015, the Company entered into the
shareholder loan framework agreement (“Framework Agreement”)
with Landsea Group, pursuant to which Landsea Group agreed
to grant shareholder loan(s) in an aggregate principal amount of
not exceeding RMB4,000,000,000 (or Hong Kong Dollar
equivalent) to the Company and/or its subsidiaries during the
two-year period up to 31 December 2017 at an interest rate of
5.5% per annum and the amounts are interest free since 1
January 2018. As at 31 December 2018, Landsea International,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Landsea Group has granted an
aggregate of RMB20,779,000 to the Company which remains
outstanding at 31 December 2018.

(2  BIE([)327,002,604RHESTREEEAERARMFAMNYL
BR - EEREEEERAFBHFLAHELAAFRAA
2EER MELTHEERNERARBFELZTHEARR
RAIZEHEE - FRAPDEFRAABHFEFIRZAFTRRE
RO BRARIHEAS 49% * MABEFLZAFRBROARA
AIAPEFLREB(EE)ROBRAAHEAS9.51% -
It BIBEESRBAEGD - PETRRE(KE)ROAR
AR FEFEZAZRBROBRAGF - FLETBHERR
RRARFLEAHEERNERARSAREANESTRET
BERARBEZROFEE R - AARBITASLE
130,000,000 7% 7T #) AJ AR K A 3 55 B B BE AR A FIIER] ©
Elt - BBEER % - AR BB FRARBRKAES o

BREXHBEEEIN RZBE-NF+_A=+—
B ARRBEENENARRRD RBERDZ
His BRAEm =R R o

AEBHE-_T—\F+-_A=+—HILFEMNE
AR PHBHN R EMEHRERMFEI - BT 2FE
RGBHRBAER SR BFEBEIZIVEETRE L
TRANE 14AEZ BB ERTE ©

FRERZ
HE-—ZT- \GT-A=+—ALFE FEMA
ATRERS :

1) RZZE—FRF+-A=+—8 KARHEEAF
SEEITRRERELR B ((EXEBZE] - 3
HEBREE-_Z—tF+-_A=F+—8ZH]
BMERRRNRR R REMNBARKEE %
N BT R E A R 4,000,000,000 7T (S 1B
BT ZRRER - REFEE5%TEREZ
E-N\F-—HA—BETHE - RZZE—\F
TZA=FT—H MFEE2EWBAR
Landsea International M AN A 1% & £ AR
20,779,000t - R=F—N\F+-_A=+—H
MAREE



Apart from the grant of shareholder’s loan under the Framework
Agreement above, Landsea Group has also granted to Landsea
Holdings Corporation, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, certain loans in an aggregate principal amount of
RMB1,665,000,000 with interest rate ranging from 5.294% to
6.6345% per annum repayable in 5 years from the respective
date of drawdown. As at 31 December 2018, an aggregate of
RMB1,665,000,000 remain outstanding.

On 29 December 2017, BR/MEAHE X B 2 A (Suzhou
Langkun Property Limited®) (“Suzhou Langkun”) entered into (i)
two loan agreements (the “Loan Agreements 1”) with JT & Bl 2=
BIGEFR AR (Jiangsu Guotai Huading Investment Company
Limited®) (“Jiangsu Huading”), being a 22.5% owner of Suzhou
Langkun, in relation to the provision of a loan of
RMB285,750,000 to Jiangsu Huading; and (ii) two loan
agreements (the “Loan Agreements II”) with JLEk Bl S5 &4 Rlih 3
EBERAF (Jiangsu Guotai Zijin Technology Development
Company Limited*) (“Jiangsu Zijin”), being a 22.5% owner of
Suzhou Langkun, in relation to the provision of loan of
RMB285,750,000 to Jiangsu Zijin. The Loan Agreements | and
Loan Agreements Il are for a period from 31 December 2017 to
31 December 2018 at an annual interest rate of 4.35%.

Suzhou Langkun is owned as to 55% by the Group, and 22.5%
each by Jiangsu Huading and Jiangsu Zijin, therefore, Jiangsu
Huading and Jiang Zijin are regarded as connected persons at
subsidiary level. The transactions contemplated under the Loan
Agreements | and the Loan Agreements Il constituted connected
transactions for the Company at subsidiary level under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and are subject to notification and
announcement requirements but exempt from the circular,

independent financial advice and shareholders’ approval
requirements under Rule 14A.101 of the Listing Rules.

@

BRABIR EEZR B L ARER B RO - BRFF S
B Jrm AR A EEEE N B A FlLandsea
Holdings Corporation % {H /K & 8 %8 & A R ¥
1,665,000,000 T E TER  ZSERFF
KA F-5.294% = 6.6345% ~ B & B X ELH
HENSFRNEE - RZ_ZE—N\NF+=A
=+—H - %% AR¥1,665,000,000 T &
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On 21 December 2018, Suzhou Langkun entered into the
supplemental agreement to Loan Agreements | with Jiangsu
Huading and supplemental agreement to Loan Agreements |l
with Jiangsu Zijin, pursuant to which Suzhou Langkun agreed to
adjust certain terms under the Loan Agreements | and Loan
Agreements Il. The adjusted loan principal was up to
RMB327,270,000 for a term extended from 31 December 2018
to 31 December 2021 at an interest rate of 4.35% per annum.

The transactions contemplated under the (i) Loan Agreements |
and the Loan Agreements Il, and (ii) the respective supplemental
agreement to the Loan Agreements | and the Loan Agreements ||
constituted connected transactions for the Company at
subsidiary level under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are
subject to notification and announcement requirements but
exempt from the circular, independent financial advice and
shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.101 of the
Listing Rules.

On 2 November 2018, the Company and Landsea International
entered into the agreement pursuant to which Landsea
International conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and the
Company conditionally agreed to allot and issue 341,176,471
new Shares at the issue price of HK$0.85 per Share for the
capitalization of the outstanding principal amount of the
shareholder loan of HK$290 million provided by Landsea
International to the Company (“Capitalization”).

The Capitalization constitutes a non-exempt connected
transaction for the Company under the Listing Rules and is
subject to the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. At the special general meeting of the Company
held on 18 December 2018, the Capitalization was approved by
the independent shareholders by poll, and 341,176,471 new
Shares were issued and allotted to Landsea International on 21
December 2018.

RZB—NFE+-A=-+—8  &INAHET
BREQFITER MR 2HRHEARE KD
FIzHREmE Bt IHBHEEHARE
KRk RERBRINE TIER - KAZRNE
RA D ARm AR 327,270,000 + F 5
BT \Ft+_A=+—HERZ-ZT—_—
F+-—R=+—H " FFEE435% °

RIBEETRAE14AE - () ERBER I EER D
I K (i) B | B K ek || & B 7T
FA MRUETTHR ZRBAANRAEM B RE
HENEEXZW BB TRARRNENRTE @ 1
A #RIRE EHHRRIE 14A101 RERK - B
ST AT R e R R AL RO ARE

R-FE—NE+—H-H KA 7 Landsea
International &7 37 1 & @ #& Ut - Landsea
International B {& 4 R Z R - MA R FA K
HRIE B3 R E1T341,176,471 BRFTAR (D + 3
TEAEBRKMD08SHE L & £ # Landsea
International [A] A A B2 IR R B SR AI R BB
Re200BBEATERNME(TERE] -
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On 24 December 2018, E/BBAR ¥ E R B R A A (Shangha
Langrong Enterprise Management Co., Ltd.*) (“Shanghai
Langrong”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and &
THFERTEEERE AR A (Nanjing Landsea Ivy Senior
Housing Service Co., Ltd.*) as purchaser, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Landsea Group, entered into a share transfer
agreement, pursuant to which Shanghai Langrong agreed to sell
and Landsea Changqing agreed to purchase the entire equity
interest in A E 5EEEZ R (LE) BR A A (Landsea Ivy
Senior Housing Service (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.*) to the purchaser at
a consideration of RMB1.00. The transaction contemplated
thereunder constituted a de minimis connected transaction under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has the following
non-exempt continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules:

1. On 25 December 2017, the Company entered into the framework
agreement in relation to the development and constructed
management services and sales agency services (“Project
Management Services Agreement”) with Landsea Group,
pursuant to which the Group shall provide development and
construction management services and sales agency services to
Landsea Group and its subsidiaries for term of three years
commencing from 25 December 2017 to 24 December 2020 at
an annual cap of RMB120 million per year.

The actual transaction amount under the Project Management
Services Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2018 is
approximately RMB23,238,000.

RZZE—N\E+-A=+HA - ARG
EBRAERAR ([ EEBAR]  ARRZ2ENEB
AR HEERAFREEEERBER AR (fF
BEH - RAFEEZ2ENBAR) KRR
BEHE Bt EEMARELHEAR
Landsea Changging Al BB B 5 A E
R (L8 ERAFRNEERE  REAAR
#61.007T o IR BGETT 2 X ZEK ETHRAE
14AZEE TR EKTHEERS -

FRRFERERS

BHE_T-\F+_A=+—RBLEFE  x5EE
TTAT EHRAUFAIAZERENIERRIFERE
R5

1. MNTZ—tF+-_A=-+AH KARERF
SEFIV M EBRRAEEREERERBER
BAREMIELR G ([TBE BEREHE]) © &
I AREEBR -_Z—+F+_A-+HABAZE
ZEEF+AZTMHARN=FHH - B
HEEREAZELEERG MEERER
% FELERAARB1208ET

BE_ZT-\Ft-A=-tHUFEEEE
BERBHARTNERIZSER/OARE
23,238,000 7T
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On 25 December 2017, the Company entered into the framework
agreement in relation to the properties services and properties
consulting services (“Properties Services and Consulting
Agreement”) with Landsea Group, pursuant to which Landsea
Group or its subsidiaries shall provide to the Group properties
services and properties consulting services for a fixed term of
three years commencing from 1 January 2018 to 31 December
2020 at the respective annual caps at RMB7 million, RMB4
million and RMB4 million.

The actual transaction amount under the Properties Services and
Consulting Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2018 is
approximately RMB5,507,000.

On 183 February 2018, the Company entered into the green
architecture technological services agreement with /8 EA4% 2 5E
R A% BB A T (Shanghai Landleaf Architecture Technology
Co., Ltd.”) (“Landleaf Architecture Technology”) (“Architecture
Technological Services Agreement”), pursuant to which Landleaf
Architecture Technology shall provide green architecture
technological services to the Group for a term of three years
commencing from 13 February 2018 to 31 December 2020 at
the respective annual caps of RMB70 million, RMB50 million and
RMBS50 million.

The actual transaction amount under the Architecture
Technological Services Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2018 is approximately RMB19,832,000.

On 13 February 2018, the Company also entered into the
decoration services agreement with Landsea Group (“Decoration
Services Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group will entrust
Landsea Group or its subsidiaries for the provision of decoration
services during the development and construction process or
operation process of the properties development projects of the
Group for a term of three years commencing from 13 February
2018 to 31 December 2020 at the respective annual caps of
RMB20 million, RMB20 million and RMB20 million.

The actual transaction amount under the Decoration Services
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2018 is
approximately RMB7,043,000.

R-ZB—+F+-A-+HE  AAFIERE
SEET— BB FERG RYEE AR
HER W ([ RTE REAHZED © Bt - 87
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RETE=FHH - AREEREDFERSE Y
¥HBHRS  EE T -TF+-A=+—H
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5. On 2 November 2018, the Company entered into the services
framework agreement (“Services Framework Agreement”) with
Landsea Group, pursuant to which the Group shall entrust
Landsea Group or its subsidiaries to provide venues, facilities and
equipment rental for application testing of green residential
products and promotional display services for a term of three
years from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021 at the
respective annual caps of RMB12 million, RMB14 million and
RMB16 million.

Mr. Tian Ming, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
who is interested and deemed to be interests in approximately 66.18%
of the issued share capital of the Company, it the ultimate controller of
Landleaf Architecture Technology, and therefore, Landleaf Architect
Technology is regarded as a connected person of the Company. The
Architecture Technological Services Agreement constitutes continuing
connected transaction of the Company and are subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements but exempt from independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Given Landsea Group is interested in approximately 59.35% of the
issued share capital of the Company, Landsea Group is a connected
person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under the Project
Management Services Agreement, the Properties Services and
Consulting Agreement and Decoration Services Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company and are subject to
the reporting and announcement requirements but exempt from
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

The Company has engaged the auditor of the Company to report the
continuing connected transactions of the Group in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unmodified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group in this
report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
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The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and based on
the unmodified letter issued by the auditor of the Company noted
above, confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary course and usual course of business of the
Company;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Company
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent third
parties; and

@iy in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interest of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Board would like to confirm that the connected transactions and
the continuing connected transactions carried out during the year
ended 31 December 2018 and as disclosed in this report have
complied with the requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s purchased from the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 10.3% of the Group’s total purchases
and purchased from the largest supplier included therein accounted for
approximately 2.8% of the Group’s total purchases.

During the year, the Group’s revenue from the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 5.5% of the Group’s total revenue and
revenue from Landsea Group, being the largest customer included
therein accounted for approximately 1.6% of the Group’s total revenue.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the Company, their
associates, nor any shareholder which to the best knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital,
had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2018, other than those purchased by the trustee for the
Share Award Scheme.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.
The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the
Directors as required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance
when the Report of the Board of the Directors prepared by the
Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the
Companies Ordinance.

SUFFICIENT OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares. Intending
holders and investors of the Company’s shares are recommended to
consult their professional advisers if they are in any doubt as to the
taxation implications (including tax relief) of subscribing for, purchasing,
holding, disposing of or dealing in shares. It is emphasized that none of
the Company or its Directors or officers will accept any responsibility
for any tax effect on, or liabilities of, holders of shares in the Company
resulting from their subscription for, purchase, holding, disposal of or
dealing in such shares.
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AUDITOR BB
The Company has not changed its external auditor during the past  ZNA R @A = 4 5 RN 2R 4% ST o
three years.

A resolution will be submitted to the AGM to re-appoint REEFBEEARES LIRS RERERE KB

PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company. ERNCTE =V VNGIE 2 Gl
On behalf of the Board REREER

Landsea Green Group Co., Ltd. BRReEBERAH

Shen Leying g

Director EE

Hong Kong, 22 March 2019 B ZE-NAF=A=+=H
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To the Shareholders of Landsea Green Group Co., Ltd. FPFREEEERAFREK
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (REREFMA L2 BRAA)
OPINION =

WHAT WE HAVE AUDITED BPEETHRR

The consolidated financial statements of Landsea Green Group Co., BAFGZEEEAR AR (A TERE [E2F))) REKH
Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on EBARI(ATHEIEEE ) FEHNRFE116E3348

pages 116 to 334, which comprise: KARE Sk - B -
e the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018; e RIE-—NFF+_A=+—HHGEEEAR
=

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the o  HEZHIFFENGEEEKER
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then o  EHEZHILFENLGEERSEFHEK
ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then o HEZHIIFENGEBRETER &
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include ®  #ZRAMKEHREMTE  BEIZSTHEME -
a summary of significant accounting policies.

" 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong P EERBATAEL i
Tel: +852 2289 8888 Fax: +852 2810 9888 TE: +852 2289 8888  {HH: +852 2810 9888
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OUR OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

INDEPENDENCE

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
. Classification of Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate;

. Revenue recognition for development management service.
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Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN EST AR ERRETEE

Classification of Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate
HEALAA  EELERBENTNTE

Refer to note 4(a) (Classification of subsidiary, joint venture
and associate), note 16 (Interests in associates), note 17
(Interests in joint ventures) and note 38 (Disposal of
subsidiaries) of the consolidated financial statements.
B2HREMBBRERN T4 (MEBAR - 2 bERMER
AR D) « MiFE16 (REEE AR ER) 17 (RE &
EMER) K38 (HEMBAR) -

The Group invests in certain properties projects with various
other parties under various arrangements. According to the
terms of these arrangements, the Group classifies the
investments into subsidiary, joint venture or associate. As of
31 December 2018, the Group had investments in joint
ventures and associates with carrying amount of
RMB2,596.05 million and RMB1,315.71 million, respectively.
At the same time, the Group has non-wholly owned
subsidiaries with total non-controlling interest of RMB377.34
million. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
recognized gain from derecognition of subsidiaries due to loss
of control while retained these investments as joint ventures
and associates. These gains amounted to RMB150.10 million
which represents 6.64% of profit before tax.

EXEERBEETHETREMETREETYHER - R
BRETHNGR  EEERZEREDERAMELR - &
EhEYHEAT - RZE—\F+ZA=+—H ' ELE
EHFeECERBENF  REAES R RARKE2596.05
BETRARKE1I3157T1BEEL AR EXERGHEEE
B HIFEGIMEREEAREI7T7TM4EET - BE
“E-\F+ZA=T—RHILFE EEEKLERLEE
HENME QR MERNG  ZERERERE EBFE N

BNFE e HFEBAAREE150.10 B BT @ HHE R A E
#)6.64% °

We understood, evaluated and tested the relevant control over
the Group’s classification of subsidiary, joint venture and
associate.

B - AU RRERENE LG -
AIE D ERPT AARRAIESIE = -

BERREBER

For material investments, individually or in aggregate, we
challenged management’s assessment and performed the
following audit procedures:

RERKE (BRAFHME RMEREREENTG - A
ETATEER

We examined the legal documents associated with the
investments, to determine the key terms, including rights of the
investors, terms of shareholders’ agreements, dispute
resolution provisions, termination provisions, governance
structures and profit-sharing arrangements, and assessed
these key terms against the classification criteria.

BMEERREF@NEENMG - NETARGR 81K
BEMERN - IR R - FRBRIE  BRUIERX
ERBIEBRANB O TEHE - RBERD BRI HZFRAK -

When there have been subsequent changes to the
shareholders’ agreements or governance structures, we
assessed whether these changes would impact the initial
assessments by management.
EREHREREAEELREERDH - R RSED
REHE T ERBONS T -
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Key Audit Matter
BERETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ES AR ERRETEE

The classification and change of classification of the Group’s
investment involves significant judgement in determining the
levels of control and influence based on a number of criteria.
The classification has significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated statements of comprehensive income and
consolidated balance sheet due to their effect on consolidation
SCope.
BERERENRZIHERNBEE TR ERAEGERTENE
TOERSBEES I REZHE - S ERETHGREHENR
ZFR  HYESENGE2ERERRGEEEAGBRE
BATE o

We, therefore, consider classification of subsidiary, joint
venture and associate a Key Audit Matter.

Hit - BHMRAMELRGE 8 RERBERTND HERH
REFTER o

We sought for written confirmations or communicated verbally
with co-operating parties, to confirm the contract clauses and
completeness of contracts and agreements we obtained and
whether there are any subsequent supplementary contracts
and agreements or amendments.
BMBAEEBRIEEGIESOEED  SHKERKMEE
WEARBENERIRTEY  UREREREBERTEHIR
SIS AT

We assessed whether the considerations paid for acquisitions
or received from disposals of investments represent the fair
market value in an arm’s length transactions when there was
acquisition or disposal.

BT TRRBRES I NIHEREFKRNRERS
KERPVWBSIRENR TR PR THE -

We evaluated the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures in
respect of the classification and carrying values of subsidiary,
joint venture, and associate against the accounting standards
adopted by the Group.

BMHETEREYWERAR 8 ERBE RTINS
REBRHENRBRRBEAREEBERANGTEIRTRD °

Based on our audit procedures performed, we consider the
judgements made by management regarding the classification
of subsidiary, joint venture and associate were supported by
evidences we gathered.
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Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN EST AR ERRETEE

Revenue recognition for development management services recognized over period

TR g 7 58 Y B 3 R AR S A TR

Refer to note 2.29 (a) (i) (Accounting policy for revenue
recognition of management services), note 4 (h) (Critical
accounting estimates and judgements for revenue recognition
for management services recognized over period) and note 5
(Revenue) of the consolidated financial statements.
BLBRE M BREM T 2.200)) (BERBEBAERH S
TR  MIEE4(n) (REINERH B IERBE B WA ERN
R aTbat KA RS (WKA) °

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded
revenue from development management services recognized
over period amounted to RMB394.28 million (note 5),
representing approximately 5.2% of the Group’s total revenue.
BHE-ZT - \FT+-A=+—HILFE EEENRAANRE
REOFEEERBEBABARE394.28 5 E T (H:E5) + 48
ERESEBKALS.2% -

The Group provides development management services for
fixed amount or variable amount and recognizes revenue from
services over period of time. Significant accounting estimate is
involved in the determination of progress towards complete
satisfaction of performance, the cost budget and the projected
sales and there is significant audit effort on revenue.
EEEREELFBRRAEREETERYE - YXNHAER
RISWA - BEE T LRBAOEER FRERNSHHET - BEK
REE R HER  ZFWAEBAET TIEERTEK -

We, therefore, consider the revenue recognition for
development management services recognized over period a
Key Audit Matter.

Et - # IR AR EIRNTERA R B IR RSKR AR SR
BEitERE -

We understood, evaluated and tested the controls over
revenue recognition for development management services
recognized over period.

BT AR~ FPE R BR T B HE SR O R 2 B IR AR TS U A TR P
FREHIEE -

We assessed if the estimate on progress towards complete
satisfaction of performance obligation based on the Group’s
inputs is reasonable and consistently applied. In respect of
cost incurred and cost to completion, we tested actual costs
incurred to supporting evidence, performed site visit to project,
and agreed cost to completion to approved budgets. We
compared, with hindsight, the actual costs incurred with the
budget of previous years to assess the reliability of the budget.

BT EREAEENEAERNFENERTIENE TN
ERMATEEABEAERER - BREEEKARNETRA

BIRMEBERELERAEZEFILERE  ETHEEHER

WIRE R TRARS HEHTAERR - HPAZREEKK
BEREFENTAEFESELLE M EZAER A EIE -

We assessed the reasonableness and sensitivity of
management estimation for cost to completion with
comparison to similar projects of the Group and actual costs
variance to budget by stage.

BMABLRESENELER  SRREBKAEEE
MO ERETEEREH R TRAZ BEtE RN R -

For estimation in respect of projected sales, we compared
projected sales volume and price to similar projects and
available market data including registered selling prices for
transaction, and also offer prices of properties nearby with
similar characteristics.

TREHEMETAE - BALBRBAUIER R HERERER
MXZAEEERFBEENMINEREZFREN SR -

We considered the accounting estimates used in revenue
recognition for development management services recognized
over period were supported by the evidences we gathered.
BARRBEMFRERIFEAZIFNANBERNFAEEER
BWAFERPTER A 5T LG -

BEGOERERAT / —F \FEHR N\ 111




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

N 2R RS

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the
chairman’s statement and management discussion and analysis (but
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, and the corporate information, financial summary/financial
review, financial highlights, breakdown of major properties, directors
and senior management, report of the directors and corporate
governance report which are expected to be made available to us after
that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the corporate information, financial summary/financial
review, financial highlights, breakdown of major properties, directors
and senior management, report of the directors and corporate
governance report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to the directors
and take appropriate action considering our legal rights and
obligations.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Esmond S. C. Kwan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ARA R HE W@ K

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

For the year ended

BE+-A=+—-HLEFE

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

BiaE AR¥TR AREFIT

Revenue WA 5 7,560,526 6,213,931

Cost of sales and services $HE MRS A AR 9 (5,406,474) (4,690,410)
Gross profit ER 2,154,052 1,523,521
Other income H Aoz 7 171,562 150,704

Selling expenses HEEM 9 (243,990) (119,889)

Administrative expenses 1THEHR 9 (568,935) (420,235)
Fair value gain on investment properties KEMEMEN AR EBENE 18 7,363 28,910
Other gains/(losses) — net EMFE(B%k)F5m 8 374,110 11,991
Operating profit KERHE 1,894,162 1,175,002
Finance income BT A 10 23,750 10,120

Finance costs B 7% 8 A 10 (323,018) (249,045)

Finance costs — net B 7% B FF 58 10 (299,268) (238,925)
Share of net profit of associates Vi Sg kNGRS 16 408,854 169,453
Share of net profit of joint ventures FE(HE B DERNGE 17 257,991 21,881
Profit before income tax B P 18 B¢ A R 8 2,261,739 1,127,411

Income tax expenses FriSii & A 1 (821,169) (406,570)
Profit for the year FEFE 1,440,570 720,841




For the year ended

BE+T-A=+t—-HLEE

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AR¥TR AREFIT
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hih2m (58R),
Items that may be reclassified to AJREEF D BmmIEE -
profit or loss:
— Exchange difference on translation of — HEGINETSE A RIE S E5E
foreign operations (126,796) 145,300
Items that will not be reclassified to BT B EEZEmiAR
profit or loss:
— Revaluation gain on the property — BTHE IMRERRXEEEE
transferring from property, plant and REEYENYESHNEG
equipment to investment properties 18 14,515 -
Other comprehensive (loss)/income AEEHAMEE(EE), RS
for the year, net of tax R IE (112,281) 145,300
Total comprehensive income FEZEWRZEE
for the year 1,328,289 866,141
Profit for the year attributable to: FEFEEER :
— The shareholders of the Company — AR AIRRE 1,112,774 580,523
— Non-controlling interests — JEdE RS 327,796 140,318
1,440,570 720,841
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

et EWEK

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

For the year ended

BE+-A=+—-HLEFE

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BiaE AR%T ARETTT
Total comprehensive income FEZHMKNSHAE
for the year attributable to: BERN:
— The shareholders of the Company — AR AIRRE 998,260 744,968
— Non-controlling interests — JEdE SRS 330,029 121,173
1,328,289 866,141
Earnings per share attributable to the FERAATRRNWEESRKZE
shareholders of the Company for the (AERARKETIR)
year (expressed in RMB per share)
Basic earnings per share FREARWES RMB AR#¥7T RMB AR
12 0.27 0.14
Diluted earnings per share BRHERE RMB AR#¥T RMB AR¥T
12 0.24 0.18

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should NS UREN=ges

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

TED Wt 2 P B BB Y S o — G4 B



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

REERIE

o
As at 31 December 2018 R=ZE—N\F+=-A=+—8
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—B-N\&F —tF
+=BA=+—-H8 +=ZA=+—8H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ihE=s AR¥T T ARETT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties B 18 505,630 319,830
Property, plant and equipment TE8E ITHKEE 19 1,234,573 656,245
Intangible assets mEEE 20 2,279 -
Interests in associates REE S A TR 16 1,315,706 983,077
Interests in joint ventures REEDERNER 17 2,596,047 1,885,436
Trade and other receivables, JE LT B ok B L At FE LRI K
prepayments and deposits FENREET £ 25 2,168,445 1,552,361
Deferred income tax assets EEFTISHE E 30 352,469 237,735
Goodwill EES 9,460 9,460
8,184,609 5,644,144
Current assets REBEE
Properties held for sale FHEHEMZ 21 876,881 847,831
Properties under development BT EME 23 8,688,579 6,658,882
Inventories BfF 22 116,561 52,069
Contract assets EHBE 5 107,941 -
Trade and other receivables, JFEE L5 R 3 R LAt B MR
prepayments and deposits AR K2 25 2,676,639 3,493,788
Financial assets at fair value through BAREBETABREN
profit or loss STREE 26 176,809
Restricted cash XEHRE 27 542,299 281,952
Cash and cash equivalents BeMIREEEY 27 5,404,956 3,341,835
18,590,665 14,676,357
Total assets HWEE 26,775,274 20,320,501
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
MEBEERER

As at 31 December 2018 R=-_Z—N\F+-_A=+—8H

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F
+=ZA=+—-8B +tZ-HA=t+—H

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B E AR®TR ARETT

LIABILITIES afs
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Trade and other payables FERBR R R AR 28 2,829,643 2,731,823
Borrowings &3 29 6,341,015 3,254,957
Deferred income tax liabilities BREMSHEE 30 122,556 75,537
9,293,214 6,062,317
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables FE - BR 30 I EL A R A 3K 28 6,912,769 4,064,098
Advanced proceeds received A% P W E R FB A IR
from customers 13,869 4,051,066
Contract liabilities AHEE 5 4,510,186 =
Borrowings &=k 29 683,580 2,174,458
Current income tax liabilities BIEAATS T A E 600,761 270,499
12,721,165 10,560,121
Total liabilities Be R 22,014,379 16,622,438




31 December 31 December

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F
t=A=+—-R +=-A=t—H

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Bt AR®TR ARETT

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable to
the shareholders of the Company
Share capital
Convertible perpetual securities
Reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

R
BEBREAQATARENELRE #E
f& R 31 38,702 31,800
A AR K A RE 3 33 - 495,425
e 34 4,344,853 2,964,716
4,383,555 3,491,941
eI M i 35 377,340 206,122
BRERS 4,760,895 3,698,063
HEBERER 26,775,274 20,320,501

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction

with the accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 116 to 334 were approved by the
Board of Directors on 22 March 2019 and were signed on its behalf.

Zhou Qin
&
Director

EF

bilisRE B E B BRI EBEME — G

F116EIM BBV BERERER T —NF=
B+ _HB&=ERIbE  WHATATREES -

Shen Leying
Rt
Director

BF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE_—ZT—

EHx

NFE+ZA=+—HIFE

Attributable to the shareholders of the Company

BEREATRE
Convertible Non-
Share Perpetual controlling
Capital securities Reserves interests Total
(note 31) (note 33) (note 34) Total (note 34) equity
AR FEEEHIME
B KAEH e 4
(Bif&E 31) (&t 33) (BifsE 34) st (Bi&E 34) RS
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BE AR¥TRT ARBTR ARETR AR%®Tn AR%Trn AR%Tx
At 1 January 2018 as R=-ZB-NE-A—-R"
originally presented REXZ5 31,800 495,425 2,964,716 3,491,941 206,122 3,698,063
Changes in accounting policies SHERED 2.2.1 - - (44,671) (44,671) (1,006) (45,677)
Restated balance at —E-N-HA—H
1 January 2018 BEDES 31,800 495425 2,920,045 3,447,270 205,116 3,652,386
Profit for the year FEFE - - 1,112,774 1,112,774 327,796 1,440,570
Other comprehensive loss Hin2EEE
Exchange differences on REBINEBEEM
translation of foreign operations [EHESE - - (129,029) (129,029) 2,233 (126,796)
Revaluation gain on the property BTEE - TREERE 18
transferring from property, BRERAEMED
plant and equipment to MEEEFG
investment properties - - 14,515 14,515 - 14,515
Total comprehensive income EEXEWREEE
for the year - - 998,260 998,260 330,029 1,328,289
Issue of ordinary shares as HREEREARME 31
capitalisation of BITE B
shareholder loans 3,000 - 251,997 254,997 - 254,997
Shares held for share ARG SR EIT 32
award scheme ARG - - (17,486) (17,486) - (17,486)
Contribution from G T A 35
non-controlling interests - - - - 13,498 13,498
Acquisition of subsidiaries B¢ 0= NG| 37 - - - - 17,247 17,247
Distribution to I ER S 35
non-controlling interests - - - - (188,550) (188,550)
Accrued distribution to holders of AHRRKAZEFFHFAA 33
convertible perpetual securities FEE DR - 29,599 (29,599) - - -
Distributions to holders of M AR K A 5 33
convertible perpetual securities BAEADIK - (51,648) - (51,648) - (51,648)
Conversion of convertible AT K A 33
perpetual securities to RimALER
ordinary shares 3,902 (364,220) 360,318 - - -
Redemption of convertible BB AR A B H 33
perpetual securities - (109,156) - (109,156) - (109,156)
Dividend declared BEERRE 13 - - (138,682) (138,682) - (138,682)
Subtotal of transactions with HRRRZ DT
shareholders 6,902 (495,425) 426,548 (61,975) (157,805) (219,780)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZB-NE+=-A=+—-H 38,702 - 4,344,853 4,383,555 377,340 4,760,895




Attributable to the shareholders of the Company

FBEARAARR
Convertible Non-
Share Perpetual controlling
Capital securities Reserves interests
(note 31) (note 33) (note 34) Total (note 34) Total equity
AR FEREEIME
R KAESR i i
(PBf5E31) (Pff5E 33) (Pfi5E 34) e (Bfi5E 34) R
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Bz ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2017 R=—ZF—tF—-H—AH 31,800 484,204 2,384,652 2,900,656 152,060 3,052,716
Profit for the year FEFH - - 580,523 580,523 140,318 720,841
Other comprehensive income Hib2mEE
Exchange differences on B GINETEE L RE X =58
translation of foreign operations - - 164,445 164,445 (19,145) 145,300
Total comprehensive income FEXAKRZAE
for the year = = 744,968 744,968 121,173 866,141
Shares held for share RN R ElR B AR D
award scheme - - (6,543) (6,543) - (6,543)
Accrued distribution of holders of AR AR FFHEA 33
convertible perpetual securities Bt DR - 19,679 (19,679 - - -
Contribution from BRI E 35
non-controlling interests - - - - 24,674 24,674
Acquisition of subsidiaries g NG - - - - 137,010 137,010
Transaction with BRI F MR S 35
non-controlling interests - - - - (134,044) (134,044)
Distribution to IR DR 35
non-controlling interests - - - - (61,344) (61,344)
Distributions to holders of RIATARK A E S 33
convertible perpetual securities HEEADIK - (8,458) - (8,458) - (8,458)
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries RIELENBAR (33,407) (33,407)
Dividend declared BEEIRRE 13 - - (138,682) (138,682) - (138,682)
Subtotal of transactions with HRRRZ Dt
shareholders = 11,221 (164,904) (153,683) 67,111) (220,794)
At 31 December 2017 R-B-tH+=A=t+—H 31,800 495,425 2,964,716 3,491,941 206,122 3,698,063
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read  Fifisg &z B8R FEERREM M —OFH:E

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FelEeRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

For the year ended

BEt-A=t—HLEE

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\F T+
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B ARETT ARETTT
Cash flows from operating activities KRETHHNRESHRE
Cash generated from operations LEFRIRE 36 2,526,325 1,448,120
Taxes paid BHIE (675,417) (401,092)
Interest paid BFE (524,154) (415,030)
Net cash generated from operating activities A8 &% B Fr 918 & F58 1,326,754 631,998
Cash flows from investing activities BRETENRERE
Interest received = U F B 94,489 10,120
Capital injection to joint ventures REETETE 17 (669,792) (1,000,444)
Capital injection to associates REERRNEE 16 (400) (12,138)
Dividend from joint ventures KREEETERNRE 17 239,724 -
Dividend from associates KEHZSARIARE 16 33,200 72,000
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, HEMBARMSRIE
net of cash and cash equivalents HBEERIRESEEBY 38 134,268 776,199
Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries, UM B AR
net of cash and cash equivalents H%HES RIESZEEY 37 (184,368) (1,946,561)
Proceeds from disposal of joint ventures HESEPEMSHKIE 17 24,000 24,850
Purchases of property, plant and equipment % E8 F&jE - TR &R G (668,727) (646,760)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HETHE - THAERE
plant and equipment FT{8 308 1 21
Development expenditure for internally TR 20 5 B R 1 7 B A AR
generated software 20 (2,279) -
Funding to related parties M LB 39(f) (1,872,775) (324,319)
Collection of funding to related parties W EIRREH T IRENE S 39(f) 1,892,797 1,278,253
Advance to non-controlling interests ) S Il [ R 2R B 2R (49,550) (13,500)
Collection of advance to non-controlling UG [ [m) FE42E ) 14 4 25 EA X
interests 112,091 -
Lendings to third parties BERTFE=RH - (93,460)
Collection of lending to third parties W Elm 5 = A e BE K 19,802 -
Acquisition of financial assets at WEEIR A R EERTABERN
fair value through profit or loss SREE (174,134) -
Decrease in investing related restricted cash & & 8@ =R #1378 £ R 2> 27 (30,000) -
Net cash used in investing activities REZETHL %58 (1,101,653) (1,875,739




For the year ended

BEt-RA=t—HLEE

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
—E-N\F T+
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B ARETT ARETTT
Cash flows from financing activities RETENRESRE
Proceeds from borrowings BRFTERIR 29 6,248,362 2,887,033
Repayment of borrowings BEER 29 (4,789,111) (2,319,051)
Proceeds from related parties el R e 39(f) 2,320,053 2,080,044
Repayment to related parties M) BA B 77 3B K 39(f) (1,374,887) (453,230)
Funding from non-controlling interests REFEFMERNES 3,373 17,813
Repayment of funding from non-controlling  [A)3E5 | RS IE X
interests (14,167) (110,651)
Contribution from non-controlling interests  JEFE &I ES )T & 35 13,498 24,674
Distribution to non-controlling interests JEFE S| RSB DR 35 (188,550) (61,344)
Dividends to shareholders of the Company 2 A2 B IR AR 2 13 (136,537) (138,682)
Distributions to holders of convertible AR K A BHIFH AR DK
perpetual securities 33 (51,648) (8,458)
Redemption of convertible perpetual B[O AT AR K A B 5
securities 33 (109,156) -
Acquisition of additional interest in a I — IR A R M B I ME 2=
subsidiary - (81,900)
Increase in financing related restricted cash &l & R 5 R Hl|Z8 € 18 0 27 (216,575) (40,833)
Net cash generated from financing activities Gt &% BN Fr 1S3 < F58 1,704,655 1,795,415
Net increase in cash and ReRBSESEYILINTFE
cash equivalents 1,929,756 551,674
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BMRENESEEY 3,341,835 2,761,130
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes GINER [ SR B Y 22 133,365 29,031
Cash and cash equivalents at R+-A=+—HHNEER
31 December REZEY 27 5,404,956 3,341,835
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in #4838 &7 2 K FEBAREFT M 5T — HFBIRE o

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/\\/T\

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE_-ZF

BB HRRM

—N\F+ZA=t—RALFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Landsea Green Group Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability. The addresses of its registered office and principal place
of business are Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton,
HM11, Bermuda and Unit 5103, 51/F., The Center, 99 Queen’s
Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”).

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Company and its
subsidiaries are referred to as the “Group” hereinafter. The Group
is principally engaged in development and sales of properties,
provision of management services and leasing of long-term rental
apartments.

The immediate holding company and the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company are Greensheid Corporation, a
company established in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and
PR % 52 B I 15 B BR A Al (Landsea Group Co., Ltd. (“Landsea
Group”)), a company established in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”), respectively.

The financial statements are presented in thousands of Renminbi
(“RMB’000”) unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of
directors on 22 March 2019.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the

consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

(@)

(b)

Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622.

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for certain financial assets and investment properties
measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ESHBERZE®)

POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 21 RBEEEE)
(c) New and amended standards adopted by the (c) FEBEAHIFETRASNSETEE
Group

A number of new or revised standards, amendments
and interpretations to existing standards are
mandatory for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2018:

o HKFRS 9 — Financial instruments (“HKFRS 9”)

o HKFRS 15 — Revenue from contracts with
customers (“HKFRS 157)

o Amendments to HKFRS 2 — Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions

o Amendments to HKFRS 4 — Applying HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts

. Annual improvements 2014-2016 cycle

o Amendments to HKFRS 40 — Transfers of
investment Property, and

o HK (IFRIC) 22 Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration.

The effects of the adoption of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS
15 are disclosed in note 2.2. The other standards,
amendments and interpretations described above are
either currently not relevant to the Group or had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and position.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ESHBERZE#®)

POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 21 REEE(E)
(d) New standards and interpretations not yet (d) [EFRFAAHIFTETERR 2R
adopted

Certain new accounting standards, amendments and ETEEMEHAR_Z—\F—
A — B B A & B B 58 i A R0
HAREEBBAREENEERIER

M e R &R RAERIMER

interpretations to existing standards have been
published that are not mandatory for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2018 and relevant to the

Group and have not been early adopted by the

Group.

Standards, amendments
and interpretations

28 - EHR2E

RRE -

Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after
RUTREH 2%
SR AV F R IR 4 3K

HKFRS 16

BEMBRELENE 165

HK (IFRIC) 23

BB (ARVBHRERERES)
F23%

Amendment to HKFRS 9

BEMBRELERNE R (B2

Amendments to HKAS 28

BB GTERIFE 285K (B2h)

Annual improvements to HKFRS

BRPGIME LN NFERE

Amendments to HKFRS 19
BRIBRELRFE 195 (B2
HKFRS 17
BENBRELERIFETHR
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKRFS 28
BENBRELRFE 105K

BB M B IS5 285 (E20)

Leases
HE
Uncertainty over income tax treatments

BB TEE MR ST AR E

Prepayment features with negative compensation

REEFFUREHE

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures

REERA REERED
RIS

2015-2017 cycle (HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
HKAS 12 and HKAS 23)

AR T FRR(EEMBREER
£3%  BEEUBHRSERE 115 - BBESTER
F12RREBGTERE235)

Plan amendment, curtailment or settlement

SHENERT - MRS EE

Insurance contracts

REz &4

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture

REFABZNFARAECECRNEELERTE

1 January 2019

—Z-NF—A—H
1 January 2019
“T-hF—A—H

1 January 2019
“T-hF—A—H

1 January 2019
—F-NF—A-H

1 January 2019

—ET-NF—H—H

1 January 2019

—T-hF—H—H
1 January 2022
—Z__%—H—H

To be determined

N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE_-ZF
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(d)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of these new standards or
amendments, certain of which are relevant to the
Group’s operation. According to the preliminary
assessment made by the directors, no significant
impact on the financial performance and position of
the Group is expected when they become effective
with the exception of HKFRS 16.

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result
in almost all leases being recognized on the balance
sheet by lessees, as the distinction between
operating and finance leases is removed. Under the
new standard, an asset (the right to use the leased
item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are
recognized. The only exceptions are short-term and
low-value leases.

Impact

The Group is the lessee of certain buildings which are
currently classified as operating lease. The Group has
set up a project team which has reviewed all of the
Group’s leasing arrangements over the last year in
light of the new lease accounting rules in HKFRS 16.
The standard will affect primarily the accounting for
the Group’s operating leases. As at the reporting
date, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of RMB8,790,894,000, see note 41. Of
these commitments, approximately RMB317,000
relate to short-term leases and low value leases
which will both be recognized on a straight-line basis
as expense in profit or loss. For the remaining lease
commitments the Group expects to recognize right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities of amount ranging
from approximately RMB 5 billion to RMB 6.5 billion.
Overall net assets before fair value adjustment made
to right-of-use assets leased out as long-term
apartments will be the same.

2 FESHBERBEE®)

21 wEEEEE)

(d) [FARERARFETERR 2 (E)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(d)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

Impact (Continued)

The Group is the lessor of long-term rental
apartments, most of which are held under operating
lease. For right-of-use assets together with leasehold
improvements leased out as long-term apartment,
the Group will classify them as investment properties
carried at fair value. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the fair value for the
furnished right-of-use assets that meet the definition
of investment property. However, some additional
disclosures will be required from next year. No other
major changes are expected related to the
accounting treatment where the Group acts as a
lessor.

Date of adoption by Group

The Group will apply the standard from its mandatory
adoption date of 1 January 2019. The Group intends
to apply the simplified transition approach and will not
restate comparative amounts for the year prior to first
adoption. Right-of-use assets will be measured at the
amount of the lease liability on adoption (adjusted for
any prepaid or accrued lease expenses). For leases
previously accounted for as operating lease that will
be accounted for as investment property using fair
value model, the right-of-use asset will be measured
at fair value at the date of initial application.

2 FESHBERBEE®)

21 mEEEE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE_-ZF
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.

2.2.1 Impact on the financial statements

The Group has elected to apply the practical
expedients and the modified retrospective approach
permitted under HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15
respectively. The effects of adopting HKFRS 15 for
uncompleted contracts with customers as at 31
December 2017 are adjusted at the opening balance
of equity as at 1 January 2018 and prior period
comparatives are not restated. In accordance with
the transitional provisions in HKFRS 9, comparative
figures have not been restated. Consequently, any
adjustments to carrying amounts of financial assets
or liabilities are recognized at the beginning of the

2 FESHBERBEE®)

22 EIBRESE
AW ERBREAT B BHEELNEFE
SEREBMEIREENE 15 ANEE
REMBImFTERNTE -

221 HEBHRENTE
REEDEES FIEREBMBR
EHRANFE IR BB G RELER
FEISHEMATNEBRERE R ER
KAERT B % - NEBINBIRA
BEAMBRELENF15KEN =
T—tF+ZA=+—HAKREKE
BEPZEHEHNTZER TN
F-A— BBV SRETH
2 AL RETIESS) - RIR
BV RELEAF R BE M
18X - BAEINLERET - Bt -
CRIEESBEREEMNTMAE

current reporting period, with the difference HRARERYIRER - M=EER

recognized in opening retained earnings. BB U ZR TR o

(@ The following tables show the adjustments @ TRETSMBREER
recognized for each financial statements line HEHRRNARE KX EFH
item. Line items that were not affected by the FEMERUTBEEERN-

Bk - P EE R /Nt R AR ST
TRREAIINBFENE -
T ARBER B F AR IR
BRERE -

changes have not been included. As a result,
the sub-totals and totals disclosed cannot be
recalculated from the numbers provided. The
adjustments are explained in more detail by
standard below.



2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(Continued)

@)

2 FESTHBERE @)
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 EFHEREE(E)
2.2.1 Impact on the financial statements (Continued) 221 YBIBHENEZE ()
(Continued) @ (&)
31 December
2017 1 January
as originally 2018
presented HKFRS 9 HKFRS 15 Restated
S S B 5% “T-N\E
Consolidated balance +-R=1-H HHHRE HBHRE -F—H
sheet (extract) GREEARR (AR REZ25 EREOT  EBIE15% ]
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i3 ABETT  ARETT  ABETR  ARETR
Non-current assets FRBEE
Trade and other receivables,  FEMERZU R H At el -
prepayments and deposits  BRTF RIS 222 1,552,361 (14,001) - 1,538,270
Deferred income tax assets ~ EEFEHEE 222 237,735 13,139 - 250,874
Interests in joint ventures REBhENER 223 1,885,436 - (165) 1,885,271
Current assets RBEE
Properties under development  Fi & it 223 6,658,882 - 120,984 6,779,866
Trade and other receivables,  JEURBR S R E A el
prepayments and deposits eV HES 222,223 3,493,788 (31,708) (225,267 3,236,813
Contract assets ANBE 222,223 - (6,758) 225,267 218,509
Total assets HEE 20,320,501 (39,418) 120,819 20,401,902
Current liabilities REHAS
Advanced proceeds received IR P YEHERMEUE
from customers 2.2.3 4,051,066 - (4,051,066) -
Contract liabilities &HEE 223 - - 4,178,144 4,178,144
Total liabilities HeE 16,622,438 - 127,078 16,749,516
Equity B
Retained earnings Bk 222,223 2,232,712 (39,418) (5,259) 2,188,041
Non-controlling interests JEIE i 223 206,122 - (1,008) 205,116
Total equity el 23 3,698,063 (39,418) (6,259) 3,652,386
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2 FESHBERBEE®)

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 STBERSE (&)
(Continued)
2.2.1 Impact on the financial statements (Continued) 221 Y BHENEE (1Z)

(o)  The amount by each financial statements line by ANEEFHREREBUEHRE
items affected in the current year by the HAFIRRBEBEM B RE
application of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 is as ERFE15F M FEMNITE
follows: WRIBEWT :

As at 31 December 2018
R=B-NF+=B=+-AR
Amounts
without the Effects of the Effects of the
adoption of adoption of adoption of Amounts as
HKFRS 9 and 15 HKFRS 9 HKFRS 15 reported
FasAnE
HEEEH FaBAnE FasAnK
Consolidated balance REGHE HREEHEE HEEAZE15E FrEHN
sheet (extract) GREEARR(ER) [iEE ik wge e +8
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR AR%TR ARETR
Non-current assets FRBEE
Trade and other receivables, R R E A PR
prepayments and deposits RV HE 2,189,920 (21,475) - 2,168,445
Deferred income tax assets BEmEHAE 341,106 11,363 - 352,469
Current assets RBEE
Properties under development HEHREE 8,631,499 - 57,080 8,688,579
Trade and other receivables, FEYER T R AR -
prepayments and deposits BRZRTS 2,808,556 (11,983) (119,934) 2,676,639
Contract assets BHEE - (11,993) 119,934 107,941
Current liabilities RBEE
Advanced proceeds received AEFRIEENTE
from customers 4,466,975 - (4,453,106) 13,869
Contract liabilities ANERE - - 4,510,186 4,510,186
Equity ER
Retained earnings Bk 3,112,121 (34,088) - 3,078,033




2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ESHBERZE#®)

POLICIES (continued)
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 SITBESE(#)
(Continued)
2.2.1 Impact on the financial statements (Continued) 221 Y BHENEE (1E)
(o)  (Continued) L) (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-2-N\FTZR=1-BLEE
Amounts

without the Effects of the Effects of the
adoption of adoption adoption Amounts as
HKFRS 9 and 15 of HKFRS 9 of HKFRS 15 reported

FasAnE

Consolidated statement REEHEE  FABANE  ROEENE
of comprehensive income REHA BEENFR BREENF15E 2R
(extract) GREERER(ER) iRk ge g 8
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR AR%ETR
Revenue WA 7,336,019 - 224,507 7,560,526
Cost of sales and services BERRBEKAR (5,181,967 - (224,507) (5,406,474)
Administrative expenses THER (576,041) 7,106 - (568,935)
Income tax expenses FriEHiER (819,393) (1,776) - (821,169)

Proft for the year: FERME
— profi attribute to the - BERADARE
shareholders of the iofil)e

Company 1,107,444 5,330 - 1,112,774
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ESHBERZE®)

POLICIES (continued)
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 BEBERSE &)
(Continued)
2.2.2 HKFRS 9 — Impact of adoption 222F BRI EERFEIY — KH
R
HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 EAMBERELEDFEIRMAES
Financial Instruments (“HKAS 39”) that relate to the T EANFERFEHRTE(HE
recognition, classification and measurement of S EREIE DB FREME
financial assets and financial liabilities; derecognition ENSRBENER K&
of financial instruments; impairment of financial assets 2T EMNKRIEER: @&
and hedge accounting. HKFRS 9 also significantly ERNRENRE RS EIEAEX -
amends other standards dealing with financial EBPEREERF ISR INE E A
instruments such as HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments H4ah T ERBARER(HnES
— Disclosures. WHRELEAETR eI E —
W) EHEKREE -

The adoption of HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018 BE-ZE—NF—A—BRBRHNES
resulted in changes in accounting policies and Hﬁ%i&%ﬁ-ﬂﬂ%%ﬁ%ﬁla TR
adjustments to the amounts recognized in the LIRS E RETA VB RERND
consolidated financial statements. The new REFBIELRAE - ETETHRE
accounting policies are set out in note 2.18 below. RTXHIFE2.18 R _ZE— \F—
The total impact on the Group’s retained earnings A—H @RI ERREHAEE
due to the impairment of financial instruments as at 1 BIEWRMETENT

January 2018 is as follows:



2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ESHBERZE#®)

POLICIES (continued)
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 SITBESE(#)
(Continued)
2.2.2 HKFRS 9 — Impact of adoption (Continued) 222F BRI EERFEIY — KH
R & (&)
Note RMB’000
g AREFT

Opening retained earnings — under
previous accounting policy (note 34)

Increase in provision for contract assets

Increase in provision for trade receivables

Increase in provision for deposits for
purchase of land

Increase in provision for amounts due
from non-controlling interests

Increase in provision for amounts due
from related parties

Increase in deferred income tax assets
relating to impairment provision

Adjustment to retained earnings from
adoption of HKFRS 9

Opening retained earnings
— after HKFRS 9

HIE T Res — RIATE SR

R (M43 34) 2,232,712
ABHEERNBEBILM (0),3.1(b)(i) (6,758)
JE U AR SR B A 3 0N (0),3.1(0)(i) (8,659)
BB B IR S B AN

(b),3.1(b)(ii) 2,121)

JE Ui S EF2E Il 1 2S5 R Y
B EIZ (b),3.1(b)(ii) (5,715)
JE U R Bt Ty R T O B4 2 A

(b),3.1(b)(ii) (29,304)
SR EREE B EEMSE
EEEE N 13,139
BIRME B 53R RIS O SRHE
HEFRENAE (39,418)
iR Al
— EBMKRELENFIRR 2,193,294
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE_-ZF
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
2.2.2 HKFRS 9 — Impact of adoption (Continued)
(@)  Classification and measurement

(b)

HKFRS 9 categorizes financial assets into three
principal classification categories: measured at
amortized cost, FVOCI and FVPL. These
supersede HKAS 39’s categories of held-to-
maturity investments, loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets measured at FVPL. The classification of
financial assets under HKFRS 9 is based on the
business model under which the financial asset
is managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics.

On 1 January 2018 (the date of initial
application of HKFRS 9), the Group’s
management has assessed which business
models apply to the financial assets held by the
Group and has classified its financial assets into
the appropriate HKFRS 9 categories. The
Group classifies all its financial assets into
amortized cost which is the same under HKAS
39.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group was required to revise its
impairment methodology under HKFRS 9 for
relevant financial assets. The impact of change
in impairment methodology on the Group’s
retained earnings is disclosed in the table
above.

Please refer to note 3.1 (b) for details about the
calculation of expected credit losses.

2 FESHBERBEE®)
22 EEHEREE(E)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.2.2 HKFRS 9 — Impact of adoption (Continued)

(©

Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017

The Group has applied HKFRS 9
retrospectively, but has elected not to restate
comparative information. As a result, the
comparative information provided continues to
be accounted for in accordance with the
Group’s previous accounting policy.

Classification

The Group classifies all its financial assets in the
following categories as loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the balance sheet date. These
are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables also include
trade and other receivables, amounts due from
related parties and non-controlling interests and
cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated
balance sheet.

2 FESHBERBEE®)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
2.2.2 HKFRS 9 — Impact of adoption (Continued)
(c)  Accounting policies applied until 31 December

2017 (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization,
and where observable data indicate that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

2 FESHBERBEE®)

22 EHBEREE (&)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.2.2 HKFRS 9 — Impact of adoption (Continued)

(©

Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017 (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced and
the amount of the loss is recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using
an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognized (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating),
the reversal of the previously recognized
impairment loss is recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ESHBERZE %)

POLICIES (continued)
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 STBERSE (&)
(Continued)
2.2.3 HKFRS 15 — Impact of adoption 223 EBHBHREERFEISE — RH

HKFRS 15 replaces the provisions of HKAS 18
Revenue (“HKAS 18”) and HKAS 11 Construction
contracts (“HKAS 11”) that relate to the recognition,
classification and measurement of revenue and costs.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 from 1 January 2018
resulted in changes in accounting policies and
adjustments to the amounts recognized in the
consolidated financial statements. The new
accounting policies are set out in note 2.29 below. In
summary, the following adjustments were made to
the amounts recognized in the consolidated balance
sheet at the date of initial application (1 January

7
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2018):
31 December
2017  Reclassifications Adjustments 1 January
as previously under under 2018
stated HKFRS 15 HKFRS 15 restated
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TZAZT-B0 BERAEBE  HEEAE6E 2
WEA 25 ENifE fEtiAE -B-HEJ
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Interests in joint ventures REELENER ) 1,885,436 = (165) 1885271
Properties under development Bﬂ%ﬁfﬁiﬂ FHE (@ (c) 6,658,882 - 120,984 6,779,866
Advanced proceeds received BESSENEREN
from customers () 4,061,066 (4,051,066) = =
Contract liabiltes aHAER (o), (0 - 4,051,086 127,078 4,178,144
Trade and other receivables, FENR 5 T L s
prepayments and deposits B (b) 3,493,788 (225,267) - 3,268,521
Contract assets alEE (o) - 205,267 - 205,267
Retained eamings 2 @ 2232712 - (5,259) 2,207 459
Non-controling interests SIS @ 206,122 - (1,008 205,116




2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ESHBERZE#®)

POLICIES (continued)
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 EBNBEEBE#)
(Continued)
2.2.3 HKFRS 15 — Impact of adoption (Continued) 223 5B BHREERFEI1SE — RH
G & (E)
The impact on the Group’s retained earnings as at 1 HAREFR -_Z—N\F—A—H8*=F
January 2018 is as follows: hEnT:0)-7 3 (IS
Note RMB’000
B AREFIT
Retained earnings — after HKFRS9 HE I3 — EEUBHRE
(note 2.2.2) RIS %E (M5E2.2.2) 2,193,294
Restatement of cost incurred to obtain FEY|ESE L EE WA
a contract @) (6,094)
Decrease in interests in joint ventures ReEELENERRD @) (165)
Total equity adjustments from adoption  $R48FE B F5 R & RS 1558
of HKFRS 15 YT AR R Y R (6,259
Less: adjustment to non-controlling DA ek ey g O
interests 1,006
Opening retained earnings — after FHEFWE — EEMB®RE
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 ZAFEIRREBMERE
ERE155E% 2,188,041
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

“rB

BB HRRM

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE_-ZF
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
2.2.3 HKFRS 15 —

@

(b)

Impact of adoption (Continued)

Accounting for cost incurred to obtain a
contract

In prior reporting periods, costs amounting to
RMB6,094,000 were capitalized. However, the
costs were not incremental costs of obtaining a
contract which should be expensed under
HKFRS 15. The Group unified the accounting
policy of the joint ventures, resulting in
adjustment to interests in joint ventures of
RMB165,000.

Presentation of liabilities or assets related to
contracts with customers

Contract liabilities in relation to property
development and sales contracts and
management services contracts were
previously included in “advanced proceeds
received from customers” and were reclassified
to “contract liabilities” under HKFRS 15.
Contract liabilities with the amount of
RMB4,430,387,000 as at 31 December 2018 (1
January 2018: RMB4,051,066,000), mainly
consisted of prepayments received from sales
of properties which the consideration received
were in advance of performance obligation
fulfilment.

Contract assets in relation to property
development and sales contracts and
management services contracts were
previously included in “trade and other
receivables, prepayments and deposits” and
were reclassified to “contract assets” under
HKFRS 15. Contract assets with the amount of
RMB119,934,000 as at 31 December 2018 (1
January 2018: RMB225,267,000), mainly
consisted of unbilled amounts resulting from
sales of land located in the United States of
America (“US”) where the revenue recognized
exceeds the amounts billed to customers.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.2.3 HKFRS 15 — Impact of adoption (Continued)

(©

(d)

Significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusted the promised amount of consideration
for the effects of time value of money
considering the timing of payments agreed by
the parties to the contract provides the Group
with a significant benefit of financing. As at 1
January 2018, the Group capitalized finance
cost, arising from significant financing
component, amounting to RMB127,078,000.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, an
additional amount of RMB154,509,000 (note
10) was capitalized. At the same time,
RMB224,507,000 were recognized as revenue
and cost of sales simultaneously upon
delivering of the relevant properties to
customers.

Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. The Group
recognizes revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured and when it
is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IN=NEbv e I

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.2.3 HKFRS 15 — Impact of adoption (Continued)

(d)  Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017 (Continued)
Revenue from sale of properties and lands held
for sale in the ordinary course of business is
recognised when all the following conditions are
satisfied:

(i) the Group has transferred to the buyer
the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the properties, which is
when the construction of relevant
properties has been completed, upon
delivery, and collectability of related
receivables is reasonably assured;

(i)  the Group retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the properties are
sold;

(i)  the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;

(iv) it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow
to the Group; and

(v)  the costs incurred or to be incurred in
respect of the transaction can be
measured reliably.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.2.3 HKFRS 15 — Impact of adoption (Continued)

(d)

Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017 (Continued)

Deposits and instalments received from
purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria
for revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated balance sheet under current
liabilities.

Revenue from sales of land improvements is
recognised by using the ‘percentage-of-
completion’ method to determine the
appropriate amount to recognise in a given
period. The percentage of completion is
established by reference to the costs incurred
to date compared to the total costs to be
incurred under the transaction. Provision is
made for foreseeable losses as soon as they
are anticipated by management. Where
contract costs incurred to date plus recognized
profits less recognized losses exceed progress
billings, the surplus is treated as trade
receivables. Where progress billings exceed
contract costs incurred to date plus recognized
profits less recognized losses, the surplus is
treated as an amount advanced proceeds
received from customers.

The Group provides property management
services to its customers which including brand
authorisation service, sales management
service, green product integration service and
development management services. The Group
recognizes revenue on different types of service
by reference to the service's stage of
completion at the balance sheet date when the
outcome of the rending of services can be
estimated reliably:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ESHBERZE %)

POLICIES (continued)
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 BITBERSE(#)
(Continued)
2.2.3 HKFRS 15 — Impact of adoption (Continued) 223 EBHBHERERE 155 — KA
& (&)
(d)  Accounting policies applied until 31 December (@) —+F+=-A=+—H
2017 (Continued) BIEF R AT ()
—  Revenue from brand authorisation, sales — mERE HEEER
management service and green-technical % R AR BT R AR
system integration service fees is AR5 & A B AR R

recognised in accounting period in which
the services are rendered.

Revenue from development management
services associated with both floating and
fixed fees is recognised by using the
‘percentage-of-completion’ method to
determine the appropriate amount to
recognise in a given period. The
percentage of completion is established
by reference to the costs incurred to date
compared to the total costs to be
incurred under the transaction. Where the
outcome of a contract cannot be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised
only to the extent that the expenses
incurred are eligible to be recovered.
Provision is made for foreseeable losses
as soon as they are anticipated by
management. Where contract costs
incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress
billings, the surplus is treated as trade
receivables. Where progress billings
exceed contract costs incurred to date
plus recognised profits less recognised
losses, the surplus is treated as an
amount advanced proceeds received
from customers.

Rental income under operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line method over the
term of the relevant lease.

Decoration service income is recognised when
the related services are provided.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

24

SUBSIDIARIES

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations by the Group (refer to note 2.8).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
balance sheet, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.

ASSOCIATES

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control. This is
generally the case where the Group holds between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting (see
note 2.6 below), after initially being recognized at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2 FESHBERBEE®)

POLICIES (continued)

2.5 JOINT ARRANGEMENTS 25 BERH
Joint arrangements are classified as either joint ventures or BMAETHNDEABEENHESEELE -
joint operations depending on the contracted rights and REREBENESHOETIEEBME - K
obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed the SEEFHBHATHENEERETH S
nature of its joint arrangements and determined them to be THEAEBZEDE -
joint ventures.
Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity REALTHNRENGEEERABERY
method (see note 2.6 below), after initially being recognized WA R B ERERS AR (B
at cost in the consolidated balance sheet. ST XMFE2.6) °

2.6 EQUITY ACCOUNTING 26 ERETE

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments
are initially recognized at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognize the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits
or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s
share of movements in other comprehensive income of the
investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates and joint ventures
are recognized as a reduction in the carrying amount of the
investment.

When the Group’s share of net loss in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the
Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and
its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealized losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity-accounted investees have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is
tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in note 2.15.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IE€:BERE®)
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTERESTS 27 BEREEZNEE

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with
equity shareholders of the Group. A change in ownership
interest results in an adjustment between the carrying
amounts of the controlling interests and non-controlling
interests to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount of the adjustment to
non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or
received is recognized in a separate reserve within equity
attributable to shareholders of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account
for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognized in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.8 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises
the:

. fair values of the assets transferred

. liabilities incurred to the former shareholders of the
acquired business

o equity interests issued by the Group

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. The Group recognizes any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the

. consideration transferred,

. amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

. acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the
fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business
acquired, the difference is recognized directly in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in
fair value recognized in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognized in profit or loss.

SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwiill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE_-ZF

—N\F+ZA=t—RALFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.10 SEGMENT REPORTING
The Group identifies operating segments and prepares

segment information based on the regular internal financial

information reported to the executive directors for their

decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s

business components and for their review of the

performance of those components. The business

components in the internal financial information reported to

the executive directors are determined following the

Group’s major business and service lines.

2.11 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial
statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”), which is Hong
Kong dollars (HK$), Renminbi (RMB) and US dollars
(US$) respectively. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in RMB.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally
recognized in profit or loss. They are deferred in
equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges
and qualifying net investment hedges or are
attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign
operation.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income within “other gains/(losses) — net”.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.11 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
(Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each balance sheet are
translated at the date of that balance sheet;

o income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions), and

. all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation), all of
the currency translation differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
shareholders of the Company are reclassified to profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IE€:iBERE®)
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 2127 HE -  THERE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The
cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs, such
as repairs and maintenance, are charged to profit or loss
during the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment to their residual values using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives:

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms

Furniture, fixtures and 3-10 years
office equipment

Motor vehicles 5-10 years

Buildings 20 years

The assets’ residual value and useful life are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.15).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognized as “other gains/(losses) — net” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IE€:BERE®)
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 213 REMYE

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, are held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by
the Group. It also include properties that are being
constructed or developed for future use as investment
properties.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. After initial recognition, investment
properties are carried at fair value, representing open
market value determined at each reporting date by external
valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset. If the information
is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. Changes in fair values
are recorded in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in fair value gains or losses on
investment properties.

If an item of owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any
difference resulting between the carrying amount and the
fair value of this item as at the date of transfer is treated in
the same way as a revaluation under HKAS 16. Any
resulting increase in the carrying amount of the property is
recognized in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a
previous impairment loss, with any remaining increase
recognized in other comprehensive income and increased
directly to equity in revaluation surplus within equity. Any
resulting decrease in the carrying amount of the property is
initially charged in other comprehensive income against any
previously recognized revaluation surplus, with any
remaining decrease charged to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE_-ZF

—N\F+ZA=t—RALFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in note 2.8.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in
intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortized but it is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwiill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made
to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose.
The units or groups of units are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating
segments (note 6).

Software

Costs associated with maintaining software programs
are recognized as an expense as incurred.
Development costs that are directly attributable to the
design and testing of identifiable and unique software
products controlled by the Group are recognized as
intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

. it is technically feasible to complete the
software so that it will be available for use

. management intends to complete the software
and use or sell it

. there is an ability to use or sell the software
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Software (Continued)
o it can be demonstrated how the software will
generate probable future economic benefits

o adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the software are available, and

o the expenditure attributable to the software
during its development can be reliably
measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalized as part
of the software include employee costs and an
appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Capitalized development costs are recorded as
intangible assets and amortized from the point at
which the asset is ready for use.

Research and development

Research expenditure and development expenditure
that do not meet the criteria in (iii) above are
recognized as an expense as incurred. Development
costs previously recognized as an expense are not
recognized as an asset in a subsequent period.

Amortisation methods and periods

The group amortizes intangible assets with a limited
useful life using the straight-line method over 10
years.

Software 10 Years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IE€:iBERE®)
POLICIES (continued)

2.15 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 215k EMEENRE

Goodwill is not subject to amortization and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.16 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT OR

2 FESHBERBEE®)

216 BT R ERGFEHENF

HELD FOR SALE

Properties under development and held for sale are stated
at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Development
cost of properties comprises cost of leasehold or freehold
land payments, construction costs and borrowing costs
incurred during the construction period. Upon completion,
the properties are transferred to completed properties held
for sale.

Net realizable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realized, less applicable variable selling
expenses and the anticipated costs to completion.

Properties under development and held for sale are
classified as current assets unless the construction period
of the relevant property development project is expected to
complete beyond normal operating cycle.

All land in the Mainland China is stated-owned or
collectively-owned and no individual ownership right exists.
Land use rights are acquired by the Group for development
of properties. Land use rights held for development for sale
are inventories and measured at lower of cost and net
realizable value, of which those within normal operating
cycle are classified as current assets and included in
properties under development or held for sale, while those
out of the normal operating cycle are classified as non-
current assets. Land use rights fall within investment
properties are classified as investment properties (note
2.13).

2.17 INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE_-ZF
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.18 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS

(a

(b)

Classification

From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its
financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income (OCI)), or through profit or loss, and

o those to be measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at
financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognized on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.18 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

(c)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL
are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

. Amortized cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at
amortized cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in other income
using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognized directly in profit or loss and
presented in “other gains/(losses) — net”,
together with foreign exchange gains and
losses.

2 FESHBERBEE®)
218 RERHEMERMEE (&)

(c) &
NA R - AEBRARBEM
(MBI IR N A EEFT ABED
CREE)NEZCREENEE
HAXSKAGFESMEE - R
REEFABZENEREENRS
AR I8 S 8 o

MHERATET AN SREENE
EEREREREMRAXNAS
EMEHABBELEE

EHETA

HET 2R T AR TASEEE
BERBAEMNRTEFBES
B - AEBBHEBEBIED R=
Bzt 2585 :

o EESHRAN: HERESHR
TREMNEEREHKAG
B AERSRBMAKENR
ERMEMK - KEZFE
BB ENNEWAZERF
FORFT AR MIA - 48 L5
REENWD B EN B
REZER - WERSNEWK
mMERE2JRTH MK
=,/ (B58) %8 -

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.18 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)
(c) Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through OCI,
except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are
recognized in profit and loss. When the financial
asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognized in OCl is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognized in
“other gains/(losses) — net”. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in “other
income” using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in “other gains/(losses) — net”.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at
FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that
is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognized and presented net in profit or loss
within “other gains/(losses) — net” in the period
in which it arises.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.18 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of
the investments. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognized in profit or loss as “other
income” when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets carried at
FVPL are recognized in “other gains/(losses) — net”
in profit or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.

Impairment of financial assets

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a
forward-looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortized cost and FVOCI. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 3.1 (b)
details how the Group determines whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For contract assets and trade receivables, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS
9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognized from initial recognition of the receivables,
see note 3.1(b) for further details.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IE€:iBERE®)
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 2.19HEMT A

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in consolidated balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers arising
from sales of properties or providing management services.
If collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If
not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
See note 2.18 for further information about the Group’s
accounting for trade receivables and a description of the
Group’s impairment policies.

2.21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. Restricted cash is excluded from cash
and cash equivalents.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IE€:BERE®)
POLICIES (continued)
2.22 SHARE CAPITAL 2.22 I A

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issue of shares
are deducted from share premium to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

2.23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods
or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within twelve
months after the reporting period (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method.

2.24 BORROWINGS AND BORROWING COSTS

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortized cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid
on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalized
as a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortized over
the period of the facility to which it relates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IE€:iBERE®)
POLICIES (continued)
2.24 BORROWINGS AND BORROWING COSTS 2.24 (B R EFRRA (&)

(Continued)

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred
to another party and the consideration paid, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognized in profit or loss as finance costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and
the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to
extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a
gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss, which is
measured as the difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity
instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets are capitalized during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.25 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax

payable on the current period’s taxable income based on

the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted

by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable

to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss,

except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in

other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this

case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Current income tax also includes Mainland China land
appreciation tax which is levied on the appreciation of
land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties
less deductible expenditures including land cost,
borrowing costs and all property development
expenditures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/\\/T\

BB HRRM

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE_-ZF
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.25 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX
(Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognized if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
properties that are measured at fair value is
determined assuming the property will be recovered
entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilize those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognized
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.25 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX
(Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.26 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(a)

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitiements to annual leave are recognized
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by the employees up to the
balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognized until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group participates in defined contribution
retirement benefit plans which are available to all
relevant employees. These plans are generally funded
through payments to schemes established by
governments or trustee administered funds. A defined
contribution plan is a pension plan under which the
Group pays contributions on mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis into a separate entity. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee services in the current and prior periods.
The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
plans are expensed as incurred and, in most cases,
are not reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE_-ZF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.26 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognized
as a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made. Liabilities of bonus plan are
expected to be settled within twelve months and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
they are settled.

Restricted share award scheme

The Group operates a restricted share award scheme
to recognise the contributions by employees. The fair
value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of restricted share is recognized as
employee benefit expense.

The total amount to be expensed over the vesting
period is determined by reference to the value of the
restricted shares granted:

. including any market performance conditions;

. excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions; and

. including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions.

The total expense is recognized over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of restricted share awards
that are expected to be vested. It recognizes the
impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in
profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to
other reserves.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.26 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

2 FESHBERBEE®)

226 EERH (&)

(d) Restricted share award scheme (Continued)
Employee share trust is established, for the purposes
of awarding shares to eligible employees under the
restricted share award scheme.

The employee share trust is administered by an
independent trustee and is funded by the Group’s
cash contributions and recorded as contributions to
employee share trusts, an equity component. The
administrator of the employee share trust buys the
Company’s shares in the open market for award to
employees.

Upon vesting, the corresponding awards in the
share-based compensation reserve will be transferred
to the employee share trust for shares awarded to
employees.

2.27 PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it
is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognized even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IE€:BERE®)
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS 2.28 I IERELN

Financial guarantee contracts are recognized as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is
initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the
higher of

. the amount determined in accordance with the
expected credit loss model under HKFRS 9, and

. the amount initially recognized less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognized in accordance with the principles of
HKFRS 15.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based
on the present value of the difference in cash flows
between the contractual payments required under the debt
instrument and the payments that would be required
without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would
be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of
associates are provided for no compensation, the fair
values are accounted for as contributions and recognized
as part of the cost of the investment.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.29 REVENUE RECOGNITION

(a)

The Group develops and sells properties, and
provides management services to its customers.
Revenues are recognized when the control of the
asset is transferred to the customer. Depending on
the terms of the contract and the laws and rules that
apply to the contract, control of the asset may
transfer over time or at a point in time. Control of the
asset is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer; or

o creates and enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

. do not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is
recognized over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognized at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the asset.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.29 REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

(Continued)

(a)

()

(i)

Property development and sales

The Group develops and sells residential
properties in Mainland China and US. Revenue
is recognized at a point in time when the
property is delivered to the customer, the
customer has accepted the property in
accordance with the sales contract, the
acceptance provision have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied. Otherwise,
revenue is recognized over the development
period by reference to the costs incurred up to
the end of reporting period as a percentage of
the total expected costs to complete the
contract. Estimates of revenues, costs or extent
of progress toward completion are revised if
circumstances change. Any resulting increases
or decreases in estimated revenues or costs
are reflected in profit or loss in the period in
which the circumstances that give rise to the
revision become known by the Group.

Management services

The Group provides management services to
its customers at fixed or variable amount. If the
consideration is variable, revenue is only
recognized to the extent that it is highly
probable that a significant reversal will not
occur. The Group recognizes revenue from
management services over period of time
where the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the
Group or the Group has an enforceable right to
payments for performance completed to date
and the performance do not create an asset
with an alternative use. Otherwise revenue was
recognized at a point in time. For revenue
recognized over period of time, the Group
measures the progress towards complete
satisfaction of performance obligation on the
basis of the actual costs incurred up to the end
of the reporting period as a percentage of total
estimated costs for each contract. Where the
outcome of a contract cannot be measured
reliably, revenue is recognized only to the extent
that the expenses incurred are eligible to be
recovered. Provision is made for foreseeable
losses as soon as they are anticipated by the
Group.

2 FESHBERBEE®)

2.29 I A\ &

(a

(%)
(i)

(i)

3
W%'(\Z

VEERRHE
AR BN E A R X B R
RN TEPE  BEPREH
ERNBEEME - HWEE
BRM AAKEEEEE
BEAMBRKGHEEE
B RE A U AR R — By B
ﬁﬁ°TW WAE2RE
EREPRCEERANGEE
H%I%WKME%&*%
MEHEER HIERE
2 AlgEaRT WA~ KA
T LHER MG - AaHA
HAARH LR R AEE T
BDEBUERT B B
KB RAR -

EIE IR
AEEIZEE KA & &R
ERREERRS - WA(E
A AR eERATSE
CROEALENE L TE
RUA o P [E B 4 BT
SHAEANE BIRH AR A
EERECSDTRNBLE
EORTHZ AR AE
N EELHAEBMERS
KABRMNEE  AIAEER
—BEEEREERSK
A BB AR — B R 26
R RN —BRHERERN
WAME  AEEEHEH
EHRERTIBNETEE
EANEERRKAGEEHE
#W$@%ME &$E%
FERXSHTRIEMN o HEX
ﬂ%ﬁ%é@%%%-%@
EREAERAAERKEN
FRTNHERUWA - AEBTE
HRE £ AT R BB R E L &
& o



2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.29 REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Contract costs — costs of obtaining a contract
The costs of obtaining a contract with a customer are
immaterial and are expensed when incurred.

Financing component

The Group adjusts the transaction price for the time
value of money where the period between the
transfer of the promised goods or services to the
customer and payments by the customer exceeds
one year considering it provides a potential significant
benefit. The transaction price is adjusted by the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction between the Group and its
customer at contract inception.

Multiple performance obligations

Where the contracts include multiple performance
obligations, the transaction price will be allocated to
each performance obligation based on the stand-
alone selling prices. Where these are not directly
observable, they are estimated based on expected
cost plus margin.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

As agreed in the contracts, the customer pays fixed
or variable amount based on a payment schedule. If
the services or goods rendered by the Group exceed
the payment, a contract asset is recognized. If the
payments exceed the services or goods rendered, a
contract liability is recognized. Any unconditional
rights to consideration are presented separately as
receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.30 INTEREST INCOME

2 FESHBERBEE®)

2.30 7 B Wz

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in
the net fair value gains/(losses) on these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortized cost and
financial assets at FVOCI calculated using the effective
interest method is recognized in profit or loss as part of
“other income”.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is
earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes, see note 10 below.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the
effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset (after deduction of the expected credit
loss).

2.31 DIVIDEND INCOME

Dividends are received from financial assets measured at
FVPL and at FVOCI. Dividends are recognized as “other
income” in profit or loss when the right to receive payment
is established. This applies even if they are paid out of pre-
acquisition profits, unless the dividend clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of an investment. In this case,
the dividend is recognized in OCI if it relates to an
investment measured at FVOCI. However, the investment
may need to be tested for impairment as a consequence.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.32 GOVERNMENT GRANTS
Grants from the government are recognized at their fair

value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant

will be received and the Group will comply with all attached

conditions. Government grants relating to costs are

deferred and recognized in profit or loss over the period

necessary to match them with the costs they are intended

to compensate. Government grants that become receivable

as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred

are recognized as income of the period in which they

become receivable.
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2.33 EARNINGS PER SHARE 2.33 B W=
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BFEREXYUz
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: BRRERWZTY

the profit attributable to shareholders of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares.
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(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) FHEESRKZ
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in HESRWNGEEMNEEFRERRK
the determination of basic earnings per share to take HEANEFTIELRAE 5B
into account: 15

the after income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares, and

the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IE€:BERE®)
POLICIES (continued)

2.34 LEASES 2.34 HE

The Group leases certain properties. Leases of properties
where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalized at the lease’s commencement at the
lower of the fair value of the leased property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges,
are included in finance lease liabilities. Each lease payment
is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance
leases is depreciated over the asset’s useful life or over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term if there
is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain
ownership at the end of the lease term.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases (note 41). Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognized in income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term (note 18). The respective leased assets are
included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

2.35 DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

Dividend distribution to the Shareholders of the Company
is recognized as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Shareholders of the
Company.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IE€:BERE®)
POLICIES (continued)

2.36 EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AND SHARES HELD 236 AT ERARGOERFEFTEZ

FOR SHARE AWARD SCHEME

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs. Respective distributions if and when declared are
treated as equity dividends.

Convertible perpetual securities issued by the Group that
have the above characteristics are classified as equity
instruments.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity instruments, for example as the result of a share
buy-back or a share-based payment plan, the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from
equity attributable to the Shareholders of the Company as
treasury shares until the shares are cancelled or reissued.
Where such ordinary shares are subsequently reissued,
any consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income tax
effects, is included in equity attributable to the Shareholders
of the Company.

Shares held by the Company’s Employee Share Trust are
disclosed as treasury shares and deducted from equity
attributable to the Shareholders of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ESHBERZE %)

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognized because it is not probable that
outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognized but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognized as a
provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognized but are disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is
virtually certain, an asset is recognized.

POLICIES (continued)
2.37 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT 23T RAEBRBAREE
ASSETS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. According to
the Group’s risk management policies, the financial risks
shall be assessed continuously by the management taking
into account of the prevailing conditions of the financial
market and other relevant variables to avoid excessive
concentrations of risk. The Group has not used any
derivatives or other instruments for hedging purpose. The
most significant financial risks to which the Group is
exposed to are described as below.

(a) Market risk
() Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Group mainly operates
and invests in Mainland China, Hong Kong and
US and with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in RMB, HK$ and
USS$ respectively. Foreign exchange risk mainly
arises from certain borrowings and other
current liabilities of the Company (with
functional currency of HK$) and other
subsidiaries located in US (with functional
currency of US$) which are denominated in
RMB.

At 31 December 2018, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against HK$ and USS$,
respectively, with all other variables held
constant, pre-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2018 would have been
approximately RMB279,007,000 (2017:
RMB215,142,000) higher/lower, mainly as a
result of foreign exchange differences on

translation of RMB denominated borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk
The Group has no significant interest — bearing
assets and liabilities other than bank deposits
and borrowings. Bank balances and borrowings
at floating rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. The Group’s exposure to
market risk for changes in interest rates relates
primarily to bank balances which bear floating
interest rates. Management monitors the
interest rate risk and performs sensitivity
analysis on a regular basis.

At 31 December 2018, if interest rates on bank
balances and borrowings had been 50 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s profit for the year would
have been approximately RMB10,779,000
(2017:RMB7,240,000) lower/higher. The
sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the balance sheet date.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under the terms of the financial instrument
and cause a financial loss to the Group. The credit
risk of the Group mainly arises from cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, contract assets, trade
and other receivables and deposits. The carrying
amounts of these balances represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on Group’s cash and cash equivalents
is limited because the counterparties are banks with
high credit ratings. The credit risk on the Group’s
investments in debt instruments measured at FVPL is
limited because the debt instruments are either
bonds issued by policy bank or wealth management
product managed by large multinational bank. In
respect of contract assets, trade and other
receivables and deposits, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all debtors. These evaluations focus
on the debtors’ past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the debtors as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
debtors operate. The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk, with exposure spread
over a large number of counterparties and customers.
The Group does not obtain collateral from customers
or counterparties in respect of certain receivables.

The Group typically provides guarantees to banks in
connection with the customers’ borrowing of
mortgage loans to finance their purchase of
properties for an amount up to 70% of the total
purchase price of the property. If a purchaser defaults
on the payment of its mortgage loan during the
guarantee period, the bank holding the guarantee
may demand the Group to repay the outstanding
amount under the loan and any interest accrued
thereon. Under such circumstances, the Group is
able to retain the customer’s deposit and re-sell the
property to recover any amounts paid by the Group
to the bank. In this regard, the directors consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
Detailed disclosure of these guarantees is made in
note 40.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group provides guarantees in respect of related
parties’ borrowings to banks jointly with other
investors of the related parity. Typically, the related
party guaranteed by the Group is a property
development or property holding entity which could
liquidate or sell some or all of its assets to repay the
borrowings immediately. In this regard, the directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced. Detailed disclosure of these guarantees is
made in note 40.

From 1 January 2018, the following credit risk
modelling applies:

The Group has the following types of financial assets
that are subject to expected credit loss model:

. Trade receivables

o Contract assets

o Amount due from related parties

. Amount due from non-controlling interests

. Other financial assets carried at amortized cost
While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to
the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has

been a significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

To assess whether there is a significant increase in

credit risk, the Group compares the risk of default

occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with

(b)

the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.

It considers available reasonable and supportive

forwarding-looking information, which could include:

(i)

internal credit rating

external credit rating

actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant change
to the borrower’s ability to meet its obligations

actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower

significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same borrower

significant changes in the expected
performance and behavior of the borrower,
including changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the Group and changes in the
operating results of the borrower.

Contract assets and trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of lifetime
expected credit loss provision for contract
assets and trade receivables. To measure the
expected credit losses, contract assets and
trade receivables were grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HKEKREE®

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued) 3.1 HKREBEZE#)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEEEE)
()  Contract assets and trade receivables () BHEEREKEZ(E)
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2018, the expected credit —E—N\F+-_A=+—H " EH
loss provision was determined as follows. The FEEBEBELT - LW TNEHEE
expected credit loss provision below also EERME ORI B R o

incorporated forward-looking information.

Third parties
ey
Related Less than More than
parties iyear 1-2years 2-3years 3-4years 4-5years 5years Total
ZE-N\F
31 December 2018 +=B=1-H BERF SME 1225 2Z3F  3Z4F  4E5F  HBSE b
Expected creditlossrate  TAHIEEEIER 1% 3% 10% 20% 50% 80% 100%
(Gross carmying amount FH2E
— Contract assets - RNEE - - 119,934 - - - - 119934
— Trade receivables — IR (FitiE25)
(note 25) 335294 123315 61,664 598 350 - - 521,221
335,294 123,315 181,598 598 350 - - 641,155
Expected credit loss provision TBHIEEEIEEE
— Contract assets - ANEE - - (11,993 - - - - (11,999)
— Trade receivables - YR (3,353) (3,699) (6,166) (120) (175) - - (13519)
(3,353) (3,699)  (18,159) (120) (175) - - (25,506)
Total contract assetsand A B EREWER
trade receivables pak: 331,941 119,616 163,439 478 175 - - 615,649




3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMBEREREEw®

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued) 3.1 H¥REKRREZEE)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEEEE)
)  Contract assets and trade receivables () BHEEREKE(E)
(Continued)
As at 1 January 2018, the expected credit loss —_ZE—NFE—HF—H: FEH
provision was determined as follows. The ZEEBEBEEHEN T - LA
expected credit loss provision below also H=EEEREREaEME
incorporated forward-looking information. BE o
Third parties
£=5
Related  Less than More than
parties lyear 12years 2-3years 3-4years  4-5years 5 years Total
1 January 2018 “Z-\$-h-H BB OME 1226 2E3F  3E4FE 4E5FE HBASE &5t
Expected creditlossrate  FHIEEEER 1% 3% 10% 20% 50% 80% 100%
Gross carrying amount RELE
— Contract assets - AHBE - 225267 - - - - - 225267
— Trade receivables — IR 223651 118,468 52,720 14,698 - - - 409,537
223,651 343,735 52,720 14,698 - - - 634,804

Expected credit loss provision TBHIEBEEEE

— Contract assets - ANEE - (6,758) - - - - - (6,758)
— Trade receivables — B @237) 8553 B271)  (2,940) = - - (14,001
0237 ({0311)  B2r) (2,940 - - - 0759

Total contract assetsand A #&E REW
trade receivables s 221,414 333,424 47,449 11,758 - - - 614,045
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

BRRER &)
31 B¥RERREZEE)
(b) EEER(E)

)  Contract assets and trade receivables )  BHEEREWES (&)
(Continued)
The expected credit loss provision for contract BN EE N EWEREFRR
assets and trade receivables as at 31 —}\i"i'f A :—1—— EI E’\ﬁﬁ
December 2018 reconciles to the opening Hﬂ EEEERERRYIER
expected credit loss provision are as follows: SEHEBRBRENHEDT -
Contract assets  Trade receivables Total
ENEE EWRR @
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ARETTL
Opening provision — under previous Hi#)i&% — BEBAEHHEK
accounting policy - (5,342) (5,342
Amounts restated through opening ERBNBTRRENEE
retained earnings (6,758) (8,659) (15,417
Opening expected credit loss BOENEEEERE
provision — HKFRS 9 - ERREREENFIS (6,758) (14,001) (20,759)
Additional provision — under previous  EESME#E — BEBASHIE
accounting policy = (1,374) (1,374)
Recoveries — HKFRS 9 adjustment Wl — BBH RS ER
FIORAE - 1,862 1,862
Additional expected credit loss provision  SEIMEHIEEEIEEE — B
— HKFRS 9 adjustment PHREEAF AR (6,235) = (6,235)
Closing expected credit loss provision R=E—-N\E+=-F=+—H
as at 31 December 2018 BABHEEEERE (11,993) (13,513) (25,506)




3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Amounts due from related parties, non-
controlling interests and other financial assets
at amortized cost

The Group uses three categories for other
receivables which reflect their credit risk and
how the expected credit loss provision is
determined for each of those categories. The
Group accounts for its credit risk by
appropriately providing for expected credit
losses on a timely basis. In calculating the
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers
both historical loss rates and forward-looking
macroeconomic data. A summary of the
assumptions underpinning the Group’s
expected credit loss model is as follows:

3 HXRRER®
3.1 PBEABREZE®)
(b) fEEEE ()
() FEYCBIHE 5 2008 - FEFEHI1E
1 RIS R B E
e EEE
7 22 8 3t L B UK ER R =
EER - ARMEEEER
AR EEE ARG
BIBEE - REEEBIER
MY EEELE YR
B S HEERRALR-
EHEEREEERERE .
AEEEBFESBBERA
ERBEERE - AEEE
B IR A M BRI E
T

Basis for recognition of Expected
Category Group definition of category expected credit loss provision credit loss rate
Rl AEERERFTER BRABCEBRRAENESR AHEEBRE
Stageone  Customers have a low risk of default and a 12 months expected credit losses. Where the expected 1%—3%
strong capacity to meet contractual cash flows lifetime of an asset is less than 12 months, expected
losses are measured at its expected lifetime
£-KE BUERRBERENAORSTEENAINES 12EABHEEEE - WEAENEREHIR120EA -
SERERRERF R E
Stage two Receivables for which there is a significant Lifetime expected credit losses 3%—10%
increase in credit risk since initial recognition
F-RER  BVSERNREERRBRAR CAOEKH FHEBEEESE
Stage three  Receivables for which there is credit loss Lifetime expected credit losses 10%—100%
since initial recognition
Z£-KE  BVSRRURESEEEBNELR FHEBEEESE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BHXRKREREE)

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued) 3.1 HKREBEZE#)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEEEE)
(i)  Amounts due from related parties, non- (i) FEACBHEE 75 5008 - FEFE #IE
controlling interests and other financial assets BRI A EMA
at amortized cost (Continued) b2 E A E (1)
As at 31 December 2018, the Group provided R-ZEBE—NEFE+_A=+—
for expected credit loss provision against other B - A& B3t E M R UOKRE
receivables as follows: REHEEBEEBENT
Carrying
Estimated amount
Expected gross carrying Expected (net of
credit amount at credit loss impairment
31 December 2018 Category loss rate default provision provision)
“B-\f+=ZA=t-H Rl BH REEL b REE
FEBRER BEEE FEERRE (SNAAERS)
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBTR AR¥TR
Amounts due from related parties Stage one 1% 2,377,306 (23,773) 2,353,533
FEV R 7 5OR £
Amounts due from non-controlling Stage one
interests 1% 519,390 (5,194) 514,196
PRI I R 7R MR
Deposits for purchase of land Stage one 1% 242,689 (2,427) 240,262
EELIMEZES E-TRER
Others Stage one 1%—3% 308,596 (7,721) 300,875
Hity R
3,447,981 (39,115) 3,408,366




3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 UBEEEERE®

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued) 3.1 MBEBREZEE)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) 1EEEREEE)

(i)  Amounts due from related parties, non- (i) FEYLEGHE 77 30 TE - FEEE S 1t
controlling interests and other financial assets R RIEE AN ERA
at amortized cost (Continued) % Eh B E (4B )

As at 1 January 2018, the Group provided for R-E—NE—HF—H ' &
expected credit loss provision against other £ B ot H b fE YR SR ETHIR FE B
receivables as follows: EEEBRBHENT -
Carrying
Estimated amount
Expected gross carrying Expected (net of
credit amount credit loss impairment
1 January 2018 Category loss rate at default provision provision)
“Z-\F-A-H 5l bR REE
EHEEERX pEEE BHACEEEEE (BMARERE)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Amounts due from related parties Stage one 1% 2,930,361 (29,304) 2,901,057
FEV R 7 SR £
Amounts due from non-controlling Stage one
interests 1% 571,500 (5,715) 565,785
PRI I R R Ea 15
Deposits for purchase of land Stage one 1% 212,125 2121) 210,004
EELIMEZES E-TRER
Others Stage one 1%—3% 278,936 (7,430) 271,500
Hit, £
3,992,922 (44,576) 3,948,346
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BHXERERE#)

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued) 31 B¥RERREZEE)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) fEEEREE(E)

(i) Amounts due from related parties, non- (i) FEMEGEE T Z0E - FEHEEHIE
controlling interests and other financial assets BRI A EMA
at amortized cost (Continued) @ L E (&)

The expected credit loss provision for amounts FE UK BE B 5 SR IE - FEFE |8
due from related parties, non-controlling R NIRB AT ENE
interests and other financial assets at amortized temEER_-_ZT—N\F
cost as at 31 December 2018 reconciles to the +-A=+—HBWEHREE
opening expected credit loss provision are as EIERERBYEHEES
follows: BRENEERNT -
Amounts
Amounts due from
due from non-  Deposits for
related controlling purchase
parties interests of land Others Total
Bl ElEEH BE
BEAZE  HERZE Lk Hit H

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARKTT AR%TR

Opening provision- under BIRE - REBE

previous accounting policy BHHE - - - (7,436) (7,436)
Amounts restated through opening ~ EBENBF K EF| S5

retained earnings (29,304) (5,715) 2,121) - (37,140)

Opening expected credit loss WYEREEHERE -

provision — HKFRS 9 BEMBREENEIR (29,304) (5,715) (2,121) (7,436) (44,576)
Additional provision — under BNV — BEBE
previous accounting policy SHER (4,733) - - (285) (5,018)
Recoveries — HKFRS 9 adjustment 1Bl — & &BI S04
EAEIRAR 10,264 521 - - 10,785

Additional expected credit loss BINEHEEEREE -
provision — HKFRS 9 adjustment &8 # R & %8|

20%HE - - (306) - (306)
Closing expected credit loss R-E-N§¥+-A=+-H
provision at 31 December 2018  HIAFHEEFBEE (23,779) (5,194) (2,427) (7,721) (39,115)




3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents and the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities.

The Group’s primary cash requirements have been
for the payments of property development projects
and operating expenses. The Group finances its
working capital requirements mainly through internal
resources and borrowings from shareholders, banks
and other financial institutes. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
cash and cash equivalents and adequate credit
facilities to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and long term.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay as of 31 December 2018.

3

BRERER &)
3.1 BIBEMEZ &)

(c)

HEBEZER
BENORBESRRERERRTT
RORERESEEY  WEBTT
HOEERERERGES -

AEENEERESFRANZNE
WERZEHEREEER - AEH
MEEETHTREREBALER
KA - SR1T R EMP BEHERE
BN - REBNBRRE BT
ERMERNRBESHK - B
HEZAENAS MRS FED LT
HWONEEREE - neEi k&8

TREIIREEEBZENIEHA
EVRIEREAMR - 2 RIS A4 51 2
DRAREEEBEBEDT - RAH
BENEBERN_Z—/\F+_A
=+ ARBEAKE A RE R K
BEXMEMAENAORTRAS

N-¥=1
JILEE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BHXRKREREE)

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued) 31 B¥RERREZEE)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) #EBELREE(E)
Less than
1 year or
repayable on Between
demand  1and2years Over 2 years Total
PR-F5
REREE —-ZmF MENL st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

At 31 December 2018 R-EB-N\E+=A=1+-H
Trade and other payables ENERREMENR 6,973,115 1,024,894 1,880,468 9,878,477
Borrowings and interest thereon S 1,175,125 4,715,095 2,004,384 7,894,604
Guarantee in respect of mortgage ~ SLE TER ZIRBREH

facilities for certain purchasers RER 591,253 1,453,048 66,132 2,110,433
Guarantee in respect of related RS 2 TR ER

parties’ borrowings 61,770 - 122,508 184,278
At 31 December 2017 R-B-tH&+ZA=1+-R
Trade and other payables FERERA R A MR 3,856,198 521,436 2,291,850 6,669,484
Borrowings and interest thereon EEVELY 2,495,178 362,004 3,175,999 6,033,181
Guarantee in respect of mortgage ~ SEE TER ZIRBRERH

facilties for certain purchasers RER 685,369 1,280,692 174,537 2,140,598
Guarantee in respect of related TR 2 B RURIER

parties’ borrowings 105,889 124,427 - 230,316




3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BHH¥EKRERE#)

3.2 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION 3.2 AAEEME

The different levels of valuation method for financial TXEHINMNBHEBEESTIEAALBEA

instruments carried at fair value are as follows: ERERTAZIRER :

(@ Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for @ MHRBEEXEGBNERISNRE
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). (REEAR)(E1E) -

() Inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 b)) BEIBFBEMNREIN  BHEE
that are observable for the asset or liability, either B EEENEE (BMER) KM
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived B EVREER) ASIR(F2E)

from prices) (level 2).

() Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on () EBESNBBIIFKREAIERMISE
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) 1B 89 & A EUE (BN A] 8 2 ) A2

(level 3). B)(E3E) -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1E E2E %E3E st
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

BisE ARBTT AR®TT AR®TRT AR®T:H

Financial assets at fair value RARBESABREN

through profit or loss SREE
At 31 December 2018 RZZ—N\F 26
+-A=+—H 125,669 - 51,140 176,809
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF 26
+=A=+-A - - - -
Investment properties REMME
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F 18
+=—A=+—H - - 505,630 505,630
At 31 December 2017 RZT—tF 18
+=—A=+—H = - 319,830 319,830
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3
3.2 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (Continued)

MEERER®)
3.2 AREEMEH(E)

There were no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices as at 31
December 2018. A market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximize the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as
possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level
&

As financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
amounted to RMB125,669,000 is listed bonds traded in
active market whose fair value is based on quoted market
price as at 31 December 2018. Therefore, they are
included in level 1.

The remaining financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, and investment properties held by the Group are not
traded in active markets nor does the fair value determined
by using valuation techniques that use observable market
data. Therefore, they are included in level 3.

BE_ZT-N\FT-_A=1T—"HLHFE
W B— ZR=EHAETEER -

EERMSEENESRMTANAREE
BE-ZE-—N\F+_A=+—HMMIS
REYIER o & IRME T BIRFIE AL B 5
R R5% - 848  FARALTF
BERFHEEREES  MZIERER
REANFPRGELEETHNERMERT
BRGE - MG R AER o

WHINERMSEENS R T A (Flan5
$7|\?5T’£I/E=)E’J’D\fﬂﬁfﬁtﬂﬁfﬁﬁimﬁ
8o REMERMIES AR ESH A
BRMSEE  KtmMEERKEERE
MEFAGEAEE SR ARNEENED
TRAMBOMEEABABERSG IS
ZHG RIZBRIASHAE_E-

E-RRZRERNE ABIRILIFFRIEA
BERMSEEBET  IZBEIASMA
E=E-

HREAABEFABZNSHBRAAA
R #125,669,000 T AR ERMIEEE
MEMES  ARBERE-Z—/N\F
FTZA=+T—HHNMHERENE - Bt
DERE -

HBEBEAABEFAEENESRAAR
REERFBENRE YL ERNIERT
BEE  MECAAIBRMSEIENMG
Tﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁgiﬂﬁ{gﬁ’ AitnErzE=
43



3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2

3.3

FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, fair value of the wealth
management product was estimated based on the
transaction price, as they were acquired close to year end.
Accordingly, no quantitative information about significant
unobservable inputs were disclosed.

See note 18 for disclosures of the investment properties
that are measured at fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s other current financial
assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values
due to their short maturities.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group’s capital management objectives are:

o to ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern; and

. to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or obtain borrowings.

The Group monitors its capital structure on a basis of
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by
total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less
cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash pledged for
the Group’s borrowing. Total capital is calculated as net
debt plus total equity as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet.

3 BHH¥EKRERE#)

3.2

3.3

AREEMT (&)
RZFE—-—N\F+=-A=+—8 BEE
BTEMNARBEERARSER MG
BAEDREBELFRBA - Bt - WER
BEREATABEGAABENEES
B o
BRARBEAESENREEMENRES
RHFE18

ﬁ!F

o

HRARENEMRSCREE RS R
BESRE - BREEREQALEEBRE

BEXREREE
AEENERAEEEIES

s BRAKERELEMNES R

o REREHEMRER -
REFRABEARRE  AEEXREH
ERERREKNHOREEHE  MBRRE
BN BITHBESESER

AEERBEEABLRETEAR
18 o L RAERF R LB AR
8- BHFEMMERERBRERRES
FEY R ALK B FE AR5
Rest8 - ERRBNERFENGES
BERBRAAHGERTE

o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HKEKREE®

3.3 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3.3 EXERERE#)
The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 were RZEBE—NER-_ZE—+&+_-H
as follows: =t—HNEESELENAT

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
+=-—A=+—-8 +=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARBT T

Borrowings (note 29) B (Mf3E29) 7,024,595 5,429,415
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 27) i : IR RIRSZEY (M3E27) (5,404,956) (3,341,835)

Restricted cash (note 27) ZREIIRS (fizr27) (268,866) (129,290)
Net debt B R 1,350,773 1,958,290
Total equity ferEm 4,760,895 3,698,063
Total capital BRNMERE 6,111,668 5,656,353
Gearing ratio BEBELX 22% 35%
Restricted cash was pledged as securities for borrowings TREFSEHAEFHEHEER - K
of the Group and the Group considers that such restricted EFERE BEETZREIRESEMAAES
cash should be included in the calculation of net debt in EEEMEED - PRMAERSENE
order to reflect an appropriate gearing ratio of the Group. EABEHR -



CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes judgements, estimates and assumptions

concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing material

adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

(A)

(B)

CLASSIFICATION OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT
VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE

In the normal course of business, the Group develops
properties together with other developers or institutions,
through entering into co-operation agreements with these
parties. The rights and obligations of the Group and the
other parties are stipulated by respective co-operation
agreements, article of associations of the project
companies and etc. Due to the complexity of the
arrangements, significant judgement is needed in
determining whether the project company is subsidiary,
joint venture or associate to the Group. The Group makes
judgement based on the substance of the arrangements
and the definition of subsidiary, joint venture and associate
as disclosed in notes 2.3, 2.4 and 2.5.

ESTIMATES OF FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties are stated at fair value
which is determined by independent professional valuers.
Such valuation is made based on certain assumptions,
which are subject to uncertainties and might materially
differ from the actual results. In making the judgement,
reasonable consideration has been given to the underlying
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the balance sheet date. These estimates are
regularly compared to actual market data and actual
transactions in the market.

4

B S ot (4 FT R H B

AERBEELARRARRIBRAHE - Hat RE
®BEREER SEABREBEIEENEH
BERGER - bt RBERRATGEEZAL T —(E
MRFENEERABREEFHEAFE
BT

(A)

(B)

MEBAR SEEERBEQTN
Pk |

R—REHERET  AREEEMER
BREBEBEZFAIET LA FR
# HAFAEEME ASEEEM)
MENREETHTAZAERZ - BE
REZHABERARETH - ERZF
RH2ERE  BETRERRRTEA
SEZHBAR  AEEEHBENT
FREAHE - AEBIDERZELH
ZEENERMBAR  aELEREE
NAZEZIEHHE - RIE23 24
K25-

REMMENMGT A REE

AEBENREEYEINBLE XA ER
FEEHN AR BEIK HEDERE
TRE ERPRIEERE - AJstd
ERGERBEEER - (FRHERATR
REEERNTREEBBRRELSE
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RERRZERELER -
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(©)

(D)

NET REALIZABLE VALUE OF INVENTORY,
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT AND
HELD FOR SALE

The Group estimates the net realizable value of inventory,
properties under development and held for sale based on
the current market condition and the historical experience
of selling properties and products of a similar nature. It
could change significantly as a results of change in market
conditions. Management reassesses these estimates at
each balance sheet date.

INCOME TAXES AND DEFERRED TAX

The Group is subject to income taxes in Mainland China,
Hong Kong and US. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain in the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognizes liabilities for anticipated
tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the year when such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognized when the Group
considers it is likely that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilized. When the expectations are different
from the original estimates, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred income tax assets and income tax
charges in the period in which such estimates are changed.

4 BEEISEFTTRAEE)

(€)

(D)
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R RIEER 1E
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PIBHREENERERRAKA TG
BERHAN B BFREZEEREHE
BB ERER EEHSERRTE

st AR RE - BRGNS
H0T B ST P19 A A O RE R T P19

HERM -



4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
(E) MAINLAND CHINA LAND APPRECIATION

(F)

TAXES

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes (“‘LAT”) in
Mainland China. However, the implementation and
settlement of LAT varies among various tax jurisdictions in
cities of Mainland China, and the Group has not finalized its
LAT calculation and payments with local tax authorities in
Mainland China for most of its property development
projects. Accordingly, significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of land appreciation and its related
taxes. The Group recognizes these liabilities based on its
best estimates. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
expenses and provisions of LAT taxes in the period when
such determination is made.

IMPAIRMENT OF INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
AND JOINT VENTURES

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 36 to identify any
impairment indicator for interests in associate and joint
ventures. This determination requires significant judgement.
In making this judgement, the Group evaluates the fair
value of an investment by taking into account a market
participant’s ability in such interests in its highest and best
use or by selling it to another market participant that would
invest in interests in its highest and best use. The Group
considers the financial health of and short-term business
outlook for the investee, including factors such as industry
and sector performance, changes in technology and
operational and financing cash flow.

4 BEEIEFTRAEE)

(E) B+ ESH

(F)

REBRBHTE L HIBER - AT
BB T AR ACE 1 IR {E
BEVBTT RAEENERR - MAKE R
REREM T HEREERBDELE
FMEREE LB ERNAERNRA
& Bt BE T ISERE KBTI
RAEHEAHE - ARERBEEE
EHHREGAERZFAE - HEF
EEMREREERE BN RIGCEDN
g MEHEZReY EEEAMEE
HIRM SR E R R LR ER A -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
(G) REVENUE RECOGNITION FOR PROPERTY

4 BEEISEFTTRAEE)

(G) MEREREENWRARER

DEVELOPMENT AND SALES

The Group develops and sells properties to its customers
in different countries. Revenue from sales of properties is
recognized over time when the Group’s performance do
not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date. The Group may not
change or substitute the property unit or redirect the
property unit for another use due to the contractual
restrictions with the customer and thus the property unit
does not have an alternative use to the Group. However,
whether there is an enforceable right to payment depends
on the terms of sales contract and the interpretation of
applicable laws that apply to the contract. To assess the
enforceability of right to payment, the Group has reviewed
the terms of its contracts, the relevant local laws, the local
regulators’ views and obtained legal advice, when
necessary, and a significant judgement is required.

For property development and sales contracts for which
the control of the property is transferred at a point in time,
revenue is recognized when the buyer obtains the physical
possession or legal title of the completed property and the
consideration amount is collected. The Group seldom
provides long credit or payment terms to its property buyer.

AEBR/TRBERNEFPHAERHEED
X BEARENBROYEELHAKHE
EREEAAENEEREAREERLZSE
STRK O JB 4 B B AT 31T B0 32 A5 AR B
AERHEMENRA - AREEFEFH
BHREG AREISERXBEERYE
B EVMEREUMNRE  HiLA
KSEYTRESZMEECAREMA
& o R ARBELSHEAAAITHAX
HER - BURR 85 & & QR IRFNE A
KRB HNERERE - BRFGHXM
RAWAAITE  AERECRHEEAH
&R - HHEAE LD  EHEERER
EUARRUBERERSERZER - YAE
HE A K -

SR —ER BB Y RIE S RN E
EFRBHEANNS  EEFEHES
EERNNENBEYAERIOEERE
R Y [ 4 (B - AN BB A HETT R
R ARERIAEMEERREHREY
MEERNHARA -



4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
(H) REVENUE RECOGNITION FOR

U]

MANAGEMENT SERVICES RECOGNIZED
OVER PERIOD

The Group provides management services to its customers
at fixed and variable amounts. If the consideration is
variable, the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled in exchange for the promised
services. The estimated amount of variable consideration is
included in the transaction price only to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the
uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

The Group recognizes revenue from management services
associated with fixed and variable fees over time where the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group or the Group has an
enforceable right to payments for performance completed
to date and the performance do not create an asset with
an alternative use, by reference to completion of the
specific transaction assessed on the basis of the actual
costs incurred up to the end of the reporting period as a
percentage of total estimated costs for each contract.

Where the outcome of a contract cannot be measured
reliably, revenue is recognized only to the extent that the
expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The provision for expected credit loss for financial assets
are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward-looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details of the
key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in the note
3.1 (b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

5 REVENUE 5 WA
5.1 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 51 EF&HKA

CUSTOMERS

For the year
ended
31 December

For the year
ended
31 December

2018 2017
S H=E
—E-N\F —T—tF
+=ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
LEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTFT
Revenue recognised at a point in time MR — B R B RER AU A
Property development and sales FEHERERIEE
— Mainland China —h 3,879,123 4,095,031
— US — X[ 2,323,310 1,330,845
Management services (a) BEERT ()
— Mainland China —h 580,273 455,753
— US — X[ 25,144 19,997
6,807,850 5,901,626
Revenue recognised over period R ERARER A A
Property development and sales BHERERIEE
— US = 2 204,118 -
Management services EIRARTS
— development management — RAEEERS @)
services (a)
— Mainland China — 394,282 277,475
598,400 277,475
Rental income AL N
— Office investment properties — WRREEYE 28,826 26,548
— Long-term rental apartments — KRS 125,450 8,282
154,276 34,830
7,560,526 6,213,931




5 REVENUE (Continued) 5 WA

5.1 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 51 BEFEHWA (&)
CUSTOMERS (Continued)
(@) Breakdown of the revenue from management @ EEREWABAENT

services is as follows:

For the year For the year
ended ended

31 December 31 December
2018 2017

S H=E
—E-N\E T —tF
+=ZA=+—-H +ZH=+—H
LLFE IFFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETT

Revenue from development HEEERBKA

management services 419,426 297,472
Revenue from sales management HEEERBEWA

services 383,513 281,572
Revenue from green product FEELRBERBEBA

integration services 169,000 162,775
Revenue from brand authorisation mh R IR ARSI

services 27,760 21,406

999,699 753,225
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

5 REVENUE (continued)
5.2 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RELATED TO
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
The Group has recognized the following assets and

liabilities related to contracts with customers:

WA )
52 HEEFEHNERMNEERER

AEECHAANTEREFENARNE
ERAE:

31 December 1 January 2018

2018 (note 2.2.3)
—T-N\F
—E-N\F —A—H
+=A=+-—H (K$3E2.2.3)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETIT
Contract assets related to property HEEMRE RIEER BN
development and sales SREE 119,934 225,267
Less: Provision for bad debt (note 3.1(0)(i)) & : R B (B 5E 3.1(0)() (11,993) (6,758)
107,941 218,509
Contract liabilities related to HETIEHEEENENARE
— Property development and sales — B ERZENIEE 4,456,933 4,156,608
— Management services — BIRARTE 53,253 21,536
4,510,186 4,178,144

(a)

Significant changes in contract assets and
liabilities

Contract assets consist of unbilled amount resulting
from property development and sales in US when
revenue recognized over the development period by
reference to the costs incurred up to the end of
reporting period as a percentage of the total
expected costs to complete the contract exceeds the
amount billed to customers.

The Group receives payments from customers based
on billing schedule as established in contracts.
Payments are usually received in advance of the
performance under the contracts which are mainly
from sales of properties in Mainland China.

(a) BHNEEREEEALE

BN EMEERN NS (2RE
EREPRMEERAEROTT
BHERAN A D LLETE ) BB
EFFRENSHE  GNEESRS
FBFEHEREMHENRFAER
1g o

AEERBETFPNAQTEILA
Wk By P 3R KBRS 3R = A5 R — AR
BITRHEEREYR  ZFEMNE
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5 REVENUE (Continued) 5 WA
5.2 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RELATED TO 52 HEFEHNEHENEERAE(E)
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (Continued)

(b)

Revenue recognised in relation to contract (b) BEHBERRY K

liabilities

The following table shows how much of the revenue TRITARERARAN D wR
recognized in the current reporting period relates to HELE LB EEEHELD

carried-forward contract liabilities.

For the year
ended
31 December

2018
Bz
—E-N\F
+=HA=+—H
LEFE
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Revenue recognised that was included in the FHEFFAESLHAEBEHRD
contract liabilities balance at the beginning BRI
of the year
— Property development and sales — EHEMEREE 3,084,941
— Management services — SRS 21,536

3,106,477
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=N b

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE_-ZF

sy 2% Y

—N\F+ZA=t—RALFE

5 REVENUE (continued)
5.2 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RELATED TO
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (Continued)
(c) Contracted amounts to be recognized in future

(d)

WA )
52 EEFEHNEHNEERERE(H)

(c) BRRKEZHTHNELHE

() Property development and sales ) FHERZEREE
The following table shows the contracted TRIRKE FEHE R E K
amounts to be recognized in future resulting SHE B30 A5 P R R FERR AV BT
from property development and sales. HEFE o
31 December
2018
i
—E-N\EF
+=ZRA=+—H
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Expected to be recognised within one year FTEEIR —F N HERR 1,998,099
Expected to be recognised after one year TEHAR —F 18 FER 2,458,834
4,456,933
(i) Management services (i) EEERFE
Most of the management services are billed REBHEIEREHEEZH LA
based on time incurred. As permitted by RERSHEEAER - B
HKFRS 15, the unsatisfied contract amount BBV BRELERFE 155
was not disclosed. R REREHNESBEILT
B o
Contract cost (d) BHEE

Costs directly attributable to obtaining a contract
such as stamp duty and sales commissions are

immaterial and expensed when they were incurred.

RS ANMMERE SN A (ME]
B RHERMET) NEER AR
RXH - 2RI FERX -



SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the executive directors that are used to
make strategic decisions. The reports are prepared on the same
basis as consolidated financial statements.

The executive directors consider the business from services
perspective and have identified the following operating segments:

o Property development and sales;

o Management services;

o Office property investment; and

. Long-term rental apartments.

The Group established the business of long-term rental
apartments in late 2017. To better measure the performance, a
separate segment is reported for the year ended 31 December
2018.

The executive directors assess the performance of operating
segments based on a measure of segment revenue and segment
profit.

Segment profit includes net profit from subsidiaries, share of net
profit of joint ventures and associates. This represents the profit
earned by each segment without allocation of interest income on
bank deposits, corporate expenses and finance costs charged in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. This is the
measure reported to the management of the Group for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 ZoEEM@E
The segment information provided to the executive directors for HE_Z-—)/\F+_A=+—HILLFE @
the reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 2018 TEEEENRESLENLDT -
is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-E-N\F+ZA=Z+t—-HLFE

Property Office Long-term
development Management property rental
and sales services  investment apartments Total
FibER R YN YES
RS EBRY RE REAE st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥ETR

Segment revenue (from external HEBBA CREINDEF)
customers) (note 5) (HtzE5)
— Revenue recognized at a point — BEE BT SRS %R
in time under HKFRS 15 F15WNE R
HEREUA 6,202,433 605,417 - - 6,807,850
— Revenue recognized over — BB BT BHRE %R
period under HKFRS 15 ERRE ANkt
KA 204,118 394,282 - - 598,400
— Rental income — WA - - 28,826 125,450 154,276
6,406,551 999,699 28,826 125,450 7,560,526
Segment profit/(loss) AEFE,/ (EE) 2,465,355 456,816 26,116 (190,205) 2,758,082
Depreciation of property, TEE - TRREHETE
plant and equipment (note 19) (Ft5E19) (7,959) (7,677) (13) (41,424) (57,073)
Fair value gain on investment REMMENDA BEFG
properties (note 18) (Hzx18) - - 7,363 - 7,363
Share of net profit of associates FE(GEE S R RGER (s 16)
(note 16) 408,854 - - - 408,854
Share of net profit of joint ventures ~ FE{E & & E LA (FzE17)
(note 17) 257,991 - - - 257,991
At 31 December 2018 R-ZEB-NE+=-A=+—H
Segment assets DEEE 21,628,232 3,424,012 515,642 1,207,388 26,775,274
Interests in associates (note 16) ﬁéﬂ% BRI (M5 16) 1,315,706 - - - 1,315,706
Interests in joint ventures (note 17) W& SRR (E17) 2,596,047 - - - 2,596,047
Additions to non-current assets EMERBEE
(excluding financial assets) (TREEREE) 75,178 6,831 190,352 494,046 766,407
Segment liabilities HHEE 19,496,811 2,081,024 73,569 362,975 22,014,379




SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 DHEN =)
The segment information provided to the executive directors for HBE_Z—+tF+-_A=+—HILEFE [
the reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 2017 TEEERNRESILENLT -
is as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+-_A=+—HIEFE
Property Office Long-term
development  Management property rental
and sales services investment apartments Total
FEihERE FINYES
KRiHE BB IR ®E RHEAE fast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
Segment revenue (from external DEBRA CREINBEF)
customers) (note 5) (BtzE5) 5,425,876 753,225 26,548 8,282 6,213,931
Segment profit/(loss) HEFIE (BE) 1,113,465 410,885 45,511 44,170) 1,525,691
Depreciation of property, plant TEE « TRRZETE
and equipment (note 19) (BizE19) (9,374) (1,739) @) (142) (11,258)
Fair value gain on an BAMYEN R EEFE
investment property (note 18) (Mizx18) - - 28,910 - 28,910
Share of net profit of FEAREE & R RAEF (PHEE16)
associates (note 16) 169,453 - - - 169,453
Share of net profit of joint BIEAEEAF (FE17)
ventures (note 17) 21,881 - - - 21,881
At 31 December 2017 R-ZB—tF+=A=+—H
Segment assets DHEE 17,140,908 2,526,845 349,941 302,807 20,320,501
Interests in associates (note 16) B A AR (FHEE16) 983,077 - - - 983,077
Interests in joint ventures RELPENER
(note 17) (BIzE17) 1,885,436 - - - 1,885,436
Additions to non-current assets EMETBEE
(excluding financial assets) (TBRESREE) 220,746 13,814 28,925 156,910 420,395
Segment liabilities NEBE 15,772,957 662,542 83,313 103,626 16,622,438
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 PIEM@
The Group does not have any single customer which contributed AREBWTETMEREBIRA10% A EHE
to more than 10% of the Group’s revenue. The Group'’s revenue —®E o NEFKBINEEEHIA KR IERE)
from external customers and non-current assets are divided into BETVIRATHIE &2 5 :

the following geographical areas:

Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
SHEBEFRA FRBDEE
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017
BZ #z

—B-NE —TtF
+=ZA=+-8 +t=-A=+-8 HRZB-N\E “E—tF
LEE % +=A=+-8 +=ZA=1+-A
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT ARETR ARETT

Mainland China Hh 5,007,954 4,863,089 7,239,353 5,064,967
us 35 2,552,572 1,350,842 463,253 578,475
Hong Kong (domicile) A5 (i) - = 60 702
7,560,526 6,213,931 7,702,666 5,644,144
The revenue information above is based on the location of the A EWAEMDEEFEMEMIEL - A E
customers. Non-current assets information above is based on IEREEB IR EERGEHmMIEL -

the location of the assets.



6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 DIEME

Reconciliation of segment profit to profit before income tax is as SEF SRR T ER A EEERAT
follows:
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BE HZE
—E-N\F —E—+tF
+=A=+—-B +=ZA=+—H
LFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBT T

Segment profit PRI IbE 2,758,082 1,525,691
Finance costs, net (note 10) B8 B FEE (s 10) (299,268) (238,925)
Unallocated corporate expenses ROWMARER (197,075) (159,355)
Profit before income tax R PTS T B A 2,261,739 1,127,411
Reconciliations of segments’ assets and liabilities to total assets DHEENBEHLEERBEABENHEREWD
and total liabilities are as follows: T:
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+tF
+=—A=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®Tx ARET T
Segment assets DEfEE 26,775,274 20,320,501
Unallocated assets ROBLEE - -
Total assets BEME 26,775,274 20,320,501
Segment liabilities SEEE 22,014,379 16,622,438
Unallocated liabilities Ao BE - -
Total liabilities BEER 22,014,379 16,622,438
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRRM

/\\/T\
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+-_A=+—HIFE
7 OTHER INCOME 7 Higs
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BZE H=E
—E-N\F i
+=ZA=+—-HA +=—A=+—H
IEFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETTT
Interest income from: FBUZRRE
— Amounts due from joint ventures and ~ — JEIRA B ¥ REEE N TR
associates (note 39) (FF3E39) 105,735 105,402
— Amounts due from non-controlling — PR IE I I 1 R 2 TR
interests 22,338 23,764
— Loan to third parties and deposit paid ~ — fEUE =5 E T & Ik
for acquisition of an associate —REERARIANES 8,751 13,362
Government grants BT B 34,738 5,083
Sundry income LA - 3,093
171,562 150,704
8 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) — NET 8 HMRAB (BX)FHE
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
Bz H=
—E-N\F —E—tF
+=—HA=+—HB +ZA=+—H
IEFE LEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®Tx AREET T
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) &K B A 72 K15 (Fi5E38) 166,822 285,619
Gain on re-measurement of existing interest A& &> ¥k A B A Fl%
in a joint venture upon conversion EHFTER B EEAWE
to a subsidiary (note 37) (BIzx37) 19,653 -
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HERLLEZRE - 608
Loss on disposal of property, HERFE - TRMHREZEER
plant and equipment (10) @)
Net exchange gains/(losses) FEHFE(EGE)F5E 185,188 (270,320)
Gain on FVPL (note 26 (b)) BEAREER ABERRE (FIFE26(0) 2,675 =
Others HAtb (218) (3,914)
374,110 11,991




9 EXPENSES BY NATURE 9 BRMESIENER

For the year For the year
ended ended

31 December 31 December
2018 2017

BZE HE
—E-N\F —E—+tF
+=—HA=+—HB +ZA=+—H
IEFE WEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARBET T

Employee benefit expenses EERFER
Directors’ remuneration (note 14) B=2EM(ME14)

— Fees — s 900 900
— Salaries and allowances — Fe KRR 17,350 15,324
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions  — 3RRIE FIET 2 £ 2k 482 355
— Restricted share award (note 32 (b)) — BRHIMERR (D 22 E) (M 5E 32(b)) - =
18,732 16,579

Other staff costs HiBTER
— Wages, salaries and allowances — I& &£ 345,528 218,675
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions  — R/RIEFIET 2143k 41,114 18,682
— Other staff benefit — HiBIRA 34,016 15,875
— Restricted share award (note 32 (b)) — BRAFIMERR (D 22 B (M 5 32(b)) - =
420,658 253,232
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE_-ZF

9 EXPENSES BY NATURE (continued)

BB HRRM

—N\F+ZA=t—RALFE

9 BRMESENER®

For the year For the year

ended ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
S H=E
—E-N\F —E—+tF
+=-—B=+—HB +ZA=+—H
IHFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETIT
Cost of property development and sales EithE R M ER A
— Mainland China (a) — FEH (a) 2,612,402 2,991,577
— Us — & 2,042,662 1,183,222
Cost of management services BRI A
— Mainland China — 479,647 391,784
Rental expense in respect of properties MEHEER 196,079 47,447
Operating costs in respect of investment BEEYENLES
properties 5,687 5,700
Other taxes Hfthii1E 79,756 140,073
Advertising and promotion expenses BEREEER 157,281 72,133
Legal and professional fees FERBEER 55,310 25,216
Depreciation of property, TEE - TREZETE
plant and equipment (note 19) (KMFs£19) 57,073 11,258
Provision for impairment of financial S EEERE R (M 3.1()i)
assets (note 3.1 (b) (ii)) (714) 2,783
Auditor’s remuneration 1% S5 il 257 A
— Audit services — R 1,446 1,298
— Non-audit services — FEEERE 953 864
Provision for decline in the value of R MIFEHEMEBE K
properties under development and held Bt (FeE21 52 23)
for sale (note 21 & 23) 5,873 1,032
Others (b) Hfth (b) 86,554 86,336
5,780,009 4,960,723
6,219,399 5,230,534
Representing: ¥g :
Cost of sales and services HE KRG A 5,406,474 4,690,410
Administrative expenses THRER 568,935 420,235
Selling expenses HEEH 243,990 119,889
6,219,399 5,230,534
(@) Cost of property development and sales includes decoration materials used (@) EHEMRBERFEEEAPECREMHDEARE
of RMB119,830,000 (2017: RMBA4,788,000). 119,830,0007C(=F —+4 : AR#4,788,0007T)
(b) Others include subsidiaries’ statutory and non-statutory audit fee of RMB (b) HEaENE AR RS R FHEE KIEEE

4,059,000 to their respective auditors (2017: RMB 3,727,000).

ERBRARE4,059000T (=2 —+F: AR
3,727,0007T) ©



10 FINANCE COSTS, NET

MBEERFHE

For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BZE H=E
—E2-N\F —F—+tF
+=ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
LEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR ARET T
Financial cost B E A
— Bank borrowings — RITIER 133,245 151,084
— Loans from the ultimate controlling — REFKIERBRENE K
shareholder (note 39) (MI7E39) 95,483 126,888
— Senior private notes — BAALEES 118,620 78,195
— EB-5 loans — EB-5E 20,327 21,626
— Loans from other financial institutes — Hit BB ER 19,634 18,062
— Junior private notes — RBPALEEH - 14,942
— Interest expense on amounts due to — FERTREEG 5 SRIER A EE M
related parties (note 39) (FfzE39) 61,954 99,275
— Sell and buy-back arrangement — HEREELH 45,538 9,733
— Discounted bank accepted notes — BRARBITELEE 15,529 4,380
— Loans from non-controlling interests — REFEEHIMERER 7,368 2,628
— Financing component of contracts with — BEA4INmME D
customers 154,509 -
— Other finance charges — Hitni %% & A - 7,518
672,207 534,331
Less: interest capitalised B BAREFE (349,189) (285,286)
323,018 249,045
Finance income B e
— Bank interest income — RITH B M= (23,750) (10,120)
299,268 238,925

The average interest rate of borrowing costs capitalized for the
year ended 31 December 2018 was approximately 6.54% per
annum (2017: 6.50%).

BE-ZT-/\F+-A=+—BLFE &R
EERBBONTHENEN H654%(ZF
—t % :6.50%) °
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BB HRRM

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11 EHER
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BZE HE
—B-N\F T —F
+=A=+—-HB +ZA=+—H
LFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBT T
Current income tax BN EAFR 18
— Hong Kong profit tax (a) — BHEFEH ()
Tax expense for the year FEMIBER - 1,770
— Mainland China enterprise income tax (o) — 1 B2 157 ()
Tax expense for the year FEMIBER 497,342 383,903
— US profit tax (d) — EEFEH ()
Tax expense for the year FEMIEEBH 76,194 -
573,536 385,673
Mainland China land appreciation tax (b) Rt M I (E R (D) 393,938 103,087
Deferred income tax (note 30) EIEFTS L (FTEE30) (146,305) (82,190)
821,169 406,570
(@) Hong Kong profit tax has been provided at 16.5% (2017: (@ FBHEFE %R)}Lx$¢rﬁf\§ EEE’\]J}E\
16.5%) on the assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for R E R Z16.5% — 4
the year. 16.5% ) {E A 1E
(o)  The Group’s subsidiaries in the Mainland China are subject b)) HE-Z-—NE+-_A=1+—HILEE
to enterprise income tax at the rate of 25% (2017: 25%) for REFEHWHEWB AT BIZ2% (—F

the year ended 31 December 2018, except for Shanghai

Landsea Planning and Architectural Design Co., Ltd. ( L&

AFRERERTARA

&) which enjoys a preferential

income tax rate of 15% as approved by relevant tax

authorities.

—tF 1 25%) B RE R DEMS %Ro

W LB R EEERF AR

£<« ﬁ

ARSI HEZ B 16% WEBFEH

PR ARSI
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

)

(Continued)

Land appreciation tax in Mainland China is levied at
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of
properties less deductible expenditures including cost of
land use rights and all property development expenditures.
The tax is incurred upon transfer of property ownership.

As of 31 December 2018, the Group has unused tax losses
RMB30,689,000 (2017: RMB31,298,000) available for
offset against future profits for certain entities in Mainland
China which have not been recognized due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses
would expire within five years.

Under the Law of the Mainland China on Enterprise Income
Tax (the “EIT Law”) and implementation regulations of the
EIT Law, a withholding tax at 10% is imposed for dividends
distributed by a Mainland China-resident enterprise to its
immediate holding company outside Mainland China for
earnings generated beginning 1 January 2008. A lower 5%
withholding tax rate may be applied when the immediate
holding company is established in Hong Kong according to
the tax treaty arrangement between Mainland China and
Hong Kong. The Group controls the dividend policies of
subsidiaries in Mainland China. The directors of the
Company confirmed that the remaining retained earnings of
the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China as at 31
December 2018 will not be distributed to its immediate
holding company in the foreseeable future. As at 31
December 2018, deferred income tax liability of
RMB354,702,000 (2017: RMB259,722,000) on the
remaining unremitted distributable profit generated by the
Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China attributable to its
immediate holding company with the amount of
RMBS3,547,020,000 (2017:RMB2,597,218,000) was not
recognized.

In accordance with US tax law, the statutory tax rate for
both federal and state tax purposes was 28.28%. This is
then adjusted for items which are not assessable or
deductible to arrive at an effective tax rate of 26.68%.

11 FISHER®)

(b)

HRSEEEARAT / —T

(%)

B 1 IR (B A A SH & W) S PR 1S SR IR
ERRFAX (BRI HERERAED
ERERX L HIBERN FI0%E
60% B RAETH KU - THIBERNY
EMAREBREL -

R-ZE—NFE+-_A=+—0 BHRHE
FhEEEHTAERRRFBER - 5
N ER B MR A SR ] FRVE R SH R 2R A E Y
REVARIEEE AR 30,689,000 7T(=
T—+F : AR¥31,298,0007T) ° #1E
BERENRAFAER

BEFBRCEMSHE(DEMESH
EDREBHGS - PEERMHEG=
TENF-A—ARBRELENKZAER
BRI E B AR A AR 3 A AR B A A
M10% MBI - BBEHBEEF B
WM IBELHE - BEBEIERATKL
RER  JREARKKNS% BRI E
ANEEE ) AR BIF B A R A AR BEGR -
RARREEHEAEBPREMBRATR
—E-N\FE+-A=+—BNEEKZE
BTRERAIRRRDIRTEERERA
Ale RZE—\F+_A=+—8" &
EEWARFAERE A R B A FEED
HERZERARBIEHR T RELAIHY
fid 18 £ 58 A R % 3,547,020,000 7T ( =
T—tF: AR¥2597,218,0007T) #&
RIERE FT15 7 & & A K % 354,702,000
T(ZE—+F « ARM259,722,000) °

BIBEEBB AR - AR B RING
R EME 528.28% - ZHEHEZ SR
BARBSTANREL AREZERH
& 26.68% °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

11 FISHER#)
L fth o [ R S R O T T 9 S o T B T

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Taxes on profit assessable elsewhere have been calculated at

the applicable rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which R ARENIRTEARRTE  WiREZ
the Group operates, based on existing legislations, interpretations ZaEAEENIRTEN - 2B REHEL -

and practices in respect thereof.

Reconciliation between profit before income tax and income tax MBET SR AT FEE SR EROYERENT -

expense is as follows:

For the year

For the year

ended ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
Bz HE
—E-NF —E—+tF
+=—A=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
IEFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Profit before income tax B BT 1S 85 B A R 2,261,739 1,127,411
Mainland China land appreciation tax R+ M (A (393,938) (108,087)
1,867,801 1,024,324
Tax on profit before income tax, calculated BRETISTIRIFIE AR « R R
at the rate of 25% (2017: 25%) 25% (ZZF—+4F : 25%) T & 466,950 256,081
Effect of different tax rates of the Group’s REM AR EEHNNEE
subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions HEB AR TRMEAFTE 11,247 (248)
Tax effect of non-taxable income (i) AR TRIE R E () (129,124) (50,953)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR S RS & 22,235 29,175
Tax effect of unrecognized tax losses RIER BRI & 53,804 52,900
Others (ii £ b (i) 2,119 16,528
427,231 303,483
Mainland China land appreciation tax A+ IS (E R 393,938 103,087
821,169 406,570
)  Non-taxable income are mainly share of net profit of () BERBRBEFERFAOMEBERTR
associates and joint ventures. BEDEFIRE -
(i)  Others mainly represent tax effect of realization of (i) HoFZERFRBAFERAERLGRZE

unrecognized temporary difference in prior years.

BHRBZE -



12 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(A) BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

12 ERWE

(A)

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during

BRESN WS

SRR AR TS RSB I AR 2 AR A
FIBR A T E 54T BB 0 MAE T2
BEE -

the year.
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BZE H=E
—E-NF —E—tF
+=—A=+—-HB +=ZA=+—H
IEFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®Tx ARET T
Profit attributable to shareholders FEBNARRRENFE
of the Company 1,112,774 580,523
Accrued distribution of the convertible ~ AJIRRRK A B H R ERT 2K
perpetual securities (note 14 & 33) (BtEE14 2 33) (29,599) (19,679
Profit used to determine basic BEE T B IREAR K HF)E
earnings per share 1,083,175 560,844
Weighted average number of ordinary B 2317 BAX B INAE 15 X
shares in issue (in thousands) (FRR) 3,981,529 3,917,571

— Basic Earnings per share

— SREAKS

RMB AR RMB A R
0.27 T 0147

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 12 SRWKE®)
(B) DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE (B) ERmHREWSE

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the FRHENSREBYERAREY
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding BHEE T @A MARD BT BN
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary IEFEHEEE - A A B —BAWE
shares. The Company has one category of dilutive potential FENBELZ BRI TBRRKATS -
ordinary shares: convertible perpetual securities. The BRF AR K A B S EREE R TR
convertible perpetual securities are assumed to have been B o

converted into ordinary shares.

For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BZE H=E
—E-N\F —E—+F
+=ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
LLFE LEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T AREET T
Profit attributable to shareholders BN AR AR FE
of the Company 1,112,774 580,523
Weighted average number of ordinary BT E BT INE
shares in issue (in thousands) (FR%) 3,981,529 3,917,571
Adjustment for: KA TSI
— Assumed conversion of convertible — BREREB I IRBROKAE
perpetual securities (in thousands) (Fh%) 586,646 660,530
Adjusted weighted average number of AEE T BRBEKER
ordinary shares for diluted earnings 378 AR A R B NAE S 3T 2R
per share (in thousands) (FrR) 4,568,175 4,578,101
— Diluted Earnings per share — FRHERE RMB A R ¥ RMB AR &
0.24 T 0.137T




13 DIVIDEND 13 RE

For the year For the year
ended ended

31 December 31 December
2018 2017

Bz #BHE
—E-N\F Tt
+=A=t+-8 +-A=+-*8
LLFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARBT T

Final dividend for the year ended BE_E2—+tH+=-A=1+—8H
31 December 2017 of RMB3.54 cents 1EFE R B SRR
(2016: RMB3.54 cents) per fully paid share AREESBLA D (ZE—RF:

AR®3545) 138,682 138,682

Dividend of convertible perpetual securities A AR K A B AR B 29,599 19,679

For the year For the year

ended ended

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

BZE HE

—E-N\F —T—tF

+=A=+—-B +-A=+—H

LEE IEFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBET T

Proposed distribution of final dividend out of & 5 B4 A6 BRIR 3 R EIAL B
contributed surplus account of HK$ cents BRRE @A 4.50 8L

4.50 (equivalent to RMB cents 3.83) (FENARKE3.83%5)
(2017: HK$ cents 4.42 (equivalent to —T 4405
RMB cents 3.54)) per ordinary share (EERARE3545)) 180.990 138 682

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE_-ZF

13

BB HRRM

—N\F+ZA=t—RALFE

DIVIDEND (continued)

A final dividend relating to the year ended 31 December 2017
amounted to RMB138,682,000 was fully paid on 15 June 2018.

The Board proposed to make a distribution out of contributed
surplus account of HK$ cents 4.50 (equivalent to RMB cents
3.83) (2017: HK$ cents 4.42 cents (equivalent to RMB cents
3.54)) per ordinary share amounting to a total of
RMB180,990,000. The proposed distribution is based on
4,722,307,545 (2017: 3,917,570,961) shares issued as at 22
March 2019. The proposed final dividend is not reflected as a
dividend payable as of 31 December 2018, but will be recorded
as a distribution for the year ending 31 December 2019.

The proposed distribution out of contributed surplus account is
subject to the passing of an ordinary resolution for approving the
distribution of final dividend out by the shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on 27 May 2019.

13 RE (®)

HE_Z—tF+-_A=T—HILFENRH
R EAR¥138,682,000TERZE—N\FR
ATHB28URE -

EXREZEEHBRRELEREBER4.50
BEGEERARKESSID (T —+HF : 442
BILHERAREES549)) DR - 2458
A AR 180,990,0007T ° DK IR IE =
E-—AF=ZRA -+ _HWHEETKR®
4,722,307,545 % (=& —+t4F : 3,917,570,961
R)ETFE - MIRAREREL TR BE T —NF
TZA=+—HOEMRE  BRIHEEZE=
E-NF+ZA=+—HLEFEELINIIE -

EREEAARRKRELNNDIRAFRERER-F
—NFRA-TERBETHARRRRBFR
SRBMEBNRREHBRFELRYRE
DIREEBRBREK - TAMEE o



14 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 14 EEREAIRER

(A) DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (A) EEEHE
The remuneration of each director is set out below: LEENMESEFIWOT -
For the year ended 31 December 2018: BE_Z—N\F+_A=1+—HItFE:
Contribution

Salaries, to retirement
allowances and other Restricted

Fees  and bonus benefits share award Total
I& 2% BARHR PR e
we REAL REMER gl @zt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR ARETR ARETR

For the year ended BE-Z-N\%

31 December 2018 +-A=+—-HILEE
Executive directors HTES
Tian Ming M - 4,786 143 - 4,929
Wang Lei (¢) TZ() - 579 11 - 590
Shen Leying =2f - 4,033 117 - 4,150
Xie Yuanjian iz - 2,795 88 - 2,883
Zhou Qin IBE) - 3,426 47 - 3,473
Xiang Jiong () el - 1,731 76 - 1,807
Independent non-executive ~ BYFHTEES

directors
Xu Xiaonian TNE 300 - - - 300
Ding Yuan TiE 300 - - - 300
Lee Kwan Hung B3] 300 - - - 300
Non-executive directors FHTES
Zhou Yimin PR - - - - -

900 17,350 482 - 18,732

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

14 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 14 EERARER (#)

(Continued)
(A) DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (A) EEM<(#)
Contribution
Salaries,  to retirement
allowances and other Restricted
Fees and bonus benefits  share award Total
T%& - =28 HENEST PR
e RiEL  REMET RB1n 228 st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
For the year ended HZ-Z-+F
31 December 2017 TZRA=t-HLEE
Executive directors HITES
Tian Ming FH BF - 4,504 69 - 4,573
Xiang Jiong () [AIAA (f) - 2,994 75 - 3,069
Shen Leying e - 3,041 93 = 3,139
Xie Yuanjian aRE - 2,646 75 = 2,721
Zhou Qin Bk - 2,139 38 - 2,177

Independent non-executive B FHITESE

directors
Xu Xiaonian TN 300 - - - 300
Ding Yuan Tir 300 - = = 300
Lee Kwan Hung ) 300 - - - 300
Non-executive director FHITES
Zhou Yimin AR - - - - -

900 15,324 355 = 16,679




14 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 14 EERARER &)

(Continued)
(A) DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (A) EEME(#)
Aggregate emoluments
paid to or receivable by
Aggregate emoluments paid directors in respect of their
to or receivable by directors in other services in connection
respect of their services as directors, with the management of the
whether of the company or its affairs of the company or its
subsidiary undertaking subsidiary undertaking Total Total
ENFESHES ENFESHES
ERESEEMSAE ERESEEMESAE
(TR ARSHEKMEAR) (EREEARSMEAREER) et st
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
=F-N\F — =EF-N\F —F—tF =F-N\F —F—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARBT T AR®BTRT ARET T AR®TR ARET T

18,732 16,579 4,805 - 23,537 16,579
(B) DIRECTORS’ RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND (B) EEMENKREIRARLEATEF
TERMINATION BENEFITS
None of the directors received or will receive any retirement RAFE - BIEEEE WE G EE
benefits or termination benefits during the year (2017: fAIRRENEZEEAEMN(ZZE—+
Ditto). F MR -
(C) CONSIDERATION PROVIDED TO THIRD (C) BREHEESHREQE=FRUANK
PARTIES FOR MAKING AVAILABLE (i
DIRECTORS’ SERVICES
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company BHE_ZT—N\F+_A=+T—HLHF
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making B ARABERIEHEERB AT
available directors’ services (2017: Ditto). F=AEMNRE(ZE—LF - ER) -

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

14 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

14 EERTARES #)

(D) INFORMATION ABOUT LOANS, QUASI- (D) BEFLES HZEZZEESHBEE
LOANS AND OTHER DEALINGS IN FAVOR OF BERASHBANERN EERRH
DIRECTORS, CONTROLLED BODIES R ZHER
CORPORATE BY AND CONNECTED ENTITIES
WITH SUCH DIRECTORS
There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing MENES HSiEHEEE R
arrangements in favor of directors, controlled bodies ABIZBEANER EERANEMZHE
corporate by and controlled entities with such directors B (ZZ—+%F : 1BR) -

(2017: Ditto).
(E) Appointed as an executive director on 23 November 2018. (E) R—Z—N\FE+—A-+t=-HEZTA
BITES -
(F) Resigned on 23 November 2018. (F) RZZT—NE+—A-+=HEF-
(G) DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN (G) EERRE  THIEHNNERE

TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Group was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year (2017:
Nil).

ARRBELEAREXBER - M
AAFREEFEERAMEAAEAESER
RERKFANEME[HFENEAR
5 THRAEN(ZTE—LF &) -



15 FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND 15 AEREFMALIRESREEEN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS ¥t B
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the RAFE  KEBRUSZSHFMATEIETNSZ
Group for the year included four existing (2017: Three) directors —E—tF =) REESE  HES M
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in note 14D ITRRAR ©
14.
The emoluments of the remaining one (2017: Two) individual B2 \ER-_ZE—+F+-_A=+—H
during the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 were as HEE #1722 (CF—+tF : WE) ALH
follows: B
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BZE HE
—B-N\F —E—+F
+=ZA=+—-H +ZH=+—H
LEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Basic salaries, allowances and bonuses AEARTE - FRRIA 4,840 9,788
Contribution to retirement benefits schemes R F 5T 230 97 148
Restricted share award B 1) M % 1 22 B - -
4,937 9,936
The number of above remaining employees whose remuneration EHMAE TN AERGSEAN i EGEESH
fee within the following band was as follows: H :
Numbers of individuals
EBEHAE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
RMB3,000,000 to RMB4,000,000 AR #¥3,000,000TE
A 4,000,0007T - -
RMB4,000,000 to RMB5,000,000 AR¥4,000,000T2
AR 5,000,0007T 1 1
RMB5,000,000 to RMB6,000,000 AR¥5,000,000TE
AR % 6,000,000 7T - 1




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

15 FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND 15 IR FMALTREREEEMN
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS =)
(Continued)
The senior management's emoluments(excluding the five highest BE_Z—)\&k_F—+F+=-_A=+—H
paid individuals and directors) during the year ended 31 Jj;ﬁf CEREEBNTM(AERSEA
December 2018 and 2017 fell within the following bands: TREFRINETIIARIBEN

Numbers of individuals

EEHHE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

RMBO to RMB1,000,000 AR®OTLE

AR ¥ 1,000,000 7T 1 1
RMB1,000,000 to RMB2,000,000 AER#1,000,000 TE

AR 2,000,000 1 9
RMB2,000,000 to RMB3,000,000 AR 2,000,000 TE

A% 3,000,0007C 3 1
RMB3,000,000 to RMB4,000,000 AR 3,000,000 TE

AR ¥ 4,000,000 - -




16 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 16 REE QA TWER

For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BZE HE
—E2-N\F —F—+tF
+=ZHA=+—8B +ZA=+—H
LEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®ET T
At 1 January n—H—H 983,077 744,099
Additions: Ehn
— Additional investments in an — RIEBFZE N E]H
existing associate RIMEE 400 4,000
— Subsidiaries becoming associates — B RIK A8 E AR - 335,627
Share of net profit of associates (note 6)  FE{HEE & A T 4B F (MzE6) 408,854 169,453
Elimination of transactions with associates ¥ $8 Ed B 4 A A Y22 5 (46,418) (198,102)
Reversal of recognized share of net loss of  #[E] 2 FE R FE(G B2 N 5] R E5 18
associates 2,993 -
Dividends from associates KEBMENAAIRE (33,200) (72,000)
At 31 December R+-_A=+—H 1,315,706 983,077

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

16 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 16 REEQATINERS ®)
Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31 TYFEAAEERN _S—\EFE+_B=+—
December 2018 which, in the opinion of the directors, are HHEEZE AR MEZRRAASZEARIHAEE
material to the Group. The entities listed below have share capital BEEKNK "X BEEHEEERSAEER
consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the BEEALBRAKRA o MR SEMER I
Group. The country of incorporation or registration is also their BEHITBLSEWME - MBRKRLHIRFERER
principal place of business, and the proportion of ownership B ELBIFER] -

interest is the same as the proportion of voting rights held.

Place of
business/country Measurement
of incorporation % of ownership interest method Carrying amount
By
EMELER BEEE% FERE REE
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-\F  ZE-tF ZB-\F  ZTtF
+ZA=t-B +ZA=1-H +ZA=t-B +tZA=1-H
Nanjing Aojian Properties Co.,Ltd. BRARELEMRAR  Manland China 1297 12,97 Equity method 403,020 225,123
(‘Nanjing Aojian’) (TAmEE)) i BRA
Nanjing Xueheng Properties Co.,Ltd. HREEERARAR Mainland China 49.90 4990  Equity method 476,221 305,877
(‘Nanjing Xueheng’) (Tmef)) A BRE
Chengdu Chengfeng Enterprise RAHECEEEZE  Mainland China 33.00 3300  Equity method 198,784 214,389
Management and Consultant Limited ~~ ABA7) i BaE
(‘Chengdu Chengfeng’) %203
Immaterial associates (c) FEABERT(Q 237,681 237,688
Total interests in associates REE LRI GER 1,315,706 983,077
None of the Group’s associates has quoted price available. NEEEE AR W ENSRE -



16 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(A)

(B)

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES IN RESPECT OF ASSOCIATES

16 REIE NTMWEZ &)

(A)

BAREEQXRANAERIARE

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —F—+tF
+=A=t+-8 +-A=+-8
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT
Commitments HHE
— Commitment to pay up the — BN R B Ay R
subscription capital 14,589 -

SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FOR MATERIAL ASSOCIATES

The tables below provide summarized financial information
for those associates that are material to the Group. The
information disclosed reflects the amounts presented in the
financial statements of the relevant associates and not the
Group’s share of those amounts. They have been amended
to reflect adjustments made when using the equity method,
including fair value adjustments and modifications of
differences in accounting policies adopted.

(B)

ERBEQTANYBERHRE

TREJIHAEEBEA 2B E QAR
BEMBE - FAEEN R 2
NAEINP B RRAMZFIOEE - MIEAR
SEMALHABBE - RFEREE
A e RBR B EAMEZ HE
BREAEMN ST ERRERMEZ AR
EEHERER -
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16 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(B) SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FOR MATERIAL ASSOCIATES (Continued)

16

et

NEIWER &)

(B) EXABEQATANMBERBE &)

Nanjing Aojian Nanjing Xueheng Chengdu Chengfeng
ERRE BREH B
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
BN\ —T—+F “E-N\E “TtF “E-N\E “TtF
+=A=+-8 +ZA=f-8 +=A=+-B tZA=+-RA +=A=+-B TZA=t+-H
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FR ARBTIL ARBTR ARBTTL AR®FR ARBFIL
Current assets TEEE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRAEEEN 385,008 976,803 1,030,688 1,027,249 1,196,231 802,316
Other current assets HitnEEE 2,659,483 5,360,060 3,324,006 4,808,783 4,392,292 2,577,482
Total current assets TEHEELE 3,044,491 6,336,863 4,354,694 5,836,032 5,588,523 3,379,798
Non-current assets FRBEE 267 7,468 242 17,467 157,615 55,467
Current liabilities mEEE
Other current liabilties HEndas (1,002,823) (4,378,232) (3,375,274) (5,205,934) (5,056,977) (1,652,506)
Total current liabilities mERBEE (1,092,823) (4,378,232) (3,375,274) (5,205,934) (5,056,977) (1,652,508)
Non-current liabilties FRBafE
Financial liabilties SRERE
(excluding trade payables) (TREEMER) - - - - - (1,089,440)
Total non-current liabilities ErRBaEes - - - - - (1,069,440)
Net assets BEFE 1,951,935 1,966,099 979,662 647,565 689,161 713,319
The Group’s share in % REEESR% 12.97% 12.97% 49.90% 49.90% 33.00% 33.00%
The Group's share REEES 253,166 255,003 488,851 323,135 227,423 235,395
Adjustments BE 149,854 (29,880) (12,630) (17,258) (28,639) (21,000)
Carrying amount FRE 403,020 225,123 476,221 305,877 198,784 214,389
Revenue WA 5,168,289 - 2,106,612 - - -
Income tax expense FEHER (264,189) 4,058 (110,699) 6,041 11,024 27,594
Profit/{loss) for the year FEEF/(BR) 785,836 (12,175) 332,096 (18,233) (24,159) (82512
Adjustment HE 75,974 - 4,628 - (7,633) -
The Group's share REEES 177,807 (1,579) 170,344 (9,008) (15,605) (27,229)




16 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(C) INDIVIDUALLY IMMATERIAL ASSOCIATES
In addition to the interests in associates disclosed above,
the Group also has interests in a number of individually
immaterial associates that are accounted for using the
equity method.

16 REEZEQARNER ®)
(C) ERIEERBE QT
B ERBMB A ATERN AEE
TR S T E BB AL A R
25 DAERSE AR o

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
+=ZA=+—-HB +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Aggregate carrying amounts of individually & BI|FEE KB A A &Y
immaterial associates BRI ERRE 237,681 237,688
For the year ended
BE+-A=+—RHILLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+5F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT

Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of ~ ANEEFEGERIFEE KX
net profit of individually immaterial associates B4 /A 7);% 7 42 %8 76,218 207,359

(D) UNRECOGNIZED SHARE OF NET LOSS OF
ASSOCIATES

(D) REZERLEBENTFER

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
+=ZA=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETFT
Aggregate unrecognized share of RIERFE(LHE AR FBEERE
net loss of associates 31,388 50,197
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17 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 17 REELENELR
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
Bz HE
—E-NF Tt
+=A=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
LEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBT T
At 1 January, as previously stated R—A—H  ZREL7 1,885,436 261,610
Adjustment on adoption of HKFRS 15, ERME B IS REERFE 155
net of tax (note 2.2.1) EL AR - MBRFHIE (M1FE2.2.1) (165) -
At 1 January, after the adoption of R—A—HB  RERAEBTIE®RS
HKFRS 15 HRE 155K 2% 1,885,271 261,610
Additions: #hn -
— Additional investments in existing — RIRBEEDENEINGE
joint ventures 669,792 1,382,121
— Subsidiaries becoming joint — fBRRKAEELE
ventures (note 38) (Fft5£38) 303,877 234,721
Disposals: HE -
— Disposal of joint ventures in — HENBARMNEERE
subsidiaries (143,216) =
— Partial disposal of shares of joint — oL ESLERERD
ventures (24,000) (24,850)
Share of net profit of joint ventures (note 6) JERAEDEMEFFEE (HE6) 257,991 21,881
Elimination of transactions with joint ventures ~ ¥144 814 L EHT 5 (196,367) 16,262
Reversal of recognized share of net loss of BOEBmREGEEhFFERE
joint ventures 64,048 =
Dividends from joint ventures REGEDLEMIRE (239,724) -
Exchange difference b H ZRE 18,375 (6,309)
At 31 December W+—_HA=+—8 2,596,047 1,885,436




17 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 17 REELENER &)

Set out below are joint ventures of the Group as at 31 December TXEARAERR -_ZE—\F+_A=+—
2018 which, in the opinion of the directors, are material to the HHSEhE MEZRRAAZEEERYHAE
Group. The country of incorporation or registration is also their BEEKX - Mk MERTAREETEE
principal place of business, and the proportion of ownership EH B MR A EZ B EREH I FE
interest is the same as the proportion of voting rights held. [A] °
Place of
business/
country of Measurement
incorporation % of ownership interest method Carrying amount
BENY/
B azES BEER% HERE REE
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-0\f “TtF “B-N\f “ZtF
+=A=+-8B +ZA=t+-8 TZA=+-B tZA=+-H
Zhongcheng Qiannian Investment HEPHESRESL  Manland China 50.00 50.00  Equity method 346,561 335,931
Company (Limited Partnership) (BRAE(HHiEa])) PEAL %
(“Zhongcheng Qiannian”)
Jiaxin Langda Il Investment Company ZEFE_FIKEAE  Manland China 29,98 29.98  Equity method 604,352 513,446
(Limited Partnership) X (BRAY) REAH Emk
(“Jiaxin Langda II") (et )
LS-NJ Port Imperial JV LLC LS-NJ Port Imperial JV us 51.00 51.00  Equity method 358,566 363,980
(‘LS-NJ Port”) LLC(TLS-NJ Port])) xH Eimx
Immaterial joint ventures (d) FERRERE(D) 1,286,569 672,079
Total interests in joint ventures RASMENEREE 2,596,048 1,885,436

Bt
i
J i)
op
S
B
M
'\é‘/
=)
2
e
B
3

None of the Group’s joint ventures has quoted price available.
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17 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 17 REELENER @)
(A) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT (A) BEREELENERERIAERE
LIABILITIES IN RESPECT OF JOINT
VENTURES

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
—E-NE —E—+tF
+=ZA=+—-8 +=-—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBT T

Commitments HE
— Commitment to pay up the — B RIBE AR EE
subscription capital 1,738,467 -

(B) UNRECOGNIZED COMMITMENTS TO (B) WEBEETCXERERERNAKRE

ACQUIRE JOINT VENTURE PARTNERS’ BRI

OWNERSHIP INTERESTS

As of 31 December 2018, the Group has commitments to RZE—)N\F+_A=1+—8  ~"&EH

acquire certain joint venture partners’ ownership interests AEBBEEDNE T IEHEBIATSER

in joint ventures at market price in the future upon fulfiling WSS ENE S PELSBHEEER -

predetermined conditions.

These unrecognized commitments are disclosed below ZERERAERTXHEE  mABAR
and were not recognized by the Group due to uncertainties EBHER RATSNR —IEKZEIWIER
of one or more particular events in the future which are not RE BT R IR BT RERMELE o

controlled by the Group.



17 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 17 REELENER @)
(B) UNRECOGNIZED COMMITMENTS TO (B) WBEELXERETRENRE
ACQUIRE JOINT VENTURE PARTNERS’ AR (E)
OWNERSHIP INTERESTS (Continued)

% of

% of ownership
ownership interest
interest held committed to
by the Group acquire
rEE A

BFENES WREER
BRI EEE DL

AR EEMEREARA A
Nanjing Langrun Real Estate

Development Co., Ltd.* 50.10% 49.90%
BEGHEAR XLIREBR AT
Hefei Wanxin Cultural Investment Co., Ltd. * 25.00% 24.00%
HMNARERERAT
Suzhou Langhong Property Limited* 51.00% 49.00%
MINERFEXFR AR
Hangzhou Langping Property Co., Ltd. * 50.00% 50.00%

E R X B ABRAR
Chengdu Langhui Corporate Management

and Consulting Co., Ltd. * 50.00% 50.00%
KR ERR AR
Chengdu Shanggao Investment

Co., Limited* 50.00% 50.00%
EEEREHERERR AR
Chongaing Xingde Real Estate

Development Co. Ltd. * 30.00% 70.00%

English translations are for identification purpose only * EEREBBEEMREA -

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR
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17 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
(C) SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FOR MATERIAL JOINT VENTURES

17 REELENER &)
(C) ERAGEEMNIBERHE

t2A=+-B +t=A=+-8

t2AZt+-8 +ZA=1-A

Zhongcheng Qiannian Jiaxin Langda Il LS-NJ Port
REES ERRE-R LS-NJ Port
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
BN\ “T—tF ZE-N\f S “E-N\E “TtF

t2A=+-8 t=A=+-4

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FR ARBFIL ARBTR ARBTTL AR®FR ARBFIL
Current assets TEEE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLEEN 7,438 17,830 345,983 17,431 54,679 101,418
Other current assets HitmeEE 731,257 629,320 4,915,783 1,600,550 - 1,123,859
Total current assets mEHEEME 738,695 647,150 5,261,766 1,617,981 54,679 1,225,277
Non-current assets ERBEE - 24,850 18,566 94,642 1,012,518 10,180
Current liabilties mEEE

Other current liabilties HEndas (13,613) (139) (2,445,807) - (30,006) (127,840)
Total current liabilities mERBEE (13,613) (139) (2,445,897) - (30,006) (127,840)

Non-current liabilties FRBafE

Financial liabilities SRERE
(excluding trade payables) (T REEFER) - = (750,000) - - -
Other non-current liabilities EERgas - - - - (404,656) (412,075)
Total non-current liabilties FrRBEEAR - - (750,000 = (404,656) (412,075)
Net assets EEFE 725,082 671,861 2,084,435 1,712,623 632,535 695,542
The Group’s share in % REEEL% 50.00% 50.00% 29.98% 29.98% 51.00% 51.00%
The Group’s share KEEREMN 362,541 335,931 624,914 513,444 322,593 354,726
Adjustment BE (15,980) - (20,562) 2 35,973 9,254
Carrying amount FEfA 346,561 335,931 604,352 513,446 358,566 363,980
Revenue WA 93,987 - 14 - 492,937 -
Income tax expense FEHER (885) = 13,083 888 - =
Profit/(loss) for the year FERH/(BR) 53,221 (139) (53,861) (2,655) 18,154 (4,684)
Adjustment HE (795) - (8,759) - - -
The Group's share AEEEG 25,815 (70) (24,907) (796) 9,259 (2,389




17 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
(D) INDIVIDUALLY IMMATERIAL JOINT

VENTURES

In addition to the interests in joint ventures disclosed above,
the Group also has interests in a number of individually
immaterial joint ventures that are accounted for using the

equity method.

7 UHEREAR -

31 December

17 REELENER &)
(D) ERIEEXREGEDE

B EX BN EREERI
MEAETERBEE

AEE
BEMEME

31 December

2018 2017
—E-N\F T —tF
+=A=+-8B +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREFT
Aggregate carrying amounts of individually BRIFEEREEDER
immaterial joint ventures BRERE 1,286,569 672,079

For the year

For the year

ended ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
= H=E
—E-N\F —T—+tF
+=ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
LFEE LEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share REBEGLERNFEEREE
of net profit of individually immaterial EFNRLRE
joint ventures 247,824 25,198

(E) UNRECOGNIZED SHARE OF NET LOSS OF

JOINT VENTURES

31 December

(E) REZBLSLELERER

31 December

2018 2017
—E-NF —ZT—+tF
+=—A=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Aggregate unrecognized share of net AERERE LD
loss of joint ventures FE BB 25,947 24,460

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR
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18

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held certain properties
located in Mainland China. Changes to the carrying amount of
investment properties in the consolidated balance sheet are

summarized as follows:

—NFt+=R=

T-RALFE

18 REMYZE
R-F—\F+-A=+—B  ~EERHAEf
RABENETHE - REAEERBERNRE
M RIREEZ BN T

For the year ended
BE+-A=+—HLEE

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBT T

At 1 January n—H—H 319,830 290,920
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (a) B 8 T EE « T M&E (@ 60,780 -
Transfer from properties held for sale (b) B AFEHEYE () 117,657 =
Fair value gain NABENE 7,363 28,910
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 505,630 319,830

For the year ended 31 December 2018, rental income and
operating expense arising from leasing of investment properties

are as follows:

BE_ZT-)/\FT-_A=+—HLFE BHE
%xéIE%%EEE’\J@&H&U\&%%E%&HT :

For the year ended
BEt+t-A=+—-HLEE

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

—B-\F  —T—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Rental income He WA 31,662 26,463

Direct operating expense from properties REAEAMSRANDESN

that generate rental income BEEKEER 10,977 5,700
Direct operating expense from properties RETELEHESWARED

that did not generate income BEEEEER 1,471 -




18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The Group’s rights on investment properties at its carrying

18 REMWZE @)
AREERRE MY ENERIREEAED 70

amount is analyzed as follows: T
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-NF —E—F
+=B=+—-H8 +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBT T
In Mainland China, held on: TEHREER
Lease of 40-70 years AZET70FHHEE 505,630 319,830
(A) In June 2018, the Group commenced the leasing of an (A) —ZE—N\FXA AEEETHIEM
apartment building (Nanjing Huafei Apartment) located in RABI#HEE AN ABEF (BRER
Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, Mainland China, which AE)MAR  YRAREEAAE - Bt -
represents a change in use of the apartment building. $$lﬁ"’\%EET@JF Ik BE
Accordingly the Group reclassified the apartment building DEEREEME -REBRER -9
from property, plant and equipment to investment property. % ZEEBEEAAEBESIAARE
As at the transfer date, the carrying amount and the fair 41,427,0007C( B #%19) & A R ¥
value of the property is RMB41,427,000 (note 19)and 60,780,0007C - RER HRAKREEEAR
RMB60,780,000 respectively. The difference between the AREERAZEZBOFAEMEZERE -
carrying amount and the fair value at the transfer date was
credited to other comprehensive income.
(B) In September 2018, the Group commenced the leasing of B) —E—N\FhA xEEEFEH—EN

a commercial building (Landsea Neighborhood Union)
located in Wuxi, Jiangsu Province, Mainland China, which
represents a change in use of the commercial building.
Accordingly the Group reclassified the commercial building
from properties held for sale to investment property. As at
the transfer date, the carrying amount and the fair value of
the property is RMB117,657,000 and RMB117,700,000
(note 21) respectively. The difference between the carrying
amount and the fair value at the transfer date was credited
as fair value gain in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

HEZEREERAT / —F

RAPBII#E EHNEEET BIFHE
E)NAR YHMOBEHEET -
o AEBREEETHEEHEDSR
BHOBEEREEME - RERER
MEZHRHEEARBEIIRARE
117,657,000 7T & A R # 117,700,000 7T
(fifzE21) - REEERA BBREEEARE
BERZEZBEFAREEREARERAZ
NABERNE -
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18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(C)

(D)

(E)

Investment properties were valued at 31 December 2018
by an independent professionally qualified valuer, Jones
Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited,
who is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and
has appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the
valuation of similar properties.

As at 31 December 2018, investment properties with
carrying amount of RMB401,210,000 (2017:
RMB319,830,000) was pledged as collateral for the
Group’s borrowings (note 29 (a) & (g)).

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

Independent valuations of the Group’s investment
properties were performed by an independent and
professionally qualified valuer to determine the fair value of
investment properties as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, all of the Group’s
investment properties were within level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy as valuations were arrived at by reference to
certain significant unobservable inputs. There were no
transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group’s investment properties were valued at 31
December 2018 by an independent professionally qualified
valuer who holds a recognized relevant professional
qualification and has recent experiences in the locations
and segments of the investment properties being valued.
For all investment properties, their current use equates to
the best use.

The Group’s finance department includes a team that
reviews the valuations performed by the independent valuer
for financial reporting purposes. Discussions of valuation
processes and results were held between the finance
department and the valuer at least once every six months.

18 BEMYE 2

(C)

(D)

(E)

Tﬁﬁ’l‘f—ﬂ%%ﬂﬂ§%I§¥A§T%1E{Eﬁﬂi1ﬂlﬂ

BITEEFERFEABERARR-F
—}\¢+ A *‘f’—EIEETﬂEﬁ ' ﬁﬂ;
BITERFHERERBRARIEER

EMM2ees YRKAEEERLHESR
BLUMEGRENIHER -

R-ZT—N\E+-_A=+—8 KREE
B AR 401,210,000 T (= F—+F ¢
AR #319,830,00070) I E MM EE
BRERASEERGERNER G (T
29(a) & (9)) °

NREBEEER
AEENREUENECHBLIERAE
W%ﬁﬁﬂitﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬁ ’ D/{?ﬁi&%q'l“_%
MER—_FT-N\FER_FT—LtF+-A
=t+t—HWAREE-

RAAEESEETEAT AR ARE
‘’/E R-E-N\ER_ZF—+F
TZA=+—H XEERBEREMLY
EOBANBEBANE=H -FAF
- ZR=ZAMAEER

EEBY L ERE
AEENREENER T N\F+=
=t BRBUEEXABERMGERNE
TME - ZAEMEAERERIERE
% HAEENREEMEELEM
BRI A O REERR - BRIMAR
EMYERHEERRERE

REBESBEPIEBERER B ER
B E1E - AL BT T5ER 3R o BT H5 BT
&%@Eﬂi/‘_\ﬂﬂf—’“;ﬁiﬁ—?’ﬂ@% :
J’/(u—j 1ETE/IIL$E&



18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(E) FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Continued)

Valuation processes of the Group (Continued)
At the end of each reporting period, finance department:

° Verifies all major inputs in the independent valuation
report;

o Assesses property valuations movements when
compared to the prior year valuation report;

o Holds discussions with the independent valuer.

Valuation techniques

In valuing the properties, income approach and discounted
cash flow analysis (“DCF analysis”) had been adopted by
the Group. When using income approach, the Group takes
into account the net rental income of the properties derived
from its existing leases and/or achievable in the existing
market with due allowance for the reversionary income
potential of the leases, which have been then capitalized to
determine the fair value at an appropriate capitalization
rate. DCF analysis involves discounting future cash flow of
the property to its present value by using an appropriate
discount rate with due allowance for the reversionary net
income of the property, which is capitalized with a terminal
capitalization rate. In the course of valuation, the Group
assumed the property is available for lease. With regards to
the existing market conditions, the incomes and expenses,
stabilization period and rental growth for each component
of the property are estimated to reflect the property
performance in the market. Where appropriate, reference
has also been made to the comparable sale transactions
as available in the relevant market.

18 BEMYE»)

(E)

HEZEREERAT / —F

[RBEEERE)
FEBA G ETRE (&)
BT RRPIN AR E K

s BEEBUMERSHEZMEEHA
£ ¢

o TEMEEERS E—FEEER
SHRT)

o  EBY{HEREITAWR °

1818 75 %

HYRETHER  AKRERARAE
RRERFEE - RARNAER - AF
HestkARAANMERE,XRE
BhSTARSNMERSKRAFER
YERBENERBERSFHIEE B
B BREZES KRR FRZEENENR
LR ER(CABEAR(EE - BER
FREAESERABERRREEYERARK
ReRneMREHRE  ARMENE
BERAFRFELEERE  ERAKK
BEREEITERE - EEERES
AEBEBEERMFAHEHE - RIS
AERMSRR - WX REMEME
FHMoNESER  URBRYEET S
EORE - ERERTSL2EHETS
EERTHEIHER 5 o
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18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 18 REMYME »#)
(E) FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Continued) (E) 2AEBEREBRE)
Valuation techniques (Continued) B Z ()
Information about fair value measurements using significant BERAFEREATEBERGASIBEETH
unobservable inputs (level 3) is as follows: AREBEHFZ(E=F)NERNAT

Unobservable inputs Relationship of

Valuation Unobservable (probability-weighted unobservable
Description Fair value at technique(s) inputs average) inputs to fair value
TUBRRAAHE TUBRBAYE
i DABE fHELE TUBREAHE (ngFiaE) HANBENBE
31Dec2018  31Dec2017 2018 2017
ZE-N\E  ZETtfF
+=A=t-8 TZA=1—H ZE-\E ZZ—tF
(RMB'000) (RMB'000)
(AE¥Fn) (ARETR)
Landsea Tower- 323,570 319,830  Termand reversionary  Term yields 5.00% 5.50%  The higher the term yields,
commercial building method the lower the fair value
BAE - FHRESA FHKRE FREREER - AL EEWE
BRET
Reversionary yields 5.50% 450%  The higher the reversionary
yields, the lower the fair value
ERlEE ESNEREE M ERLE
Viacancy rate 5.00% 6.00%  The higher the vacancy rate,
the lower the fair value
ZEX ZERHS  AABEEE
Average daily rental 289 320  The higher the average daily rental
per square meter per square meter,
the higher the fair value
YRR FEAATHARGES -
THERES DABEES
Nanjing Huafei 64,360 na  DCF analysis Term yields 6.00% n/a  The higher the term yields,
Apartment the lower the fair value
HRERAS TER  RenfiE FRRE TER  FHlERES  MEELE
Vacancy rate 10.00% n/a  The higher the vacancy rate,
the lower the fair value
ZEX TER FEXER ALEEVE
Average daily rental 347 n/a  The higher the average daily rental
per square meter per square meter,
the higher the fair value
YRR TER  BYARATHEHGHR
THRER NABEER



18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18 REMYE#)

(E) FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Continued) (E) PAEBEEBRZ)
Valuation techniques (Continued) EEGE(E)
Unobservable inputs Relationship of
Valuation Unobservable (probability-weighted unobservable
Description Fair value at technique(s) inputs average) inputs to fair value
TURERAYE TIERRAYE
g DAERE fhEHE TOBRRAUE (T 8=) HANBENEE
31Dec2018 31 Dec 2017 2018 2017
—B-0\F Tt
+ZA=t-B +ZA=t-H “E-N\F ZE—+tF
(RMB’000) (RMB'000)
(AE#TR) (ARETT)
Landsea Neighbour- 117,700 nfa  Termandreversionary  Term yields 5.00% n/a  The higher the term yields, the
hood Union method lower the fair value
ReBEe TER  FRRESE FHRE TER FHYERds AMEERE
Reversionary yields 5.50% n/a  The higher the reversionary
yields, the lower the fair value
BEkRE TER EERERER  AMEELE
Vacancy rate 5.00% n/a  The higher the vacancy rate,
the lower the fair value
TEX TER ZEXHR - DABEME
Average daily rental 1.45 n/a  The higher the average daily rental
per square meter per square meter,
the higher the fair value
BERR TER  BYAATHEHGHR
THREE NABEES

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE_-ZF

—N\F+ZA=t—RALFE

19 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19 FEE - TRKREZE

Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor
Buildings  improvements equipment vehicles Total
HERT FE - #E
BF £ RBARE RE @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2017 R-Z2—t&-F—H
Cost B - 13,843 23,964 3,021 40,828
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTE - (11,673) (6,353) (1,732) (19,758)
Net carrying amount REFE - 2,170 17,611 1,289 21,070
Year ended 31 December BZE-Z—t&§

2017 +tZA=+-HLEE
Opening net carrying amount FUEMFE - 2,170 17,611 1,289 21,070
Additions i 449,074@ 174,3370) 22,983 365 646,759
Depreciation nE - (5,213) (5,632) (413) (11,258)
Disposals HeE - - (23) - (23)
Exchange difference EHEER - (61) (232) (10) (303
Closing net carrying amount FREMFE 449,074 171,233 34,707 1,231 656,245
At 31 December 2017 —EB—t&

+=-A=+—H
Cost x 449,074 188,180 46,919 3,386 687,559
Accumulated depreciation ZEHITE - (16,947) (12,212) (2,155) (31,314)
Net carrying amount REFE 449,074 171,233 34,707 1,231 656,245
Year ended 31 December BZz-8-N\¥

2018 +=-BA=+—-H

LEE
Opening net carrying amount FONREHE 449,074 171,233 34,707 1,231 656,245
Acquisition of subsidiaries BB BB A 7] (B 37)

(note 37) 325,881 - - - 325,881
Additions 0 100,215 582,8690) 26,501 569 710,154
Depreciation e (1,791) (44,556) (9,667) (1,059) (57,073)
Disposals of subsidiaries (note 38) &Mt B A7) (Fff £ 38) (325,880) (34,045) (146) - (360,071)
Disposals HE - - 1) - (1)
Transfer to investment properties ~ BB A 1 H2

(note 18) (Fft5E18) (41,427) - - = (41,427)
Exchange difference ERZET - - 970 (95) 875
Closing net carrying amount FREMEFE 506,072 675,501 52,354 646 1,234,573
At 31 December 2018 R-B-N\F

+=B=+—-H
Cost B 507,863 737,004 74,233 3,860 1,322,960
Accumulated depreciation ZEtiE (1,791) (61,50) (21,879) (3,214) (88,387)
Net carrying amount REFE 506,072 675,501 52,354 646 1,234,573




19 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(@)

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
acquired two buildings for self-use and management which
both located in Shanghai at the cost of RMB322,960,000
and RMB126,114,000 respectively. As of 31 December
2018, the Group has obtained the title certificates for the
two buildings. One of the buildings with a carrying amount
of RMB175,389,000 has been put into use and another
one was still under decoration and not yet ready for use as
at 31 December 2018.

Additions of leasehold improvements were mainly
decoration costs on leased properties to be used as long-
term rental apartments.

As at 31 December 2018, property, plant and equipment
with carrying amount of RMB502,576,000 (2017: Nil) was
pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings (note 29).

19 FHE  ITHRERE @)

@)

HEz-_Z—+tF+-A=+—HLHF
B ASBWERELR EENE AR
EBEF KA AEARK
322,960,0007C & A R ¥ 126,114,000
Lo RZE—NF+=ZA=+—HB &K
EBEREMERF  ERERE - —
% B T (B A R % 175,389,000 7T #9 #& F
KEBRAER S EFEETEE
R_ZE—N\F+_A=+—BNRHEHE
}EH °

HEBFRENENEIZ/HEEMED
KHKA - BRMFEKREREAE -

RZZE-N\F+ZA=+—0H " KHEAE
BANR502,576,000 T ( ZF—+4F
E)NTHE - TRERESEIFIEAR
SEERSERAER R (FE29) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

20 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20 B EE
Intangible
assets
RMB’000
ARETT
At 1 January 2018 R=-B-N\E—H—H
Opening net carrying amount FHEREFE =
Additions — internal development () RNE — NHFHZE @) 2,279
Amortization charge o3| -
Closing net carrying amount FRIREFE 2,279
At 31 December 2018 R=Z-NF+=A=+—H
Cost BN 2,279
Accumulated amortization RETH#EE -
Net carrying amount BREFE 2,279
(@) The Group internally designed softwares further to be used @ ATEBEANDBHEBRGKARERER
in its long-term rental apartment business. As of 31 BEK -R-_TE—\F+=-_A=+—8H
December 2018, the development is still in progress and DIERZ - MARAGER -

not yet ready for use.



21 PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 21 BEHEWE
Analysis of properties held for sale is as follows: BIEHEMENITAT :

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
+=A=+—R +t=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARBT T

Properties held for sale: FHESHEME -
— Mainland China — FEFE R 882,923 830,982
— Us — X - 20,038
882,923 851,020
Less: provision for decline in the value of B FEHE M EEE T REE
properties held for sale (6,042) (8,189)
876,881 847,831
Movements of properties held for sale are as follows: BIEHEHEMENESHNT ¢

For the year ended
BE+=-BA=1+—HLFE

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

As at 1 January R—H—H 851,020 397,490
Transfer from properties under #YaREREHE

development (note 23) (fF5E23) 4,684,794 4,987,120
Transfer to investment properties (note 18) EREIRE MY E (KFE18) (117,657) =
Cost of property development FEiERE RIEE KA

and sales (note 9) (BF5E9) (4,535,234) (4,533,590)
As at 31 December Rn+—_A=+—8H 882,923 851,020

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE_-ZF

—N\F+ZA=t—RALFE

21 PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (Continued)
All of the properties held for sale are within normal operating
cycle and hence included under current assets. The amounts of

properties held for sale expected to be recovered after more than
one year is RMB67,083,000 (2017: RMB31,060,000).

Movements of provision for decline in the value of properties held

for sale are as follows:

21 HEHEWE @
FTERIEHEMEIRNERCERBRNIFS
WHERENEE - THEIB N BB —F U E M
TEHEMX B A AR 67,083,000t (=ZF
—+& : AR¥31,060,0007T) °

For the year ended
BE+-A=+—RHILLEE

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

—E-N\F —tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBT T

As at 1 January »—HA—H 3,189 2,157
Provision during the year FREME 2,853 1,032
As at 31 December R+—A=+—8 6,042 3,189

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recognized
impairment losses of RMB2,853,000 (2017: RMB1,032,000) on

properties held for sale (note 9).

As at 31 December 2018, properties held for sale with carrying
amount of RMB52,630,000 (2017: RMB526,511,000) were
mortgaged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings (note 29).

E_T - \FTZA=T—HIEFE &
EfBFEHEEMERRBEEEAREK
2,853,000 (=& —t 4 : AR¥1,032,000
7o) (BF3E9) °

R-ZBE—-N\E+-_A=+—8 " FEEAAR
#52,630,000C( —Z FE — EF: AR ¥
526,511,000 7T ) KIS {ESHE M E B IR BIERAR
S EEUS BRI &R (T 29) -



22 INVENTORIES 2 B

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
—E-N\F T+ F
+=A=+—-8 +=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Decoration materials E Rt 116,561 52,069
The cost of inventories included in cost of property development BE-_Z—N\EFE+=-_A=F+—HILEE "t A
and sales amounted to RMB119,830,000 for the year ended 31 EERBERBEXRKANEFZERASARE
December 2018 (2017: RMB4,788,000) (note 9). 119,830,000t( = & — £ F£: AR %

4,788,0007T) (Fi7£9) »

23 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 23 HARPEHE
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—B-N\E TR
+=A=+-A +-A=+-=
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBET T

Properties under development located in: FZEh EERIR
— Mainland China — BB A 4,506,998 3,277,259
—Us — X 4,184,601 3,381,623
8,691,599 6,658,882
Less: provision for decline in the value of J FES R R EEE N B
properties under development (3,020) -
8,688,579 6,658,882
Amount comprises: SRIBBIE -

— Land payments — TR 4,824,473 3,849,021
Leasehold land, Mainland China Fh B A St - 3 {5F R A 3,029,651 2,179,574
Freehold land, US EBIK A FERE L 1,794,822 1,669,447

— Development expenditures
and improvements — B M e RS 3,071,764 2,097,565

— Interest capitalized — FBEXRL 795,362 712,296

8,691,599 6,658,882

BEgeEEARAT / —F/\FFE \ 2565



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

23 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 23 MARPEHE®)
(Continued)
Movements of properties under development are as follows: R RMENESHMT ¢
For the year For the year
ended ended

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

8= BE
—E-N\F —E—+tF
t=A=+—-8B +=A=+—H
LFE HEE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBT T

As at 1 January w—HA—H 6,658,882 10,379,261
Additions N 4,787,294 5,958,140
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) U B BT B X =) (Bt £ 37) 2,692,768 =
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) HEMT B A T (FiE38) (762,551) (4,691,399)
Transfer to properties held for sale (note 21)  #EB ZIH{EHEE WS (FIsE21) (4,684,794) (4,987,120)
As at 31 December n+—_A=+—H 8,691,599 6,658,882
All of the properties under development are within normal FIEREREEINEERLERBAREE
operating cycle and hence included under current assets. The WYERENE E o TREI RN HRE —F R THFH
amount of properties under development expected to be B R EHRE A AR 1,660,010,0007T (=
completed after more than one year is RMB1,660,010,000 (2017: T—+F : AR¥3,005,604,0007T) ° %A
RMB3,005,694,000). The remaining balance is expected to be B —F AT ZFNIE °

completed within one year.

As at 31 December 2018, properties under development with —T—-N\&+=H :+— B REHEAARE
carrying amount of RMB3,0383,882,000 (2017: 303388200071(— —tF: AR
RMB2,138,953,000) were mortgaged as collateral for the 2,138,953,000 7T) KB % R B i E IR IB1E R AR
Group’s borrowings (note 29). SEMNEFUER R (HFE29) -



23 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

(Continued)

On 11 October 2017, certain subsidiary of the Group signed an
agreement with a third party at a consideration of
RMB869,586,000 to sell a parcel of leasehold land located in
Tianjin, Mainland China. As at 31 December 2018,
RMB600,000,000 had been received and were recorded as
contract liabilities, related leasehold land with carrying amount of
RMB194,379,000 was pledged for the third party’s borrowing.
The disposal of the leasehold land has not been completed as at
31 December 2018.

Certain subsidiary of the Group located in US entered into sell
and buy-back agreements with a third party, whereby properties
under development were sold and the Group has the option to
repurchase the properties under development on a
predetermined schedule at a nominated value. Such properties
under development are not derecognized, considering the
borrowing substance of the arrangements. However, the asset is
restricted under the agreement as the title of freehold land has
been transferred to the third party. As at 31 December 2018,

properties under this restriction amounted to US$66,254,000
(equivalent to RMB454,713,000) (2017: US$104,656,000
(equivalent to RMB683,843,000)), and related borrowing
amounted to US$41,667,000 (equivalent to RMB285,967,000)
(2017: US$41,374,000 (equivalent to RMB270,345,000)) (note
29).

23 FRHPEME®)

RZTB—tF+A+—RH A5£E—HKNBR
AE-FBE=Z2FFTHEZ URE
869,586,000 JT i & — $R iz 7 A1 B KR HY + 3
FRE RZT—N\F+ZA=1+—0 BIK
HY A R # 600,000,000t ABRASKHAERE
BEEAEEBEAARY 194,379,000 tH A BB
ETMERZE=FTEREERR - ZHET
HEZTER -_Z—N\F+_A=+—HH*%
SERK ©

BAREEEBNBARE—BE=FFIULE
RERBELH BUtRAEPEHERLE LR
EEBREEEREREACEIRRAREBEZ
REREHE BHRZETREHERTEOE
FUEEMEBRUETER ° AT - BRKAERE
THEEEZE=H WMEEASZHER
e RZZTE—N\F+-_A=+—8 ' JUREH
2 E M EB{E 66,254,000 T (HENARE
454,713,0007%) (ZE —+t 4 : 104,656,000 3
TL(HEE M A R % 683,843,000t )) © & 1HES
f& M B/41,667,000% (B E R AR K
285,967,00070) (ZZF —+4F : 41,374,000
TT(HBER AR 270,345,0007T) ) (HfE29) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 24 SEE3MEmI A
The Group hold the following financial instruments as at the AEBRUTEEEHFHE TSI A :
respective balance sheet date as follows:

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
—2-N\F —E—+tF
+=ZA=+—-8 +=—A=+—H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M5 AR¥T T AREBFIT
Financial assets* £RTA*
Financial assets at amortised cost BREEKAGTECEREE
Trade receivables FEU AR R 25 507,708 629,462
Amounts due from related parties FE UL B S 5 IR 25 2,353,533 2,930,361
Amounts due from JE M FE47E Il 1 A 2 IR
non-controlling interests 25 514,196 571,500
Other receivables E b B IR 25 300,875 271,500
Deposits for purchase of land U BE t iR & 25 240,262 212,125
Restricted cash and cash ZRERSUARIRE K
and cash equivalents ReEEY 27 5,947,255 3,623,787
9,863,829 8,238,735
Financial assets at fair value through BARBEFABSZEMEE
profit or loss 26 176,809 -
Financial liabilities A= =R
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REENATE 2 e RAE
Trade and other payables** JE AR BR R N L A AT 28 9,283,959 6,509,619
Borrowings & 29 7,024,595 5,429,415

16,308,554 11,939,034

* See note 2.2 for details about the impact from changes in accounting * SR E SN EFBENKIE2.2 -
policies.
- Excluding non-financial liabilities * TRIEESHARE -
The Group’s exposure to various risks associated with the AEEAZERSR T ANZERRNHK TS
financial instruments is disclosed in note 3. The maximum BT o MEARFAZHNEERR LR A LME
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the BERMEENREME -
carrying amount of each class of financial assets mentioned
above.



25 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 25 BURRREMERR AARK

PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS Be
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
+=ZA=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREET T
Included in non-current assets: SAFERBEE -
Prepayments AN
— Prepayments for acquisition — WENB AR TENR
of subsidiaries 3,539 55,539
— Value added tax (“VAT”) to be offset (b) — FIRINEET (o) - 1,000
3,539 56,539
Amounts due from related parties (note 39)  FEUk EERE 5 318 (FiEE 39) 1,631,495 1,370,535
Less: provision for bad debt (note 3.1 (b) (i) 5 : ZEEREE (M EE3.1 (b) (i) (16,315) -
1,615,180 1,370,535
Amounts due from non-controlling JE U R Il M AE 255X TE (d)
interests (d) 515,965 =
Less: provision for bad debt (note 3.1 (o) (i) & : LR (FFEE 3.1 (b) (i) (5,160) -
510,805 -
Other receivables H e U R
— Lendings to third parties (e) — ME=FEHOEK () 27,652 113,460
— Deposits for property maintenance (g) — MIELEIL L (9 12,385 12,385
40,037 125,845
Less: provision for bad debt (note 3.1 (o) (i) & : BEEREHE (BFEE3.1 (b) (i) (1,116) (558)
38,921 125,287
2,168,445 1,652,361

BEEeEEARAT / —FT/\FFE \ 269
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

25 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 25 FEWERARREMER FBAARKE
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued) BE e

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+tF

+=A=+-8 +=A=+—-§H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBT T

Included in current assets: FTAMBEE :
Trade receivables (a) FEUBR K (a)
— Related parties (note 39) — B85 (M93E39) 335,294 223,651
— Third parties —%=5h 185,927 411,153
521,221 634,804
Less: provision for bad debt B AR
— Related parties (note 3.1 (b) (i) — RAE 5 (B9RE3.1 (b) (i) (3,353) =
— Third parties (note 3.1 (b) () — =75 (H3£3.1 (b) () (10,160) (5,342)
(13,513) (5,342)
507,708 629,462
Prepayments TEfTR
— Prepaid taxes (b) — FAfIHIIE () 177,738 139,534
— Prepaid VAT and other surcharges (b) — TAfTISER R EMMTINE (b) 208,947 152,596
— Prepayments for rental fee (o) — BNHEESEA () 309,131 59,916
— Prepayments for land bidding — ARt T HIRe 89,439 -
— Other prepayments — EMFERR 139,716 22,616
924,971 374,662
Amounts due from related parties (note 39)  FEU AR /5 =18 (FiEE39) 745,811 1,659,826
Less: provision for bad debt (note 3.1 (b) (i) & : ZEEREAE (MHE£3.1 (D) (i) (7,458) -
738,353 1,559,826




25 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

25 BUIRMKEEMERR BARK

AL )
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
+=A=+—-H +=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBT T

Amounts due from non-controlling
interests (d)
Less: provision for bad debt (note 3.1(b)(ii))

Deposits for purchase of land (f)
Less: provision for bad debt (note 3.1(b)(ii))

Other receivables
— Deposits for apartments rental
— Deposits for building construction
— Deposits in housing fund
— Lendings to third parties (e)
— Others

Less: provision for bad debt (note 3.1(b)(ii))

JRE Wi S 22 ] 1 A 25 3K0R (0)

B EERR A (P RE 3.1(b)(i))

BE T AIZE M
B AR (P RE 3.1(o)(i))

H At FE UK
— AEHEESRS
— BFRERe
- EEAEERE
— RFE=I1tEE ()
— Hit

B EERR A (B RE 3.1(b)(i))

3,425 571,500
(34) -
3,391 571,500
242,689 212,125
(2,427) =
240,262 212,125
85,002 33,483
2,284 20,540
16,874 18,712
104,894 =
59,505 80,356
268,559 153,091
(6,605) (6,878)
261,954 146,213
2,676,639 3,493,788

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR
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25 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)
(A) TRADE RECEIVABLES

25 BUIRMREMERR BARK

BE )
(A) FEWER

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
+=A=+—-B +=—RA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Trade receivables from property

F5 b 2 A 3 N K 65 IR UK BR 3R

development and sales 88,913 263,339
Trade receivables from & I8 AR 15 e W BR X

management services 432,308 371,465

521,221 634,804

Less: provision for bad debt (note 3.1(0)()) & : TEREE (M EE3.1(0)(i) (13,513) (5,342)

507,708 629,462




25 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)
(A) TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
The aging analysis of the current trade receivables based
on invoice date is as follows:

25 FEWRFREMEKRR AIRK
BE )
(A) FEWBR (&)
RIEENEIE 2 B H M R R R BR 86 5
MR -

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
—E-N\F T+
+=HA=+-8 +=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARBT T

Related parties B2l
— Less than one year — LR—%F
— One to two years — —EmMF
— Two to three years —ME=F
Third parties F=F
— Less than one year — LR—%F
— One to two years — —EWFE
— Two to three years —ME=F
— Three to four years — =E=NFE

The credit terms granted to customers of purchasing
properties are generally ranging from 30 days to 60 days,
while for the customers to whom the Group provides
management services, decoration services and sales land,
the credit terms are one year.

Information about the impairment of trade receivables and
the Group’s exposure to credit risk can be found in note 3.1

(®) ).

290,912 213,869
35,738 9,782
8,644 =
335,294 223,651
123,315 343,735
61,664 52,720
598 14,698

350 =
185,927 411,158
521,221 634,804

BTEFPBEMENEES KN T30
HE60R MAKERAEFEHEER
B RHRERLMEHETER TEP
MEEMA—F -

BHAREKERERZTRERASEEERRD
ERE2EMES1 () () °
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25 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

(B)

(C)

(D)

Effective from 1 May 2016, the Group’s subsidiaries in
Mainland China are subject to VAT for its sales of
properties. The applicable tax rate is 10% (11% before 1
May 2018) under normal VAT arrangement and is 5% for
qualified old projects with a simplified method. Input VAT
under normal VAT arrangement is deductible and is
recorded as “prepayments — VAT to be offset” when there
is a debit balance.

The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China which develop
properties for sale are subjected to prepayment of VAT at
the rate of 3% on advance collected from customers. Such
prepayments are recorded as “prepayments — prepaid
VAT and other surcharges”.

These subsidiaries are also subjected to prepayments of
EIT and land appreciation tax on expected profit margin
and land appreciation tax based on advance collected from
customers together. Such prepayments are recorded as
“prepayments — prepaid tax”.

Prepayments for rental fee are mainly related to rental paid
to landlord in advance for long-term rental apartments. The
term of prepaid rents is usually less than one year.

InJanuary 2018, F B EE & (XK E) EXF R A A
(Zhongfuyiyang (Tianjin) Real Estate Co., Ltd.)
(“Zhongfuyiyang”), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Group signed an agreement with its owners,
pursuant to which Zhongfuyiyang would advance loan to its
owners on pro-rata basis according to their respective
shareholding interest in Zhongfuyiyang. The loan is
unsecured, repayable within two years and Zhongfuyiyang
shall charge an annual interest rate ranging from 4.35% to
6.50% per annum on the actual amounts of drawdown. As
at 31 December 2018, the outstanding amounts due from
the non-controlling shareholders of Zhongfuyiyang
amounted to RMB29,154,000.

25 EWERFREMERT AARK
BRE®)
(B) B—T—AEFA A AEEHT

(€)

(D)

BIfME AR AR EYEHEMMNEE
o BE—REEFNLENEARER
10% (ZE—N\FREA—HBA11%) -
maAREFIER BB S EK5%
X - MEFHEELHE  BE—RILE
MR AEET ] FTHREARES
(TR — AR g ER ] -

AEBERBEHEMENTEMEBARA
SLUCENE P BB R TR 3% E’\JiETE?FR ° B
FHRBAARS MR — BHRERRK
Hipf e -

% 5 Y 8 A R R /A L TR B A e TR
EFRREB kT IBER - MRBEBEKE
FRBRTAS T IR E - ZFERMK
ARR [TAMRK — FANBIEA] -

RS EESRREAERBAESE
T EEHBEMRS - BITES0FH
— R o

RZE—N\FE—A ARAHEEFEE
fEARPREER(KE)EXFRAQA
(ThiEmEE ) BEHEA ARG W% - &
e PREEREEAZSERTRESR

MR IRLL DI MR BIRMHER - B R
BER AXMEARNEE  MHPEES

JBIE 4.35% = 6.50% K F F| KR 1% 3 BX
MERSEFTE -RZE—N\F+=A
=+—HB - ERhEEERFERRED
RIEERIREA R 29,154,000 7T °



25 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (continued)
(D) (Continued)

(E)

(F)

In December 2018, %k M B # & % B R 2 7 (Suzhou
Langkun Real Estate Co., Ltd.) (“Suzhou Langkun”), an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into the supplemental agreement with its owners,
pursuant to which Suzhou Langkun agreed to extend the
loan term from 31 December 2018 to 31 December 2021.
The loan is unsecured, repayable within three years, and
Suzhou Langkun shall charge an annual interest rate of
4.35% per annum on the actual amounts of drawdown. As
at 31 December 2018, the outstanding amounts due from
the non-controlling shareholders of Suzhou Langkun
amounted to RMB486,811,000.

The remaining amounts are interest-free and repayable on
demand.

The balances of lendings to third parties generate interest
ranging from 7.75% to 14.00% per annum. Of the total
lendings to third parties, RMB87,651,000 (2017:
RMB66,443,000) was secured by the equity securities of
two companies which hold properties in Mainland China.

As at 31 December 2018, deposits for purchase of land are
mainly related to acquisition of land use right upon
successfully bidding at the land auctions. The relevant land
use right certificates have not been obtained at 31
December 2018.

25 BUWERFREMEWRR  BARK
BE )
(D) (&)

(E)

(F)

RZZ—N\E+=ZA ARalFEEkEE
BHBRREMAREZEBR DA ([E
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LEERM BRI B EERR AR =T — N\
F+-_A=+—HEERZE-_ZT=-_—F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

25 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 25 BURRKEMERR  BAAIRE
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued) b A )
(G) Deposits for property maintenance are repayable within (G) YELEIZENERET2ESFNEE -

two to eight years from the end of the year.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of trade RZB—N\FE+=-A=+—8 " EKE
and other receivables, prepayments and deposits (netting N H A EW R - TR R MRS (kR E
off provision for bad debt) were denominated in below BEEE) NEEENATNE®E -
currencies:

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
+ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

RMB AR 4,339,020 4,546,667
uss$ ET 492,507 495,530
HK$ BT 13,557 3,952

4,845,084 5,046,149




25 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 25 EBUWRRRAEMERR BERR

PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (continued) B’RE#)
(G) (Continued) (G) (&)
The fair value of trade and other receivables, prepayments FERER R R B EYR - B RRIZES
and deposits (netting off provision for bad debt) are as (FIRIBBERE ) AL BEDT -
follows:
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—B-N\E —T—tF
+=B=+-8 +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
Included in non-current assets: STASERBIBE ¢
Prepayments SELDES 3,539 56,539
Amounts due from related parties & U Fa B 5 5108 1,615,180 1,370,535
Amounts due from non-controlling JE WS E 12 1) 1 A 2 SRR
interests 510,805 -
Other receivables — deposits for Hh s — mEsERS
property maintenance 8,593 8,597
Other receivables — lendings to third HtbpEls — mE=H
parties TELE B AR 27,652 113,460
2,165,769 1,549,131
Included in current assets: FFAMBEE :
Trade receivables FEUER K 507,708 629,462
Prepayments TER 924,971 374,662
Amounts due from related parties JE Uk BB 5 F0E 738,353 1,659,826
Amounts due from non-controlling JE U S 2 1) M A 2 FUE
interests 3,391 571,500
Deposits for purchase of land BELHNES 240,262 212,125
Other receivables H th FE K 261,954 146,213
2,676,639 3,493,788
The fair values of deposits for property maintenance are MEECERSHAALBEFEREERNX
based on cash flows discounted using a rate based on the 475% E490% M BEMR SRS - A
borrowing rate of 4.75% to 4.90%. The fair values are NREBERAAEBERBRNE_R -

within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

26 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 26 BAAREBEFABERNEHEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(A) CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AT (A EAAEBESAEENEREEZ
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS o8
The Group classifies 1) debt investments that do not qualify REFEBUTSRTERAABEE A
for measurement at either amortized cost or fair value B (AR BAEFARER]  )TF
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”); 2) equity SIREBEKAGFESIIRAALBETAE
investments that are held for trading or for which the Group teEmiE((EAREBEFAEMET
has not elected to recognize FVOCI as financial assets at W2k ) EBERRE ) AREE T RiEE
fair value through profit or loss (‘FVPL"). BRIZ AR EBEFAEME2E RSN
ER S EmIRE ©
Financial assets measured at FVPL included following: BARBEAABENESREERSE -
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—B-N\F ZT—tF
+=ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETT

Current assets mENEE
Listed bonds FHES 125,669 -
Wealth management products BEEEER 51,140 -
176,809 =
(B) AMOUNTS RECOGNIZED IN PROFIT OR (B) RMiEHBRANEH
LOSS
During the year, the following gain was recognized in profit FA - A THFET AR :
or loss:
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BZ H=E
—E-NF —F—+tF
+=H=+—-HB +=ZA=+—H
LFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R AREFT
Fair value gain on financial assets BRARBEFAERN
at fair value through profit or loss SREENAABETNG
(listed bonds) (note 8) (EmES) (KizEs) 2,675 =




26 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 26 RARBEFABEZENEREE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued) ()

(C) RISK EXPOSURE AND FAIR VALUE (C) AR AAEBHEE
MEASUREMENT
Information about the Group’s exposure to risks associated REBEBIZARBEFABENER
with FVPL is provided in note 3.2. For information about BRENWTI2. BEEARBERA
methods and assumptions used in determining fair value, A RRER 2 BRI E A K32 -

please refer to note 3.2.

27 RESTRICTED CASH AND CASHAND CASH 27 ZRHEBEURBERFESEEY
EQUIVALENTS

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\F el
+=—HA=+—HB +ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARBT T

Restricted cash ZREFEE
— Restricted for project developments — R&AIEEERE 66,847 82,662
— Restricted under escrow account for — RHIRTERS, TIRE
investments 40,000 70,000
— Deposits as security for property — YEBRIFIBERHN
purchasers’ Mortgage loans BERER 166,228 67,698
— Pledged for discounted bank accepted — E BB BIRIRITA R KR
notes 85,000 45,000
— Pledged for the Group’s bank borrowings — — fEAZN & BR1TE RA I
(note 29) (MF5E29) 183,866 7,291
— Others — Hi 358 9,301
542,299 281,952
Cash and cash equivalents RELBEEZEY 5,404,956 3,341,835
The carrying amounts of restricted cash and cash and cash SZREWESARIEL MBS EEYHREER
equivalents approximate their fair values. HERAAEEREE -

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR
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27 RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH AND CASH 27 ZRHBEURBERBEEEY

EQUIVALENTS (continued) (&)
The carrying amounts of restricted cash and cash and cash XRHRE RIS KIS EEBYHNERER BRI
equivalents were denominated in below currencies: TE®5E :
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
+=B=+—-8 +=ZA=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T
RMB AR 5,008,955 3,127,073
us$ ETT 920,273 492,066
HK$ BT 18,027 4,648
5,947,255 3,623,787
Cash and cash equivalents held in Mainland China are subject to RPEAMFE RS RIASEEBMIINEE
exchange control regulations, which provide for restrictions on FIRBIARE  BERREESHANRE (R
exporting capital out, other than through dividends. The cash BERE) - &6 M5 HRE N iE A % ZR 68
balance included in the consolidated financial statements to BB ARKS5013,942,000 L (ZE—+
which these restrictions apply is RMB5,013,942,000 (2017: & AR¥3,113,890,000) °
RMBS3,113,890,000).
Restricted cash which pledged as securities for borrowings of the ERASBERERNIRFIIBEHARE
Group was RMB268,866,000. 268,866,000 7T °©



28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28 ENERMREMENK

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+tF
+=ZB=+—-8 +=ZA=+—8
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT R ARBTT
Included in non-current liabilities: FFAERBERE :

— Amounts due to related parties (note 39)  — FETEARE T 218 (M 3E 39) 2,804,826 2,714,606
— Warranty accrual — EERIEEA 24,817 -

— Amounts due to non-controlling — JEAIEIEHI M RE RS FE (a)
interests (a) - 17,217
2,829,643 2,731,823

Included in current liabilities: FFAREBEE :

— Amounts due to related parties (note 39)  — FETEERE T 218 (M 3E39) 2,908,526 2,044,080

— Payables for construction materials and — BN IRYE KRS A
services 1,964,956 1,162,081

— Amounts due to non-controlling — JEAFIEIEHI M RE RS FUIE (a)
interests (a) 410,045 18,110
— Interest payable — EFE 348,592 235,257

— Deposits received from rental and — HERIERBE KRS
construction services 348,045 190,115
— Amounts due to a joint venture partner (o) — FEfT A& L ELEFIE () 320,000 -
— Accruals for staff costs — EFBIER 252,813 159,949
— Value added tax and other tax payables — 1B (FF & H At FE S R 1B 180,823 126,353
— Consideration payables (c) — FERRE (0 141,667 92,144
— Other payables — HApERER 37,302 36,009
6,912,769 4,064,098

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR
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28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

(@)

As of 31 December 2018, current amounts due to non-
controlling interests include RMB388,859,000 bearing
interest at 4.65% per annum and the remaining amounts
are interest-free.

As of 31 December 2017, non-current amounts due to
non-controlling interests bear interest at 10.00% per
annum. Current amounts due to non-controlling interests
are interest-free.

All amounts due to non-controlling interests are unsecured.

As of 31 December 2018, the amount of due to joint
venture partner includes RMB120,000,000 bearing interest
ranging from 6.00% to 8.00%.The remaining amount is
interest-free and was subsequently repaid on 2 January
2019.

As of 31 December 2018, consideration payables are
mainly related to payables for acquisition of investments, of
which RMB89,523,000 was due to the former shareholders
of &G HE L EE SRk HER A R) (Chengdu Haixing Cold
Industry Trading Co., Ltd.) (“Chengdu Haixing”) . The
remaining amount, RMB52,144,000 was due to the former
shareholder of EEBAGAE B R A A (Wuhan Langhong
Real Estate Co., Ltd.).

—N\F+ZA=t—RALFE

28 FEfYARRX

@)

Hib ™R @)

- )\$+ A=+—8 " Bz
) 14 #EE 2 7R I B BN SR 0 B AR LA R R =R
4.65% 5T B/ A R 388,859,000 7T + H
BREBRBE o

—E—tF+ZA=+—8 ENFEE
i) 1% 7 55 TR IR B9 FE R B B 0 BAF A =K
10.00% &1 /2 ° FEA FF#% i 1E #E s BRI Y
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B FE A JEER I MR R SRR R -
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%ﬁ X T8 B 1 LA F F1 % 6.00% £ 8.00%
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28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)
As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of trade and
other payables approximate their fair values.

28 ENERERKRHEMENT )
W_E—N\E+-A=+—B ENEXLE
HoRE N AR EE R AR BEAL -

REEER  REEZAHNENIREMHE K
RIEHKIBZ RIRAMWT

As at balance sheet date, the aging analysis of the payables for
construction materials and services based on invoice date is as

follows:

31 December

31 December

2018 2017

—E-NF —T—tF

+=—A=+—-H +=ZA=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARBTT

Less than one year PR—F 1,808,395 1,035,053
One to two years —EMF 145,160 30,933
Two to three years ME=F 11,401 5,865
Over three years =FLAE - 90,230
1,964,956 1,162,081

As at balance sheet date, the carrying amounts of trade and
other payables were denominated in below currencies:

REZEHER - BRFREMEMNKOERDE

BATE%RSIE

31 December

31 December

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+F

+=A=+—HB +Z—A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR AREFIT

RMB AR 8,974,693 6,096,059
uss$ I 734,738 680,894
HK$ BT 32,981 18,968
9,742,412 6,795,921

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR
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29 BORROWINGS 29 &
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
—E-NE+ZA=+—H —E—+#+-A=1+—H
Current  Non-current Current Non-current
wE FRE e ELE)

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR ARETT ARBTET

Secured HHEA
— Bank borrowings (a) — RITIEF (@) 266,597 1,224,335 1,098,218 672,233
— Senior private notes (c) - BRALBEF(©) - - 659,534 =
— Sell and buy-back arrangements — MER BT (HE23)
(note 23) - 285,967 - 270,345
— Discounted bank accepted notes ()  — B BIRERITAL Z1E (1) 316,983 - = =
— Loans from other financial - REEMEREBNER(Q
institutions (g) - 310,306 = =
Total secured borrowings BHEAETEE 583,580 1,820,608 1,757,752 942,578
Unsecured izl
— Bank borrowings (a) — RIT1E (@) 100,000 859,772 = 126,045
— Guaranteed senior notes (d) - BERELESRQ) - 1,380,523 = =
— Loans from the ultimate controlling ~ — & B SEIER R RAEZ (D)
shareholder (b) - 1,665,000 - 1,665,000
— EB-5loans (e) — EB-5&5(g) - 575,112 - 521,334
— Discounted bank accepted notes ()  — B BEIRERITE L 21 () - - 90,000 =
— Loans from other financial - REHEMEBEENER(Q
institutions (g) - 40,000 326,706 =
Total unsecured borrowings EERGERRR 100,000 4,520,407 416,706 2,312,379
Total borrowings fERuazE 683,580 6,341,015 2,174,458 3,254,957
Borrowings carry interest ranging from 3.19% to 13.50% (2017: EBFIREFENF3.19% 2 13.50% (—F—+
4.75% to 8.00%) per annum. & 475% & 8.00%) 58 °



29 BORROWINGS (continued)

The movements in borrowings of the Group are analyzed as

29 B (#E)
AEBMEZSEHHET -

follows:

For the year For the year

ended ended

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

BZE HZE

—E-N\E —E—+F

t=A=+t-8 +-A=t-=

LHEE IEFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBT T

At 1 January n—A—H 5,429,415 6,083,341
Proceeds from borrowings BB FIA 6,248,362 2,887,033
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) W BE B B~ =) (F5E37) 296,198 =
Repayments of borrowings EEEN (4,789,111) (2,319,051)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) mERB AR (:E38) (255,400) (1,259,440)
Exchange difference PE & =58 95,131 37,532
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 7,024,595 5,429,415

At end of reporting period, the carrying amounts of borrowings

were denominated in the following currencies:

RERR - (EROREERATERIIE

31 December

31 December

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —E—+F

+=—A=+—HB +Z—A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AREFIT

RMB AR#E 3,508,890 3,202,900
uss$ I 3,169,781 1,995,807
HK$ BT 345,924 230,708
7,024,595 5,429,415

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR
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29 BORROWINGS (Continued) 29 fER &)
The Group’s borrowings are repayable as follows as at each NELEER  ERERTYERBES -

balance sheet date:

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
—E-N\E T4
+=ZA=+—-8 +t=-—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBET T

Within one year —F R 683,580 2,174,458
Between one and two years —EMF 4,441,395 188,019
Between two and five years =R F 1,899,620 3,066,938
7,024,595 5,429,415

(A) Bank borrowings are jointly secured by: (A) SRITEFUATISEIELREE
() restricted cash with carrying amount of ) XRBRHIFS EEHEAARE
RMB183,866,000 (2017: RMB7,291,000) (note 27); 183,866,000 L(ZF—+tF : AR

7,291,000 7T) (Bi=£27) :

(i)  properties under development with carrying amount i) HAEBHIEHE FAEBAARYE
of RMB3,033,882,000 (2017: RMB2,138,953,000) 3,033,882,0007L(—F—+t % : A
(note 23); R#2,138,953,000 7T ) (FizE23) :

(i) investment properties of the Group with carrying iy AEEEREUHDE REAEAAR
amount of RMB323,570,000 (2017:RMB319,830,000) ¥ 323,570,000 T(ZZE—+t4F : A
(note 18) R#319,830,000 7T) (Mi7E18) :

(v)  guarantee provided by the ultimate holding company; (v) EEIERRA R FTR AR

(v)  equity interest of certain subsidiaries of the Group (V)  ANEEE T B A TR (M EE
(note 42); 42) o

(vi)  property, plant and equipment with carrying amount Vi) TEIE- - IRmMERE BEEAA
of RMB502,576,000 (2017: Nil) (note 19); ER#502,576,000 T (ZE— £ :

&) (FaE19)

(vii)  No property held for sale is mortgaged as collateral (Vi) EEEEME ARNEBBITER
for the Group’s bank borrowing (2017: EREHF(ZE—1F: ARK
RMB526,511,000) (note 21). 526,511,000 7T) (FfzE21) ©

Bank borrowings carry interest ranging from 3.19% to WITERIEEF XN F3.19% £ 8.60%

8.60% (2017: 4.75% to 8.00%) per annum. (ZE—+F : 4.75% £ 8.00%) T E o



29 BORROWINGS (continued)

(B)

(©)

(D)

THE LOANS FROM THE ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

The loans from the ultimate controlling shareholder are
unsecured and carry interest ranging from 5.30% to 5.65%
(2017: 5.30% to 6.60%) per annum.

SENIOR PRIVATE NOTES
Senior private notes of the Company matured and were
repaid on 30 April 2018.

GUARANTEED SENIOR NOTES

Guaranteed senior notes issued by the Company in 2018
were listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited on 25 April 2018 and will mature on 25 April 2020,
with 9.625% per annum paid semi-annually in arrears. All of
the guaranteed senior notes are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants relating to certain of the Company’s debt
servicing financial indicators. The Company regularly
monitors its compliance with these covenants. As at 31
December 2018, none of the covenants had been
breached. All guaranteed senior notes are guaranteed by
certain subsidiaries of the Company (note 42).

At any time, the Company will be entitled at its option to
redeem the senior notes in whole but not in part, at a
redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of
the senior notes redeemed plus the applicable premium as
of, and accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not
including), the redemption date.

At any time and from time to time the Company may
redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the
senior notes with the proceeds from sales of certain kinds
of capital stocks of the issuer at a redemption price of
109.625% of the principal amount of the senior notes
redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but
not including) the redemption date, subject to certain
conditions.

29 BFR (&)

(B)

(C)

(D)

RERLERBRRHNER

RERKREBRBRENERBEER I
REFE530%E565% (T —+F:
5.30% £ 6.60%) 5t & °

BRALBES
ARFEELBEFEN - /\FH
A=THEERA -

ERRELXES
RABRZE-—NFEHEITHNEERE
EEFR_Z—N\FEOAZTHARHT
MEBEBLFRZA LT R ZF=F
FAZTHHEEHE - £/ *E9.625% -
BHFRAIN K- 2BHEREL
BEHZER AR BE TER RS
TRIEMZER - A RS T HERE
BIZERENEBR - RZ2T—N\F
+-A=+—08 YEERZSRE-
FTEBRRRELESFIAARRRE TH
B ARIER (H5E42) ©

AR R e RE IR i 4208 [ 2 50 (1 FEED
D)BERE  BEERFNELRERN
TH1I00% S NEBZETBEER A
B (B DA S FE R B R A B () -

ARRAF A EER M AR IAHERITAET
BEBRANMEREBLELREAS
HERZ35%  BEEMESNHAERE
FRIBEREFE109.625% S IMBEETE
RO A e Rt AN AE (nE)
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29 BORROWINGS (Continued) 29 BFR (&)

(E)

(F)

(G)

EB-5 LOANS

EB-5 Loans represent loans from third parties and carry
interest of 4.00% (2017: 3.60% to 4.00%) per annum and
are guaranteed by Landsea Holdings Corporation, an
indirect subsidiary of the Company. The balances are
repayable ranging from 24 July 2020 to 29 June 2023
(2017: 3 January 2020 to 31 March 2021).

DISCOUNTED BANK ACCEPTED NOTES
Discounted bank accepted notes are secured by restricted
cash with carrying amount of RMB85,000,000 (note 27).

LOANS FROM OTHER FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS

Loans from other financial institutions carry interest from
8.00% to 11.50% (2017: 8.00%) per annum. The balance
is repayable from 6 July 2020 to 27 December 2020.

Loans from other financial institutions are jointly secured
by:

(i) properties held for sale with carrying amount of
RMB52,630,000 (2017: Nil) (note 21);

(i) investment properties of the Group with carrying
amount of RMB77,640,000 (2017: Nil) (note 18);

(i)  guarantee provided by Nanjing Langming Properties
Group Limited (“Nanjing Langming”), an indirect
subsidiary of the Company.

(E)

(F)

(G)

EB-5&%

EB-5ERIERAE=FNER - FH=X
#54.00%(=F—+4F : 3.60% £ 4.00%)
It f Landsea Holdings Corporation (Zx 2
AIEBEMB AR ER - BHRAER T
TZFEL+A-+MNBEE-_ZT-_=F,XA
Zt+hB(ZZE—tF: ZT=FF—A
ZHE-_ZE-—FZA=+—R)HRE

o

R

ERBRBITRIERE
DHRBITALZEAREEAEARE
85,000,000 7T K 52 BR I 35 & K 30 (B 5%
27) °

REHEfMEHBENER

R EE M R E RN E R F B R8.00%
F11.50% (ZZF —+F : 8.00%) ° &
HAR—_E_EF+ANAE_ZT_TF
+ZAZ++EAEE-

KEHEMESREBOERAATEE K
RIHELR

() BEEEAARES2630,0007T(=
T—HF T)NEEHEWE (W
221)

iy AEEKRmEAAR 77,640,000
T(ZZTE—+F : T)WREEYE
(FffzE18)

(i) ARnEzEENBRRRERART
ESEARAR ([FEmEAE]) e
BHELR o



29 BORROWINGS (Continued) 29 BFR (&)

(H) Fair values of the borrowings are not materiality different to (H EBENAREELEERETYEERS
the carrying amounts. Since either the interests on those Al RAAZSEEENTEBBE RIS
borrowings are close to current market rates or borrowings MR - sKEEEEHE - ERBEE
are of a short term nature. The carrying amounts and fair HEmEBEE AL BEWNT -

values of the non-current borrowings are as follows:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
—E2-N\§+=HA=+-H —T—t+H+A=+—H
Carrying Carrying
amounts Fair values amounts Fair values
fREE DREE RmEE AREE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR ARETT ARBTT

Bank borrowings (i) RITHE () 2,084,107 2,084,107 798,278 798,278
Guaranteed senior notes (i) (i)  BEFREBLES (i) 1,380,523 1,352,229 - -
Sell and buy-back HE KRB BT

arrangements (note 23) (i) (PR =E23) (i) 285,967 285,967 270,345 270,345
Loans from the ultimate R A TR E (i)

controlling shareholder (i) 1,665,000 1,665,000 1,665,000 1,665,000
EB-5 loans (i) EB-5 &34 i) 575,112 575,112 521,334 521,334
Loans from other financial R B E & B Y E K i)

institutions (ii) 350,306 350,306 = =

()  These guaranteed senior notes are listed on () WEBEREBEEFNIIERS
Singapore Exchange and the fair value are Fr b ZARBEERARTS
determined based on quoted price and are MEFESLE  IoEEAREE
categorized within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. EBHRANEE -

(i) Fair values of bank borrowings, sell and buy-back (i) HWITEN  HEREBEBLHE KB
arrangements, loans from the ultimate controlling SREZERBRROER  EB-5E XK
shareholder, EB-5 loans and loans from other NRBEMEREENERNAR
financial institutions are based on discounted cash EBEEFANERESREMNRDEE
flows and current borrowing rate and are categorized FEHE UHBEALARLEEER
within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. NEIE2[E ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 30 ZEEF)? S8
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is BIEFRHEBITENSREHEEEHER
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against ﬁ:’rﬁlﬁg B BIERIERERE &RE—B
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate M AR SEEMEHEERA BT R
to the same fiscal authority. The net amounts are as follows: 3 o SEEWT ¢

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
+=A=+—R +t=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARBT T

Deferred income tax liabilities to be settled BRBE—FREEN

after one year BEFMSHRARE 122,556 75,537
Deferred income tax assets: BREFTEREE :
— to be recovered within one year — BR—FERlkE 103,183 108,463
— to be recovered after one year — BB —F R E 249,286 129,272
352,469 237,735
Deferred income tax assets, net FRIEFTIS T B = F50 229,913 162,198
As at 31 December 2018, deferred income tax assets were offset RZB-N\F+ZA=1+—H  BEMEHE
against deferred income tax liabilities with the amount of ENEEMSHAE AR 103,602,000 (=
RMB103,692,000 (2017: RMB57,911,000). T—tF : AR¥57,911,0007T) B &K o



30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movements in deferred income tax, net are as follows:

30 EILEFTBH &)
EEFRERFESBMT

For the year For the year

ended ended

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

8=z #HE

—B-NfE Tt

t=A=+-B +-A=t+-H

LEE IEFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTT

At 1 January 2018 as originally present RZE—NF—A—H  RREZ7| 162,198 100,759

Changes in accounting policies (note 2.2.1) &R &) (fizE2.2.1) 13,139 =

Restated balance at 1 January 2018 —E-N—A—BR&EY L 175,337 100,759

Credited to profit or loss (note 11) FEFES (ME11) 146,305 82,190
Charged to other comprehensive income £ H 4 2 E Ue 5 52 84

— Transfer from property, plant and — BTHE TRMEZEER

equipment to investment properties EREEME (4,838) -

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) HENRB AR (FFE3s) 42,029 (19,555)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) Uik E A |l (F3E37) (129,829) =

Currency translation differences B = 9209 (1,196)

At 31 December R+-_A=+—H 229,913 162,198
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 30 EEFIBH (#)
The movements in the deferred income tax liabilities, prior to HIERTMEERIBEAEESNT
offsetting, are as follows:

Change in

fair value of

identified

Revaluationof Differencein  Accelerated  Unrealized Re-  assets upon

investment  capitalized tax exchange measurement acquisition of
properties interests  depreciation gains gain  subsidiaries Others Total

KERRAR

CEEE]

REH 3[4 nE AR Bif BEN
NEEH HRES RENE EXRIE HEAE AAEE%E Bt &3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTE  ARETT ARBTR  ARETR  ARETr  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

At 1 January 2017 N-F-+E-F-A 52,851 42505 875 62,346 - - - 158,597
Oredited!(Charged) to profitorloss 1% 4,/ (X 3) 7228 16,369 285 (58,940) 14,747 = - (20.361)
Currency translation dffferences EHREEE = 2,960) (51) {1,777) - - - (4,789)
At 31 December 2017 WE—tF+-A=1-A 60,079 55,934 1,059 1629 14747 - - 133448
At 1 January 2018 N=F-NE-F-A 60,079 55,934 1,059 1629 14747 = s 133448

(Charged)/Credited to profitorloss  7Ei8% (48) /4 (B3t 11)

(note 11) (1,746) 2,658 3,102 34,707 13,335 (34,765) 415 17,706
Credlted to other comprehensive M2 EUEES
income
— Transfer from property, plntand ~ — A8 « THRRE
equipment to investment BREREMNE
property 4,838 - - - - - - 4838
Acquisition of subsiclaries (note 37)  WEEB AR (B3 37) - - - - - 133,747 - 133,747
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) ~ HEKBAR (i3 38) - - - - - (6,409) = (66,409)
Currency translation differences EHpEEE = 2,780 53 85 = = = 2918
At 31 December 2018 R-E-\E+-A=1-H 63,171 61,372 4214 36,421 28,082 32,573 45 226,248




30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 30 EEFREH &)
The movements in the deferred income tax assets, prior to BEEATARETTBEEZSH T ¢
offsetting, are as follows:

Temporary
difference on Temporary
unrealized difference on  Provision for
profit of recognition of  bad debt and
intercompany revenues and accrued
transactions Taxlosses  cost of sales expenses Others Total
AEAMREMN EL N
RERFEN HEER BRRE
ERER REESR WEREH BRAH Hit @it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AR®TT  ARETT  AR%TT  ARETT  ARETR

At 1 January 2017 R-Z—+F—-A—H 72,291 76,058 51,257 59,750 - 269,356
Credited/(Charged) to profit or loss 7182544, /(% 34) 36,045 14,208 (15,665) 27,241 = 61,829
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWBAR - (19,442) - 113) - (19,555)
Currency translation differences ~ E¥HE =% - 2,911) - (8,073) - (5,984)
At 31 December 2017 “E+F

+-A=1+-H 108,336 67,913 36,692 83,805 - 295,646
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-\F—H—-H 108,336 67,913 35,692 83,805 — 295,646

Changes in accounting policies &3t 48]

(note 2.2.1) (FizE2.2.1) - - - 13,139 - 13,139
Restated balance at “Z-\-A—H

1 January 2018 mE g5 108,336 67,913 35,592 96,944 - 308,785
Credited to profit or loss (note 1) R HR (15 11) 22,331 43,596 37,656 57,696 2,732 164,011
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) i &M 22 ] (fz£38) (17,030) (7,350) - - = (24,380)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WesE KB AR (fizEa7)

(note 37) = = = 3918 = 3918
Currency translation differences ~ E¥HE = - 1,354 - 2,473 = 3,827
At 31 December 2018 RZT—-N\F

+-ZA=+-AH 113,637 105,513 73,248 161,031 2,732 456,161
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31 SHARE CAPITAL 31 BA&
AUTHORIZED SHARES EE R 5
The Company has authorized shares of 6,000,000,000 shares of RKRARIRZZE—+F—HA—H —ZZ—N\—H
HK$0.01 each as at 1 January 2017, 1 January 2018 and 31 —-BER-_ZE—N+=_A=Z+—H8BEH
December 2018. 6,000,000,000 A& &% 0.01 B8 EE KD ©
ISSUED SHARES e #&ITRG
Equivalent
Nominal nominal
Number value of value of
of ordinary ordinary ordinary
shares shares shares
g ZER
ZEREE REE LHEE
’000 HK$’000 RMB’000
TR FHET ARBFTT
Issued and fully paid: EEITRER :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FIE(E 0.01 B Ty LR A%
At 1 January 2018 RZ_ZE—N\F—H—H 3,917,571 39,176 31,800
Conversion of convertible perpetual 333G A #ai% K A 253
securities (note 33 (b), (0)) (MI5E33 () * (b)) 463,560 4,635 3,902
Issue of new shares for HIRREFEANCET
capitalization of shareholder’s (@) ' (o)
loans (a), () 341,176 3,412 3,000
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F+=-A=1+—H 4,722,307 47,223 38,702




31 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
ISSUED SHARES (Continued)

@)

On 21 December 2018, the Company completed the
issuing of 341,176,471 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at
a price of HK$0.85 per share to Landsea International
Holdings Limited (“Landsea International”) to capitalize
shareholder loans of HK$290,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB254,997,000). Accordingly, 341,176,471 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each were issued at a premium of
HK$0.84 each and the total premium of HK$286,588,000
(equivalent to RMB251,997,000) was credited to share
premium (note 34).

The issue price represents the closing price of HK$0.85 per
Share as quoted on SEHK at 2 November 2018, being the
date of the agreement signed.

The capitalization and conversion shares rank pari passu in
all respects among themselves and with the shares in issue
on the date of allotment and issue of the capitalization and
conversion shares.

32 SHARE OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED SHARE
AWARD SCHEME
(A) SHARE OPTIONS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 25 April 2012, the
current share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
by the Company. Since the adoption of the Scheme, no
further options can be granted under the old scheme.

The Company operates the Scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and reward to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the directors
(including executive and non-executive directors), other
employees, suppliers, customers, person or entity providing
research, development and other technical support,
investee entity and any professional advisor and business
consultant of the Group from time to time determined by
the directors as having contributed or who may contribute
to the development and growth of the Group. The Scheme
is effective on 30 April 2012 and unless otherwise
terminated, remains in force for 10 years from that date.

31 BRA& &)
CRITRG (&)

(@)

—E-NF+ZA=Z+—8  ARAE
B LA & 20.85%8 JT By (B 1§ % 17
341,176,471 & R EE0.01 B T 1 &
B B& Flandsea International Holdings
Limited ([ Landsea International]) * LA #
290,000,0007% 7t( #H & WM A B ¥
254,997,0007C ) RE B K& A1t -
itk 341,176,471 1% & X M {0.01 % 7T
MEBRRESRO84BILETT W
15 345 18 4% %8 286,588,000 7 7T (B E A A
R #251,997,0007T ) 5 AR 1 4 18 (K
F£34) o

HITERERRONR-F—-—NF+—A
— B (BRI < B ) B A FT 2 Uk
MESR0.858TT °

B A R B AR 4 #5018 75 T R AR Ut
2 6 B BE AN AE R R A JE e 3% K% %
TEHERTRPZFARFHA -

32 RO ERER RS D RRB S

(A)

HEZEREERAT / —F

idvig:tik
BER-ZE——FNA-+RHBRITHN
AARREBEFAEG LBAMNTERE
R OARRARRME ATH ARG BT S
([FZ&TE]) - BIRNZATEIAZR « B E
REFTEIR T E A% () B -

ARRBRILZATE] - 5 R R LB HE
BAKBEBRINAERSEE - %
AENAERSEEGRES (BRENT
FOFRITER)  HittfER - HER - &
P RS R EMR T SR AT
B NEHREEBEURAKE TR
TEXEREEGER (BEERRE AN
SEHRLERBEHAEF LR
&) ZAER_ZE-—_FWHA=+RH4E
M MERFEARA T AR L - BRIK A
ZAEA0OFHEAE -
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32 SHARE OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED SHARE 32 IR {7 Hi#E & PR 414 IR 10 & B 5T &l
AWARD SCHEME (Continued) (&)
(A) SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) (A) BPHARE (&)

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Scheme or any other share option
scheme adopted by the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the
date of adoption.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued
upon the exercise of the options granted to each participant
including both exercised and unexercised options under
the Scheme or any other share option scheme adopted by
the Company in any 12-month period must not exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue on the date of grant.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholder’s approval in a general meeting.

The limit on the number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Scheme and any other schemes of
the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time. No options may be granted under any
share option schemes of the Company if this will result in
the limit being exceeded.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is a proposed
grantee of the share options). In addition, any share options
granted to substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time and with an aggregate value
(based on the official closing price of the Company’s shares
at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval
in advance in a general meeting.

BrIEEAQRIRELAE - BRIATER
ZET B SRR B ER AN EY £ (] E AR 1) HR
B ES TRENFBRMDEmA] T
BTHROBE - TEEBBARRRNE
M A EIE ZITIRINEY 10% °

BRIFEAR R AR E - RER+ A
ABE S2EERZERAQER
A B A fo] EL A B £ B R A1 B R B9 LD
HIRE (BT 1T R RTT6E) 1T -
BRITESTRITHARR M BE
TREBARRNE L ARHE BTEN
1% ° AN — SR B B0 HIRES S i)
B8 B Emt LR - AERRAE L
ERCRHLE -

BT R & 8 R AR B EF A T
FERLERARITENME RN BAEM
ATHRTHBRNER  TEBEETKE
BATIR1D EI30% © 1AHK H ik fp BARE 15 8
BUBEIE ER - RIABRIEA R RMER
P Bt T 84 h A dn B -

MARAEE  THAHIETERRK
HEFEMEEATEDRDEE - KA
BEBIFNTES (CTRIEERNBRN
HEREZARANBYIENTES) NS
R o BEAN - MIEE R+ =@ A 2
MARAREEZRREBLIFANITEE K
1% E B B A 3% I B0 (E (] AR 19 HR e
BREAQNATMNEEEZBITRME
01% ' HBE(EARBBRMOREL B
ey E XY EEE ) #8365 5,000,000 7
TC - BB AR R R E LSt
A o



32 SHARE OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (Continued)
(A) SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

32 R0 H R I PR 4 R 40 52 B 5t &
(%)

(A BOBEE)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of offer, upon payment of
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. An
option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme and the terms of grant which shall not be more
than 10 years from the date of grant.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to be
issued upon exercise of the options shall be no less than
the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by
the SEHK on the date of grant; (i) the average closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the SEHK for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (ji)) the
nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of
grant. The subscription price will be determined by the
board of directors at the time the option is offered to the
participants.

The scheme limit under the Scheme is 198,660,605
shares, representing 10.0% of the issued share capital of
the Company on 25 April 2012, being the adoption date of
the Scheme and approximately 4.21% of the issued share
capital of the Company on 22 March 2019, being the date
of the annual general meeting.

The Scheme
There was no outstanding share option under the Scheme
as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

BRHBROHENENHREZENE AR
ot BARRTEES - EARAAXNA
HIBTHEERE - REL B R
THEB10F A - By BRE Al 1Rt 89
fERFR B IR IBRATE ©

EITE AR D B RE S T AT AR A 7R
MRBEIESERAATSERFNESH
B () "ATRMHNE L B BRES AR
RETEL T HRERITAKTE : (i)
AR BEER L BRI AEEE
HEABBMRMBELEOTHARERAT
RURTHEFEME K (i) A2 R BRDRE
LRANEE ESRENRMBSEER
ERMDEERNETREE -

B Z A& - 5 & £ BR & 198,660,605
B HERARARR-_Z—=—FWA
Z+H B (A8 EEMA A ) B 317
AR 10.0% KA RRIRZZE—hF=
AZ+ZH(ARRBFRKeHH) B8
TRRAX)4.21% ©

Zit &
RZE-—NFE+T_A=+—BKZE
—tHF+-A=+—B ZFETLE
e R T B9 B ) HAHE -
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32 SHARE OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED SHARE 32 IR {7 Hi#E & PR 414 IR 10 & B 5T &l
AWARD SCHEME (Continued) (&)
(B) RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (B) PR HIMERR 17 22 B =t &

On 2 July 2014, the Group adopted a share award scheme
(the “Share Award Scheme”) as an incentive to recognize
the contributions by employees and to give incentives in
order to retain them for the continuing operation and
development of the Group, as well as to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, existing shares of
the Company will be purchased or new shares will be
subscribed for restricted shares (“Restricted Shares”) by a
trustee appointed by the Company and be held on trust for
the relevant grantees until such shares are vested with the
relevant grantees in accordance with the rules of the Share
Award Scheme. The Restricted Shares will be awarded
with reference to the performance, operating and financial
targets and other criteria determined by the Board from
time to time.

(i) The movements of shares held for Share Award
Scheme by the trustee are as follows:

RZZE—NE+A B NEEFHAR
D ERE T E ([P SRR T ) - (EREE
BUAETEEMELNER - RE T
BREEAAEENFELCERERMNT
Bh WAAEEE—SERESES
AT e

R BB S NARAERENT
ﬁA%%E$QﬂﬁE%ﬁ%m%ﬁh
0 1E R IR SR (TR BIEERD 1)
MEER ARBEARARS Eiﬁ
FARX (D R IRAX 17 2Bt BV AR AR B X
HEAARARL - BHlEROHB2EE
ERTHEBEENRE KELWKEER
AR E AR T AR

() AR ZEEEHAE KRG
ZEnh

For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
BE-E-N\f§ BE-T—+F
TZA=t-BLEE +ZRA=1+—HILFE

Employee Employee
Number of share trust Number of share trust
Restricted Shares BR 14 1R 4 shares reserve shares reserve
EERS EERM
BRHEE fErtiiE B & B it
’000 RMB’000 '000 RMB’000
Th AR%®Tr Tk AREFRT
At 1 January —H—H 66,296 35,450 53,944 28,907
Acquisition of shares W7 23,412 19,631 12,352 8,578
Dividends received (a) BB (@) - (2,145) = (2,035)
Distribution to employees  #kTES (16,312) (9,966) = =
At 31 December +-A=+—H 73,396 42,970 66,296 35,450




32 SHARE OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED SHARE 32 R HEIERIR &M IRDE B2

AWARD SCHEME (Continued) (&)
(B) RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (B) PR&IMAR (3 IEEET &I (&)
(Continued)

()  The movements of shares held for Share Award (i)
Scheme by the trustee are as follows: (Continued)

(@) Dividends of granted Restricted Shares
received by the trustee are payable when these
shares are distributed to the relevant grantees.
Other dividends received by the trustee
become part of the trust fund. All these
dividends received by the trustee are treated as
a deduction of employee share trust reserve.

(i)  Movement of share based compensation reserve is (ii)

AR R SR A BN
gt - (8)

(@) EFEAYERD R IR
MR ERZERD DK T
AR AREN - AW
B EMmAR S &R AEEE
TH)— B o XFEAUEA
A ZERESEEMRE
Bl EERHFBRE -

PR R R R T

as follows:
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BE-_Z—N\§F HE-ZFT—+tF
+=A=+—-8 +=—A=+—H
IEFEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREET T
At 1 January =E=E 19,800 19,800
Distribution to employees PIERTIEE (9,966) -
At 31 December +=-A=+—8H 9,834 19,800
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32 SHARE OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED SHARE 32 R#¥EIERIR&IMIRDE B2

AWARD SCHEME (Continued) (&)

(B) RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (B) PFRAIMERR 73R BT & (2)
(Continued)
Details of the Restricted Shares granted by the Company QB FTRHR B R DB ET ¢

are as follows:

Fair value Outstanding at Granted Distributed Outstanding at

per share 1 January during during 31 December

Name of employees (HKS) 2018 the year the year 2018

gk R-2-N\F RZB-N%

AEE -A-H T=A=t-H

EE®E (E7) HRTE  AEERY ERDIK HRITE

Directors £z

Tian Ming A 0.69 3,277,500 - (1,596,000) 1,681,500
Wang Lei appointed as an FR(M+—A=t=H

executive director on EZARHES)

23 November 0.69 796,500 = = 796,500
Shen Leying ES 0.69 2,214,500 - (1,064,000) 1,150,500
Xie Yuanjian SER 0.69 2,037,500 - (1,064,000) 973,500
Zhou Qin Bk 0.69 1,505,000 - (620,000) 885,000

9,831,000 - (4,344,000) 5,487,000

Other employees HitfES
In aggregate st 0.69 25,431,500 - (11,968,000) 13,463,500

35,262,500 - (16,312,000) 18,950,500
The outstanding Restricted Shares had been fully vested as MRZE—RETZHA=+—8 " ®KT
of 31 December 2016. EHXRERNDEZHER
No expenses (2017: nil) was recognized by the Group as FAREE I EBEINRE R - S
there was no additional share based compensation during BREMNIH (ZE—+F : 8\) -
the year.



33 CONVERTIBLE PERPETUAL SECURITIES

The movements of convertible perpetual securities are as follows:

33 AHRIRKAEZE

AHABUKARFH B &I T

Landsea

Fuiji International

convertible convertible

perpetual perpetual
securities securities Total

Landsea

EFW#ERK  International
KARE ABRKAES et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBTT ARETT

(@) (b)
At 1 January 2017 R—E—tF—H—H 110,054 374,150 484,204
Distribution accrued &t DK 8,458 11,221 19,679
Distribution paid Bt 5K (8,458) = (8,458)

At 31 December 2017 and R-ZE—+F+-_A=+—H

1 January 2018 R=ZF—N\F—H—H 110,054 385,371 495,425
Distribution accrued FEET 7K 23,281 6,318 29,599
Distribution paid BRI (24,179) (27,469) (51,648)
Redemption fE o] (109,156) - (109,156)
Conversion to ordinary shares AT EiR - (364,220) (364,220)

At 31 December 2018

R-F—N\F+-A=+—H

(@ In November 2015, the Company entered into an
agreement with Fuiji Investment Management Limited (“Fuji”)
pursuant to which the investor agreed to subscribe for

convertible perpetual securities issued by the Company

with an aggregate principal amount of HK$130,000,000
(equivalent to RMB109,200,000).

@ RZZT—AF+—A ARFRHETEE
BEBARAR(EST DI 0E B
b REERERERRAAMBEITAS
4 $£130,000,00078 7T (HHE R AR
109,200,000 7T.) &) AT AR K A BB & o

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR
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33 CONVERTIBLE PERPETUAL SECURITIES
(Continued)

@)

(Continued)

Distribution shall be payable on the convertible perpetual
securities to the investor semi-annually in arrear at the
following rate of distribution:

(i) 7.5% per annum in respect of the period from the
subscription completion date to the third anniversary
of the subscription completion date; and

(i)  18.5% per annum after the third anniversary of the
subscription completion date.

The convertible perpetual securities do not have a fixed
maturity date and may be converted into ordinary shares of
the Company at any time at the option of the investor at an
initial conversion price of HK$0.7508 per share subject to
certain anti-dilutive adjustments.

The Company may, at its discretion, elect to defer (in whole
or in part) any distribution unless certain compulsory
distribution payment events have occurred and redeem or
purchase the convertible perpetual securities i) for taxation
reasons; ii) on the third anniversary of the subscription
completion date; and iii) upon certain events as set out in
the agreement.

On 18 November 2018, the Company elected to redeem
the convertible perpetual securities on the third anniversary
of the subscription completion date at the principal amount
of HK$130,000,000 (equivalent to RMB109,156,000) and
its unpaid accrued interests.

33 AR KARSE &)

@)

(&)
AEFFURNEARATDIREER
REZEFERATRBOKARFHNIK

() RETHKAHEEZRETKBHSE
“BFHPMNEERRAETS% &

iy RETKAHEFZAFENFER
A13.5% °

Ak A B AL EE TR - KE
B R EERIZY S S BESRO0.7508
B (AERETRWEAR) A BAER
AFLBAR o

BRIEBEETRB DRI TR
ARATADHBBRE i) RRE TK
HEE =BT : Ri)IZBEAESHSE T
= WFERRET (2B DK
KBk g B P HAR K A B

—E-NFE+—HA+/N\B KR FEE
i Em,ﬁ\%nﬁx H gﬁ:i@ﬁf,ﬁﬁ@—ﬁﬁﬁxﬁﬁ
B S M AN € %8 130,000,000 7T (HEE 7
AR#109,156,000 7T ) & H K % (- fE &+

B -



33 CONVERTIBLE PERPETUAL SECURITIES
(Continued)

(o)

In January 2016, the Company issued convertible perpetual
securities to Landsea International with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$432,687,009 (equivalent to
RMB363,847,000) to acquire Epic China.

The convertible perpetual securities do not have a fixed
maturity date and may be converted into ordinary shares of
the Company at any time at the option of Landsea
International at an initial conversion price of HK$0.9334 per
share subject to certain anti-dilutive adjustment.

Distribution shall be payable on the convertible perpetual
securities to Landsea International semi-annually in arrear
at 3% per annum of distribution.

The Company may, at its sole discretion, elect to defer (in
whole or in part) any distribution and redeem or purchase
the convertible perpetual securities: i) for taxation reasons;
ii) on or after the third anniversary of the acquisition date.

The convertible perpetual securities issued to Landsea
International did not trigger the conversion price adjustment
of the convertible perpetual securities issued to the
investor.

On 19 November 2018, the Company and Landsea
International agreed to covert the convertible perpetual
securities into 463,560,113 ordinary shares of the
Company at the price of HK$0.9334 per share. The
convertible perpetual securities were de-recognized and
par value of HK$4,635,000 (equivalent to RMB 3,902,000)
(note 31) were recorded as share capital and the difference
of HK$428,051,000 (equivalent to RMB 360,318,000) were
recorded as share premium.

33 AR KARSF &)

(b)

HEZEREERAT / —F

R=ZZF—/"F—H K275 MHLandsea
International 1778 & B & $£432,687,009
BT (FHE R AR 363,847,0007T) K
AR K A B A - LAUEE Epic China °

AR kKABEHETEEREEHA
Landsea International 7] i 1% B i 1% 4] 25
HBESR093M4BT(ATEEE TR
MR ARARARILREAR

AT F RN IR 3% W FIR S XA
Landsea International ¥E i A] #2 i 5k A 7&
FEDIK °

AR R RA i) RUEE B HIE
ZBFH % BIEEREBRTE(2RE
) 72K N BB SR B A AR ARE 5 o

[a Landsea International 3 17 A] #2 A% 5k A
BARWEEBGARETTREEN AR
WK AR 752 HIRME -

RZZE—NF+—A+hB A FH
Landsea International 13 52 #5 A 32 A& sk A
B & LA F IR09334B T N B A
463,560,113 RN A Al iAAR o AJHRARK
ABHHL LR - E1E4,635,0007%8 7T (48
BN AR 3,902,0007T) (FfzE31) AR
BRI - ZFE428,051,0007 7T (HHE R
AR ¥360,318,00070) ABR AR RE °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

34 RESERVES 34 f#fE
Share based Captal
Merger Share  Translation compensation ~ Employee  redemption  Statutory Other  Contributed ~ Retained
Reserve  premium reserve reserve  share frust reserve reserve reserve surplus— earnings Total

AffEE  BNEE  FEEBE  HMERE  RDER  BORE  ITRE  AMBR  E8ER  ERME o
Note ~ RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOD  RMBODD  RWBOO0  RMBIOQO0
W ARETR ARMTL ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARMTZ ARBTR ARMTI ARETR ARETR

At1 January 2017 W-2-tE-F-B 6339 712051 (2847500 19800 (28907 23185 125149 24496 144711 1761783 2384652
Profit for the year EERR - - - - - - - - 580523 580523
Other comprehensive income:  Efb 2 Elkias : - - - - - - - - - - -
Exchange difference arising fom BN ERELMER

translation of foreign operations % - - 164445 - - - - - - - 164445

Total comprehensive income  FE2FNRAE
for the year - - 164445 - - - - - - 580523 744968

Shares held for Share Award SRV EEHEIRENHRG

Scheme 2 - - - N ] - - - - - 65
Accrued distrioution to holders of - TR AEHEHA
convertible perpetual securiies &5t AR 3 - - - - - - - - - (19679 (19679
Dividend declared o ordinary A& BRFRE KRS
shareholder - - - - - - - - (138682 - (138682
Trangfer to statutory reserve.  BAZATRE (o) - - - - - - 8915 - - (8o91) -
Share premium reduction IR AEE @ - (500,000 - - - - - - 500000 - -
At 31 December 2017 R-E-t§
+2f=t-8 B33 212050 (119705 19800 (85450 23185 215064 24426 476020 2232712 2964716




34 RESERVES (Continued)

34 EER

Revaluation
gain on the
property
transferring
from property
,plant and
Share based Capital equipment to
Merger Share  Translation compensation ~ Employee  redemption Statutory Other  Contributed  investment Retained
reserve premium reserve reserve  share trust reserve reserve reserve surplus  properties earnings Total
BTEE-
IBRRE
EREREM
it &8 &% LESEIES
A% RBEE  FEEE  BEEE  RBETE  BERE  fERE  HBRE  BHER  EMFE  ghkE a3t
Note RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
hE ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR
At1 January 2018 R=E-NE-A-R (83,396) 212,051 (119,705) 19,800 (35,450) 23,185 215,064 24,426 476,029 - 2,232,112 2,964,716
Changesinaccounting &3t HEEH
policies 22 - - - - - - - - - - (44,671) (44,671)
Restated balance at “2-\5-f-H
1 January 2018 BENIGH (833%) 212051 (119,705) 19,800 (35,450) 2185 215064 4% 476020 - 2188041 2920045
Profit for the year EERA - - - - - - - - - - 1,112,774 1,112,774
Other comprehensive ~ E 2 :
income:
Revauanganonthe  B7ENE - TRRRE
property transferring from - EBEREMNEY
property, plant and nEEHHE
equipment to investment
properties 18 - - - - - - - - - 14515 - 14515
Bxchange diference arising 855N EBE £
flom ranglation of foreign~~ E} ZH
operations - - (129,029) - - - - - - - - (129,029)
Total comprehensive ~ FE2ERREE
income for the year - - (129,029) - - - - - - 14,515 1,112,774 998,260
Shares held for Share SR RE A
Award Scheme HkG 32(0) - - - - 17,486) - - - - - - (17,486)
Employee share based vt
compensation 320) - - - (9,966) 9,966 - - - - - - -
Issue of orcinary shares as ~ SEREEHARET
capitalisation of LER
shareholder loans 3 - 251,997 - - - - - - - - - 251,997
Conversion of convertible ~ SATERKAES
perpetual securities 83 - 360,318 - - - - - - - - - 360,318
Accrued distroution of TERKARSFEEA
holders of convertble AR
perpetual securities R - - - - - - - - - - (29,599) (29,599)
Dividend declared to MERRRE
ordnary shareholder EERRE 18 - - - - - - - - - - (138682 (138,682)
Trangfer to statutory resene. BEZEFE (o) - - - - - - 54,501 - - - (54,501) -
At31December2018  R=F-N\E
+=B=t-H (83,396) 824,366 (248,734) 9,834 (42,970) 23,185 269,565 24,426 476,029 14,515 3,078,033 4,344,853

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR
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34 RESERVES (Continued)

(@)

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the annual general
meeting held on 10 June 2017, an amount of
RMB500,000,000 was transferred from the share premium
account to the contributed surplus account. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, a company may make
distributions to its shareholders out of the contributed
surplus under certain circumstances.

In accordance with the Laws of Mainland China on
Enterprises Operated Exclusively with Foreign Capital and
the Articles of Association of the Group’s subsidiaries
incorporated in Mainland China, an appropriation to
statutory reserves has to be made prior to profit distribution
to the owners. The appropriation to statutory reserve of
these foreign investment enterprises shall be no less than
10% of the net profit until the accumulated appropriation
exceeds 50% of the registered capital.

34 REE®

@)

BRER-_Z—tFAATHBITZER
BERXEBBHRBZR AR®

500,000,000 7t F % 17 4 (B AR El 5 2 & £
BHRE-BEERE—NAN—FAF
% RRIAEETER TABERAKN
RREEL DK ©

BEFBEAMIINEBECEERAEE
A HR B A b, 2 T K SZ B0 BB 1 R A 4B 45
ERMA) - mEEA AERFESIRAT -
BEEERBEIEL DR - ZZINERE
PEEEERENENF IR
10%  EE 2 HEBATMERD
50% A1k °



35 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 35 FFEFIMERS

For the year For the year
ended ended

31 December 31 December
2018 2017

BE-2-\F HE_T—+F
t=A=+—-8 +=A=+—H
LR IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBETTT

At 1 January as originally stated R—A—B8  &KREE5 206,122 152,060
Adjustment on adoption of HKFRS 15, HERA BB RELRIE155]

net of tax (note 2.2.1) YEHFA% - FBRTIE (M15E2.2.1) (1,006) -
Restated balance at 1 January 2018 —E-NF—A—BKEY &% 205,116 162,060
Profit for the year FE 327,796 140,318
Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries U B i B A FlEBSMEZS - (134,044)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) U BE B B A A (i sE37) 17,247 137,010
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries BRIELENB AT - (33,407)
Contribution from non-controlling interests JEFEH ST E 13,498 24,674
Distribution to non-controlling interests ) FEA2E ) 14 2 2 I (188,550) (61,344)
Exchange differences PE W Z%E 2,233 (19,145)
At 31 December R+—_A=+—8H 377,340 206,122

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

36 CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(A) CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

36 BEREEs
(A) RERBRSE

Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash generated MRETEF AT EELEESTSIR S YR
from operations is as follows: mr
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
B2 N\& (BT —+F
+=ZHA=+—8H +=ZHA=+—H
IEFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBT T
Profit before income tax BRETISTERIFE 2,261,739 1,127,411
Adjustments for: JHEX
Interest income (note 7 & 10) A E Wz (HH5E7 &2 10) (160,574) (10,120)
Depreciation of property, TE)E - TR ENITE
plant and equipment (note 19) (MF5E19) 57,073 11,258
Fair value gain on investment REUMERN R ABENSF
properties (note 18) (ftzE18) (7,363) (28,910)
Interest expense (note 10) A EEA(KFE10) 323,018 249,045
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 8)  HEWE R RHFIE (H3E8) (166,822) (285,619)
Gain on disposal of a joint venture (note 8) HE&E —E&LMEMNFIE (FiFEs) - (608)
Share of net profit of associates (note 16)  FE{LE: & A FI4EF (FzE16) (408,854) (169,453)
Elimination of transactions with AR A R HR 5 (MiFE16)
associates (note 16) 46,418 -
Share of net profit of joint ventures (note 17) FE{H A & D248 F (FH3E17) (257,991) (21,881)
Elimination of transactions with joint MEEPEHHR S (ME17)
ventures (note 17) 196,367 -
Loss on disposal of property, HETHE  LHREKENESE
plant and equipment (note 8) (FFzE8) 10 2
Gain on re-measurement of existing R Z —EH B A a)iF
interest in a joint venture upon EFTERAETCERE
conversion to a subsidiary (note 8) HERFE (MTEE8) (19,653) -
Provision for decline in the value of R EHERSEEEMEEER
properties under development TR (EE9)
and held for sale (note 9) 5,873 1,032
Gain on FVPL (note 8) BAFEFABREZOFE (HE8) (2,675) -
Provision for impairment of financial TRVEERERE (M)
assets (note 9) (714) 2,783
Operating profit before movements in MR EEREBRIHL LN
working capital 1,865,852 874,940
Increase in properties held for sale HEHEmEE M (149,560) (453,540)



36 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)
(A) CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(Continued)

36 BEREaEs#®
(A) BERBRE(E)

For the year For the year

ended ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
(2T -N\F BE_ZT—+tF
+=—A=+—H +=ZA=+—H
IEFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREEF T AREET T
Decrease in properties under development 5 %E /= ih & g 4> 326,246 1,430,029
Increase in inventories BN (64,492) (28,559)
Increase in trade and other receivables, FEUBRER - H AR - FEI
prepayments and deposits Riz4 (680,232) (1,882,707)
Decrease in contract assets SEHREBERD 105,333 -
Increase in trade and other payables FE A~ BR R N ELAth 5 ZR A8 N 1,662,806 2,413,636
Increase in contract liabilities BB EE 27,963 -
Increase/(Decrease) in advanced MR FUER B TE TS 50R
proceeds received from customers 20 CGRiA) 13,869 (873,739)
Increase in restricted cash 52 PR HII 2R & 32 0 (13,772) (25,397)
Increase in employee share trust 1B 8RR {= 51 m (19,631) (6,543)
Operating profit after movements brigiE B & B BNERELFE
in working capital 3,074,382 1,448,120
Acquisition of assets and liabilities through  FBUKEEHT B A R BE & &
acquisition of subsidiary (note 37 (b)) K& & (HE37() (548,057) -
Net cash generated from operations K& SR ETHE 2,526,325 1,448,120

(B) Non-cash investing and financing activities disclosed in

(B) MEMMERBENIFRERENBED

other notes are: A

. Conversion of convertible perpetual securities — note . HITHA ALK A 755 — 3£ 33 (b)
33 (b)

. Issue of new shares for capitalization of shareholder’s . IR EE R E AL B ITHR —KT:E

loans — note 31 (a) 31 (a)

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

36 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)
(C) NET DEBT RECONCILIATION

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

36 REREER @

(C) HRENHK
TREIIAEEHEREETHMELAR
WES(BERENFRSEH)FIE-
BRELTHMEENBE/SREERNE

BHRERERDVELARELTHMBRS
/nb;ﬂ’]fﬁﬁmiﬁiﬂiﬂﬁﬁ@ﬁ% °

arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flow will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statements of cash flows as cash flows from financing

activities.
Amounts Amounts
due to non- due to
controlling related
Borrowings interest parties Total
FE1S FE il i FEfF
B BENE B S HE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFL AREFL AREFT ARETL
As at 1 January 2017 —T—+%—H—H 6,083,341 211,492 2,112,472 8,407,305
Cash flows Beng 567,982 (92,837) 2,646,2140 3,121,359
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR (1,259,440) (83,328) - (1,342,768)
Exchange difference arising from B BN ERFTEE
translation of foreign operations fE =% 24,026 - - 24,026
Accrual of interest FERTHIE 13,506 - - 13,506
As at 31 December 2017 RZZ—LF
+-HB=+-H 5,429,415 35,327 4,758,686 10,223,428
As at 1 January 2018 R=—Z—N\E—H—H 5,429,415 35,327 4,758,686 10,223,428
Cash flows Beng 1,459,251 (14,193)™ 1,136,4740 2,581,532
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) Y i Mt A &) (ff &£ 37) 296,198 384,365 - 680,563
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) HEMB AR (Miz38) (255,400) - - (255,400)
Capitalization of shareholder loans ~ REEZEA(L - - (254,997) (254,997)
Exchange difference arising from BN ERBFEE
translation of foreign operations EHER 95,131 - - 95,131
Accrual of interest JEET & - 4,546 73,188 77,734
As at 31 December 2018 RZE—\F
+-HB=+-H 7,024,595 410,045 5,713,351 13,147,991




36 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)
(C) NET DEBT RECONCILIATION (Continued)

(i) The cash flows include financing cash inflow of
RMB945,166,000 (2017: RMB1,626,814,000)and
operating cash inflow of RMB191,308,000(2017:
RMB1,019,400,000).

(i)  The cash flows include financing cash outflow of
RMB10,794,000 (2017: Nil) and operating cash inflow
of RMB3,399,000 (2017: Nil).

37 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

36 HEREER (&)

(C)

FEENHER®E)

() HRERELEBRERSRTAARE
945,166,000 (ZE—+%F : AR
#1,626,814,00070) REER ST
AAER#191,308,000T(ZF—+
F: AR#1,019,400,0007T) °

(i) BRenEpEmERSTHARE
10,794,000 C(ZE—+tF : T) K&
LI R A AR ¥ 3,399,000 7T

—E—tE T

37 WiEKME AT

(A) BUSINESS COMBINATION (A) EKEH
On 7 February 2018, the Group acquired 100% equity RZE—N\E-_A+tH "EHR—%F
interest in E/8EMAAZ 1% (BRE%) (Shanghai Rui Kai FE-FNE T EERSELE(BERA
investment partnership (limited partnership))(“Rui Kai”) and %) (&R J)100% M # K Silver Knight
61.54% equity interest in Silver Knight Global Limited (“SK”) Global Limited ([SK1) 61.54% fi% # - #2
from a third party at a total consideration of REBAARE 221,010,000 ° Y%
RMB221,010,000. After the acquisition, SK which the SK(AR & BN R 5 ATFE A 38.46%) B 7%
Group held 38.46% before the transaction became a KEBEE2EMB AR - WHERTAREE AT
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. The carrying amount 56 38.46% REMKREEBEAS -
of 38.46% equity interest held by the Group before the
acquisition was Nil.
On 8 February 2018, the Group acquired 100% equity RZE—NEFE-_AN\B  KEBMRE—F
interest in Guangzhou Jian Zhao Enterprise Management % = 7 W B Guangzhou Jian Zhao
Co., Ltd. (“GZJianZhao”) from a third party at a Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. ([ & /M
consideration of RMB230,000,000. EBDI00%k #E RERARE
230,000,0007T °
Purchase consideration Rui Kai SK GZJianZhao Total
BERE -1 SK &N EE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT
— Cash considerations —HeEREB 189,525 31,485 208,000 429,010
— Other receivables — HEfb R - - 22,000 22,000
— Re-measurement of interest — EFFEN S LB
in joint ventures FHkEs - 19,653 - 19,653
Total consideration transferred EEH AR (E 189,525 51,138 230,000 470,663

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

37 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(A) BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

The assets and liabilities recognized as a result of these

37 WEEBHEBATE#)
(A) XBEE6tE)
EEmERNEERSENT -

acquisitions are as follows:

Rui Kai SK GZJianZhao Total
&6 SK EMNER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARKETT ARBTT ARETT
Cash and cash equivalents He MRS EEY 1,178 237,852 5,612 244,642
Trade and other receivables,  FEURBR UM H fth B UL R -
prepayments and deposits AR RRES 188,347 31,953 445 220,745
Properties under development B3 B ith & (B £ 23)
(note 23) - 846,296 - 846,296
Property, plant and equipment  REIE « T KRR
(note 19) (FFzE19) - - 325,881 325,881
Deferred income tax assets EIEFTIS I EE = 2,397 = 2,397
Trade and other payables FEA BR 3R I EL M FE A 3k = (404,381) (35,529) (439,910)
Contract liabilities aHaE - (299,443) = (299,443)
Borrowings R - (296,198) - (296,198)
Deferred income tax liabilities ~ JEIEFTIST & & = (67,338) (66,409) (133,747)
Net identifiable assets acquired 3% /A 52 & {E FT UL B Hy 7]
at fair value HREEE 189,525 51,138 230,000 470,663
Less: non-controlling interests  J& @ =S = — _ _ _
Add: goodwill o e - - - -
Total acquired net assets RARBEBEED
at fair value FEREMAE 189,525 51,138 230,000 470,663
Cash (outflow)/inflow on WERNES (RE),/RA
acquisitions
Total considerations settled Be T BRE
by cash (189,525) (31,485) (208,000) (429,010)
Cash acquired in the W B FTUR BB FT B A |
subsidiaries acquired HIRE 1,178 237,852 5,612 244,642
Cash (outflow)/inflow on WEEMIRE (R, RA
acquisitions (188,347) 206,367 (202,388) (184,368)




37 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(A)

(B)

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

The acquired business contributed revenues of
RMB690,274,000 and profit of RMB20,453,000 to the
Group for the period from 7 February to 31 December
2018.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2018,
consolidated pro-forma revenue for the year ended 31
December 2018 would have been the same and profit for
the year ended 31 December 2018 would have
RMB12,513,000 lower. These amounts have been
calculated using the subsidiaries’ results and adjusting
them for:

o differences in the accounting policies between the
Group and the subsidiaries’, and

o additional cost of sales that would have been
charged assuming the fair value adjustments to
properties under development had applied from 1
January 2018, together with the consequential tax
effects.

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
On 7 July 2018, the Group acquired 99.59% equity interest
in Chengdu Haixing from multiple third parties at a total
consideration of RMB688,190,000. After the acquisition,
Chengdu Haixing became a partially owned subsidiary of
the Group.

On 10 Sept 2018, the Group acquired 60% equity interest
in BRIREYRFOEREEAR (Nanjng Wangjiawan
Logistics Center Co., Ltd.) (“Wangjiawan”) from a third
party at a total consideration of RMB21,580,000. After the
acquisition, Wangjiawan became a partially owned
subsidiary of the Group.

37 WEMEBQR®)

(A)

(B)

¥BattE)

WREBEFE-_T— \F-AtHZEZ=
T-N\E+-_A=t+—BHHRLEE
BB A A R 690,274,000 7t K Fi)
AR ¥ 20,453,000 7T °

MERBE_FT—NF—HA—HE %
A HEZZE-N\F+ZHA=T—80%F
ENeaHEZKRASHER #E22F%
—N\FE+_A=+—BEENFHEER
D ARBA2,513,00070 ° ZES ALK
LATAZRENMNBARKEEEST

o AKENMBARZEAMNGFBER
=82 K

s RRU-F-NF—A—-BEYHH
BmREMEETAREERAE - A
FIREIZ MNAVERIMHE A - A K AH
FER BT &

BRWBEHEBLARKBEERAR

- \FtAtH AEEHRZESE
= HURBBRC RS B109.50% sk + BR(E
B AR 688,190,000 7T » efE1% - A ED
HEKAREBEZEWB AR -

“E-N\FAATR  AEER—RFE
=HWEEREREYRT LAEREML
REATERED60% s - BRERA
K% 21,580,0007C - g% - EFHKEMX
REEEFFEEMBARR] -

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR
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37 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(B) ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

37 WEMEBQR®)

(B) BBRKBHELARKBEERER

THROUGH ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

The assets and liabilities recognized as a result of these

acquisitions are as follows:

(%)

R EmERNEERBEWNT

Chengdu
Haixing Wangjiawan Total
B FRE wst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARETTT ARET T
Cash and cash equivalents HERIBEESZEEY 67,469 4,763 72,232
Trade and other receivables, JE S AR R % LA R MR

prepayments and deposits SENE Y& K 367 2,137 2,504
Properties under development FAEEh B i EE (FdsE23)

(note 23) 1,296,733 549,739 1,846,472
Deferred income tax assets RS EE = 1,521 1,521
Trade and other payables & 1~ BR B0 e EL b PR~ X (673,519) (517,515) (1,191,034)
Contract liabilities aHaE = (4,636) (4,636)

691,050 36,009 727,059
Less: non-controlling interests A IR RS (2,860) (14,387) (17,247)
Total acquired net assets WIERREE 688,190 21,622 709,812
Total consideration BRE 688,190 21,622 709,812
Net cash outflow on acquisitions ~ UYgEEEIR & %R H
Total considerations settled by cash IR & % R @K (E (688,190) (21,622) (709,812)
Cash acquired in the subsidiaries Y BEFTUBEMT B A RIRIIR &

acquired 67,469 4,763 72,232
Consideration payable (note 28) FERHR(E (MfzE28) 89,523 = 89,523
Net cash outflow on acquisitions WHERIE &% (531,198) (16,859) (548,057)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, acquisition
of such subsidiaries does not constitute a business.
Therefore, the transaction was determined by the directors
of the Company to be acquisition of assets and liabilities
through acquisition of subsidiary rather than a business
combination as defined in HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business

Combination.

ARAEERBR/PBZENBRRL
BRER - ALARREZERHRTE
RBBRBHEARWBEENEE
MIEEBH B MEEANFE IR (B %
BaHRENEHE B -



38 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

PARTIAL DISPOSAL

On 29 June 2018, the Group disposed of two property
development companies (“Su Qian”) by reducing equity interests
from 100.00% to 51.00% respectively at a total consideration of
RMB196,801,000, and retained Su Qian as joint ventures.

On 19 July 2018, the Group disposed of a wholly owned property
development company (“Ningbo”) by selling 60% equity interests
at a consideration of RMB43,834,000.

DEEMED DISPOSAL

On 30 April 2018, the Group lost control of a wholly owned
subsidiary, namely, Jiaxing Langrong Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership) (“Jiaxing Langrong”), pursuant to capital
injection by new investors and the Group at the amount of
RMB29,000,000 and RMB79,000,000, respectively. After such
capital injection, Jiaxing Langrong became a joint venture of the
Group.

The Group also disposed of certain subsidiaries in year 2018,
which were considered not significant to the Group.

(@  Summaries of these disposals are as follows:

38

HEMNE AT

o HE

ZE-N\FEARNAZTIE  AEETREMRY
XRABAE([1ERE]) - 1§ ZH 100.00% B
%£51.00% ' BRER AR 196,801,0007T
WIRBEEBIEGERE -

—E-N\FtA+NB AEBLEREYE
RERR([EK])  FEAEHE0%EZ @
BAAREA43,834,0007T °

RIELHE

RZZ—N\FMNA=+H ' REFEESE A
£ @5 RI5EE AR #29,000,000 7T M A R
79,000,000 * AEBAEH L2 ENBARE
FERARINE B ¥ (EREE) ([ZHEME])
B FIAE - ST B RERKARNEBNE
BE o

AEBTR_Z—N\FHEE THAEEWL T
BRHHBAR o

@ EFHELEREZOT :

Net cash

inflow/

Gain on (outflow)

disposal of from disposal

subsidiaries  of subsidiaries

HEHE AT

o 5 B /2B RBERA

NCIVAESS (R H) 588

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFT

Disposal of Sugian HEFE 110,851 96,226
Disposal of Ningbo e =R 30,521 40,322
Deemed disposal of Jiaxing Langrong RAEL & 32 FEARL 3,378 (5,690)
Disposal of others & HAth 22,072 3,410
166,822 134,268

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR
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38 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38 HEMB AR (&)
DEEMED DISPOSAL (Continued) HIELE &)
(b) Net assets disposed with reconciliation of disposal gain ) HETFEERNEFNEBRRSHAY
and cash inflow are as follows:
BRAAT -
Disposal of subsidiaries to joint ventures
HEMBARARELE
Total
Jiaxing disposal of
Su Qian Langrong Ningbo Others Totd  asubsidiary Total
HE-%

BE  EEME B b 5t WBLRAR ot
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RWBOOO  RMBOOO  RWBOOD  RMBOD
ARETR  ARETR ARRTL ARETR  ARMTR  ARBTn  ARETR

Net assets disposed of comprise: ~ friLEFEERALE

— Properties under development - FEPEE (1 23)
(note 23) 505,694 = 206,857 = 762,551 = 762,551
— Cash and cash equivlents - ReRReEEY 100,575 5,690 3512 18 10989 2 10367
— Trade and other receivables, - EREFREM RN
prepayments and deposits BiiFk&ke 5830 9163 23,439 306,236 344,668 33,240 377,908
— Interests in joint ventures - REELENER - = = 143216 143216 = 143216
— Deferred income tax assets - BREFGHEE 6,370 784 11452 1,360 19,966 4414 24,380
— Property, plant and equipment - T8E  THRRE
(note 19) (PHzE19) 108 325,880 21 = 326,010 34,061 360,071
— Trade and other payables - BRI (237,970) (44083 (52752 (451275 (986,080) (88,914 (1,074,994
— Borrowings - % (100000)  (155400) - - (285400 - (285400
— Deferred income tax fabilties - BREMERAR - (66,409) - - (66,409) - (66,409
280,602 75,605 42535 (345) 308,417 (16,727) 381,690
Recognition of interest in joint ventures (| BEZAS 0 EEE() 194,652 79,003 29202 1,000 303,877 - 308,877
Cash conideration received BRBERERE 196,801 - 43834 4000 24463 - ME%
391,453 79,003 73,036 5000 548512 - 5851
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARNFE 110,851 3,378 30,521 5,345 150,095 16,727 166,822
Net cash inflow arising on the disposals:  HEZFR)FRSITA
Totel consideration setfied by cash B4R ELE 196,801 - 43834 4,000 244,63 = 244,635
Less: Cashand cash equivlentsin -~ T EMBARINES
the disposed subsidlaries RREZEN (100,575) (5,690) (3512) (118 (109,8%) {9 (110,367)
Net cashinflow arising on the disposals  HEE£#FREHA - 96,206 (5,690) 40322 3,882 134,740 (472) 134,268
()  Included in gain on disposal of subsidiaries is re- () HEMBRARZAESBEEGELE
measurement gain of interest in joint ventures of EXEHSFEHNE AR
RMB46,387,000.

46,387,000 7T °
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39 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND 39 BABMLERRRS

TRANSACTIONS
In addition to those related party balances and transactions MZEGEUBERRIEWREIN ~EEHES
elsewhere disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, the THEKEE AR RS

Group had the following significant balances and transactions:
(A) AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES (A) FEURERESE 5 FRIE

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
RZB-—NFE RZZE—LF
+=-—A=+-8 +=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARBT T

Included in non-current assets (note 25): T AJETRBIEE (MizE25) :

— Associates ()) — Bt A () 278,162 285,364
— Joint ventures (i) — BB (i) 1,353,333 1,085,171
1,631,495 1,370,535
Included in current assets (note 25): SFARBEE (F:E25) -

— Associates (i) — B R E () 89,209 768,465
— Joint ventures (ii) — A& i) 656,091 791,361

— Ultimate controlling shareholder and its — S IZERRIEE R AR &
fellow subsidiaries oy INE] 511 =
745,811 1,559,826

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR
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39 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(A) AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES
(Continued)

M

(i)

As of 31 December 2018, non-current amounts due
from associates generate interest at 8.00% per
annum. Current amounts due from associates include
RMB83,541,000 generating interest at 14.00% per
annum and the remaining amounts are interest-free.

As of 31 December 2017, non-current amounts due
from associates generate interest at 8.00% per
annum. Current amounts due from associates include
RMB204,104,000 generating interest at 14.00% per
annum and the remaining amounts are interest-free.

As of 31 December 2018, non-current amounts due
from joint ventures generate interest ranging from
5.00% to 13.00% per annum. Current amounts due
from joint ventures include RMB226,570,000
generating interest ranging from 6.5% to 12% per
annum and the remaining amounts are interest-free.

As of 31 December 2017, non-current amounts due
from joint ventures generate interest ranging from
5.00% to 12.00% per annum. Current amounts due
from joint ventures include RMB159,000,000
generating interest ranging from 5.00% to 12.00%
per annum and the remaining amounts are interest-
free.

All amounts due from related parties are unsecured.

The carrying amounts of amounts due from related parties

approximate their fair values.

30 BEAERRRS #®)

(A) FEURERRET FRIE (&)
M RB-NF+t-_A=+—H &

W Bk & N B 3E R B R IB AR F X
8.00% &8 o &Y BE L N AR BN
H B8 & A R #83,541,0007T © &
14.00% FHEEHE - HERE S ©

RZT—+F+=ZA=+—H &
Ug Bk & N B FE AT B FROIA B R =R
8.00% &t 5 - JEUREEZ N Al mENFK
HBE AR 204,104,0007T © &
14.00% FFEGH 2 - HEREE ©

iy RZZBE-—N\F+ZA=+—H &
KELELEIERBRBENT
5.00% & 13.00% F F| L 51 8. - [E
WEEPERDAERLREARE
226,570,0007C ' #ZFEFIE6.5% %=
12%5HE - HBRR S o

Hz—_Z—+tF+-_A=+—8"
e %ﬁ%;'f/m@] RIEIZ N F
5.00% £ 12.00% F 5| R+ B - &
WEZCERBREBREARE
159,000,000 7T * # /T F5.00% =
12.00% FF K48 8 T A
%/%‘o
Fii A5 FE Uk Ba s 7 200 A IR o
JiE i FBE Bt 5 = 7B O BR B R
HBE



39 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND 39 BEEAERERS &)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(B) AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES (B) FE{TREH S FIE

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
R=B—N\E ATt
+=A=+-R +=A=t+-A
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Included in non-current liabilities (note 28): & AJERBI & & (Fi3E28) :
— Associates (i) — Bt A () 1,581,829 1,761,220
— Joint ventures (ii) — A& E i) 1,222,997 763,474
— Ultimate controlling shareholder and its  — E—iﬂ 7% S ER I H (R KB e

fellow subsidiaries (iii) A (iii) - 189,912
2,804,826 2,714,606
Included in current liabilities (note 28): sFAREBAE(7E28) !

— Associates ()) — Bt A () 2,175,106 298,200
— Joint venturesiii) — BEDE) 676,754 25,398

— Ultimate controlling shareholder and its  — E—fﬂ% & P8 BRI H ) ZK B 8
fellow subsidiaries (i) 7> A (iii) 56,666 1,720,482
2,908,526 2,044,080

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

39 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(B) AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

30 BEAERRRS #®)
(B) FEATREEATT FXIE (&)

(Continued)

M

(i)

(i)

As of 31 December 2018, non-current amounts due
to associates are interest-free. Current amounts due
to associates include RMB736,360,000 bearing
interest at 5.70% per annum and the remaining
amounts are interest-free.

As of 31 December 2017, non-current amounts due
to associates are interest-free. Current amounts due
to associates includes RMB293,700,000 bearing
interest at 8.50% per annum and the remaining
amounts are interest-free.

As of 31 December 2018, both non-current and
current amounts due to joint ventures are interest-
free.

As of 31 December 2017, non-current amounts due
to joint ventures include RMB315,230,000 bearing
interest ranging from 6.00% to 7.50% per annum and
the remaining amounts are interest-free. Current
amounts due to joint ventures are interest-free.

As of 31 December 2018, current amount due to
ultimate controlling shareholder and its fellow
subsidiaries are interest-free.

As of 31 December 2017, non-current amounts due
to ultimate controlling shareholder and its fellow
subsidiaries bear interest at 5.50% per annum.
Current amounts due to ultimate controlling
shareholder and its fellow subsidiaries are interest-
free.

All amounts due to related parties are unsecured.

M

(i)

(i)

HE-Z—N\F+=ZA=+—8"
JTE'E{—JLH AF\?;‘EML@JTJIKIEEﬁg °
ERBE QAR RBNBEREARE
736,360,0007T * 1% F | £5.70%
B Efe B o

BE-F-LFEt=A=+—A
ENEE ARIERBKIBEREE ©
EREE A RRBRIEREARE
293,700,000 7T ¥ F FI| & 8.50% &1
S HERBE o

BE-F-/\F+-A=+—8"
et & %ﬂ:\%#mu@ FIERRBRK
B RRE °

BHE_T—tHF+-_A=+—8"
ﬁ§1—JL/\A£/JJ:\¥3F/m HEBEAR
#315,280,0007T ' L H)%6.00%
F750%ETE - EffR B o BN &
ERERBRIBLARE

BE-_ZT-\F+=-A=+—8"
FEHEZRT RIRRREBRMEA
RIREFIER S, °

BE-2— 5 +=A=+—8
R s&ERBRRRERZM B A
7] IE R B 3K I8 1% F F K 5.50% &t
B o JERT B AR IR AR R e L [R) ZR A
BRARIRBHRIBEALE °

P FE S BRI 77 SRR /S SRR AR o



39 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND 39 BEEAERERS &)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(C) TRADE RECEIVABLES (C) EWERR

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
RZB-NFE RZZE—LF
+=A=+-A +-A=+-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T

Included in current assets (note 25): sFAREEE (MizE25)

— Joint ventures — A% 211,615 158,065
— Associates — Bt N A 108,867 65,586

— Ultimate controlling shareholder and its — AR FEARARE R H B R
fellow subsidiaries L)EEMNG] 14,812 -
335,294 223,651
Less: provision for bad debt (note 3.1(0)()) & : TEREE (M EE3.1(0)(i) (3,353) -
331,941 223,651

(D) BORROWINGS (D) B

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
R-ZE—NF RZZT—+F
+=ZA=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETR ARET T

— Ultimate controlling shareholder — BRI AR R (P13E 29)
(note 29) 1,665,000 1,665,000

(E) GUARANTEE (E) R

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
RZB-NE RZZT—LtF
+=ZA=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREET T

— Guarantee in respect of related parties’ — FLEAH: 75 & IR EER
borrowings (note 40) (P zE 40) 184,278 230,316
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39 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND 39 BB AERRRS #)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(F) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (F) BBAEXRS
(i)  Funding with related parties () EBEBLERES

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-B-NF+-A=t-BLEE

Collection of funding

Funding to related parties to related parties

mEBLRMES nEHLREES
Operating Investing Operating Investing
i B g RE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  AR®TR  ARWTR  AR®TR

Associates =N 19 42,000 280,306 157,000

Joint ventures BERE 1,856,146 1,830,775 1,460,784 1,735,797
Ultimate controlling shareholder SR #ER%AREE & K 7 &

and its fellow subsidiaries HEBAT 511 - - -

1,856,676 1,872,775 1,741,090 1,892,797

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-Z-N\FtZAZ+-BLEE
Proceeds from related parties  Repayment to related parties
mEEE KRES HEELEEES

Operating Financing Operating Financing

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTR AR®TR ARBT T

Associates YN 1,369,803 438,080 86,600 32,000

Joint ventures RERR 2,117,434 674,000 1,481,847 200,000
Uttimate controlling shareholder SRR IR [ KA &

and its fellow subsidiaries MEBAR 5,866,725 1,207,973 7,530,540 1,142,887

9,353,962 2,320,053 9,098,987 1,374,887




39 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND 39 BEEAERERS &)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(F) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (F) BEARZ (&)
(i)  Funding with related parties (Continued) () HEEBLERES (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—tF+-A=1t—HLFE

Funding to Collection of funding
related parties to related parties
MR REE 2 ML KEE S
Operating Investing Operating Investing
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT  ARBTT ARETR  ARETR

Associates NG| 570,022 285,364 2,801 468,849
Joint ventures AEE 656,567 38,955 = 809,404
1,226,589 324,319 2,801 1,278,253
For the year ended 31 December 2017
B2 Z—+tFt+-A=t—HIEE
Proceeds from related parties Repayment to related parties
AR 5 NE & mEHHEEES
Operating Financing Operating Financing
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETTT AREFT
Associates i=y/NG] 737,492 485,838 = 253,000
Joint ventures AEtE 290,000 561,734 = 94,870
Uttimate controlling sharenolder ~ SERZERBRERERZF
and its fellow subsidlaries EVNS - 1,032,472 8,092 105,360
1,027,492 2,080,044 8,092 453,230

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR
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39 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND 30 BEAERRRS #®)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(F) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (F) BEARS (&)
(i) Management services, other income and (i) EERY HEttlhzREEKRE

finance cost

For the year For the year
ended ended

31 December 31 December
2018 2017

BZE HZE
—E-N\F —E—tF
+=A=+-8 +=ZA=+—H
I“HEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Management services income from REBERARIREEREL

associates and joint ventures (a) BEERBIE (@) 548,884 421,983
Management services income from R EFEIERIRRA R R

fellow subsidiaries of the ultimate M8 R a2 B AR W a (b)

controlling shareholder (b) 23,238 612
Interest income on amounts due from [ Y BE < A B3 IE 2 FI 8

associates (note 7) (MFzE7) 36,085 52,454
Interest income on amounts due from  fEWESZERERIEZFE

joint ventures (note 7) (Bds£7) 69,650 52,948
Purchase from fellow subsidiaries of B IR AR IS B /Y [B B B A &)

ultimate controlling shareholder (c) 5 () 32,382 -
Interest expense on loans from the A RRITARIE R 2 B A B

ultimate controlling shareholder &R (M45E10) (0)

(note 10) (d) 95,483 126,388

Interest expense on loans from fellow pER TS S olE E =
subsidiaries of the ultimate controling N 7] > &% 5 & H

shareholder (note 10) (H=10) 27,963 58,098
Interest expense on loans from joint KASEPEZETHE

ventures (note 10) BHA (MzE10) 15,448 29,789
Interest expense on loans from REABES AT 2 ETH 2B

associates (note 10) (MzE10) 18,543 11,388




39 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(F) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(i) Management services, other income and
finance cost (Continued)

(@)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group continuously provided management
services to its associates and joint ventures.
The prices of these services are based on the
prevailing market prices of similar services.

Pursuant to the management services
agreement entered into between the Group and
its ultimate controlling shareholder, the Group
provided certain development management
services and sales management services to
fellow subsidiaries of the ultimate controlling
shareholder during the year ended 31
December 2018. These transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Group
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and
such transactions have complied with the
relevant disclosure requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

The prices of these services are based on the
prevailing market prices of similar services
provided by the Group to independent third
parties.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group purchased certain green architecture
technological products and services, decoration
services, property services and properties
consulting service from fellow subsidiaries. The
prices of products and services were based on
the prevailing market prices of similar products
and services.

The ultimate holding company provided interest
bearing loans to the Group during the year. The
interest expense on loans is based on prevailing
market interest rate and is exempted from the
reporting and disclosure requirement pursuant
to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

39 BEEAERERS &)

(F) BEARZ (&)
(i) BEERYE Btz REELKX

(%)

(@)

HEZEREERAT / —F

HE-_ZT—-—NF+=A
=t+—HLEFE XEEH
BrBE R kEEanER
HEBRY  ZERBAE
LRz RITMEAEEE

# o

AR 1 A £ B B g AR IR AR R
FINZAEEERE S
BHz_Z2—-—N\&+=A
=t+t—HLEFEAEERR
RIZIGRE R AR R M B A A
RIEEETEHERBEE - #
EERIR - BIK LT A
FUAE  ZERZFBEBRA
SEZEEBERS  Mx
EXZEETLEMRAUE
T4AEFTEVERIIREE IR E ©

ZFERGARNEERB LR
= REBRURBZRTH
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

39 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND 39 BHMLERERS #)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(G) Included in employee benefit expenses are key (G) RERMNERBERENUTHAIZER
management personnel compensations which comprises EIRABEME

the following categories:

For the year For the year
ended ended

31 December 31 December
2018 2017

BZE HZE
—E-N\F —E—tF
+=A=+-8 +=ZA=+—H
I“HEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTR ARETT

Short term employee benefits PSEEL=FER 37,681 42,641

Contributions to retirement benefits schemes B IR@FIFT 245K 1,110 1,267

Restricted share award PR ) 15 A% 1) 22 B - =

38,791 43,908
(H) TRANSACTIONS DISCLOSED IN OTHER (H REMMZEHEBEHNRSE

NOTES ARE:

. Conversion of convertible perpetual securities — note o R K A B S — K33 (b)
33 (b)

. Issue of new shares for capitalization of shareholder o IR ERE N EITHR — K
loans — note 31 (a) 31 (a)

. Disposal of BAFFFESHEEEZRE (L&) BRAA o HEMFEEEEERB (L8 A
(“Landsea Ivy Senior housing Service (Shanghai) Co., BBAFTFREIEREEN —KRBZR
Ltd.”) to a fellow subsidiary of the ultimate controlling MEA AR REAEAREBIT —
shareholder at the consideration of RMB1 — note 38. Mt 38 ©



40 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
GUARANTEE

40 HAKE

BER

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
i »
—E-NF —E
t=A=+—-8 +=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT

Guarantee in respect of mortgage facilities for gtE T B R 2 128 Rl & FriZ (L #£ 1R (a)
certain purchasers (a) 2,110,433 2,140,598

Guarantee in respect of related parties’ DL 5 (BRI LR ()

borrowings (b) 184,278 230,316
2,294,711 2,370,914

The Group cooperated with various financial institutions to
arrange mortgaged loan facilities for the purchasers of its
properties and provided guarantees to secure such
purchasers’ obligation of repayments. Such guarantees will
be released by banks upon earlier of the issuance of the
real estate ownership certificate and the satisfaction of
relevant mortgaged loan. In the opinion of directors of the
Company, the fair value of the financial guarantee contracts
is not significant.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group provided guarantees
to LS-NJ Port Imperial LLC, a 51% joint venture of the
Group, for its bank borrowing with the amount of
RMB61,770,000 and LS-NJ Port Imperial EB5 Borrower
LLC, a 51% joint venture of the Group, for its EB-5 loans
with the amount of RMB122,508,000. Obligation under the
guarantees provided to LS-NJ Port Imperial LLC and LS-
NJ Port Imperial EB5 Borrower LLC shall be discharged
pursuant to the counter-indemnity provided by Landsea
Group Co., Ltd. Bank borrowing and EB-5 Loan of Fenway
Ventures Point Properties LLC, which guaranteed by the

Group were repaid during the year ended 31 December
2018.

@ AEHEZREBEESIE SEDE
BERZHRBEFRREYRZFERZ
ERETRBER BRAERENEE
FHERFREXEERBEERARE
ERE)RARTEE - ARAESER
R WBRERENZAABELTERK -

b) RZTE-—NF+A=+—8H X5EE
A LS-NJ Port Imperial LLC(AA%E 2
B1% A EhE) ZRITEFRERR - &
%A AR 61,770,0007C © A5 B R 65
£ LS-NJ Port Imperial EB5 Borrower LLC
(RAEBZ51% A ER%E) ZEB-5ER
REER  28AH A KK 122,508,000
JC ° ¥ L.S-NJ Port Imperial LLC & LS-NJ
Port Imperial EB5 Borrower LLC ] 1% &
BEESREBEMSFEBROER QGO EH
JERERE R - ARNEEREERY
Fenway Ventures Point Properties LLC i
TERREB-SERERBE_T—N\F
+ZA=+—HLEFEEE-

BEGEERERAT / —F \FTH




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

41 COMMITMENTS 41 EiE
(A) OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (A) REHEZH
The Group — As lessee AEE — ERBARBA
At the reporting date, the Group had the outstanding RERE  NEBRBITRBEEE
commitments for future minimum lease payments under HEZ R ERRFKEREMFRENT ¢

non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
—E-NE —E—+tF
+=ZA=+—-8 +=-—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBT T

Within one year —FNR 353,434 82,756
Later than one year but no later —FEETBARF

than five years 2,833,078 763,080
Over five years HBiBAF 5,604,382 1,649,378

8,790,894 2,395,214

The Group — As lessor KEE — EBLEFA
The Group leases its investment properties under operating AEMR AT T LAY
lease arrangements, with lease terms ranging from one to W BN T2 & AEER
twenty years, and with an option to renew the lease terms EmANsAEEEL A E AL TS
at the expiry date or at the date as mutually agreed BHIER - W4 BERS— R
between the Group and respective tenants. The terms of B3 RHRES BB B 30 75 TR & A
the leases generally also require the tenants to pay security ERAAL o

deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions.



41 COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(A) OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(Continued)
The Group — As lessor (Continued)

At the reporting date, the Group has contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

41 EiE#)
(A) KREHEZHE)

FEE — EBHBEA ()

ZARREEABEBENK :

31 December

RBEAH AEERUATEBESFTH

31 December

2018 2017

i n

—E-N\F —T—tF

+=A=+—-H +=-—A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBT T

Within one year —FR 136,612 34,449
Later than one year but no later —FBETBRAF

than five years 114,978 66,158

Over five years BiBEAF 36,158 18,723

287,748 119,330

(B) CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had the following

capital commitments:

(B) BEAREE
ZEARELENT

31 December

RZB-NE+A=+—R0 &&H

31 December

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
+=B=+-8 +=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARET T

Contracted but not provided for: EEESIEES 3
— Development expenditure — %I 567,194 1,534,328
— Purchase of freehold land — BEKAERE T 863,122 854,724
— Renovation expenditure — eI 316,795 84,527
1,747,111 2,473,579

HEFSZEREERAT / —F—

NEEH




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

42 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 42 FENMBELQF

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of incorporation

Particulars of issued

ARREEMBARFIFNOT

Ownership interests

Principal activities and

Name and kind of legal entity  share capital held by the Group place of operation
EMATY ) TEER
£ RAEERER BRITRAFE REBRENAEREER R
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
AZE-NF  RIELF
tZA=t-B TZA=t-H
(%) (%)
Cathay Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$_1 each 100 100 Investment holding
BREEBRAA () B 2B BR1ET REER
Ching Information Industry Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each 100 100 Investment holding
PEEAREXERAA () Y 2Bk BR1ABT RARR
Dawning Information Industry Mainland China HK$152,120,000 100 100 Property leasing and buiding
(Shenzhen) Limited HE R 152,120,000 management
BXERER (R EBRAF () FHEHERETER
GOl Limited (c) Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each 100 100 Investment holding
; 2Bk - BR1BT RAER
Green Future Holdmgs Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 100 100 Investment holding
RERRERERAR (0 ’ 1R 8R1ET RERR
Green Homeland Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100 100 Investment holding
REZXERRAAE () ; 1R 8R1AT REER
Green Theme Limited (c) Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1_ each 100 100 Investment holding
; 1R 8R1AT REER
New Phenomenon Technology BM 1 share of USS1 100 100 Investment holding
Limited (c) ERABRES 1% 8R1%T REZR
Aqua Sky Limited (c) Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100 100 Investment holding
; 1R 8R1AT REER
Easy Shine Global Limited (c) Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100 100 Investment holding
7 1K 8R1ET RERER
Green Era Limited () BVI _ 1 share of US$1_ 100 100 Investment holding
ARABRES 1R BR1%ET REER
Power Sky Enterprises Limited (c) Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100 100 Investment holding
; 1 8R1AT REER
Prosperous Eagle Limited (c) Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100 100 Investment holding
7 1R §R1AT RAHER
Landsky Investment Holdings Limited (c) ~ Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100 100 Investment holding
&R 1R 8R1ET REER
Landliving Investment Holdings Limited (c)  Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100 100 Investment holding
i 1% 8R1AT RAER



Place of incorporation

42 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of issued

42 FEWBE AT (&)

Ownership interests

Principal activities and

Name and kind of legal entity  share capital held by the Group place of operation
SR L% ) TEEH
£ REEERER BRITRAFE FRERENRERRES REEHY
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
R=B-NEf  R-T+F
tZBA=+-B +ZA=1-H
(%) (%)
Hangzhou Langhong Property Limited Mainland China RMB100,000,000 100 100 Property development
RNARERBRAR" R AR 100,000,000 7T RHERE
Chengdu Langming Property Limited Mainland China RMB8,000,000 100 100 Property development
REAEE X BR AR R El AK#8,0000007 BHERE
Shanghai Langming Property Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100 100 Property development
development Limited HEIA AR 50,000,000 BHERE
EREEHEREERAR
Suzhou Langkun Property Limited Mainland China RMB100,000,000 55 55 Property development
FMAmERRRAR A AK#100,000,0007 FHERE
Shanghai Langxin Properties Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100 100 Property development
Development Limited HER AR#50,000,00070 BHERE
FEBEREREERAR"
Wuxi Langhua Development Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100 100 Property development
BHNZEXARAT R E ARH50,000,0007C BHERE
Nanjing Landsea Investment Mainland China RMB200,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
Management Limited HEIA, AR 200,000,007 RARR
BRBRREERARAR
Shanghai Landsea Investment Mainland China 1US$5,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
Management Limited HEIA 5,000,000%7T RERR
FEBSRAERERAR
Asia Pacific Business Link Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each 100 38  Property development
DARBHEERAT] ; 28k BR1ET BiERZ
9,670,000 shares of
US$1 each
9,670,000/
BR1ET
Nanjing Langming Properties Mainland China RMB1,250,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
Group Limited HEIA AR H1,250,000,000 70 RERR
ARMsEREARAR
Zhongfuylyang T ianjin) Real Estate Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB100,000,000 75 75 Property development
PEER(K2)EXERAA" ElM, AR 100,000,007 RHERE
Nanjing Langaing Property Limited Mainland China HK$1,124,980,000 100 100 Property development
BRBEERARAR" hE R 1,124,980,000 57 RHERE
Nanjing Landsea Construction and Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100 100 Decoration and design
Decoration Limited FEAH AR#50,000,0007C L3 E )

ERARERHAR AR

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR
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42 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 42 FTENBAR @

Place of incorporation

Particulars of issued

Ownership interests

Principal activities and

Name and kind of legal entity  share capital held by the Group place of operation
GUEAEL) ) TEEH
2B REEERER BRTRAFE FRERENRERRES REEHY
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
RZB-N§  R-ZT—+F
tZAZ+-8 +-AZt-d
(%) (%)
Zhejiang Langyue Construction and Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100 100 Decoration and design
Decoration Limited HE A AK#10,000,0007T TG
IR ER SRR
Wuxi Minglang Property Limited Mainland China RMB§0,000,000 100 100 Property development
EHRRERARAA PR AR 50,000,007 FHERE
Shanghai Langqing Investment Mainland China RMB17,183,252 100 100 Investment holding
Management Limited PENL ARE17,183,262 7T REER
EREREERERAF
Nanjing Xinbeisheng Investment Mainland China Nil 100 100 Property leasing and building
Management Co., Ltd. HEAH i management
HREHEREERERAE BHERERETER
Nanjing Bozhixin Investment Mainland China RMB17,880,000 100 100 Investment holding
Management Limited PER AR#17,880,0007C REER
HREBREERERAE
Nanjing Xinhuisheng Investment Mainland China RMB8,000,000 60 60  Investment holding
Management Limited HENH AR 8,000,0007 RAER
HRBERREERERAF
Hangzhou Langhui Investment Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
Management Limited FENH AR 5,000,0007 RAER
MMBRREERERAR
Beﬂng Landsea Investment Limited Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100 100 Property development
ERBFREERERAR A AR 50,000,000 BiERZ
Shanghai Langzhi Property Limited Mainland China RMB§,000,000 100 100 Property development
BB EEAR AR A AK#8,000,0007 FHERS
Hangzhou Langyu Investment Mainland China RMB200,000,000 100 100 Leasing
Management Co. LTD. HEIR AR 200,000,000 HE
MMRBREERERAF
Chengdu Haixing Cold Industry Mainland China RMB12,079,000 99.59 NA  Property development
Trading o, Ltd. REAM AR 12,079,000 7C TER  BHERE
KEERLEEFRODERAR (D)
Ningbo Landsea Enterprise Mainland China Nil 100 NA  Investment holding
Management Consuiting Co. Ltd HEAH i TER AR

ERRLXEERAARLE "



Place of incorporation

42 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of issued

42 FEWBE AT (&)

Ownership interests

Principal activities and

Name and kind of legal entity share capital held by the Group place of operation
ALY ) TEER
2R RtEREER BRITRAFE FRERENRERRES REEHY
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
W-8-NF  R-F-tE
t2AZt-A t2AZt-d
(%) (%)
Shanghai Shanglv Marketing Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100 100 Marketing
Planning Co., Ltd RERL AKH10,000,0007T &
HERgmSEHRAARAR
Nanjing Wangjiawan Logistics Mainland China RMB106,116,346 60 NA  Investment holding
Center Co., Ltd. HEIA ARH#106,116,346 7T TER  RERR
ARIREMRTOERAEAF
Suzhou Langheng Real Estate Co.,Ltd. Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100 NA Investment holding
BMBEEXARAR HElAH AR 50,000,000 TER RERR
Shanghai Langkun Business Mainland China Nil 100 100 Investment holding
Management Co. Ltd. R E R i REER
TERRARERERAR
Wuhan Lvshanghexin Marketing Mainland China Nil 100 NA  Marketing
Planning Co., Ltd. hEAH i TER &8
RERHAETHEHREARAT
Shanghai Landsea Apartment Industry Mainland China RMB500,000,000 100 NA  Leasing
Development Co., LTD. HEAH AR#500,000,0007T TER HE
EREBEERERARAA
Nantong Diding Business Mainland China Nil 100 100 Property leasing and building
Management Co., Ltd. HEAH i management
RTRLEERERAR ) BHERERETER
Shanghai Langsong Industrial Co. LTD. Mainland China RMB120,000,000 100 100 Property leasing and building
LEBREEARAR D) RERL AR#120,000,0007 management
FHERERETER
Landsea Holdings Corporation Us US$158,873,331 100 100 Investment holding
E3E] 158,873,331 T RERR
SF Vale LLC (a) us 1US$9,000,000 5 5 Investment holoing
%8 9,000,000% 7 REER
LS- Jordan Ranch LLC us 1S$19,900,870 100 100  Real estate development
e 19,900,870 T and sales US
BHERERHE- XH
LS-LA Simi LLC US US$21,786,756 100 100 Real estate development
*H 21,786,756 % T and sales US

FHERERHEE- XH

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR
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42 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 42 FEMBQT &)
Place of incorporation  Particulars of issued Ownership interests Principal activities and
Name and kind of legal entity share capital held by the Group place of operation
BRI Y FTEEK
2B RtERRER BRTRAFE FRERENRERRS REEHE
31 December 31 December
2018 2017

RS$-NF  HoF4F
t=A=t-R fZA=1-A

(%) (%)
L.S-OC Portola LLC Us US$102,849,956 100 100  Real estate development
e 102,849,956 % and sales US
EHERERHE- X
L.S-Walnut Creek LLC UsS US$12,945,233 100 100 Real estate development
25 12,945,233 % ¢ and sales US
EHEREREE- XH
LS-NJ Port Imperial LLC us US$96,335,191 100 100  Real estate development
25 96,335,191 %7t and sales US
EHEREREE - XH
LS-Sunnyvale LLC us US$133,269,944 T 71 Real estate development
e 133,269 944 T and sales US
EHEREREE- XH
Epic China Limited (c) BvI N US$50,000 100 100 Investment holding
RERARES 50,000%7 REER
Landsea Equity LLC Us US$ 51,900,000 100 100 Investment holding
%H 51,900,000% 7t RE#ER
& Limited liability company registered in Mainland China # R E PR 2 BB AR
; ' ) R * 2 Al

English translations are for identification purpose only

AEBRZ AR —EEKE -

(@) The Group is the only managing member of the Company. (@

b  WEHBARNEGEEEAREERTERAER

(b) The equity interests of these subsidiaries are pledged for bank borrowings of

the Group. (note 29). (M$3E29) ©

(c)  The guaranteed senior notes (note 29) are irrevocably, fully and () Eﬁ_’%ﬁ@ﬁﬂﬁ%(ﬂﬁ%%) flﬂ:%f‘ﬁ%’&ﬂ(@ﬂﬂ&
unconditionally guaranteed on a senior basis by these subsidiaries (each and IR ARG - BRI R RS IEAR -
collectively).



43 SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ON SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS
The total non-controlling interests as at 31 December 2018 were
approximately RMB377,340,000 (2017: RMB206,122,000), of
which approximately were RMB253,294,000 (2017:
RMB231,637,000) attributed as below for Suzhou Langkun
Property Limited.

SUMMARIZED STATEMENTS OF BALANCE
SHEET

43 A AFEHIMERNEQRMY

M-ZB—N\E+ - A=+—BEIFEF
FO B ANRBEI77,340,000( T —H 4 :
AR¥206,122,0007T) + EREMAHEES
PR A A FE fh 49 A R #253,204,00070( = &
—+F : AR¥231,637,0007T) * FEE DM
IR e

EEEERAEE

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
RZBE-—-N\FE RZZE—F
+=BA=+—-H +=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETTT
Current mED
Assets BE 3,196,179 2,350,624
Liabilities afE (2,180,341) (1,816,969)
Total current net assets MENFEERAE 1,015,838 533,655
Non-current IERED
Assets BE 7,037 9,094
Liabilities aE (460,000) (28,000)
Total non-current net assets FEREEEEMAE (452,963) (18,906)
Net assets BEFE 562,875 514,749
Accumulated non-controlling interest St IR H RS 253,294 231,637

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR
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43 SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 43 EE ARFIEFIMRELRSME D T8 8

ON SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON- BERBE &)
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)
SUMMARIZED STATEMENTS OF 2HKRERBE

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
R=B—N\EF R
+=A=+-8 +=A=t+-H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARBT T

Revenue WA 1,599,387 1,254,315
Profit before income tax B PSR BT 558,449 428,632
Income tax expense T8t & A 140,322 99,932
Total profit PN FGEE 418,127 328,700
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEMW AT 418,127 328,700

Total comprehensive income attributable to FEE RS (S a%E
non-controlling interest 210,207 147,915

Distribution to non-controlling interests M JEFE b MR 2 D R 188,550 -




43 SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 43 E B KIS R M S A B &Y B

ON SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON- BERBE &)
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)
SUMMARISED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS HEREXRPE
For the year For the year
ended ended

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

Bz HE
—E-N\F T
+=-—A=+-8 +=A=+—H
HEE FFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETTT ARBET T

Net cash generated from operating activites &2 /EBFT15IR & 58 757,798 240,717

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing  RE&EENFT (), 1554 H58
activities (24) 25,190

Net cash used in from financing activities BESEEFTAIR &R (20,723) (813,045)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash RBE&RIRESEWEM, CR)
equivalents ecd-c] 737,051 (47,138)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January —A— BB RBEEEEY 121,472 168,610

Effect of currency translation on cash and RekBeSEBYEERENTE
cash equivalents - -
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December +_-A=+—HBE&NIREEEDY 858,523 121,472

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR
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44 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 4 XPFEEEBEBXREHEESD
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY APARIEEEEBX

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
R=B-—NF RKRZT—+F
t+=A=+-A +-A=+-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT

Non-current assets FERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR Zi%E 406,621 399,089
Investments in joint ventures REELEZIRE - 129,701
406,621 528,790
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, prepayments and Hih U - BN RS
deposits 4,709,898 4,405,661
Cash and cash equivalents Re KA EEY 28,485 8,823
4,738,383 4,414,484
Total assets BERE 5,145,004 4,943,274
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables E T 2,663,973 2,817,125
Borrowings EEN 142,297 1,002,958
2,806,270 3,820,083
Non-current liabilities FERBAE
Borrowings &3k 1,584,149 213,990
Total liabilities BE & 4,390,419 4,034,073




44 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Continued) APFEEEERE)

4 RPTREEEERRREAEEZE @)

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
RZB-—NE RKZZE—LF
+=-—A=+-8 +=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARBT T

Equity xR

Share capital R& AR 38,702 31,800
Convertible perpetual securities AR K A 3B 55 (@) - 495,425
Reserves G (b) 715,883 381,976
Total equity HRES 754,585 909,201
Total liabilities and equity BmEeERER 5,145,004 4,943,274
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board ARREEABRENR-_ZE—NF=A=+=
of Directors on 22 March 2019 and was signed on its behalf. AKEERME  WHATATREREE -

Zhou Qin
B &
Director

EF

Shen Leying
R

Director

EF

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR
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44 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
(a) Convertible perpetual securities and reserves

movement of the Company

44

ARBEEEEXRRREAEERZE @)

ARARNEERER#E)
(a) ARATLRKKAEBFR HEEE

Convertible
perpetual
securities Reserves Total
AR
KAE S s fmEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTTT ARBTT
(b)
At 1 January 2017 R=-ZE—t&—-—HF—H 484,204 856,598 1,340,802
Exchange difference arising from BEBINERESER 5
translation of foreign operation - (76,929) (76,929)
Loss for the year FEEE = (232,789) (232,789)
Total comprehensive loss FERHBRAHE
for the year - (309,718) (309,718)
Issuance of shares BITRAD
Shares held for restricted share AR B MR BB R T2
award scheme BB 2KG - (6,543) (6,543)
Accrued distribution to holders of AR KA EHEE AR
convertible perpetual securities DK 19,679 (19,679 -
Distributions to holders of convertible ~ A[3fR K A FHIEH A DR
perpetual securities (8,458) - (8,458)
Dividend fRE = (138,682) (138,682)
Subtotal of transaction with B R 5/N;
shareholders 11,221 (164,904) (153,683)
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—t&+=-A=+—H 495,425 381,976 877,401




44 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
(a) Convertible perpetual securities and reserves

movement of the Company (Continued)

ARARNEERERE)
(a) FRATRRIAZZREEEE (E)

4 FKAPTFEEEBREHFESR 2

Convertible
perpetual
securities Reserve Total
LIk ;04
KARSE EX] @st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®TR AR®TR
(b)
At 1 January 2018 R=F-N\F-H—H 495,425 381,976 877,401
Exchange difference arising from BEBINESRESER =5
translation of foreign operation - 21,838 21,838
Loss for the year FEBE - (114,479) (114,479)
Total comprehensive loss FEXEBEAR
for the year - (92,641) (92,641)
Shares held for restricted share AR HIE R SR BY =T & i
award scheme REZRG - (17,486) (17,486)
Issue of ordinary shares as PREERE A BT B
capitalisation of shareholder loans - 251,997 251,997
Accrued distribution to holders of AR KA BT E AR DK
convertible perpetual securities 29,599 (29,599) -
Distributions to holders of AHRBRKABFREADIK
convertible perpetual securities (51,648) - (51,648)
Conversion of convertible BRI A 2
perpetual securities (364,220) 360,318 (3,902)
Redemption of convertible FE Rl A EH
perpetual securities (109,156) - (109,156)
Dividend declared BEERKE - (138,682) (138,682)
Subtotal of transaction with HRRRXZ /DT
shareholders (495,425) 426,548 (68,877)
At 31 December 2018 R=ZB-NE+=A=+—H - 715,883 715,883

BEgeEEARAT / —F/\FFE N\ 331



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SNSRIV ED Ead

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

44 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 44 XRREEEBERRFEZD @)
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Continued) KABIEEEEBER(Z)
(b) Reserves movement of the Company (b) ZEREFEZE
Share based Capital

Share  Translation ~ compensation Employee  redemption  Contributed ~ Accumulated
premium reserve reseve  sharetrust reserve surplus losses Total
RiERM  BARD  AARE
RitaE  FEER G s RE BEE®  Z0ER it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARBTT ARETR  ARETn  ARETR  ARETT  ARETI

At 1 January 2017 RZB-tE-A-A 712,061 118,314 19,800 (28,907) 23,185 14,711 (102,556) 856,598

Exchange difference arising from HERNBHELELZE

translation of foreign operation - (76,929) - - - = = (76,929)
Loss for the year FEEE - - - - - - (232,789) (232,789)
Total comprehensive loss for the year E£E2HERES = (76,929) - - - - (232,789 (309,718)
Shares held for restricted share BRI R R AR

award scheme BEZRG - - - (6,543) - - - (6,543)
Accrued distribution to holders of MRRKAR R AR

convertible perpetual securities 2k = = - - - - (19,679) (19,679)
Share premium reduction R EE (500,000 - - - - 500,000 - -
Dividend decared ERe - - - - - (13868 - (13868
Subtotal of transaction with shareholders — ERE R F/it (500,000) - - (6,543) - 361,318 (19,679 (164,904)
At 31 December 2017 W-E8-tE+-A=t-A 212,061 41,386 19,800 (35,450) 23,185 476,029 (355,024) 381,976




44 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 4 KRPREEEBERRHFEES 2
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Continued) KNBEEEBRER(E)
(b) Reserves movement of the Company (Continued) (b) AEREFESE(Z)
Share based Capital

Share  Translation compensation  Employee  redemption  Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve reserve  share trust reserve surplus losses Total
BEEH  ESRG  41RE
REE  FEEE fife A i EEEH®  RHER &3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR  ARBTR ARBTR  ARMTR ARMTR  ARMTZ ARBTR  ARETR

At1 January 2018 R=E-NE-A-B 212,051 41,385 19,800 (35,450) 23,185 476,029 (355,024) 381,976
Exchange difference arising from HERNEBHELELZE

translation of foreign operation - 21,838 - - - - - 21,838
Loss for the year EEER - - - - - - (114479) (114,479

Total comprehensive loss for the year 2 HEBEE - 21,838 - - -

(14479 (92641)

Issue of ordinary shares as capitalisation SRR ERERELT

of shareholder loans LaEk 251,997 - - - - - - 251,997
Conversion of convertible ERTRRAES

perpetual securities 360,318 - - - - - - 360,318
Shares held for restricted share ARHMR R AT

award scheme #EZRA - - - (17,486) - - - (17,486)
Employee share based compensation [EERERM - - (9,966) 9,966 - - - -
Accrued distrbution of holders of TERKARSHEA

convertible perpetual securities 2R - - - - - - (29,599) (29,599)
Dividend RE - - - - - (138,682) - (138,682)
Subtotal of transaction with BRRR A

shareholders 612315 - 9966) (7,520 - (138682 (9599 426548
At 31 December 2018 R-B-NFTzA=T-B 46 6322 98% (010 23185 3T (499109 715883

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE_-ZF

BB HRRM

—N\F+ZA=t—RALFE

45 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

0

(i

On 15 February 2019, the Group entered into a cooperation
agreement with Bridge Trust Co., Ltd. (“Bridge Trust”) to
cooperate in the development of a parcel of land.
According to the agreement, Bridge Trust will acquire 49%
interests in the project company currently wholly owned by
the Group and will provide funding to the project company
in the form of equity and loan with the amount not
exceeding RMB300,000,000, and the Group will buy back
the equity and the loan with a maximum amount of
RMB600,000,000.

On 21 February 2019, the Group entered into a cooperation
agreement with 8 FUSEEBEREMER &SI ZE Nanjing
Luode Dening Real Estate Investment Partnership (Limited
Partnership) (“Dening Fund”)) to cooperate in the
development of a parcel of land. According to the
agreement, Dening Fund will acquire 70% interests in the
project company currently wholly owned by the Group at a
consideration of RMB14,000,000 and will provide
shareholder’s loan not exceeding RMB126,000,000, and
the Group will buy back the equity and the loan with a
maximum amount of RMB280,000,000.

45 HEHREBE

U

R-E-NF_A+HB AEEHER
ImERAREERA(ARERDIIZ
BEWE - SIERE BRI - RIFX
W BmERHRBEASRERENE2E
BEAHIE B R RH)49% BkE - Wi AT
i i@ A R ¥ 300,000,000 7T #) I 1 R &
Ho MBAEBARRHES  MAKES
LA _EBR A K % 600,000,000 7T [B] f A% #
RER -

RZE—NWF-_A=-+—H AEEH
HRAREEEEHERESREE(E
BES DiIUEERHE  SEREERZ
R o BIEZ DR EEESKBKER
SEEAMEEHANEER QFIAT70% K
7 REA AR 14,000,0007T @ I #
IR E R HBE A R 126,000,000
T MASEH AN ERARE
280,000,000 7t 2 B A% 4 K B 3K o



FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AT }*‘ [==a]
e
Year ended 31st December
BE+-A=1+—HILEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—EBE-N\F ZT—+F ZT—RF T—HF ZTMHmOF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT ARETRE ARETT ARETT
(Restated)
(gg&E5)
Results E4
Revenue* WA * 7,560,526 6,213,931 4,845,008 1,792,791 703,826
Profit before income tax* R ET1SEL AT FE * 2,261,739 1,127,411 832,467 663,990 419,517
Income tax expense* FrStiEm (821,169) (406,570) (225,631) (184,261) (119,367)
Profit for the year FEAHE 1,440,570 720,841 606,836 479,729 300,150
Attributable to: B
The shareholder of the Company XA AIARE 1,112,774 580,523 595,439 485,079 301,590
Non-controlling interest eI AR 327,796 140,318 11,397 (5,350) (1,440)
1,440,570 720,841 606,836 479,729 300,150
* Including continuing and discontinued operations BIERERIFFER S
At 31st December
R+=—A=+—H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\F —T+F —FTF —T-HF —FT-NOF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT AREBTT AREBTT ARETT
(Restated)
(ge&E5)
Assets and liabilities EENAE
Total assets WEE 26,775,274 20,320,501 18,007,126 14,140,916 8,989,167
Total liabilities RSN (22,014,379) (16,622,438) (14,954,410) (12,182,757) (7,607,922
4,760,895 3,698,063 3,052,716 1,958,159 1,381,245
Attributable to: SEER
The shareholder of the Company N2 AIARE 4,383,555 3,491,941 2,900,656 1,917,949 1,335,685
Non-controlling interest FEFE PR R RS 377,340 206,122 152,060 40,210 45,560
4,760,895 3,698,063 3,052,716 1,958,159 1,381,245

HEFZEREERAE / —F—\FFR




PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Ea=N

==
=

i

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR RENTAL #F{EHHE2REMWHE

PURPOSE

Location

bk ]

Approximately
gross floor area
ARNEEEE
(square meters)

(FF3K)

Nature of
property
YIEME

Attributable
interest of
the Group

AR M R iR

Lease term

HAFH

Landsea Tower, Keji South 12 Road,
Shenzhen High-Tech Park,

Nanshan District,

Shenzhen City,

The PRC

A EY

wYT

Ez{1I])

YN = F R T [ R+ B
BAFRE

Nanjing Huafei Apartment,

Block 11 Zhangying Estate Huadian Road,

Qixia District,
Nanjing City,
Jiangsu Province,
The PRC

HE

LERA

FAR M

ZERE
EHEEREN 111
FARERIE

Landsea Neighbourhood Union,
Southwest side B of intersection of
Yunhe West Road and Ningjia Road,
New District,

Wuxi City,

Jiangsu Province,

The PRC

A EY

LERA

mem

£l

BN PR B R AN O
Al B

AR &

17,836

17,836

5,729

5,729

15,439

15,439

Commercial

[CE S

Apartment

>
it

Commercial

[EE S

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Medium-term lease

HHIR A

Medium-term lease

T AR AY

Medium-term lease

hHIE A
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